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NOTICE REGARDING DISCLOSURE OF MINING PROPERTIES

The technical report summary for Pennsuco Quarry, Miami-Dade County, Florida and the technical report summary for Roanoke Quarry, Botetourt County, Virginia,
included herewith, have been prepared in accordance with subpart 1300 of Regulation S-K –Disclosure by Registrants Engaged in Mining Operations, (“S-K 1300”) as issued
by the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”), under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended, (the “Securities Act”), which governs disclosure for
mining registrants. Such technical report summaries titled “Technical Report Summary for Pennsuco Quarry, Miami-Dade County, Florida” and “Technical Report Summary
for Roanoke Quarry, Botetourt County, Virginia” respectively, each dated August 30, 2024, were prepared by Continental Placer Inc., independent geological and environmental
consultants, who is a qualified person under S-K 1300 and is independent of us, are included as Exhibit 96.1 and Exhibit 96.2, respectively, in this Annual Report.

Unless otherwise indicated, the scientific and technical information contained in this Annual Report regarding the Pennsuco Quarry and Roanoke Quarry have been
derived from the S-K 1300 Report, which was included as Exhibit 96.1 and Exhibit 96.2, respectively, to our registration statement on Form F-1 filed with the SEC and
declared effective on February 6, 2024, and is included as Exhibit 96.1 and Exhibit 96.2, respectively, to this Annual Report (our “Registration Statement”).
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Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information

This document contains “forward-looking statements,” as that term is defined in the U.S. federal securities laws, concerning our business, operations and financial
performance and condition, as well as our plans, objectives and expectations for our business operations and financial performance and condition. Any statements contained
herein that are not statements of historical facts may be deemed to be forward-looking statements. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terminology
such as “aim,” “anticipate,” “assume,” “believe,” “contemplate,” “continue,” “could,” “due,” “estimate,” “expect,” “goal,” “commit,” “commitment,” “intend,” “may,”
“objective,” “plan,” “predict,” “potential,” “positioned,” “pioneer,” “seek,” “should,” “target,” “will,” “would” and other similar expressions that are predictions of or indicate
future events and future trends, or the negative of these terms or other comparable terminology.

In this document, Titan America SA and its consolidated subsidiaries are together referred to as the “Company,” “Titan America,” “we,” “us,” “our” or similar terms.
Titan Cement International SA, Titan America’s ultimate parent, is referred to as “Titan Cement International,” “TCI,” or “our Parent.”

From time to time, oral or written forward-looking statements may also be included in other materials released to the public. These statements are based on
management’s assumptions, judgments and beliefs in light of the information currently available to it. Titan America cautions investors that a number of important risks and
uncertainties could cause actual results to differ materially from those discussed in the forward-looking statements, and therefore investors should not place undue reliance on
them. Investors also should not rely on any obligation of Titan America to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future
events or otherwise. Titan America disclaims any such obligation. Risks and uncertainties that might affect Titan America include, but are not limited to:

• increases in the cost or fluctuations in the availability of labor, fuel and energy, raw materials and other production inputs;

• fluctuations in energy, fuel prices and transportation costs and changes in prices for or availability of commodities, labor or other production inputs;

• increases in market demand for cement substitutes;

• impacts of climate change and regulations intended to address climate change;

• fluctuations in public spending for infrastructure and large-scale projects, construction levels and urbanization trends;

• the timing or likelihood of regulatory approvals, licenses and permits, as well as delays in construction projects;

• our ability to protect our intellectual property, the confidentiality of our know-how, trade secrets, technology and other proprietary information;

• regulatory developments in the United States, Europe and other jurisdictions, including those relating to the protection of the environment, health and safety;

• our expectations about market trends;

• our ability to accurately forecast demand for our products and manage our inventory;

• developments relating to our competitors and our industry, including demand for cement substitutes;

• our ability to effectively manage our anticipated growth;

• our ability to attract and retain key management and other qualified personnel;

• union disputes and other employee relations issues;
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• our ability to realize the anticipated benefits of strategic investment in research and development, digitalization and logistical capabilities;

• the future trading price of our common shares and impact of securities analysts’ reports on these prices;

• the risk that an active, liquid trading market for our common shares may not develop or that the market for our common shares may be volatile;

• increased costs and regulatory burdens resulting from being a public company listed on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”);

• our ability to operate as a standalone public company;

• conflicts of interest and disputes arising between Titan Cement International and us that could be resolved in a manner unfavorable to us;

• our ability to remediate the identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting; and

• other risks and uncertainties, including those listed under the caption “Risk Factors.”

We caution you that the foregoing list does not contain all of the forward-looking statements made in this document.

You should not rely upon forward-looking statements as predictions of future events. We have based the forward-looking statements contained in this document
primarily on our current expectations and projections about future events and trends that we believe may affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and
prospects. The outcome of the events described in these forward-looking statements is subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors, including those described above, in “Risk
Factors” under “Item 3. Key Information ,” “Item 4. Information on the Company ,” “Item 5. Operating and Financial Review and Prospects,” “Legal Proceedings” included in
“Item 8. Financial Information,” Titan America’s consolidated financial statements referenced in “Item 8. Financial Information” and “Item 11. Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures about Market Risk.” Moreover, we operate in a competitive environment, and new risks and uncertainties may therefore emerge from time to time, and it is not
possible for us to predict all risks and uncertainties that could have an impact on the forward-looking statements contained in this document. We cannot guarantee that the
results, events and circumstances reflected in the forward-looking statements will be achieved or occur, and actual results, events or circumstances could differ materially from
those described in the forward-looking statements.

Neither we nor any other person assumes responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of any of these forward-looking statements. Moreover, the forward-looking
statements made in this document relate only to events as of the date on which the statements are made. We undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statements
made in this document to reflect events or circumstances after the date of this document or to reflect new information or the occurrence of unanticipated events, except as
required by law. We may not actually achieve the plans, intentions or expectations disclosed in our forward-looking statements and you should not place undue reliance on our
forward-looking statements. Our forward-looking statements do not reflect the potential impact of any future acquisitions, mergers, dispositions, joint ventures or investments
we may make.

In addition, statements that “we believe” and similar statements reflect our beliefs and opinions on the relevant subject. These statements are based upon information
available to us as of the date of this document, and while we believe such information forms a reasonable basis for such statements, such information may be limited or
incomplete, and our statements should not be read to indicate that we have conducted an exhaustive inquiry into, or review of, all potentially available relevant information.
These statements are inherently uncertain, and investors are cautioned not to unduly rely upon these statements.

The forward-looking statements contained in this document are excluded from the safe harbor protection provided by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1935 and Section 27A of the Securities Act.

All forward-looking statements attributable to us or persons acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by this special note. Additionally, our
discussion of various information, including ESG matters, both here and in other locations is
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information by various standards and the interests of various stakeholders. As such, not all such information may be material and references to “materiality” and any related
assessment of ESG “materiality” may differ from the definition applicable for relevant reporting purposes.
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__________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Item 1. Identity of Directors, Senior Management and Advisers 

Not Applicable

Item 2. Offer Statistics and Expected Timetable 

Not Applicable

Item 3. Key Information 
 
A. [Reserved]

 
B. Capitalization and Indebtedness

Not Applicable

 
C. Reasons for the Offer and Use of Proceeds

Not Applicable

 
D. Risk Factors

This section contains forward-looking statements that are subject to the Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information appearing earlier in this annual
report. Risks to Titan America are also discussed elsewhere in this annual report.

Risks Related to Our Business and Industry

We have been, and may continue to be, adversely impacted by volatility and seasonality in the U.S. residential and non-residential construction markets.

Our business is largely dependent on demand for residential construction, public spending levels for infrastructure and large-scale projects. The U.S. residential and
non-residential construction markets are volatile and subject to cyclical market pressures. The level of activity in the U.S. residential and non-residential construction markets is
based on numerous factors such as availability of credit, interest rates, general economic conditions, consumer confidence and other factors that are beyond our control. As a
result of macroeconomic headwinds we have faced over the past several years, such as prolonged inflationary cost pressures, supply chain disruptions, the impact of public
health crises and geopolitical conflicts, U.S. residential and non-residential construction markets have been adversely affected, and may continue to be adversely affected in the
future, by changes in the cost of raw materials as well as labor costs, energy costs and freight costs associated with transportation of raw materials. In addition, demand for our
products could decline if companies and consumers are unable to obtain financing for construction projects or if an economic recession causes delays or cancellations to
infrastructure projects. A significant downturn in activity in either the U.S. non-residential or residential construction markets could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

We cannot predict the market conditions that will impact the residential or non-residential construction industry or the timing of residential or non-residential
construction activity. We also cannot provide any assurances that the operational strategies we have implemented to address current market conditions will be successful.
Weakness in the non-residential or residential construction industry could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows.
Due to the potential volatility in the residential and non-residential construction markets, there may be fluctuations in our operating results, and the results for any historical
period may not be indicative of results for any future period. Any uncertainty about current economic conditions can pose a risk to our business, financial position, results of
operations and cash flows, as participants in the U.S. non-residential and residential construction industries may postpone spending in response to tighter credit, negative
financial news or declines in income or asset values, which could have a material negative effect on the demand for our products.
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A significant portion of our business is seasonal, with results of operations affected by weather conditions. For the Mid-Atlantic region, construction material
production and related contracting services typically follow the activity in the construction industry, with heavier workloads in the spring, summer and fall. Accordingly, we
typically experience a decrease in sales in our Mid-Atlantic reportable segment during the first and fourth quarters reflecting the effect of the winter season in North America
and an increase in sales in the second and third quarters reflecting the effect of the summer season in North American markets. Besides the seasonal effects of weather
conditions, extreme or unusually adverse weather conditions, which have occurred and may reoccur, such as extreme temperatures, heavy or sustained rainfall or snowfall,
wildfires, hurricanes and storms may affect the demand for products and the ability to perform services on construction work. Heavy or sustained rainfall may particularly
impact operations of our ready-mix concrete business. Extreme or unusually adverse weather conditions could negatively affect our results of operations, financial position and
cash flows.

Fluctuations in energy, fuel prices and transportation costs could have an adverse effect on our costs of goods sold.

A significant proportion of our cost of goods sold are incurred in connection with the consumption of thermal and electric energy necessary to produce our products,
and in connection to transportation costs incurred for the distribution of our products. Cement production consumes a large quantity of energy, especially for the kilning and
grinding processes.

Energy is also required for the transportation, both within our facilities and externally, of our products through our trucks in addition to the operation of our equipment.
The principal elements of these energy costs are fuel expenses and electricity expenses (which include, inter alia, costs for coal, petroleum coke, natural gas and alternative
fuels). Due to their size and weight, aggregates are costly and difficult to transport efficiently. Our products and services are generally localized around our aggregate sites and
served by truck or in certain markets by rail or barge. We could be negatively impacted by freight costs due to rising fuel costs; rate increases for third-party freight; truck,
railcar or barge shortages, including shortages of truck drivers and rail crews; rail service interruptions; and minimum tonnage requirements, among other things. To the extent
price increases or other mitigating factors are not sufficient to offset these increased costs adequately or timely, or if the price increases result in a significant decrease in sales
volumes, our results of operations, financial position and cash flows could be negatively impacted. Increases or significant fluctuations in energy and fuel costs, freight rates or
other transportation costs could adversely affect our results of operations, business and financial condition, especially if we are unable to pass along higher input costs to our
customers. Energy prices may vary significantly in the future, largely due to market forces and other factors beyond our control, including changes in the relevant regulatory
regime or governmental policy applicable to energy prices. We may also, particularly in the case of coal, experience time lags between movements in energy prices and
movements in production costs since the supply of a substantial proportion of energy resources is secured pursuant to long-term purchase agreements. Risks related to
fluctuations in energy and fuel costs are increased due to the fact we do not use any long-term hedging instruments to mitigate the effects of such fluctuations. Legal
requirements, as well as a heightened awareness of environmental sustainability, have placed increased pressure on energy-intensive industries such as the cement industry to
increase their energy efficiency and to transition to more environmentally friendly sources of energy, such as renewables, which could further increase our cost of goods sold.
Changes in the availability of energy sources to meet these demands could adversely impact our ability to operate, and changes in energy prices as a result could significantly
increase our operating costs.

Significant changes in prices for or availability of commodities, labor or other production inputs could negatively affect our costs of goods sold.

Our manufacturing operations are exposed to fluctuations in costs for labor, energy and raw materials, among other things. These inputs are also subject to supply
chain fluctuations and other general economic and market conditions beyond our control. However, the primary key raw materials used in the manufacturing of cement or
aggregates are controlled through a combination of owned and leased reserves. Since 2021, we have experienced elevated commodity and supply chain costs and other inputs
used in the production and distribution of our products and services. Recent inflationary pressures have increased our costs above historical averages.

Availability of key natural resources used in the manufacturing of our products is one of the factors that significantly affect our operations and profitability. Therefore,
continued active management of our quarries and production plants and the related permits, licenses, rights and titles is key to controlling manufacturing cost escalations in the
long term. While the primary source of the key raw material of limestone is from owned reserves adjacent to the cement plants, there can be no assurance that we will be able to
maintain or renew these land and mining rights or that we will have similar cost containment for other inputs used in the production process.
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Our access to natural resources could be adversely affected by the closure of one or more of our quarries due to unforeseen circumstances related to changes in
regulatory environment, disruptions to available transportation networks, or the cancellation of freight agreements or other key contract terminations. If any of our suppliers
ceases to operate, or if we would need to incur additional costs to obtain such materials from other sources, such limitations on our ability to obtain the various inputs required,
or to obtain those inputs without additional costs, could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations. Moreover, as we pursue less carbon-intensive inputs for
cement, we may experience similar difficulties with alternative inputs such as supplementary cementitious materials (“SCMs”).

Increased market demand for cement substitutes could have an adverse impact on our business.

We specialize in the production of cement, aggregates, ready-mix concrete and related products and derive substantially all of our revenue therefrom. Materials such as
wood, steel, gypsum, plastic, aluminum and ceramics can be used in construction as a substitute for cement. Other existing construction techniques, such as the use of drywall,
as well as any new construction techniques and modern materials, could decrease the demand for cement, ready-mix concrete and mortars. In addition, new construction
techniques and modern materials that could replace the use of cement may be introduced in the future. To the extent such products are perceived as having superior
environmental or other sustainability characteristics, this may cause customers to be more willing or quick to replace their use of cement. The use of substitutes for cement
could cause a significant reduction in the demand and prices for our products and may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

We operate in a highly competitive industry.

The markets for cement, aggregates and other construction materials and services are very competitive. Competition in these segments is based largely on price and on
the quality of the material, service provided, logistics and innovative solutions offered. Similarly, our products are fairly commoditized and our ability to price them in a
profitable manner is constrained by a competitive price environment, restricting our profitability levels. Competition, whether from established market participants or new
entrants, could cause us to lose market shares, increase expenditures or reduce pricing, any one of which could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations or
financial condition.

We compete in each of the markets in which we operate with domestic and international cement producers, as well as importers. Each of these markets we serve are
highly fragmented and we compete with a number of regional and national companies. These producers may have greater financial and other resources than we do. Some others
are smaller and more specialized and concentrate their resources in particular areas of expertise. We could face increased competition, which would result in lower prices and
decreased volumes, either from existing players or new entrants to the markets in which we operate. Further, our profitability is generally dependent on the level of demand for
such building materials and services as a whole as well as on our ability to maximize efficiencies and control operating costs. Prices in these markets are subject to material
changes in response to relatively minor fluctuations in supply and demand, general economic conditions and other market conditions beyond our control.

In order to maintain or further reinforce our competitive position, we rely on periodic investments in the areas of production and innovation, and on regular
maintenance of our production facilities. In the future, we may not have adequate resources to continue to make such investments, and, as a result, may not be able to continue
to successfully compete in the markets in which we operate. In addition, competitors could react more quickly to the changing needs of customers, differentiate themselves
more effectively, or improve the functionality or performance of their products more quickly than us or in a more cost-effective manner. Therefore, we may face significant
price, margin or volume declines in the future, which could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations or financial condition in particular in markets where
cement overcapacity or oversupply is prevalent.

A material disruption at one or more of our facilities or in our supply chain could have a material adverse effect on us.

We own and operate manufacturing facilities of various ages and levels of automated control and rely on a number of third parties and affiliates as part of our supply
chain, including for the efficient distribution of products to our customers. Any disruption at one of our manufacturing facilities or within our supply chain could prevent us
from meeting demand or require us to incur unplanned capital expenditures. Older facilities are generally less energy efficient and are at an increased risk of breakdown or
equipment failure, resulting in unplanned downtime. Newly commissioned facilities are also subject to unforeseen breakdowns or failures related to mistakes in engineering and
equipment selection, poor workmanship during fabrication and/or installation, accidents during the construction and/or commissioning phases, mistakes during initial operation
and other related issues that can cause significant delays in the project implementation and facility start up. Any unplanned downtime at our facilities may cause delays in
meeting customer
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timelines, result in liquidated damages claims or cause us to lose or harm customer relationships. Additionally, we require specialized equipment to manufacture certain of our
products, and if any of our manufacturing equipment fails, the time required to repair or replace this equipment could be lengthy, which could result in extended downtime at
the affected facility. Any unplanned repair or replacement work can also be very expensive. Moreover, manufacturing facilities can unexpectedly stop operating because of
events unrelated to us or beyond our control, including fires and other industrial accidents, floods and other severe weather events, natural disasters, environmental incidents or
other catastrophes, utility and transportation infrastructure disruptions, shortages of raw materials, and acts of war or terrorism. Work stoppages, whether union-organized or
not, can also disrupt operations at manufacturing facilities. Furthermore, while we are generally responsible for delivering products to the customer, in some instances, we do
not maintain our own fleet of delivery vehicles and outsource this function to third parties. Any shortages in trucking or rail capacity, any increase in the cost thereof, or any
other disruption to the highway systems, could limit our ability to deliver our products in a timely manner or at all. Any material disruption at one or more of our facilities or
those of our customers or suppliers or otherwise within our supply chain, whether as a result of downtime, facility damage, an inability to deliver our products or otherwise,
could prevent us from meeting demand, require us to incur unplanned capital expenditures or cause other material disruption to our operations, any of which could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. While we maintain insurance policies covering, among other things, physical damage,
business interruptions and product liability, these policies may not cover all our losses. In addition, there is no assurance that insurance will continue to be available on terms
acceptable to us.

Delays in construction projects and any failure to manage our inventory could have a material adverse effect on us.

Many of our products are used in large-scale construction projects which generally require a significant amount of planning and preparation before construction
commences. However, construction projects can be delayed and rescheduled for several reasons, including unanticipated soil conditions, adverse weather or flooding, changes
in project priorities, financing issues, difficulties in complying with environmental and other government regulations or obtaining permits and additional time required to
acquire rights-of-way or property rights. These delays or rescheduling may occur with too little notice to allow us to replace those projects in our manufacturing schedules or to
adjust production capacity accordingly, creating unplanned downtime, increasing costs and inefficiencies in our operations and increased levels of obsolete inventory. Any
delays in construction projects and our customers’ orders or any inability to manage our supply could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

Our investments may not result in expanded capacity at our facilities at the expected levels or timeline, or at all, which could result in a variety of inefficiencies in our
business and hinder our ability to generate revenue and profits. If our investments do not result in expanded capacity at our facilities at the levels or timeline that is
expected, or at all, we could incur additional costs or experience delays.

We have recently expanded, and made significant investments to further expand, the capacity of our various facilities. However, it is difficult to predict whether our
investments will result in expanded capacity at our facilities at the expected levels or within the expected timeline, or at all, and we may have limited insight into trends that
may emerge and affect our business. If our investments do not result in expanded capacity at the levels or timeline that is expected, or at all, we could incur additional costs or
experience delays. Inaccurate predictions regarding these levels or timelines may prevent us from increasing our production levels, thereby hindering our ability to meet higher
demands. Failure to increase capacity and meet higher demands may harm our business, prospects, financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows.

The estimates of a multi-year growth phase in our industry included in this document may prove to be inaccurate, and even if the markets in which we operate achieve the
forecasted growth, our business could fail to grow at similar rates, or at all, and we could have over-capacity of our products.

The estimates of a multi-year growth phase in our industry included in this document may prove to be inaccurate. Market opportunity estimates and growth forecasts
are subject to significant uncertainty and are based on assumptions and estimates that may not prove to be accurate, including as a result of any of the risks described in this
document.

The variables that go into the calculation of multi-year growth are subject to change over time, and there is no guarantee that any particular number or percentage of
addressable customers covered by the multi-year growth estimates will purchase our products at all or generate any particular level of revenues for us. Even if the markets in
which we compete meet the size estimates and growth forecasted in this document, our business could fail to grow at similar rates, or at all, and we could have over-capacity of
our products, especially in light of the investments we have made to further expand the capacity at our various facilities. Our growth is subject to
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many factors, including our success in implementing our business strategy, which is subject to many risks and uncertainties. Accordingly, the forecasts of multi-year growth of
our industry included in this document should not be taken as indicative of our future growth.

Any delay or problem with operating or upgrading our existing information technology infrastructure could cause a disruption in our business and adversely impact our
financial results.

Our ability to operate our business on a day-to-day basis largely depends on the efficient operation of our information technology infrastructure and our cloud
providers, the largest of which is Microsoft Azure. We may be susceptible to hacks into our systems or other security breaches by unauthorized third parties. We are also
susceptible to errors in connection with any systems upgrade or migration to a different hardware or software system, errors or incidents of our cloud providers, bugs or other
problems for any of the software we use, either developed in-house or provided by third parties. Security breaches, financial, regulatory or other developments that might
prevent these third parties from providing services to us or our users could harm our business. Our systems and our information technology infrastructure are vulnerable to
damage or interruption from natural or man-made disasters, power loss, computer viruses, telecommunication and other operational failures, ransomware attacks or any other
kind of denial of service related attacks, physical or electronic break-ins, sabotage, intentional acts of vandalism, terrorism, public health crises (including pandemics), extreme
weather (including as a result of climate change) and similar events. The public cloud providers could also decide to close their facilities. Any steps that we may take to upgrade
and improve the stability and efficiency of our information technology may not be sufficient to avoid defects or disruptions in our technology infrastructure, which could cause
a disruption in our business and adversely impact our financial results. Our systems are not fully redundant, and our disaster recovery planning may not be sufficient. Any
errors, defects, disruptions, interruptions, delays or cessation of service could result in significant disruptions to our business that could ultimately be more expensive, time
consuming and resource intensive than anticipated. We may experience defects or disruptions in our technology infrastructure, including system interruptions and delays that
make our site and services unavailable or slow to respond for periods of time, which could adversely impact our ability to fulfill orders, which could reduce our revenue,
adversely affect our reputation with or result in the loss of users and negatively impact our financial results. Although we are insured against cyber risks and security breaches
up to an annual aggregate limit, our liability insurance may be inadequate and may not fully cover the costs of any claims or damages that we might be required to pay. In the
future, we may not be able to obtain adequate liability insurance on commercially desirable or reasonable terms or at all.

In September 2021, we implemented a new version of Titan Cement International’s enterprise resource planning software, SAP, as part of a plan to integrate and
upgrade our systems and processes. As we are dependent on the SAP license and system of Titan Cement International, we lack control over system updates, maintenance
schedules and overall system management, which could lead to delays or disruptions that impact our operations. The SAP license and system of Titan Cement International
might also not fully meet our unique needs, which might make our systems potentially less effective or inefficient. Any of these consequences could have a material adverse
effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our aggregate resource and reserve calculations are estimates and subject to uncertainty.

We estimate aggregate reserves and resources based on available data. The estimates depend upon the interpretation of surface and subsurface investigations, major
assumptions and other supporting data, which can be unpredictable.

The quantity must be considered only an estimate until reserves are actually extracted and processed. This uncertainty in aggregate resource and reserve calculation
may adversely impact our results of operations.

We may not be able to secure, permit or economically mine strategically located aggregate reserves or locate, permit or operate new ready-mix concrete sites.

As discussed above, aggregates are bulky and heavy and therefore difficult to transport efficiently. Because of the nature of the products, the freight costs can quickly
surpass production costs. Therefore, except for geographic regions that do not possess commercially viable deposits of aggregates and are served by rail, barge or ship, the
markets for our products tend to be very localized around our quarry sites and are served by truck. New quarry sites often take several years to develop. Our strategic planning
and new site development must stay ahead of actual growth. Additionally, we may not be able to locate new ready-mix concrete sites and secure the necessary governmental,
operating and environmental permits to operate such new sites. In a number of urban and suburban areas in which we operate, it is increasingly difficult to permit new sites or
expand existing sites due to community resistance. Therefore, our future success is dependent, in part, on our ability to accurately forecast future areas of high growth in order
to locate
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optimal facility sites and on our ability to either acquire existing quarries or secure governmental, operating, mining and environmental permits to open new quarries and/or
ready-mix concrete sites. If we are unable to accurately forecast areas of future growth, acquire existing quarries or secure the necessary permits to open new quarries and/or
ready-mix concrete sites, our financial condition, results of operations and liquidity may be materially adversely affected.

We may not be successful in implementing our growth strategy, which could have a material adverse effect on us.

Our long-term strategy includes both organic growth such as investment in lower carbon products, strengthening of market positions through our vertically integrated
business model and digitalization of our operations and growth via acquisitions. We use these strategies to strengthen and develop our existing activities, particularly in growth
areas, and as a means of reducing market-specific risk via geographic diversification. The successful implementation of such a growth strategy depends on a range of factors
both within and outside of our control.

Any failures to execute our growth strategy or successfully integrate acquired assets and businesses could have a material adverse effect on our business, prospects,
financial condition and results of operations.

A large proportion of our business, operations and assets are concentrated in parts of the Eastern Seaboard of the United States.

A large proportion of our business, operations and assets is concentrated in Virginia, Florida, North Carolina, South Carolina and the Metro New York area. Currently,
approximately 60% of our operations are concentrated in Florida. Despite positive trends and forecasts for the construction segment’s growth in Florida, there can be no
assurance that it will not experience a downturn that will significantly affect our results of operations. For example, the state could experience a decrease in gross domestic
product growth, an increase of unemployment or a decrease in consumer confidence, increased property taxes, successive periods of adverse weather conditions, sea level rise
or other impacts to infrastructure we rely on, any of which could have a negative effect on our results of operations in Florida. Should positive market trends continue, foreign
or national competitors could enter the Florida market to benefit from the increased prices, which could result in a lower market share. There can be no certainty that the
positive trends in the U.S. market will continue in the medium- to long-term, in particular given that the U.S. market has been steadily growing since 2011, increasing the risk
of a market downturn. Should the U.S. market experience a downturn, demand for our products would decrease. In addition, our kilns could be required to operate at lower
utilization rates and the rest of our assets could remain idle because of lower demand.                         

Failure to achieve and maintain a high level of product quality as a result of our suppliers’ or our manufacturing mistakes or inefficiencies could damage our reputation
and negatively impact our revenue and results of operations.

To continue to be successful, we must continue to preserve, grow and capitalize on the value of our brand in the marketplace. Reputational value is based in large part
on perceptions of subjective qualities. Even an isolated incident, such as an out of specification product delivered to a construction site, or the aggregate effect of individually
insignificant incidents, can erode trust and confidence. In particular, product quality issues as a result of our suppliers’ (including our affiliates’) acts or omissions could
negatively impact customer confidence in our brands and our products. As we do not have direct control over the quality of the products manufactured or supplied by such
third-party and affiliated suppliers, we are exposed to risks relating to the quality of the products we distribute. If our product offerings do not meet applicable safety standards
or customers’ expectations regarding safety or quality, or are alleged to have quality issues or to have caused personal injury or other damage, we could experience lower
revenue and increased costs and be exposed to legal, financial and reputational risks, as well as governmental enforcement actions. For example, product quality concerns could
result in costly rip and tear expenses for removing previously laid concrete. The termination of key supplier relationships may have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

While we regularly test samples of our products before shipment, there can be no assurance that such testing will be adequate to identify all deficient products.

Our financial condition and operations could be adversely impacted by climate change and regulations intended to address climate change.

Severe weather events, such as tornadoes, hurricanes, rain, drought, ice and snowstorms and high- and low- temperature extremes, occur in regions in which we
operate and maintain infrastructure. Climate change could change the frequency and severity of these weather events or result in chronic changes to water levels or
meteorological patterns, any of which may create physical and
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financial risks to us. Such risks could have an adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. Increases in severe weather conditions, extreme
temperatures or chronic climatic changes (such as sea level rise or changes in meteorological or hydrological patterns) may also cause infrastructure construction projects to be
delayed or cancelled and may limit resources available for such projects, resulting in decreased revenue or increased project costs. Climate change may impact a region’s
economic health, which could impact our revenues as our financial performance is tied to the health of the regional economies we serve. For example, if ports or other
infrastructure on which we rely become less usable due to climate impacts, it may affect demand for, or our ability to provide, our products.

The price of energy also has an impact on the economic health of communities and our production costs. The cost of additional regulatory requirements related to
climate change, such as regulation of greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions under the federal Clean Air Act, requirements to replace fossil fuels with renewable energy or to
obtain emissions credits or other environmental regulation or taxes could impact the availability of goods and the prices charged by suppliers, which would normally be borne
by consumers through higher prices for energy and purchased goods. The costs of such regulations could increase the costs of our products and could adversely impact
economic conditions of areas we serve. Such regulations could also increase our cost of doing business by requiring us to install additional pollution control technologies,
acquire emissions offsets, or modify or curtail our operations. Various financial market participants also consider climate-related risks in their decision-making. To the extent
financial markets believe we are not well positioned to manage any such risk, our ability to access capital markets or to receive competitive terms and conditions could be
negatively affected.

Moreover, in certain jurisdictions in which we operate, governmental bodies are increasingly proposing or enacting legislative and regulatory initiatives to address the
potential impacts of climate change, such as cap-and-trade systems, limits on GHG emissions and requirements to disclose GHG emissions and other climate change-related
information, which are expected to become more stringent in the future. These laws and regulations have the potential to impact our operations directly or indirectly and may
result in additional compliance requirements by us. For example, we monitor, analyze and report on GHG emissions from our operations and products in response to laws and
customer inquiries. In addition, our manufacturing processes have been and may be affected by new laws and regulations in response to climate change. Compliance with such
laws and regulations could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The cement industry is under increasing regulatory pressure to reduce carbon emissions and achieving significant emissions reductions may involve high costs and
technical challenges associated with carbon capture and storage. Due to the uncertain availability of technologies to control GHG emissions and the unknown obligations that
potential GHG emission legislation or regulations may create, we cannot determine the potential financial impact on our operations.

In addition, the increasing focus on climate change and stricter regulatory requirements may result in our business facing adverse reputational risks associated with
certain of our operations producing GHG emissions. Although we have not yet experienced material difficulties in these areas, if we are unable to satisfy the increasing climate-
related expectations of certain stakeholders, we may suffer reputational harm, which may cause the market price of our common shares to decrease, difficulty in accessing the
capital or insurance markets or interference with our business operations and ability to make capital expenditures. For further information, please see our risk factor titled
“Increasing scrutiny and activism from stakeholders and regulators with respect to ESG matters, including those most relevant to the cement industry, could impact our
reputation and the cost of our operations which could adversely affect our business and results of operations.”

Any of the above risks may also impact our customers or suppliers, which could augment existing or result in different risks, including risks that may not yet be known
to us.

Our operations are subject to special hazards that have caused in the past and may cause in the future personal injury or property damage, subjecting us to liabilities and
possible losses, some of which may not be covered by insurance.

Hauling and ready-mix trucks, particularly when loaded, expose our drivers and others to traffic hazards. Our drivers are subject to the usual hazards associated with
providing services on construction sites, while our plant personnel are subject to the hazards associated with moving and storing large quantities of heavy raw materials.
Operating hazards can cause personal injury and loss of life, damage to or destruction of property, plant and equipment and environmental damage, and such hazards have in
the past, and could result in the future, with us being named in the litigation in the future. Liabilities for such events are difficult to assess and estimate due to unknown factors,
including the severity of an injury, the determination of our liability in proportion to other parties, the number of incidents not reported and the effectiveness of our safety
program. Provisions for losses are recognized when we have a
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legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount
can be made. If we were to experience claims or costs above our estimates, we might also be required to use working capital to satisfy these claims rather than using the
working capital to maintain or expand our operations.

We maintain insurance coverage in amounts and against the risks we believe are consistent with industry practice, but this insurance may not be adequate to cover all
losses or liabilities we may incur in our operations.

Our insurance policies are subject to varying levels of deductibles. Where we expect to be reimbursed under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as
a separate asset but only when reimbursement is virtually certain.

We are subject to certain operational risks, including risks regarding safety at work.

Our cement, ready-mix and quarry operations can be hazardous, and factors outside our control, such as weather and temperature, can increase the risks related to
those operations. Although we have strict safety policies and training programs intended to systematically educate employees on safety as well as detailed procedures and
systems, these programs may fail to prevent all such accidents and, as a result, we have been and could be in the future subject to administrative or legal proceedings arising as
a result of breaches of health and safety by our employees, any of which may have an adverse effect on our operations and reputation. The cement production process also
generates environmental impacts, including dust, noise or other pollutants, and may require the storage of waste materials. Contamination resulting from waste materials or
significant dust, noise or other pollution from site operations could also have the potential of affecting our employees, communities and the environment near our operations,
and also negatively affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our customer relationships are not generally governed by long-term agreements, and, as a result, such customers have the right to change the terms under which they do
business and/or terminate their relationship with us.

The bulk of our customer relationships are not generally governed by long-term agreements. Consequently, despite the length of our relationships with these customers
and our low historical customer turnover rates, there can be no assurance that our customer base will remain stable in the future. If our customers do not renew orders, our
business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows could be negatively affected.

Relationships with our customers are based on and involve a high degree of trust that the customer(s) will continue to transact with us for a long period of time.
However, under certain of these agreements, we would have no recourse against certain customers if they are determined to terminate the agreement or they utilize other service
providers that may compete with us. These customers could additionally underperform, not perform at all under these agreements and even walk away entirely. Our lack of
recourse and ability to prevent customers from walking away from our agreements could have a material effect on our financial performance.

Our business is based in part on government-funded infrastructure projects and building activities, and any reductions or reallocation of spending or related subsidies in
these areas could have an adverse effect on us.

We often serve as a subcontractor and depend on government spending for infrastructure and other similar building activities. As a result, demand for some of our
products is influenced by local, state and federal government fiscal policies, tax incentives and other subsidies and other general macroeconomic and political factors. Projects
in which we participate may be funded directly by governments or privately funded but are otherwise tied to or impacted by government policies and spending measures.

Government spending is often approved only on a short-term basis and some of the projects in which our products are used require longer-term funding commitments.
If government funding is not approved or funding is lowered as a result of poor economic conditions, lower than expected revenues, competing spending priorities or other
factors, it could limit infrastructure projects available, increase competition for projects, result in excess inventory and decrease sales, all of which could adversely affect our
profitability.

Additionally, certain regions or states may require or possess the means to finance only a limited number of large infrastructure projects and periods of high demand
may be followed by years of little to no activity. There can be no assurances that governments will sustain or increase current infrastructure spending and tax incentive and
other subsidy levels, and any reductions thereto or delays therein could affect our business, liquidity and financial condition and results of operations. 
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If we are unable to accurately estimate the overall risks, requirements or costs when we bid on or negotiate contracts that are ultimately awarded to us, we may achieve
lower than anticipated profits or incur contract losses.

Even though the majority of our contracts for public projects as a subcontractor contain raw material escalators to protect us from certain input material price
increases, a portion of the contracts are often on a fixed cost basis. The costs incurred and profit realized, if any, on our contracts can vary, sometimes substantially, from our
original projections due to a variety of factors, including, but not limited to: failure to include materials or work in a bid, or the failure to estimate properly the quantities or
costs needed to complete a lump sum contract; delays caused by weather conditions or otherwise failing to meet scheduled acceptance dates; contract or project modifications
or conditions creating unanticipated costs that are not covered by change orders; changes in availability, proximity and costs of materials, including cement, aggregates and
other construction materials, as well as fuel and lubricants for our equipment; to the extent not covered by contractual cost escalators, variability and inability to predict the
costs of purchasing coal, diesel, natural gas and cement; availability and skill level of workers; fraud, theft or other improper activities by our suppliers, subcontractors,
designers, engineers, customers or our own personnel; failure by our suppliers, subcontractors, designers, engineers or customers to perform their obligations; mechanical
problems with our machinery or equipment; citations issued by any governmental authority, including the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (“OSHA”) and Mine
Safety and Health Administration (“MSHA”); difficulties in obtaining required governmental permits or approvals; changes in applicable laws and regulations; uninsured
claims or demands from third parties for alleged damages arising from the design, construction or use and operation of a project of which our work is part; and public
infrastructure customers may seek to impose contractual risk-shifting provisions more aggressively which may result in us facing increased risks.

These factors, as well as others, may cause us to incur losses, which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and liquidity.

Our industry is capital intensive, and we have significant fixed and semi-fixed costs. Therefore, our profitability is sensitive to changes in volume.

The property and machinery needed to produce our products can be very expensive. Therefore, we need to spend a substantial amount of capital to purchase and
maintain the equipment necessary to operate our business. Although we believe that our current cash balance, along with our projected internal cash flows and our available
financing resources, will provide sufficient cash to support our currently anticipated operating and capital needs, if we are unable to generate sufficient cash to purchase and
maintain the property and machinery necessary to operate our business, we may be required to reduce or delay planned capital expenditures or incur additional debt. In
addition, given the level of fixed and semi-fixed costs within our business, particularly at our cement production facility, decreases in volumes could negatively affect our
financial position, results of operations and liquidity.

An inability to successfully identify, consummate and integrate acquisitions, divestitures and other significant transactions could have an adverse impact on our business
and financial results.

A portion of our historical growth has occurred through acquisitions, and we will likely execute acquisition transactions in the future. Acquisitions involve risks
including, among other things, that the businesses acquired will not perform as expected. We are presently evaluating, and we expect to continue to evaluate on an ongoing
basis, possible acquisition transactions. We are presently engaged, and at any time in the future we may be engaged, in discussions or negotiations with respect to possible
acquisitions, including larger transactions that would be significant to us. We regularly make, and we expect to continue to make, non-binding acquisition proposals, and we
may enter into letters of intent, in each case allowing us to conduct due diligence on a confidential basis. There can be no assurances that we will be able to recover the current
carrying amount of our investments, and in some circumstances, assets or businesses may result in additional impairment expenses or other losses. In addition, we may become
subject to certain contractual indemnity or other obligations or may fail to successfully deploy sale proceeds. We cannot predict the timing of any contemplated transactions. To
successfully acquire a significant target, we may need to raise additional capital through additional equity issuances, additional indebtedness or a combination of equity and
debt issuances. Our results of operations from these acquisitions could, in the future, result in impairment charges for any of our intangible assets, including goodwill or other
long-lived assets, particularly if economic conditions worsen unexpectedly. As a result of these changes, our financial condition, results of operations and liquidity could be
materially adversely affected. There can be no assurance that we will enter into definitive agreements with respect to any contemplated transactions or that they will be
completed. Our acquisitions and portfolio optimization efforts have placed, and may continue to place, significant demands on our management and operational and financial
resources.
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Acquisitions may require integration of the acquired companies’ sales and marketing, distribution, production, purchasing, information technology, finance and
administrative organizations. We may not be able to integrate successfully any business we may acquire or have acquired into our existing business and any acquired businesses
may not be profitable or as profitable as we had expected. Factors affecting the successful integration of acquired businesses include, but are not limited to, the following: we
may become liable for certain, and potentially significant, liabilities of any acquired business, whether or not known to us; substantial attention from our executive management
and the management of the acquired business may be required, which could decrease the time that they have to service and attract customers; capital equipment at acquired
businesses may require additional maintenance or need to be replaced sooner than we expected; the complete integration of acquired companies depends, to a certain extent, on
the full implementation of our financial systems and policies; and the ability to retain key employees. Our inability to complete the integration of new businesses in a timely
and orderly manner could increase costs and lower profits.

A lowering or withdrawal of the ratings, outlook or watch assigned to our business or our debt by rating agencies or the credit rating of Titan Cement International may
increase our future borrowing costs and reduce our access to capital.

Titan Cement International both provides intercompany loans to us and guarantees our third-party debt. Any change in the credit rating of Titan Cement International,
which is out of our control, could have a material adverse effect on our ability to borrow and our cost of capital.

The rating, outlook or watch assigned to Titan Cement International or to our debt could be lowered or withdrawn entirely by a rating agency if, in that rating agency’s
judgment, current or future circumstances relating to the basis of the rating, outlook or watch such as adverse changes to Titan Cement International’s or our business, so
warrant. Additionally, we do not have credit history without the guarantee of Titan Cement International. Without an operating history, we may be unable to or find it difficult to
obtain our own credit score. Our credit ratings may also change as a result of the differing methodologies or changes in the methodologies used by the rating agencies. Any
future lowering of our debt’s ratings, outlook or watch likely would make it more difficult or more expensive for us to obtain debt financing.

Holders of our common shares will have no recourse against us or any other parties in the event of a change in or suspension or withdrawal of such ratings. Any
lowering, suspension or withdrawal of such ratings may have a material adverse effect on the market price or marketability of our common shares.

Our ability to repay or refinance our indebtedness on time and distribute dividends and share capital to our shareholders depends upon our future cash flows from
operations, as well as prevailing market conditions.

Our indebtedness primarily consists of intercompany loans, short-term bank borrowings and lease liabilities.

Our ability to make payments on and refinance our indebtedness and to fund working capital, capital expenditures and other expenses will depend on our future
operating performance and ability to generate cash from operations. Our ability to generate cash from operations is subject, in large part, to general economic, competitive,
legislative and regulatory factors and other factors that are beyond our control. We may not be able to generate sufficient cash flow from operations or obtain enough capital to
service our debt or fund our planned capital expenditures.

Similarly, we are a holding company and our ability to repay our debt, pay dividends or make other contributions to our shareholders depends on our subsidiaries’
ability to pay cash to us pursuant to dividend payments and/or other obligations. The ability of our subsidiaries to pay dividends to us in the future will depend on their
earnings, covenants contained in future financing or other agreements and on regulatory restrictions. Similarly, we may be unable to distribute dividends in order to maintain
our credit rating and avoid any potential credit downgrade. Thus, we may not have sufficient funds to pay our debt or distribute dividends.

Our ability to refinance our debt will depend in part on our financial position at such time. Any refinancing of our debt could be at higher interest rates than our current
debt and may require us to comply with more onerous covenants, which could further restrict our business operations. In particular, certain intercompany loans and credit
facilities with Titan Global Finance PLC (“TGF”), are based on financial terms contained in the arm’s length agreements consummated among TGF and its third party lenders.
There is no guarantee that TGF will be willing to continue to enter into debt agreements with us on similar terms or at all. Refinancing such debt with third parties may increase
our cost of capital and may subject us to more onerous covenants. The terms of existing or future debt instruments may restrict us from adopting some of these alternatives.
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The economic environment has in the past been marked by a scarcity of financing for periods of time, in particular with regard to long-term financing. If financial and
economic conditions were to deteriorate, including as a result of political and economic uncertainty or instability, or if interest rates were to increase, it may be more costly and
more difficult for us to access new credit or to refinance our debts on terms that are acceptable to us, or at all. This could have a material adverse effect on our business, results
of operations and financial condition.

We are exposed to risk of loss resulting from the nonpayment and/or nonperformance by our customers and counterparties.

Our customers include public and private entities that have been, and may continue to be, negatively impacted by the changing landscape in the global economy. A
recessionary construction economy can increase the likelihood that we will not be able to collect on all accounts receivable or may experience a delay in payment from some
customers. If our customers or counterparties experience financial difficulties, which has occurred and may reoccur, we could experience difficulty in collecting receivables. We
face collection risk as a normal part of business where we perform services and subsequently bill clients for such services. In the event that we have concentrated credit risk
from clients in a specific geographic area or industry, continuing negative trends or a worsening in financial conditions in that specific geographic area or industry could make
us susceptible to disproportionately high levels of default. Nonpayment and/or non-performance by our customers and counterparties could have a negative impact on our
results of operations and cash flows.

Fluctuations in foreign exchange rates may have an adverse effect on our business.

We have foreign exchange rate risk as a result of euro-denominated fixed-rate loans and short-term euro-denominated variable rate loans. We enter into foreign
exchange derivatives with notional amounts closely aligned with the underlying borrowings, but cannot be assured that our hedging will adequately protect us against foreign
exchange fluctuation risk. If the U.S. dollar weakens as compared to the euro, our cost of capital will increase, and our business may be adversely affected.

We are subject to impairment losses related to non-financial assets.

The cement, aggregates and, to a lesser extent, other construction materials business is capital intensive. Due to the heavy weight of the product and our high
distribution costs, shifts in local markets and/or product ranges might lead to impairment of the assets concerned as the investment in those assets may not yield the return that
was expected when the investment was made. Impairment losses impact negatively on profitability and equity.  

We may fail to retain and attract qualified and skilled employees, including management, engineering and technical personnel, or fail to maintain satisfactory labor
relations with our unions.

While we aim to attract and retain the best possible candidates from domestic and international markets, we may be unable to recruit and retain experienced, capable
and reliable personnel, especially senior and middle management and skilled technical personnel with appropriate professional qualifications. If members of our executive
management team were to depart, we might not be able to implement a successful succession program in a timely manner, if at all. Additionally, without a sufficient number of
skilled employees, our operations and manufacturing quality could suffer. The resulting labor shortages, as well as competition from other industries, or other factors, could
increase our labor costs and could negatively affect our results of operations.

From time to time, we enter into discussions and collective bargaining agreements with labor unions, which represent less than five percent of our workforce as of
December 31, 2024. Although we maintain good relations with our unions and have not faced a material strike that affected our operations, there can be no assurance that we
will not experience labor unrest, difficulty in negotiating collective bargaining agreements or disputes or actions in the future, some of which may be significant and could
adversely affect our business, prospects, financial condition, reputation and results of operations.

Artificial intelligence presents risks and challenges that can impact our business by posing security risks to our confidential information, proprietary information and
personal data.

Issues in the development and use of artificial intelligence, combined with an uncertain regulatory environment, may result in reputational harm, liability or other
adverse consequences to our business operations. As with many technological innovations, artificial intelligence presents risks and challenges that could impact our business.
We work with vendors that incorporate artificial intelligence tools into their offerings and the providers of these artificial intelligence tools may not meet existing or rapidly
evolving regulatory or industry standards with respect to privacy and data protection and may inhibit our or our vendors’ ability to maintain an
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adequate level of service and experience. If we, our vendors, or our third-party partners experience an actual or perceived breach or privacy or security incident because of the
use of generative artificial intelligence, we may lose valuable intellectual property and confidential information and our reputation and the public perception of the effectiveness
of our security measures could be harmed. Further, bad actors around the world use increasingly sophisticated methods, including the use of artificial intelligence, to engage in
illegal activities involving the theft and misuse of personal information, confidential information and intellectual property. Any of these outcomes could damage our reputation,
result in the loss of valuable property and information and adversely impact our business.

Risks Related to Our Relationship with Titan Cement International

We plan to rely on functions, systems and infrastructure provided by Titan Group, and if Titan Group fails to perform these transitional services we may fail to replicate or
replace them.

Since our inception, we have received services from Titan Group and will continue to receive services under the Shared Services Agreement from Titan Group. Under
the Shared Services Agreement, Titan Group has agreed to continue to provide us with certain services currently provided to us by or through Titan Group. The Shared Services
Agreement does not continue indefinitely and will last for five years with an option to renew for additional two-year periods, and services provided under the Shared Services
Agreement may generally terminate at various times specified in the agreement and the schedules thereto.

If Titan Group ceases to provide these services to us, either as a result of the termination of the Shared Services Agreement or individual services thereunder or a
failure by Titan Group to perform its obligations under the Shared Services Agreement, our costs of performing or procuring these services or comparable replacement services
could increase as a result of replicating the services ourselves or contracting with a third-party for the services at a higher cost. 

There is a risk that an increase in the costs associated with replicating and replacing the services provided to us by Titan Group under the Shared Services Agreement,
or continuing to provide services to Titan Group, and the diversion of management’s attention to these matters could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations, financial condition and liquidity. We may fail to replicate the services we currently receive from Titan Group on a timely basis, without interruption to or
degradation of ongoing operations, or at all, which may put further constraints on our human resources, capital and other resources that are simultaneously working on the
retention and replacement of the services and ongoing efforts to implement new technological developments and innovations; such additional constraints could jeopardize our
ability to execute on any one of these specific work streams. In addition, Titan Group will be working on similar initiatives which may impact the level and quality of transition
services we receive from them. Additionally, we may not be able to operate effectively if the transition to the replacement services causes interruptions to or degradation of
operations or the quality of replacement services is inferior to the services we are currently receiving.

Titan Cement International and its subsidiaries are among our largest material and service providers, and we might have received better terms from unaffiliated third
parties than under our agreements with Titan Cement International and its subsidiaries.

For the year ended December 31, 2024, Titan Cement International was among our largest material and service providers supplying cement for our marine import
terminals valued at $103.3 million and management services valued at $14.5 million. We expect that a substantial portion of our purchases will continue to be derived from
Titan Cement International, and their inability to perform under their contracts, or their default in delivery or performance, could have a substantial effect on our operations,
revenues and profits. There is no guarantee that we can replace these materials and services on commercially reasonable terms or at all. For additional information, refer to the
section titled “Item 7.B. Related Party Transactions.”

We may be affected by any negative effects on Titan Cement International’s brand and reputation.

Our brand and reputation and that of our Parent’s within the construction sector in all areas and markets of operation are important intangible assets and could be
affected by errors and/or omissions concerning product quality, adherence to health and safety standards, exposure to social media and other brand management measures and
environmental performance. Such risks are amplified due to the strict standardization to which building materials are subject to and a failure to meet the prescribed quality
standards or the specific quality requirements of our or Titan Cement International’s, and our or its affiliates’, customers could negatively affect our or our Parent’s reputations.
Should Titan Cement International have a negative impact on its brand and reputation, it could hurt our brand or reputation in the marketplace if market participants connect us
with our Parent. Moreover, given
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the international presence of our Parent, damage to our Parent or an affiliate of our Parent’s brand in one of the markets in which we operate could negatively affect our
reputation in the markets in which they operate. Any damage to our or our Parent’s reputations may have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of
operations.

If Titan Cement International sells a controlling interest in our Company to a third party in a private transaction, you may not realize any change-of-control premium on
our common shares, and we may become subject to the control of a presently unknown third party.

Titan Cement International owns a controlling equity interest in our Company. Titan Cement International will have the ability, should it choose to do so, to sell some
or all of our common shares in a privately negotiated transaction, which, if sufficient in size, could result in a change of control of our Company.

Belgian law provisions on mandatory public takeover bids that are applicable to Belgian companies listed on a regulated market in the European Economic Area do
not apply to us. The ability of Titan Cement International to privately sell our common shares, with no requirement for a concurrent offer to be made to acquire all of the
common shares that will be publicly traded hereafter, could prevent you from realizing any change-of-control premium on your common shares that may otherwise accrue to
Titan Cement International on its private sale. Additionally, if Titan Cement International privately sells its controlling interest in our Company, we may become subject to the
control of a presently unknown third party. Such third party may have conflicts of interest with those of other shareholders. Titan Cement International may terminate the
Shared Services Agreement, and our other commercial agreements and relationships could be impacted, all of which may adversely affect our ability to run our business as
described herein and may have an adverse effect on our operating results and financial condition.

Certain members of management, directors and shareholders hold common shares in both Titan America and Titan Cement International, and as a result may face actual
or potential conflicts of interest.

The management and directors of each of Titan America and Titan Cement International may own both Titan America common shares and Titan Cement International
common shares. This ownership overlap could create, or appear to create, potential conflicts of interest when Titan America’s management and directors and Titan Cement
International’s management and directors face decisions that could have different implications for Titan America and Titan Cement International. For example, potential
conflicts of interest could arise in connection with the resolution of any dispute between Titan America and Titan Cement International regarding the terms of the agreements
governing the relationship with Titan Cement International thereafter. These agreements include the Shared Services Agreement and any commercial agreements between the
parties or their affiliates. Potential conflicts of interest may also arise out of any commercial arrangements that Titan America or Titan Cement International may enter into in
the future. Although we have procedures to minimize potential conflicts of interest, these procedures may not adequately address all of the conflicts of interest that may arise
with respect to our activities with Titan Cement International, and any conflicts of interest may not be resolved in Titan America’s interests. See “—Conflicts of interest and
disputes may arise between Titan Cement International and us that could be resolved in a manner unfavorable to us.”

Under Belgian company law, the directors of Titan America are subject to a general duty of loyalty, pursuant to which they are always required to act in Titan
America’s interests, regardless of whether or not they have been appointed by a shareholder of Titan America (such as Titan Cement International). Directors are always
required to put the interests of the company in which they serve above their own interests in the exercise of their mandate.

The directors of Titan America are subject to the rules under Belgian company law on financial conflicts of interest (article 7:96 of the Belgian Code on Companies
and Associations) when such director would have a personal financial conflict of interest with Titan America, be it directly or indirectly, with regard to any contemplated
decision under the powers of the board of directors. Under these rules, it is required that (i) the conflicted director discloses his or her conflict prior to the board of directors
resolving on the conflicted decision, (ii) the declaration and clarification as to the nature of the conflicting interest declared by the conflicted director(s) is included in the
meeting’s minutes, (iii) the board (consisting of the non-conflicted directors) sets out the contemplated decision or transaction, its financial consequences and justifies the
contemplated decision or transaction. In resolving on the conflicted decisions, directors with a financial conflict are prohibited from taking part in both the deliberation as well
as the decision-making on the conflicted decision.
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In cases where all directors of Titan America would be conflicted with regard to a certain resolution, said resolution will be escalated to the shareholders’ meeting of
Titan America for shareholder approval (under a simple majority vote). If the shareholders’ meeting approves the resolution, the board of directors will be able to carry out the
approved resolution on behalf of Titan America.

Titan America’s annual report, as well as the yearly report prepared by Titan America’s statutory auditor, will contain certain information about the application of the
conflicts of interest procedure during the financial year. General Belgian company law does not contain any provisions that seek to prevent directors from voting or deliberating
on matters in which they would have a functional conflict of interest (which could, for example, arise due to cross-directorships). Given that Titan America does not qualify as a
listed company for the purposes of Belgian company law, the procedure under Belgian law that relates to ‘transactions with related parties,’ as set out in article 7:97 of the
Belgian Code on Companies and Associations, do not apply to Titan America as regards any transaction with a “related party” (under International Account Standards (“IAS”)
24).

Belgian law offers no express protection against conflicts of interest at the level of Titan America’s management.

Risks Related to Geological, Mining and Environmental Matters

Our operations are subject to environmental, health and safety laws and regulations that may increase costs, impact or limit business plans or expose us to environmental
liabilities.

Our operations are subject to extensive environmental, health and safety (“EHS”) laws and regulations, as interpreted by the relevant governmental agencies and the
courts, in the jurisdictions in which we operate. Such regulations affect many aspects of our operations and may impose increasingly stringent obligations and restrictions
regarding, among other things, land use, permitting, remediation, mine reclamation, operation and closure of landfills, air emissions, the generation, transportation and disposal
of solid waste and hazardous substances, contamination, water quality, wastewater discharge and other environmental considerations, as well as mine safety and occupational
and community health and safety. The costs of complying with these laws and regulations are likely to increase over time and a failure to comply with these laws and
regulations may result in the assessment of sanctions, including administrative, civil or criminal penalties, natural resource damages, the imposition of investigatory or remedial
obligations, and the issuance of orders limiting or prohibiting some or all of our operations. For a description of specific environmental and health and safety laws and
regulations applicable to operations, see “—Our business may face certain risks related to geological and mining, water management, solid waste, air quality, permitting and
regulatory schemes, which could adversely impact our operations and financial position” and “—We are subject to health and safety laws and regulations and any failure to
comply with any current or future laws or regulations could have a material adverse effect on us.”  

The nature of certain of our business activities exposes us to risks of environmental costs and liabilities arising from the importing, manufacture, use, storage, disposal,
maritime and inland transport and sale of products, raw materials, wastes, byproducts and fuels that may be regulated or considered to be contaminants when released into the
environment from our properties and stormwater. Environmental laws and regulations may impose investigation and remediation obligations, require us to install pollution
control equipment at our facilities, clean up spills and other contamination and correct environmental hazards, including payment of all or part of the cost to remediate sites
where our past activities, or the activities of other parties, caused environmental contamination. Liability or other investigation and remediation obligations may also arise
through certain transactions, including the acquisition, divestiture or ownership or operation of properties and businesses, especially properties or operations where hazardous
materials were used historically. We have sold properties and businesses pursuant to agreements which include indemnification and cost sharing provisions related to the assets
that were divested. Consequently, we will continue to be subject to risks under environmental laws that impose investigation and remediation obligations or liability for
historical releases of hazardous substances at existing sites or ones for which we have indemnity obligations.

In addition, our operations require numerous governmental approvals and permits. Environmental operating permits are subject to modification, renewal and
revocation and can require us to make capital, maintenance and operational expenditures to comply with the applicable requirements. New environmental initiatives or permit
program requirements, public opposition to permits, or changes in interpretation of existing laws and regulations, could result in significant additional expenditures (including
capital expenditures, investment in new plant facilities or improvements to existing plants) or reduction or termination of certain operations, which may, in turn, have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. Noncompliance with EHS permits laws and regulations could subject our operations to regulatory
enforcement, including the imposition of civil and/or criminal penalties, and even the partial or total shutdown of operations.  
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Some environmental laws impose substantial penalties for noncompliance, and others, such as the federal Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation,
and Liability Act (“CERCLA”), the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (“RCRA”), or similar state laws, may impose strict, retroactive and joint and several liabilities for
the remediation of releases of hazardous substances. Liability under CERCLA, RCRA or similar state and local laws, may be imposed as a result of conduct that was lawful at
the time it occurred or for the conduct of, or conditions caused by, prior operators or other third parties. Failure to properly handle, transport, store or dispose of hazardous
materials or otherwise conduct our operations in compliance with RCRA and other EHS laws or similar state and local laws could expose us to liability for governmental
penalties, cleanup costs and civil or criminal liability associated with releases of such materials into the environment, damages to property, natural resources and other damages,
as well as potentially impair our ability to conduct our operations.

EHS laws and regulations continue to evolve and are becoming increasingly stringent. Future EHS laws and regulations could restrict our ability to expand our
facilities or extract materials from our quarries or could require us to acquire costly equipment or to incur other significant expenses in connection with our business. Future
events, including adoption of new, or changes in any existing, EHS requirements (or their interpretation or enforcement) and the costs associated with complying with such
requirements, could have a material adverse effect on us. The ultimate impact of complying with such laws and regulations is not always clearly known or determinable
because regulations under some EHS laws have not yet been promulgated, some are the subject of ongoing litigation or are undergoing revision and new versions or
interpretations of existing laws may take effect.

As a result, we cannot assure you that any costs relating to future capital and operating expenditures to maintain compliance with EHS laws, as well as costs to address
contamination or environmental claims, will not exceed any current estimates and reserves or adversely affect our business, financial position, results of operations and cash
flows. In addition, any unanticipated liabilities or obligations arising, for example, out of the discovery of previously unknown conditions or changes in law or enforcement
policies, could materially and adversely affect our business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

Our business may face certain risks related to geological and mining, water management, solid waste, air quality, permitting and regulatory schemes, which could
adversely impact our operations and financial position.

Geological and Mining Environmental Risks

The rock underlaying quarries and associated plants includes materials at risk of forming voids or sinkholes. Surface disturbances such as sinkholes can interrupt
operations and increase the risk of releases directly to groundwater. Quarry blasting may produce dust, seismic and noise impacts beyond our property line with risks of meeting
regulatory limits. In addition, we have from time to time been subject to complaints alleging nuisance and property damage related to blasting activities.

Such blasting activities at our open quarries create risks of fugitive dust impacts affecting visibility and groundwater contamination from components of the explosives
we use and from mechanical equipment we operate using oil, lubricants or fuels. Some of our quarries operate adjacent to public drinking water supplies under more restrictive
requirements. In addition, some quarries store and manage water we use to provide process water and cooling water to co-located equipment. Also, disruption of mechanical
systems and synthetic liners for these ponds can cause releases, flood property and curtail significant operations at the co-located sites.

Reclamation and Post-Closure Obligations

We incur post-closure obligations to reclaim quarry sites and other similar post-closure obligations for owned and leased property. Reclamation methods and
requirements can differ depending on the quarry and state rules and regulations in existence for certain locations. This differentiation affects the potential obligation required at
each individual site. Please refer to Note 21 to our audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this document for further information about restoration,
environmental and remediation provisions.

Water Management Risks

The Clean Water Act (“CWA”) and analogous state laws impose restrictions and strict controls with respect to the discharge of pollutants, including spills and leaks of
oil and other substances, into state waters or waters of the United States. The discharge of pollutants into regulated waters is prohibited, except in accordance with the terms of
a permit issued by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) or an analogous state agency. The CWA and regulations implemented thereunder also prohibit the
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discharge of dredge and fill material into regulated waters, including jurisdictional wetlands, unless authorized by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (“USACE”) pursuant to an
appropriately issued permit. In addition, the CWA and analogous state laws require individual permits or coverage under general permits for discharges of stormwater runoff
from certain types of facilities.

Our operations store and use chemicals and fuels with the risk of exposure to surface or groundwater. These operations include both storage tanks and fuel-burning
equipment and are present at coastal terminals and inland operations. Additionally, some operations generate process wastewater. Both weather events and mechanical
equipment failure can result in onsite or offsite releases. Lastly, risks exist from mechanical equipment failure for our stormwater management and treatment systems. A release
from any of these systems can result in temporary interruption of operations and additional costs for new mitigation equipment.

Some operations are sited within basins of waterways designated with an “impaired waters” listing by state authorities. Impaired water mitigation planning is led by
local authorities and includes monitoring of water quality, submerged lands and on-site sediment sampling. Compliance with the CWA and any new rules and legislation could
require us to face increased costs and delays with respect to obtaining permits for expansion activities. Federal and state regulatory agencies can impose administrative, civil
and criminal penalties as well as other enforcement mechanisms for non-compliance with discharge permits or other requirements of the CWA and analogous state laws and
regulations.

Solid and Hazardous Waste Risks

Principal non-product material streams from our largest sites includes cement kiln dust (“CKD”), a by-product of our cement production operations. We may become
subject to potential U.S. environmental legislation regulating discarded impoundments and landfills of CKD. The U.S. EPA has been evaluating the regulatory status of CKD
under RCRA and certain environmental groups have asked the U.S. EPA to regulate discarded CKD as a hazardous waste. Although legislation related to CKD has not yet been
implemented, any obligation to manage CKD as a hazardous waste under RCRA would negatively affect our operations.

Our operating landfills are bound with closure plans and post-closure monitoring. Monitoring activity below the surface may not completely foresee risks associated
with waste, leachate and groundwater interaction. Post-closure monitoring may identify conditions that trigger additional mitigation costs including potential linings and
removal. Please refer to Note 21 to our audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this document for further information about restoration, environmental
and remediation provisions.

Risks from the generation of waste include onsite and offsite spills. Our over the road and rail transport systems can spill product from moving accident or
infrastructure failures. Off-site spills of our products increase risks of contamination of public and private property, impacting our distribution costs.

As discussed above, liability under CERCLA, or similar state and local laws, may be imposed as a result of conduct that was lawful at the time it occurred or for the
conduct of, or conditions caused by, prior operators or other third parties. Failure to properly handle, transport, store or dispose of hazardous materials or otherwise conduct our
operations in compliance with environmental laws could expose us to liability for governmental penalties, cleanup costs and civil or criminal liability associated with releases
of such materials into the environment, damages to property, natural resources and other damages, as well as potentially impair our ability to conduct our operations. 

Air Quality Risks

Our operations are subject to the federal Clean Air Act (“CAA”) and related state and local laws, which restrict the emission of air pollutants and impose permitting,
monitoring and reporting requirements on various sources. Over the next several years, we may be required to incur certain capital expenditures for air pollution control
equipment or to address other air emissions-related issues. Changing and increasingly stringent requirements, future non-compliance or failure to maintain necessary permits or
other authorizations could require us to incur substantial costs or suspend or terminate our operations. We aim to mitigate air quality risks for compliance requirements with
engineering design, mechanical equipment, operating procedures and monitoring equipment; however, such measures can fall short of mitigating all risks.

Future emission standards that may apply to our operations include the National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (“NESHAP”) for Portland cement.
Although the U.S. EPA concluded a technological review of Portland cement under NESHAP in 2018, and concluded that no new requirements or changes to emission limits
were warranted at that time, the U.S. EPA is
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scheduled to finalize new emission limitations and other potential requirements in 2025. These regulations apply to a portion of our cement operations. There can be no
assurance that future requirements will not potentially increase our compliance costs and adversely affect our operating performance and profitability. Similarly, additional
future emission standards to protect the ozone through increasingly stringent National Ambient Air Quality Standards (“NAAQS”) may be finalized and add costs for NOx
emission control.

The EPA’s regulations also target GHG emissions from industrial sources identified by the EPA as large GHG emission sources, including cement manufacturing.
Since December 29, 2009, the EPA’s Mandatory Reporting of GHGs Rule requires certain industrial sectors exceeding certain emission thresholds to report their GHG
emissions annually. In 2010, the EPA set GHG thresholds for the New Source Review Prevention of Significant Deterioration (“PSD”) and Title V Operating Permit programs
for facilities with emissions above certain thresholds. Cement plants must obtain these permits if they exceed the limits, and new major sources or significant modifications at
major sources must secure pre-construction permits that include pollution limits based on Best Available Control Technology (“BACT”). Applying for, complying with,
reporting under, renewing and maintaining these permits can involve significant costs and delays.

Similarly, the GHG regulations for electric utilities under the CAA were finalized in 2024 though may become stayed by court orders pending the resolution of
ongoing legal actions, including recent challenges to the 2024 final rule regulating GHG emissions from new, modified and reconstructed fossil fuel-fired power plants. The
ultimate disposition of the GHG regulations for the electric utilities will set precedent for what may come for other industries (including cement) in subsequent regulatory
action. The imposition of GHG regulations on the cement industry would negatively affect our operations and could result in higher capital and operating expenditures to
comply with such regulations, any of which would adversely affect our operating performance and profitability.

Mechanical failure of pollution control equipment may result in offsite impacts including dusting episodes that expose the public to contaminants’ exhausts by our
processes. Other operations that use procedures to mitigate impacts may cause offsite impacts of air pollutants during periods of high wind or heavy traffic periods.

Any such developments could have an adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

Permitting Risks

In addition to the risks of actual releases, public opposition to environmental permits presents a significant risk to the business. Public opposition to environmental
permits reflects our case-by-case engagements and the permit preparations by the regulatory authority. Public opposition has the potential to overwhelm viability of a capital
project and lead to cancelling improvements or expansions of operations. 

For example, the implementation of the 2024 NAAQS for fine particulate (PM2.5) will authorize local permit authorities to increase regulation on PM2.5 emissions.
The implementation will encourage more source testing and air sampling from our sources and in our communities, respectively. These air pollution studies may result in new
requirements of our sites including new or modified mitigation equipment or ambient monitoring equipment. NAAQS implementation is a regulatory process performed under
public review. Public disclosure of air pollution studies also carries potential reputational risk.

There can be no assurance that future approvals, licenses and permits will be granted or that we will be able to maintain and renew the approvals, licenses and permits
we currently hold. Failure to do so could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and cash flows. Furthermore, compliance with environmental permitting and
approval requirements may be costly and time consuming and could result in delays or other adverse impacts on planned projects, our results of operations and cash flows.

Additional Regulatory Risks

Connected to GHG and Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) risks are potential environmental or pollution tariffs on materials we import. Both legislative
and executive branches of the U.S. government have proposed or are striving to propose tariff programs to penalize imports of cement and other products from countries with
higher GHG emissions per unit of production. These programs would potentially level significant tariffs on imports to our cement distribution networks.

Moreover, there can be no assurance that a scheme similar to the EU-wide cap and trade emissions scheme, namely the European Trading Scheme, will not be
introduced in the United States or at the state level in jurisdictions in which we operate,
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potentially significantly increasing our compliance costs. Further, there may be increasing political support for the implementation of other stringent environmental rules that
would increase our production costs. Compliance with changes in laws, regulations or emissions trading schemes could result in higher capital expenditures requirements and
reduced profitability for us due to increased production costs and may also have an impact on our ability to grow our business, pursue strategic growth opportunities and remain
competitive. If we are unable to find solutions that reduce our GHG emissions for new and existing projects or products, future international agreements, government regulation
or challenges from society could lead to additional costs as well as compliance and operational risks.

Both tariff and trading scheme programs include higher monitoring and public disclosure of GHG emissions. These disclosures present additional reputational risks to
us.

Due to the uncertain availability of technologies to control GHG emissions and the unknown obligations that potential GHG emission legislation or regulations may
create, we cannot determine the potential financial impact on our operations. In addition, the increasing focus on climate change and stricter regulatory requirements may result
in our business facing adverse reputational risks associated with certain of our operations producing GHG emissions. Although we have not experienced material difficulties in
these areas, if we are unable to satisfy the increasing climate-related expectations of certain stakeholders, we may suffer reputational harm, which may cause our stock price to
decrease or difficulty in accessing the capital or insurance markets. Such efforts, if successfully directed at us, could increase the costs of or access to capital or insurance and
interfere with business operations and ability to make capital expenditures.

Increasing scrutiny and activism from stakeholders and regulators with respect to ESG matters, including those most relevant to the cement industry, could impact our
reputation and the cost of our operations which could adversely affect our business and results of operations.

Stakeholder actions and increased regulatory activity related to environmental, social and governance matters, including climate change and reducing GHG emissions,
diversity, equity, and inclusion, biodiversity and natural capital, water stewardship, circular economy, responsible supply chain, human rights, and other matters could adversely
impact our operations, costs of or access to capital and impact or limit business plans.  

We could face stakeholder scrutiny and activism related to ESG. There has been an increased focus from stakeholders and regulators related to ESG matters across all
industries in recent years, with investors (including institutional investors), proxy advisory firms, customers, employees and lenders placing increasing importance on the
impacts and social cost associated with climate change, as well as ESG practices and policies of companies, including sustainability performance and risk mitigation efforts.
There is also risk that we could be perceived as, or accused of, “greenwashing,” i.e., the process of conveying misleading information or making false claims regarding the ESG
profile of, e.g., a product, activity, or company operations, which could lead to reputational harm, litigation, or other adverse impacts. In particular, actions or statements we
take may be based on expectations, assumptions, methodologies, or information that we currently believe to be reasonable but that is subsequently determined to be erroneous
or not in keeping with best practice, particularly as ESG standards continue to evolve. If we fail to, or are perceived to fail to, to advance our ESG initiatives or to align with
best practices, we may be subject to various adverse impacts. For example, both we and the Titan Group have implemented various voluntary initiatives to improve the ESG
profile of our operations and products; however, such initiatives may be costly and may not have the desired effect. Our emissions reduction goals are ambitious and subject to
various contingencies, calculations and, in certain cases, the actions of third-parties. As such, we may not achieve them, either according to specific standards or stakeholder
expectations and timelines, or at all. Achieving our emission reduction goals depends in significant part on the adoption of cement produced by our cement plants, which
contains up to 10% lower CO2 emissions than standard use ordinary Portland cement (“Lower-Carbon Cement”) and other less carbon-intensive products by our customers,
which may be impacted by cost, regulatory restrictions, customers’ own perception on the sustainability of our products, or other factors.

In addition, some investors use ESG criteria to guide their investment strategies, and may not invest in our common shares, or may divest their holdings of our
common shares, if they believe our policies relating to ESG matters are inadequate or, on the other hand, have a negative response to such policies as a result of anti-ESG
sentiment. Customers and other stakeholders may also make similar determinations. Concern that GHG emissions contribute to global climate change has led to international,
federal, state and local legislative and regulatory proposals to reduce or mitigate the effects of GHG emissions. We monitor, analyze and report GHG emissions from our
operations and products as required by applicable laws and regulations and to satisfy customer inquiries. We will continue to monitor GHG regulations and their potential
impact on operations.
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The cement industry is under increasing regulatory pressure to reduce carbon emissions and achieving significant emissions reductions may involve high costs and
technical challenges associated with carbon capture and storage. Due to the uncertain availability of technologies to control GHG emissions and the unknown obligations that
potential GHG emission legislation or regulations may create, we cannot determine the potential financial impact on our operations.

In addition, the increasing focus on climate change and stricter regulatory requirements may result in our business facing adverse reputational risks associated with
certain of our operations producing GHG emissions. Although we have not yet experienced material difficulties in these areas, if we are unable to satisfy the increasing climate-
related expectations of certain stakeholders, we may suffer reputational harm, which may cause the market price of our common shares to decrease, difficulty in accessing the
capital or insurance markets or interference with our business operations and ability to make capital expenditures. Simultaneously, some stakeholders and policymakers are
looking to reduce consideration of climate and ESG factors, which could impact the degree to which customers purchase less carbon-intensive products. Navigating these
competing interests is complex, and failure to successfully do so may adversely impact our business. Any of the above risks may also impact our customers or suppliers, which
could augment existing or result in different risks, including risks that may not yet be known to us.

We are subject to a series of risks regarding ESG regulation.

We expect there will likely be increasing levels of regulation, disclosure-related and otherwise, with respect to ESG matters. For example, policymakers such as the
SEC and European Union have adopted, and other policymakers such as the Federal Acquisition Regulatory Council and the State of New York are considering adopting,
requirements for significant additional disclosures of climate- or other sustainability-related information. For instance, the European Commission has established the Corporate
Sustainability Reporting Directive, which will require in-scope companies to report on a number of sustainability topics in accordance with the European Sustainability
Reporting Standards. We may be considered an in-scope company if we are no longer a subsidiary of the Titan Group and may then be subject to such reporting requirements.
Our current programs, reporting frameworks and principles may not be in compliance with any new environmental and social laws and regulations, or novel interpretations of
existing laws and regulations, that may be promulgated in the United States and elsewhere. Such regulation may therefore require us to incur substantial costs or otherwise
make changes for compliance, and any noncompliance may result in investigations, fines, termination of contracts or other adverse impacts.

Risks Related to Regulatory and Legal Matters

We are subject to health and safety laws and regulations and any failure to comply with any current or future laws or regulations could have a material adverse effect on
us.

Manufacturing and construction sites are inherently dangerous workplaces. Our sites often put our employees and others in close proximity with large pieces of
mechanized equipment, moving vehicles, chemical and manufacturing processes, heavy products and items and highly regulated materials. As a result, we are subject to a
variety of health and safety and mine safety laws and regulations dealing with occupational health and safety, particularly those administered by OSHA and MSHA, which are
subject to change and may be interpreted differently or become stricter over time. Failure to comply with these requirements can result in sanctions such as fines and penalties
and claims for personal injury and property damage. These requirements may also result in increased operating and capital costs in the future. We cannot guarantee that
violations of such requirements will not occur, and any violations could result in additional costs. See also “Risks Related to Geological, Mining and Environmental Matters”
above for a further description of risks related to environmental laws and regulations.

Unsafe work sites have the potential to increase employee turnover and raise our operating costs. Our safety record can also impact our reputation. We maintain
functional groups whose primary purpose is to ensure we implement effective work procedures throughout our organization and take other steps to ensure the health and safety
of our work force, but there can be no assurances these measures will be successful in preventing injuries or violations of health and safety laws and regulations. Any failure to
maintain safe work sites or violations of applicable law could expose us to significant financial losses and reputational harm, as well as civil and criminal liabilities, any of
which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Specific future risks include potable water systems at our sites which may be further regulated for per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances, lead and copper with
requirements to treat water and ensure potable water delivered satisfies water quality criteria. In addition, MSHA has begun implementation of a tighter standard for silica dust
exposure to our workers. Future monitoring may identify conditions of exposure that require additional mitigation and expense to ensure work protection meets MSHA
standards.
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As a result, we cannot assure you that any costs relating to future capital and operating expenditures to maintain compliance with environmental, health and safety and
mine safety laws and regulations, as well as costs to address contamination or environmental claims, will not exceed any current estimates and reserves or adversely affect our
business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows. In addition, any unanticipated liabilities or obligations arising, for example, out of the discovery of previously
unknown conditions or changes in law or enforcement policies, could materially and adversely affect our business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

We face risks from potential and ongoing litigation, and the nature of our business exposes us to product liability, construction defect and warranty claims in particular.  

In the ordinary course of our business, we are involved, and may in the future become involved, in a number of legal proceedings incidental to our operations,
including personal injury, product liability, commercial, warranty, antitrust, ownership disputes, competition, EHS matters, social security and tax claims.  

Although our management aims to resolve these matters without any significant impact on our business, financial position or results of operations, the actual outcome
of these legal proceedings is uncertain and in the case of an adverse final decision in any of these legal proceedings, our business, financial position and results of operations
may be adversely affected. Furthermore, such proceedings can divert the attention of our management from our business and any negative publicity resulting from such
proceedings or other disputes may result in substantial expenses and adversely affect our business, reputation, prospects, financial condition and results of operations. Any
claims or proceedings, particularly those in which we are unsuccessful or for which we did not establish adequate reserves, could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations. We generally maintain insurance against many product liability risks, but there can be no assurance that this coverage will be
adequate for any liabilities ultimately incurred. In addition, there is no assurance that insurance will continue to be available on terms acceptable to us.

Our existing compliance controls, although considered sufficient by our management, may fail to prevent or detect inadequate practices, fraud and violations of law by our
intermediaries, customers, suppliers, partners or employees.

We are subject to various legal and regulatory requirements and risks in the markets in which we operate, such as antitrust, anti-money laundering, anti-bribery and
anti-corruption or other sanctions laws and regulations imposed by international organizations or individual nations. Our existing compliance controls may not be sufficient in
order to prevent or detect inadequate practices, fraud and violations of law by our intermediaries, customers, suppliers, partners, affiliates or employees. Should any of our
intermediaries, customers, suppliers, partners, affiliates or employees receive or grant inappropriate benefits or use corrupt, fraudulent or other unfair business practices, we
could be confronted with legal sanctions, penalties, loss of orders, detention or seizure of any imports, claims by injured parties or harm to our reputation. This could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial position and results of operations.

We may fail to obtain or renew, or may experience material delays in obtaining, requisite approvals, licenses and permits from the relevant national and/or regional
governments or authorities for the conduct of our business. Failure to obtain or renew, or comply with the requirements of, such permits could also adversely affect our
results of operations.

We require various approvals, licenses, permits and certificates from the relevant national and/or regional governments or authorities in the markets in which we
operate, in particular in connection with operating our limestone quarries. Many such permits are long-term, ranging from 10 to 15 years, and are automatically renewed five
years before their expiration. We cannot provide assurance or guarantee that we will not encounter problems in obtaining new or renewing existing licenses, permits and
certificates required in the conduct of our businesses, or provide assurance that we will continue to satisfy the conditions to which such licenses, permits and certificates are
granted. There may also be delays on the part of regulatory and administrative bodies in reviewing applications and granting approvals, which could result in delays or
increased costs to our operations. If we fail to obtain or maintain the necessary permits, licenses and certificates required for the conduct of our business, we may be required to
incur substantial costs, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position and results of operations.

In addition to the regulatory matters described above, we and our customers are subject to extensive governmental regulation on matters such as approvals, licenses,
permits and certificates requirements; plant and wildlife protection; wetlands protection; waste management; reclamation and restoration activities at mining properties after
mining is completed; the discharge of materials into the environment; and the effects that mining has on groundwater quality and availability. Compliance with these regulatory
requirements is expensive and significantly lengthens the time needed to develop a project. The denial of an approval, license, permit or certificate
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that is essential to our operations or the imposition of conditions with which it is not practicable or feasible to comply could impair or prevent our ability to operate, develop or
expand a project. Additionally, failure to comply with such approvals, licenses, permits and certificates could result in enforcement action and have a material adverse effect on
our business, financial position and results of operations.  

The use of our products, including cement and supplementary cementitious materials, aggregates, ready-mix concrete, concrete block and other ancillary products, is often
affected by various laws and regulations in the markets in which we operate, any of which may have a material adverse effect on us.

The use of many of our products, which include cementitious materials, aggregates, ready-mix concrete, concrete block and other ancillary products, is subject to
approvals by municipalities, state departments of transportation, engineers and developers as they are used in construction projects and thus subject to construction laws and
performance specifications. These approvals and specifications, including building codes, may affect the decisions of our customers, and, consequently, failure to obtain or
maintain such approvals or changes in building codes may affect the sale of our products. Changes in applicable regulations governing the sale of some of our products or the
failure of any of our products to comply with such requirements could increase our costs of doing business, reduce sales or otherwise have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Any inability to protect our intellectual property or claims that we infringe on the intellectual property rights of others could have a material adverse effect on us.

We rely on a combination of patents, trademarks, trade names, confidentiality and nondisclosure clauses and agreements, and other unregistered rights to define and
protect our rights to our brand and the intellectual property used in certain of our products. We also rely on product, industry, manufacturing and market “know-how” that
cannot be registered and may not be subject to any confidentiality or nondisclosure clauses or agreements. To the extent that our innovations, products and name are not
protected by patents or other intellectual property rights, third parties, including competitors, may be able to commercialize our innovations or products or use our know-how,
which could result in a loss of our competitive advantage. Additionally, we have faced in the past and may in the future face claims that we are infringing the intellectual
property rights of others. If any of our products are found to infringe the patents or other intellectual property rights of others, the potential risks and uncertainties of intellectual
property-related litigation and an assertion of an infringement claim against us may cause us to spend significant amounts to defend the claim, and possibly pay significant
money damages. In the event of a settlement or adverse judgment, our manufacture and sale of such products could be significantly restricted or prohibited and we may be
required to pay substantial damages or ongoing licensing fees. Any inability to protect our intellectual property rights or any misappropriation of the intellectual property of
others could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Even in instances where we believe that claims and allegations of
intellectual property infringement against us are without merit, defending against such claims may be time consuming and expensive and may result in the diversion of time and
attention of our management and employees.

Changes in tariffs and other trade restrictions could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

If significant tariffs or other restrictions are placed on foreign imports by the United States or any related countermeasures are taken by impacted foreign countries, it
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows. We may not be able to pass any resulting price increase on to our
customers, and even if we are able to pass along such price increases, we may face decreased demand for our products and we may lose customers. Additionally, future federal
or state infrastructure projects may include a “Buy American” provision to restrict a percentage of materials sourced from outside the United States (not excluding cement),
which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows. Conversely, if significant tariffs or other restrictions are
removed on foreign imports by the United States, we may be forced to lower the prices we charge our customers for our products in order to remain competitive in our markets,
which could also have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

It remains unclear what additional actions, if any, will be taken by the United States or other governments with respect to international trade agreements, the
imposition or removal of tariffs on goods imported into the United States, the creation or removal of barriers to trade, tax policy related to international commerce, or other
trade matters. The current tariffs and trade restrictions, along with any additional tariffs and restrictions that may be implemented by the United States or other countries in the
future, may result in further increased prices, decreased available supply of steel and other materials used in our business and worsened economic
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conditions affecting the market for our products and services more broadly. As a result, our business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows may be materially
and adversely affected.

Risks Related to the Ownership of Our Common Shares

Our results of operations and the market price of our common shares may be volatile, and the market price of our common shares may drop below the price you pay, which
could result in substantial losses for investors.

The market price of our common shares could be subject to significant fluctuations and it may decline. Some of the factors that may cause the market price of our
common shares to fluctuate include:

• likely fluctuation in our future results of operations;

• significant volatility in the market price and trading volume of comparable companies;

• actual or anticipated changes or fluctuations in our operating results or in the expectations of market analysts;

• adverse market reaction to any indebtedness we may incur or securities we may issue in the future;

• short sales, hedging and other derivative transactions in our shares;

• announcements of technological innovations, new products, strategic alliances or significant agreements by us or by our competitors;

• failure to meet or exceed financial estimates and projections of the investment community or that we provide to the public;

• issuance of new or updated research or reports by securities analysts;

• fluctuations in the valuation of companies perceived by investors to be comparable to us;

• currency fluctuations;

• changes in the prices of our products or the prices of our competitors’ products;

• litigation or regulatory action against us;

• investors’ general perception of us and the public’s reaction to our press releases, our other public announcements and our filings with the SEC;

• publication of research reports or news stories about us, our competitors or our industry, or positive or negative;

• recommendations or withdrawal of research coverage by securities analysts;

• changes in general political, economic, industry and market conditions and trends;

• sales of our common shares by our directors, executive officers and existing shareholders;

• recruitment or departure of key personnel; and

• the other risk factors described in this section of this document.

In addition, stock markets have historically experienced substantial price and volume fluctuations. Broad market and industry factors may harm the market price of our
common shares and our results of operations. Hence, the market price of our common shares and our results of operations could fluctuate based upon factors that have little or
nothing to do with us, and these fluctuations could materially reduce the market price of our common shares regardless of our operating performance and could limit or prevent
investors from readily selling their common shares and may otherwise negatively affect the market price and liquidity of our common shares.
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In addition, in the past, when the market price of a share has been volatile, holders of that share have sometimes instituted securities class action litigation against the
company that issued the shares. If any of our shareholders brought a lawsuit against us, we could incur substantial costs defending the lawsuit. Such a lawsuit could also divert
the time and attention of our management from our business, which could significantly harm our profitability and reputation.

An active, liquid and orderly trading market for our common shares may not be sustained, and you may not be able to resell your shares at or above the price you paid for
them.

While there is a public trading market for our common shares, we cannot assure you that one will be sustained. If a market is not sustained, it may be difficult for you
to sell your common shares. Public trading markets may also experience volatility and disruption. This may affect the pricing of the common shares in the secondary market,
the transparency and availability of trading prices, the liquidity of the common shares and the extent of regulation applicable to us. We cannot predict the prices at which our
common shares will trade. It is possible that, in future quarters, our results of operations may be below the expectations of securities analysts and investors. As a result of these
and other factors, the price of our common shares may decline.

Future sales or distributions of our common shares by Titan Cement International could depress the market price of our common shares.

Titan Cement International may sell all or a portion of its remaining shares of our common shares or distribute those shares to its shareholders. Additional sales by
Titan Cement International in the public market or distributions to its shareholders of substantial amounts of our common shares could depress the market price of our common
shares.

The rights provided to our shareholders under Belgian corporate law and our articles of association differ in certain respects from the rights that you would typically enjoy
as a shareholder of a U.S. company under applicable U.S. federal and state laws.

We are a Belgian company with limited liability (société anonyme/naamloze vennootschap). Our corporate affairs are governed by our articles of association and by
the Belgian Code on Companies and Associations. From a Belgian corporate law point of view, we do not qualify as a listed company (société cotée/genoteerde vennootschap)
because none of our securities are listed on any regulated market in the European Economic Area. The Belgian corporate law provisions that are applicable to Belgian
companies listed on a regulated market in the European Economic Area do therefore not apply to us. We are not subject to most of the disclosure obligations applicable to
Belgian companies listed on a regulated market in the European Economic Area. Furthermore, Belgian law provisions on mandatory public takeover bids that are applicable to
Belgian companies listed on a regulated market in the European Economic Area do not apply to us. Therefore, under Belgian law, no mandatory takeover bid can be imposed on
a person acquiring a significant or even controlling stake of our shares and thus the shareholders may not be granted the opportunity to sell their shares at a premium (which is
typically offered in the framework of a takeover bid) in the event our parent, Titan Cement International, would sell its shares to a third party. As a result, shareholders of our
Company may not enjoy certain of the rights and protection generally afforded to shareholders of a Belgian company listed on a regulated market in the European Economic
Area.  

Also, the rights of shareholders and the responsibilities of members of our board of directors may be different from the rights and obligations of shareholders and
boards of directors in companies governed by the laws of U.S. jurisdictions.

In the performance of its duties, our board of directors is required by the Belgian Code on Companies and Associations to consider the corporate interest of our
Company, which requires our board to act not only in the financial interest of the shareholders, but also to take into account of the consequences of their actions on our
employees and other stakeholders, in all cases with due observation of the principles of reasonableness. It is possible that some of these parties will have interests that are
different from, or in addition to, the interests of our shareholders. See “Description of Share Capital—Articles of Association and Other Share Information” as included in our
Registration Statement.

As a result of these differences between Belgian corporate law, on the one hand, and U.S. federal and state laws, on the other hand, in certain instances, you could
receive less protection as a shareholder of our Company than you would as a shareholder of a U.S. corporation.

As a foreign private issuer, we are subject to different U.S. securities laws and rules than a domestic U.S. issuer, which may limit the information publicly available to our
shareholders or otherwise result in less protection than is accorded to investors under rules applicable to domestic U.S. issuers.
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We report under the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) as a non-U.S. company with foreign private issuer status.
Because we qualify as a foreign private issuer under the Exchange Act, we are exempt from certain provisions of the Exchange Act that are applicable to domestic U.S. public
companies, including (i) the sections of the Exchange Act regulating the solicitation of proxies, consents or authorizations in respect of a security registered under the Exchange
Act; (ii) the sections of the Exchange Act requiring insiders to file public reports of their share ownership and trading activities and liability for insiders who profit from trades
made in a short period of time; and (iii) the rules under the Exchange Act requiring the filing with the SEC of quarterly reports on Form 10-Q containing unaudited financial
and other specified information. In addition, foreign private issuers are not required to file their annual report on Form 20-F until 120 days after the end of each fiscal year,
while domestic U.S. issuers that are accelerated filers are required to file their annual report on Form 10-K within 75 days after the end of each fiscal year and domestic U.S.
issuers that are large accelerated filers are required to file their annual report on Form 10-K within 60 days after the end of each fiscal year. Foreign private issuers are also
exempt from Regulation FD, which is intended to prevent issuers from making selective disclosures of material information. As a result of all of the above, you may not have
the same protections afforded to shareholders of a company that is not a foreign private issuer.

As a foreign private issuer and as permitted by the listing requirements of the NYSE, we rely on certain home country corporate governance practices rather than the
corporate governance requirements of the NYSE.

As a foreign private issuer, we have the option to follow certain home country corporate governance rules rather than those of the NYSE, provided that we disclose the
requirements we are not following and describe the home country practices we are following. We rely on this “foreign private issuer exemption” but cannot make any
assurances that we will continue to do so in the future. If we were to lose our status as a foreign private issuer, we may avail ourselves of the controlled company exemption
which exempts us from certain governance requirements of the NYSE. As a result, our shareholders may not have the same protections afforded to shareholders of companies
that are subject to all NYSE corporate governance requirements.

We may lose our foreign private issuer status in the future, which could result in significant additional costs and expenses to us.

As discussed above, we are a foreign private issuer, and therefore, we are not required to comply with all of the periodic disclosure and current reporting requirements
of the Exchange Act. The determination of foreign private issuer status is made annually on the last business day of an issuer’s most recently completed second fiscal quarter,
and, accordingly, the next determination will be made with respect to us on June 30, 2025. In the future, we would lose our foreign private issuer status if (i) more than 50% of
our outstanding voting securities are owned by U.S. residents and (ii) a majority of our directors or executive officers are U.S. citizens or residents, or we fail to meet additional
requirements necessary to avoid loss of foreign private issuer status. If we lose our foreign private issuer status, we would be required to file with the SEC periodic reports and
registration statements on domestic U.S. issuer forms, which are more detailed and extensive than the forms available to a foreign private issuer. We would be required to report
under U.S. GAAP, which could alter our results of operations or depict different trends of results of operations. We would also have to comply with U.S. federal proxy
requirements, and our officers, directors and principal shareholders would become subject to the short-swing profit disclosure and recovery provisions of Section 16 of the
Exchange Act. In addition, we would lose our ability to rely upon exemptions from certain corporate governance requirements under the listing rules of the NYSE. As a U.S.
listed public company that is not a foreign private issuer, we would incur significant additional legal, accounting and other expenses that we will not incur as a foreign private
issuer, and accounting, reporting and other expenses in order to maintain a listing on a U.S. securities exchange. These expenses would relate to, among other things, the
obligation to present our financial information in accordance with U.S. GAAP in the future.

We are a “controlled company” within the meaning of the rules of the NYSE and, as a result, qualify for, and partially rely on, exemptions from certain corporate
governance requirements. You will not have the same protections afforded to shareholders of companies that are subject to such requirements.

A “controlled company” under the NYSE corporate governance requirements is a company of which more than 50% of the voting power is held by an individual,
group or another company. Titan Cement International controls a majority of the voting power of our outstanding common shares, making us a “controlled company” within the
meaning of the NYSE corporate governance requirements. Because we qualify as a “controlled company,” we are not required to have a majority of our non-executive directors
be independent, nor are we required to have an independent compensation committee or an independent nominating function. A majority of our directors are independent;
however, in light of our status as a “controlled company,” our nominating and compensation committee will not be independent. Our status as a “controlled company” could
make our common shares less attractive to some investors or otherwise harm the price of our common shares.
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Titan Cement International controls a majority of the voting power of our common shares, which will prevent you and other shareholders from influencing significant
decisions.

Titan Cement International controls (directly or indirectly) 87% of our aggregate voting power. For so long as Titan Cement International continues to control a
majority of the voting power, it will generally be able to significantly influence the outcome of all corporate actions requiring approval of the general meeting.

So long as Titan Cement International continues to control a majority of the voting power of our shares, it will be able to influence the composition of our board of
directors and thereby influence our policies and operations, including the appointment of management, future issuances of shares or other securities, the payment of dividends,
if any, on shares, the borrowing or modification of debt by us, amendments to our articles of association and the entering into extraordinary transactions, and its interests may
not in all cases be aligned with our other shareholders’ interests. In addition, Titan Cement International may have an interest in pursuing acquisitions, divestitures and other
transactions that, in its judgment, could enhance its investment or improve its financial condition, even though such transactions might involve risks to our other shareholders.
For example, Titan Cement International could cause us to make acquisitions that increase our indebtedness or cause us to sell revenue-generating assets.  

In addition, Titan Cement International will be able to cause or prevent a change of control of our Company and could preclude any unsolicited acquisition of our
Company. The concentration of ownership could deprive our other shareholders of an opportunity to receive a premium for their common shares as part of a sale of our
Company and ultimately may affect the market price of our common shares.

As a result, Titan Cement International and its affiliates’ interests may not be the same as, or may conflict with, the interests of our other shareholders or our interests.
Investors will not be able to affect the outcome of a shareholder vote while Titan Cement International controls the majority of the voting power in the general meeting.
Because Titan Cement International’s interests may differ from those of our other shareholders, actions that Titan Cement International takes with respect to us, as our
controlling shareholder, may not be favorable to us or to our other shareholders.

Conflicts of interest and disputes may arise between Titan Cement International and us that could be resolved in a manner unfavorable to us.

Questions relating to conflicts of interest and actual disputes may arise between Titan Cement International and us in a number of areas relating to our past and
ongoing relationships. Areas in which conflicts of interest or disputes between Titan Cement International and us could arise include, but are not limited to, the following:  

• Competing business activities and business opportunities. Titan Cement International is a large global company with businesses spanning a wide range of industries,
including other businesses relating to cement manufacturing. In the ordinary course of its business activities, Titan Cement International may engage in activities
where its interests conflict with our interests or those of our other shareholders. In addition, our directors who are employed by or otherwise affiliated with Titan
Cement International may have or make investments in other companies that may compete with us. Titan Cement International also may pursue acquisition
opportunities that may be complementary to our business, and, as a result, those acquisition opportunities may not be available to us. As a result, our future
competitive position and growth potential could be adversely affected.

• Cross officerships, directorships and share ownership. The ownership interests of our directors or executive officers in the equity shares of Titan Cement International
or service as a director or officer of both Titan Cement International and us could create, or appear to create, conflicts of interest when directors and executive officers
are faced with decisions that could have different implications for the two companies. For example, these decisions could relate to (i) disagreement over the
desirability of a potential business or acquisition opportunity or business plans, (ii) employee retention or recruiting (iii) our dividend policy or (iv) terms of cement
purchase agreements.

As set out above, the Belgian Code on Companies and Associations sets out a mandatory procedure on financial conflicts of interest that is applicable to the members
of the board of directors of Titan America but does not provide any express protection against conflicts of interest at the level of Titan America’s management.
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Any such conflicts of interest or disputes that are not resolved in favor of our business could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.  

We have identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting. If we are unable to maintain effective internal controls, the accuracy and
timeliness of our financial reporting may be adversely affected, which could cause the market price of our common shares to decline, lessen investor confidence and harm
our business.

As a public company, we are subject to significant requirements for enhanced financial reporting and internal controls. The process of designing and implementing
effective internal controls is a continuous effort that requires us to anticipate and react to changes in our business and the economic and regulatory environments and to expend
significant resources to maintain a system of internal controls that is adequate to satisfy our reporting obligations as a public company. In addition, we are required, pursuant to
Section 404(a) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act (“Section 404”), to furnish a report by management on, among other things, the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting, and our auditors are required to issue an attestation report on the effectiveness of our internal controls on an annual basis.

The rules governing the standards that must be met for our management to assess our internal control over financial reporting are complex and require significant
documentation, testing, and possible remediation. Testing and maintaining internal controls may divert our management’s attention from other matters that are important to our
business.

During the preparation of our financial statements included elsewhere in this document we identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial
reporting. The Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (the “PCAOB”) defines a material weakness as “a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or
detected on a timely basis.”

A description of the material weaknesses identified is included under “Item 5.E. Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates—Material Weaknesses.”

We are in the process of developing a remediation plan designed to remediate each of the identified material weaknesses; however the material weaknesses will not be
considered remediated until the action items arising out of the plan have been implemented and the new controls and procedures have been operating effectively for a sufficient
period of time. While we will work to remediate the material weaknesses as quickly and efficiently as possible, we cannot at this time provide an expected timeline in
connection with any remediation plan. These remediation measures may be time-consuming and costly, and might place significant demands on our financial and operational
resources.

As permitted under the U.S. securities laws, neither we nor our independent registered public accounting firm have performed or are required to perform an evaluation
of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. In the future, we may identify additional material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in our internal
control over financial reporting.

Our ability to comply with the annual internal control reporting requirements will depend on the effectiveness of our financial reporting and data systems and controls
across our Company. Any weaknesses or deficiencies or any failure to implement new or improved controls, or difficulties encountered in the implementation or operation of
these controls, could harm our operating results and cause us to fail to meet our financial reporting obligations, or result in material misstatements in our consolidated financial
statements, which could adversely affect our business and reduce the price of our common shares.

If we are unable to conclude on an ongoing basis that we have effective internal control over financial reporting in accordance with Section 404, our independent
registered public accounting firm cannot render an unqualified opinion on our internal control over financial reporting, when required. If we are unable to conclude that we
have effective internal control over financial reporting, investors could lose confidence in our reported financial information, which could have a material adverse effect on the
trading price of our common shares. Failure to remedy any material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting, or to implement or maintain other effective
control systems required of public companies, could also restrict our future access to the capital markets.

As a public reporting company, we are subject to rules and regulations established from time to time by the SEC regarding our internal control over financial reporting. If
we fail to put in place appropriate and effective internal control over financial
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reporting and disclosure controls and procedures, we may not be able to accurately report our financial results, or report them in a timely manner, which may adversely
affect investor confidence in us and, as a result, the value of our common shares.

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting and also, as a public company, is responsible for
evaluating and reporting on our system of internal control. Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS
Accounting Standards”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IFRS”). As a public company, we are required to report, among other things, control
deficiencies that constitute a “material weakness” or changes in internal controls that, or that are reasonably likely to, materially affect internal control over financial reporting.
During the preparation of our financial statements included elsewhere in this document, we identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting.

If our executive management is unable to conclude that we have effective internal control over financial reporting, or to certify the effectiveness of such controls, or if
our independent registered public accounting firm cannot render an unqualified opinion on our internal control over financial reporting, when required, if we fail to remediate
the material weaknesses identified or if additional material weaknesses or deficiencies in our internal controls are identified, we could be subject to sanctions or investigations
by the SEC or other regulatory authorities, investors may lose confidence in the accuracy and completeness of our financial reports, we may face restricted access to the capital
markets and our share price may be adversely affected.

We will incur increased costs and regulatory burden and devote substantial management time as a result of being a public company listed on the NYSE.

As a public company listed on the NYSE, we incur increased legal, accounting and other costs not incurred as a private company operating as a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Titan Cement International. In particular, as a public company, we are required to, among other things:  

• comply with the rules and regulations implemented by the SEC, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, the Dodd-Frank Act, the PCAOB and the NYSE;

• maintain an internal audit function;

• enhance our own financial reporting function;

• establish an investor relations function; and

• establish certain internal policies, including those relating to trading in our securities.

Compliance with these requirements increases our legal and financial compliance costs and makes some activities more time consuming and costly. In addition, our
management and other personnel will need to divert attention from operational and other business matters to devote substantial time and other resources to these requirements.
We have made, and will continue to make, changes to our financial management control systems and other areas to manage our obligations as a public company listed on the
NYSE, including corporate governance, corporate controls, disclosure controls and procedures and financial reporting and accounting systems. However, we cannot assure you
that these and other measures that we might take will be sufficient to allow us to satisfy our obligations as a public company on a timely basis. As a result of these additional
costs and other requirements, our historical financial information included in this document is not necessarily indicative of our future results of operations, financial condition
or cash flows, nor does it reflect what our results of operations, financial condition or cash flows would have been as a public company during the periods presented.

We are subject to additional regulatory compliance requirements, including Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

As a foreign private issuer listed on the NYSE, we incur legal, accounting and other expenses. We are subject to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act, the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010, the listing requirements and other applicable securities rules and regulations, as
well as the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. Compliance with these rules and regulations increases our legal and financial compliance costs, makes some activities more
difficult, time consuming or costly and increases demand on our systems and resources. The Exchange Act requires that, as a public company, we file or furnish annual and
certain other reports with respect to our business, financial condition and results of operations. These
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rules and regulations are often subject to varying interpretations, in many cases due to their lack of specificity, and, as a result, their application in practice may evolve over
time as new guidance is provided by regulatory and governing bodies. This could result in continuing uncertainty regarding compliance matters and higher costs necessitated by
ongoing revisions to disclosure and governance practices. We cannot predict or estimate the amount of additional costs we may incur as a result of being a public company or
the timing of such costs. Any changes we make to comply with these obligations may not be sufficient to allow us to satisfy our obligations as a public company on a timely
basis, or at all. These reporting requirements, rules and regulations, coupled with the increase in potential litigation exposure associated with being a public company, could also
make it more difficult for us to attract and retain qualified persons to serve on our board of directors or board committees or to serve as executive officers, or make it more
difficult or expensive for us to obtain certain types of insurance, including directors’ and officers’ insurance, on acceptable terms.

Effective internal control over financial reporting is necessary for us to provide reliable financial reports. Effective internal controls, together with adequate disclosure
controls and procedures, are designed to prevent or detect material misstatement due to fraud or error and to provide reasonable assurance as to the reliability of financial
reporting. Deficiencies in our internal controls may adversely affect our management’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data on a timely basis. As a
public company, we are required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act to include a report of management’s assessment on our internal control over financial reporting and,
beginning with our annual report for the year ending December 31, 2025, compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act will significantly increase our compliance
costs and management’s attention may be diverted from other business concerns, which could adversely affect our financial performance. We may need to hire more team
members in the future or engage outside consultants to comply with these requirements, which would further increase expenses. If we fail to comply with the applicable
requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act in the required timeframe, we may be subject to sanctions, investigations or other enforcement actions by regulatory authorities,
including the SEC.

We, and our independent registered public accounting firm, were not required to perform an evaluation of our internal control over financial reporting as of December
31, 2024 in accordance with the provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.  

Although we may pay dividends or repay an issue premium to holders of our common shares under Belgian law, our ability to do so is subject to the discretion of our board
of directors and shareholders.

We currently intend to distribute dividends or repay an issue premium, as applicable, to our shareholders on a pro-rata basis. Although we intend to pay dividends or
repay an issue premium, as applicable, pursuant to this policy, our common shares will have no contractual or other legal right to dividends. Any recommendation by our board
of directors to the general shareholders’ meeting to declare and pay dividends and any decision by our board of directors to declare and pay interim dividends in the future will
be made at its discretion and will depend on, among other things, our results of operations, financial condition, earnings, capital requirements, debt service obligations,
restrictive covenants in our current and future debt agreements, industry practice, legal requirements (including those noted below under Belgian law), cash requirements,
contractual restrictions and other factors that our board of directors may deem relevant. In addition, our ability to pay dividends is, and may continue to be, limited by covenants
of our current and future indebtedness, and on our ongoing ability to generate cash from operations and access to the capital markets. Accordingly, we may not declare or make,
or may have to reduce or eliminate, payments of any dividends. As a result, investors may not receive future dividends and the market price of our common shares may be
adversely affected. See “Dividend Policy.”

Furthermore, pursuant to Belgian law, the calculation of amounts available for distribution to shareholders, as dividends or otherwise, must be determined on the basis
of our statutory non-consolidated Belgian GAAP (as defined below) financial statements. In addition, in accordance with Belgian law and our articles of association, we must
allocate each year an amount of at least 5% of our annual net profit under our statutory non-consolidated accounts (prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Belgium (“Belgian GAAP”)) to a legal reserve until the reserve equals 10% of our share capital. In 2024, there were no annual net profits under our statutory non-
consolidated accounts that would require a reserve.

In addition, any dividends will generally be subject to Belgian withholding tax. See “Material Belgian Federal Income Tax Considerations” for a more detailed
description of Belgian taxes which may be imposed on dividends.

In addition, after the contribution of 100% of the equity of Titan Atlantic Cement Industrial and Commercial S.A. to Titan America (the “Contribution”) and the IPO,
we have recorded sufficient issue premium that allows us to retain the possibility of carrying out a consistent distribution policy, through the repayment (or part thereof) of the
issue premium per common share (which can be decided upon by our general meeting subject to a simple majority). Any recommendation by our board of directors to the
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general shareholders’ meeting to repay the issue premium (or part thereof), is contingent on the factors as set out above. The tax treatment of the repayment of such issue
premium is set out in our Registration Statement.

Under the Belgian Code on Companies and Associations, a distribution of a dividend is subject to Titan America SA carrying out the so-called ‘net asset test’, whereby
distributions can only occur insofar as and to the extent the company’s net assets remain above the statutory capital of Titan America SA (plus its undistributable reserves). In
addition, Titan America SA must also allocate part of its profits to the formation of a legal reserve, as set out in our Registration Statement.

We are a holding company with no operations of our own and, as such, we depend on our subsidiaries for cash to fund our operations and expenses, including future
dividend payments, if any.

As a holding company, our principal source of cash flow is distributions or payments from our operating subsidiaries. Therefore, our ability to fund and conduct our
business, service our debt and pay dividends, if any, in the future will depend on the ability of our subsidiaries and intermediate holding companies to make upstream cash
distributions or payments to us, which may be impacted, for example, by their ability to generate sufficient cash flow or limitations on the ability to repatriate funds whether as
a result of currency liquidity restrictions, monetary or exchange controls or otherwise. Our operating subsidiaries and intermediate holding companies are separate legal entities,
and although they are directly or indirectly wholly-owned and controlled by us, they have no obligation to make any funds available to us, whether in the form of loans,
dividends or otherwise. To the extent the ability of any of our subsidiaries to distribute dividends or other payments to us is limited in any way, our ability to fund and conduct
our business, service our debt and pay dividends, if any, could be harmed.

If securities or industry analysts do not publish or cease publishing research or reports about us, our business or our market, or if they change their recommendations
regarding our common shares adversely, the market price and trading volume of our common shares could decline.

The trading market for our common shares is influenced by the research and reports that industry or securities analysts publish about us, our business, our market or
our competitors. If any of the securities or industry analysts who cover us or may cover us in the future change their recommendation regarding our common shares adversely,
or provide more favorable relative recommendations about our competitors, the price of our common shares would likely decline. If any securities or industry analyst who
covers us or may cover us in the future were to cease coverage of us or fail to regularly publish reports on us, we could lose visibility in the financial markets, which in turn
could cause our share price or trading volume of our common shares to decline.  

It may be difficult for investors outside Belgium to serve process on, or enforce foreign judgments against, us or our directors and executive management.

We are a Belgian public limited liability company. Less than a majority of the members of our board of directors are residents of the United States and all or a
substantial portion of the assets of such non-resident persons are located outside the United States. As a result, it may not be possible for investors to effect service of process
upon such persons or on us or to enforce against them or us a judgment obtained in U.S. courts. Original actions or actions for the enforcement of judgments of U.S. courts
relating to the civil liability provisions of the federal or state securities laws of the United States are not directly enforceable in Belgium.

The United States and Belgium do not currently have a multilateral or bilateral treaty providing for reciprocal recognition and enforcement of judgments, other than
arbitral awards, in civil and commercial matters. In order for a final judgment for the payment of money rendered by U.S. courts based on civil liability to produce any effect on
Belgian soil, it is accordingly required that this judgment be recognized or be declared enforceable by a Belgian court in accordance with Articles 22 to 25 of the 2004 Belgian
Code of Private International Law. Recognition or enforcement does not imply a review of the merits of the case and is irrespective of any reciprocity requirement. A U.S.
judgment will, however, not be recognized or declared enforceable in Belgium, unless (in addition to compliance with certain technical provisions) the Belgian courts are
satisfied of the following: 

• the effect of the recognition or enforcement is not manifestly incompatible with Belgian public policy;

• the judgment did not violate the rights of defense;

• the judgment was not rendered with the sole purpose of avoiding the application of the law applicable according to Belgian private international law, in a matter where
parties cannot freely dispose of their rights;
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• the judgment is not subject to further recourse under the applicable laws in the state where the judgment was issued;

• the judgment is not incompatible with a judgment rendered in Belgium or with an earlier judgment rendered abroad that might be recognized in Belgium;

• the claim to which the judgment relates was not filed after a claim that is still pending between the same parties and concerning the same subject matter was filed in
Belgium;

• the Belgian courts did not have exclusive jurisdiction to rule on the matter;

• the relevant U.S. court did not accept its jurisdiction solely on the basis of the presence of the plaintiff or the location of goods not directly linked to the dispute in the
state in which the court is located; and

• an issuance of the judgment that meets the requirement of authenticity under the applicable laws in the state where the judgment was rendered is provided; in case of a
judgment in absentia, it can be shown that under the applicable laws in the state where the judgment was rendered, the invitation to appear in court was properly
served on, or notified to, the defendant; a document can be produced showing that the judgment is, under the applicable laws in the state where it was rendered,
enforceable and was properly served on the defendant.

In addition to recognition or enforcement, a judgment by a federal or state court in the United States against us may also serve as evidence in a similar action in a
Belgian court if it meets the conditions required for the authenticity of judgments under the applicable laws in the state where the judgment was rendered. The findings of a
federal or state court in the United States will not, however, be taken into account to the extent they would have consequences that are manifestly incompatible with Belgian
public policy.

Based on the lack of a treaty as described above, U.S. investors may not be able to enforce against us or members of our board of directors or our executive
management any judgments obtained in U.S. courts in civil and commercial matters, including judgments under the U.S. federal securities laws.

Our articles of association contain exclusive forum provisions for certain shareholder litigation matters, which would limit our shareholders’ ability to obtain a favorable
judicial forum for disputes with us or our directors, officers, associates or shareholders or make the litigation of such disputes more costly for shareholders.

Our articles of association provide that, subject to limited exceptions, to the fullest extent permitted by law, Belgian courts are the sole and exclusive forum for any
dispute relating to corporate matters of the Company and the implementation of our articles of association between the Company, our shareholders, our directors, statutory
auditors or liquidators. This provision does not apply to suits brought to enforce any duty or liability created by the Securities Act or Exchange Act, or rules and regulations
thereunder.

Any person or entity purchasing or otherwise acquiring any interest in our common shares shall be deemed to have had notice of and consented to the choice of forum
provisions of our articles of association. This choice of forum provision may limit a shareholder’s ability to bring a claim in a judicial forum that it finds favorable for disputes
with us or any of our directors, officers, other associates or shareholders, which may discourage lawsuits with respect to such claims or impose additional costs or other burdens
on such shareholder. Alternatively, if a court were to find the choice of forum provision contained in our articles of association to be inapplicable or unenforceable in an action,
we may incur additional costs associated with resolving such action in other jurisdictions, which could harm our business, operating results and financial condition.

Risks Related to Certain Tax Matters

Changes in tax laws or unanticipated tax liabilities could adversely affect our effective income tax rate and profitability.

We are subject to income taxes in the United States, Greece and Belgium. Our effective income tax rate could be adversely affected in the future by a number of
factors, including changes in the valuation of deferred tax assets and liabilities, changes in tax laws and regulations or their interpretations and application and the outcome of
income tax audits in any of the jurisdictions in which we operate or are otherwise subject to tax.
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A significant change in the United States, Greece or Belgian tax law, or that of other countries where we may operate or have a presence, may materially and adversely
impact our income tax liability, provision for income taxes and effective tax rate. We regularly assess all of these matters to determine the adequacy of our income tax
provision, which is subject to significant judgment.

In the ordinary course of our business, there are many transactions and calculations where the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Although we believe our tax
estimates are reasonable, the final outcome of tax audits and related litigation could be materially different than that reflected in our historical income tax provisions and
accruals. There can be no assurance that the resolution of any audits or litigation will not have an adverse effect on future operating results.  

The Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development (the “OECD”) is conducting a project focused on base erosion and profit shifting in international
structures, which seeks to establish certain international standards for taxing the worldwide income of multinational companies. In addition, the OECD is working on a “BEPS
2.0” initiative, which is aimed at (i) shifting taxing rights to the jurisdiction of the consumer and (ii) ensuring all companies pay a global minimum tax. In December 2022, the
member states of the European Union unanimously voted to adopt the OECD’s minimum tax rules and phase them into national law, and in February 2023 the OECD released
technical guidance on the global minimum tax which was agreed by consensus of the BEPS 2.0 Pillar Two signatory jurisdictions. Under the European Union’s minimum tax
directive (the “EU Directive 2022/2523”), member states are to adopt domestic legislation implementing the minimum tax rules effective for periods beginning on or after
December 31, 2023, with the “under-taxed profit rule” to take effect for periods beginning on or after December 31, 2024. Belgium and other countries where Titan Group is
active, have adopted the BEPS 2.0 rules and as a result, these rules will impact Titan Group going forward. As a result of these developments, the tax laws relevant to our
operations and cashflow could change on a prospective or retroactive basis, and any such changes could increase our liabilities for taxes, interest and penalties, and therefore
could harm our business, cash flows, results of operations and financial position. Belgium implemented EU Directive 2022/2523 into its national legislation with the law of
December 19, 2023. This law has entered into effect as from January 1, 2024. The law of May 12, 2024 has further provided for some technical corrections to these rules.

In August 2022, the United States passed the Inflation Reduction Act of 2022 (the “IRA”), which imposed, among other things, a corporate alternative minimum tax
on book income on certain large U.S. corporations, including certain U.S. subsidiaries of certain large multinational corporate groups, and a 1% excise tax on net stock
repurchases by certain publicly traded corporations, including publicly-traded non-U.S. corporations in certain circumstances. These provisions became effective on January 1,
2023. Although we do not currently believe that the IRA will have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements, the full effects of these rules and other provisions
of the IRA on us are uncertain until further regulations and guidance from the U.S. Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) and the U.S. Department of the Treasury (“U.S. Treasury”)
are released.

If a U.S. Holder is treated as owning at least 10% of our common share capital, such holder may be subject to adverse U.S. federal income tax consequences.

If a U.S. Holder (as defined below under “Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations”) is treated as owning, directly, indirectly or constructively, at least 10%
of the value or voting power of our share capital, such U.S. Holder may be treated as a “United States shareholder” with respect to each “controlled foreign corporation” in our
group, if any. Because of certain attribution rules, we and/or any non-U.S. subsidiary may be treated as a controlled foreign corporation. A United States shareholder of a
controlled foreign corporation generally will be required to annually report and include in its U.S. taxable income, as ordinary income, its pro rata share of “Subpart F income,”
“global intangible low-taxed income” and investments in U.S. property by controlled foreign corporations, whether or not we make any distributions to such United States
shareholder. An individual United States shareholder generally would not be allowed certain tax deductions or foreign tax credits that would be allowed to a corporate United
States shareholder with respect to a controlled foreign corporation. A failure by a United States shareholder to comply with its reporting obligations may subject the United
States shareholder to significant monetary penalties, loss of foreign tax credits and may extend the statute of limitations with respect to the United States shareholder’s U.S.
federal income tax return for the year for which such reporting was due. We cannot provide any assurances that we will assist investors in determining whether we or any of our
non-U.S. subsidiaries are controlled foreign corporations for any given year or whether any investor is a United States shareholder with respect to any such controlled foreign
corporations. We also cannot guarantee that we will furnish to United States shareholders information that may be necessary to comply with the aforementioned reporting and
tax paying obligations. The IRS has provided limited guidance on situations in which investors may rely on publicly available information to comply with their reporting and
tax paying obligations with respect to controlled foreign corporations. U.S. investors should consult their tax advisors regarding the potential application of these rules to their
investment in our shares.  
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U.S. Holders may suffer adverse tax consequences if we are characterized as a passive foreign investment company for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

We will be classified as a passive foreign investment company (a “PFIC”) for U.S. federal income tax purposes for any taxable year if either: (1) at least 75% of our
gross income for the taxable year is “passive income” for purposes of the PFIC rules, or (2) at least 50% of the value (generally determined on the basis of a quarterly average)
of our assets is attributable to assets that produce, or are held for the production of, passive income. Based on our financial statements and our expectations about the nature and
amount of our income, assets and activities and the market value of our equity, we do not believe that we were a PFIC for our most recent taxable year, and we do not expect to
become a PFIC for our current taxable year or in the foreseeable future. The determination of PFIC status, however, is made annually, at the end of each taxable year, and is
dependent upon a number of factors, some of which are beyond our control, including the relative values of our assets and subsidiaries, and the amount and type of our income.
As a result, there can be no assurance that we will not be a PFIC for our current taxable year or any subsequent year or that the IRS will agree with our conclusion regarding
PFIC status and would not successfully challenge our position. U.S. Holders (as defined in “Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations”) should consult their tax
advisors about the potential application of the PFIC rules to their investment in the common shares. For further discussion, see “Material U.S. Federal Income Tax
Considerations—Passive Foreign Investment Company Status.”

 Item 4. Information on the Company

A. History and Development of the Company

Titan America SA was incorporated in Belgium on July 17, 2024 and we are a limited liability company (société anonyme/naamloze vennootschap) under Belgian law.
We are registered with the Register of Legal Entities (registre des personnes morales/rechtspersonenregister) of Brussels (French-speaking division) and are registered with the
Crossroads Bank for Enterprises (Banque-Carrefour des Entreprises/Kruispuntbank van Ondernemingen) under number 1011.751.174.

We are majority owned by Titan Cement International SA, the parent company of the Titan group of companies. Established in 1902 in Greece, Titan Cement
International is a multinational cement and building materials producer with cement production facilities in ten countries, serving customers in more than 25 countries globally.
As of the date of this annual report, Titan Cement International SA beneficially owns approximately 87% of our common shares. We are a “controlled company” under
corporate governance standards and to take advantage of certain corporate governance exceptions related thereto.

Since our initial investment in the Essex Cement import terminal in Metro New York in 1989, we believe we have built one of the most comprehensive, capable and
reliable building materials platforms on the Eastern Seaboard through focused and strategic investments.

In 1992, we acquired 59% of Roanoke Cement Company and all its related assets, establishing our domestic manufacturing and regional distribution capabilities in the
Mid-Atlantic region through the addition of the Roanoke cement plant in Troutville, Virginia (our “Roanoke Plant”), a marine import terminal in South Norfolk, Virginia (our
“Norfolk Terminal”) and a rail-connected distribution network in Virginia and North Carolina.  

Between 1996 and 2002, we invested $110 million in our Roanoke Plant, which included a major modernization of its clinker and cement production process, as well
as the addition of a preheater/precalciner, a new clinker cooler, new clinker silos, a new finish mill and a new packaged cement line.

In 2000, we acquired Tarmac America Inc., including the remaining 41% of Roanoke Cement Company, giving us initial positions in ready-mix concrete and concrete
block operations across the State of Florida, as well as our Pennsuco facility in Medley, Florida (“Pennsuco”) that produces cement, aggregates, ready-mix concrete and
concrete block.

In 2002, we acquired Separation Technologies (“ST”), a market leader in fly ash beneficiation and marketing.

Throughout the early 2000s, we made significant investments to expand and improve the logistics and import capabilities of the business establishing a cement import
terminal at the Port Tampa Bay, Florida (our “Port Tampa Bay Terminal”), and modernizing the Essex import operation at Port Newark in Metro New York (our “Essex
Terminal”).
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Between 2001 and 2006, we invested approximately $254 million in our Pennsuco plant, which included modernization efforts with the commissioning of a state-of-
the-art clinker production line, significantly increasing clinker production capacity at much lower energy consumption rates, and the addition of a new finish mill and a new
packaging operation.

Between 2006 and 2007, we invested approximately $365 million to significantly expand our ready-mix footprint through the acquisition of the S&W Ready Mix
Concrete Company, which operated 26 concrete plants in the Carolinas, the Mechanicsville Concrete Company and five plants under the Powhatan Ready Mix brand in and
around Richmond, Virginia. We also completed acquisitions of three ready-mix businesses on the west coast of Florida, including nine concrete plants located in and between
Tampa and Fort Myers. In addition to these acquisitions, we installed 11 greenfield ready-mix concrete plants and one concrete block production line throughout our territory
which expanded our geographic footprint and improved density of delivery and manufacturing capacity in growing markets.

In early 2010, we invested in a sand mine in Sussex County, Virginia, followed by commencing our operations in New Castle, Virginia in 2011 and Branchville,
Virginia in 2019.

From 2014 to 2023, we invested $53 million in an overland conveyor and two new draglines at the Pennsuco quarry.

In 2017, we entered into a long-term mining royalty agreement and began operating a crushed limestone quarry in Estero, Florida, near Fort Myers. We upgraded the
operations by installing a dragline and mobile mining fleet, as well as expanding the existing permit to substantially increase the base of reserves, all of which provide a stable
source of aggregates for both external sale and internal consumption.

Between 2018 and 2023, we invested $52 million in modernizing our logistics network in the Mid-Atlantic region, including (i) investments in increasing silo storage
capacity and installation of an automated loadout system at our Roanoke Plant, (ii) expansion of the Winston-Salem, Charlotte, Selma and Wilmington rail terminals to allow
for multiple products, optimized storage and distribution capabilities and (iii) installation of a hybrid loadout system at the Norfolk Terminal capable of loading both trucks and
rail cars.

In 2023, we completed a $73 million investment at our Port Tampa Bay Terminal and our Norfolk Terminal, constructing new domes, adding multi-product storage
capacity of approximately 70,000 tons each, as well as on other repairs and refurbishments.

On February 10, 2025, we completed our initial public offering of 24,000,000 common shares (the “IPO”). The IPO was comprised of a primary offering of 9,000,000
newly issued common shares and a secondary offering of 15,000,000 existing common shares. The common shares were sold at an offering price of $16.00 per share,
generating proceeds of approximately $136.8 million, after deducting underwriting discounts and other commissions. Our common shares began trading on the New York Stock
Exchange on February 7, 2025 under the symbol “TTAM”.

On March 11, 2025, the underwriters exercised a portion of their overallotment option and purchased 580,756 additional existing shares from Titan Cement
International (the selling shareholder). The Company did not receive any additional proceeds from the sale of these shares. As of the date of this Annual Report, the Company
has a total of 184,362,465 common shares issued and outstanding.

Our registered office is located at Square de Meeûs 37, 1000 Brussels, Belgium and our telephone number is +32 2 726 80 58. Our website is www.titanamerica.com. Our
agent for service of process in the United States is John Christy, 5700 Lake Wright Drive, Suite 300, Norfolk, VA 23502.

We file reports and other information with the SEC pursuant to the SEC’s rules and regulations that apply to foreign private issuers. The SEC maintains a website that
contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC. Titan America’s electronic filings are available
for viewing on this website, at https://www.sec.gov.

Principal Capital Investments

In the fiscal years ended December 31, 2022, 2023 and 2024, our net capital expenditures were $128.0 million, $118.6 million and $137.3 million, respectively. The
funding requirements of such various capital expenditures were financed by cash provided principally by operating and financing activities or the existing balance of cash and
cash equivalents.
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We prioritize growth and productivity initiatives, and our investments focus on enhancing logistics capabilities, expanding cement and aggregate production, and
strengthening our downstream product lines. Simultaneously, we invest in maintenance activities to support cement and quarry production, as well as the enhancement of
storage facilities across our network.

B. Business Overview

Titan America is a leading vertically integrated, multi-regional manufacturer and supplier of heavy building materials and services operating primarily on the Eastern
Seaboard of the United States (the “Eastern Seaboard”). We are a leading provider of materials that contribute to lower carbon emissions than traditional building materials
and/or beneficial reuse of waste materials. We are a leading provider of heavy building materials in Florida, the New York and New Jersey Metropolitan area (“Metro New
York”), Virginia, North Carolina and South Carolina (Virginia and the Carolinas, together with Metro New York and their adjacent areas, the “Mid-Atlantic”). We serve markets
that benefit from population growth, economic growth and technology and innovation trends that are among the strongest in the United States.

Throughout the United States, we operate and maintain two cement plants, three marine import terminals, seven active mine locations, 82 ready-mix locations with 92
batch plants, eight concrete block locations with 13 production lines, seven fly ash plants and 21 distribution hubs that can handle various combinations of our products.

Due to the regional nature of our business, we report our operating results in two reportable segments: Florida and Mid-Atlantic. We run our operations nimbly
allowing us to pivot resources to markets we support with the greatest demand based on market conditions.

Florida Reportable Segment

Our Florida reportable segment consists of our cement, aggregates, ready-mix concrete, concrete block and fly ash operations within the State of Florida. We currently
operate one cement plant, three mines, 40 ready-mix locations with 45 batch plants, eight concrete block locations with 13 production lines, two fly ash facilities and one multi-
product marine import terminal along with related logistics infrastructure.

For fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, 2023 and 2024, our Florida reportable segment generated $808.6 million, $969.9 million and $997.6 million in segment
external revenue. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 revenue (including internal trading activity) from cement, aggregates, ready-mix concrete, concrete block and
fly ash are $351.8 million, $131.3 million, $369.4 million, $116.9 million and $13.1 million, respectively. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, revenue (including
internal trading activity) from cement , aggregates, ready-mix concrete, concrete block and fly ash are $423.1 million, $138.0 million, $448.4 million, $140.1 million and $16.3
million, respectively. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, revenue (including internal trading activity) from cement operations, aggregates, ready-mix concrete,
concrete block and fly ash are $422.9 million, $157.5 million, $465.0 million, $153.5 million and $19.5 million, respectively.

Cement Operations

Our Florida reportable segment operates our Pennsuco plant in Medley, Florida, which is the largest cement plant in the State of Florida by capacity, according to the
2024 North American Cement Directory (SEMCO Publishing, 2024). Our Pennsuco plant currently has a cement production capacity of 2.4 million tons, which, through
ongoing focused and strategic investments, we expect will increase to over 3.0 million tons by 2030. 100% of our Pennsuco facility’s production is Lower-Carbon Cement.

Our Pennsuco plant has a cement storage capacity of approximately 72,000 tons across 12 silos. Additionally, the plant offers approximately 67,350 tons of clinker
storage capacity across 10 silos. Ongoing investments that are planned for completion in fiscal year 2026 are expected to add 30,000 tons of clinker storage capacity. Our
logistics capabilities are underpinned by 21,000 feet of high-capacity rail lines with a direct connection to the FEC railway and truck loadout capacity with four loadout bays
operating 24 hours, seven days a week. An on-site packaging facility at Pennsuco, commissioned in 2005, supports our position as the number one producer and marketer of
packaged masonry and stucco cement in Florida according to USGS data and our production of packaged masonry and stucco cement in Florida. 

We invested $14 million in an alternative fuel processing facility at Pennsuco that can produce a consistent heat value fuel for its kiln by processing and blending
commercial and industrial waste. We have secured multi-year contracts to supply feedstock
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streams. This alternative fuel facility was commissioned in late 2019. The Pennsuco plant has the proper infrastructure and is permitted to receive, process and utilize several
different conventional fuels and alternative fuels.

Our investment in rail-served cement capacity has resulted in two additional terminals in Edgewater and Jacksonville, Florida, allowing for cost-effective
transportation and distribution of our products throughout the east coast of Florida.

To efficiently and effectively provide cement products to the Gulf Coast and central regions of Florida, we have invested in building out intermodal logistics
capabilities at our Port Tampa Bay Terminal. The import facility includes five recently refurbished silos and a dome with approximately 70,000 tons of capacity that was
commissioned in July 2023. These improvements allow us the capability to handle multiple products with a total storage capacity of approximately 120,000 tons of cement and
cementitious materials.

Our Port Tampa Bay Terminal can receive 75,000-ton vessels, providing cost effective import capabilities into the Florida market where barriers to entry are high and
opportunities for import terminals within the state are few. 100% of the grey cement imported to our Port Tampa Bay Terminal is Lower-Carbon Cement. Our Port Tampa Bay
Terminal’s strategic location in Tampa, along with the rail capabilities, allow us to effectively service the entire peninsula of Florida. With our Port Tampa Bay Terminal’s
multi-product capabilities, including IL and SCMs, we are able to service the entire Florida peninsula. Our Port Tampa Bay Terminal includes three truck loadouts and a rail
loadout on the CSX rail line. We are also permitted and able to import, store and ship over 700,000 tons of aggregates per year at our Port Tampa Bay Terminal. Our Port
Tampa Bay Terminal has also averaged over 650,000 tons of imported cement annually over the last three years, with an ability to manage approximately 2.5 million tons of
cement annually.

Aggregates

Our aggregate operations include three mining locations with eight rail terminals as of December 31, 2024. Our Pennsuco aggregate operation is one of the largest
quarries in Florida and is adjacent to our Pennsuco cement plant. Situated on the FEC rail line allows us to supply Pennsuco aggregate from Miami-Dade County all the way to
Jacksonville utilizing our network of terminals. The hard limestone rock requires drilling and blasting before excavation. Our three large mining draglines provide significant
excavation capacity.

The mobile equipment fleet utilized in our aggregates operations includes four 19 cubic yard loaders and eight 100-ton haul trucks. Following an investment of $12.8
million in 2016, the primary crushing is now completed on-site at the Pennsuco quarry, thereby reducing traditional haul distances and minimizing mobile equipment required
in favor of an extensive 3.5-mile electrified overland conveyor system connecting the mining operations with the cement and aggregate plants. The processing plant receives
run-of-mine aggregates and produces both finished and fractionated products for blending rail shipments or special orders. The aggregate loadout includes truck and rail loading
with a rail-loading capacity of 97 railcars per day and the ability to store more than 200 railcars on site. The Pennsuco rail yard is served by the FEC railroad, providing access
to the network of terminals and aggregate distribution yards along the FEC.

Ready-Mix Concrete

The Florida ready-mix business includes 45 batching units at 40 locations servicing the entire peninsula of Florida, capable of handling multiple cements and SCMs
and producing a broad array of high-performing concrete mixes suitable for complex construction applications. Additional investment is underway to include additional
batching units with the goal of expanding our footprint.

We also provide our customers with portable ready-mix plant capabilities for large projects, such as the ones associated with the IIJA and other large projects requiring
high-volume and flexible delivery. Additionally, we support our customers in adopting and integrating new products developed us through our innovation and product quality
function, as well as optimizing their mix designs and production processes.  

Our ready-mix business is fully back-integrated, with access to a strategically-located and reliable supply of primary raw materials, mainly cement and aggregate
needed for concrete production.
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Concrete Block

Our concrete block business includes both retail and business-to-business channels. The 13 flexible production units are strategically located throughout our markets to
support 266 retail home improvement stores and key masonry contractors. We believe the Pennsuco facility, with four production units, is the largest single-block plant in
Florida by production capacity as of December 31, 2024, capable of producing over 20 million concrete blocks annually. Each location produces both standard and specialty
concrete block, maintaining a mix of products in stock to reduce transportation costs and customer response time. The manufacturing process involves utilizing our nearest
distribution locations for aggregates and cement. Additional growth investments include two new production facilities currently under development.

Fly Ash

We utilize fly ash in our cement and ready-mix manufacturing, which is partly supplied from two processing plants operated by ST (TECO and Crystal River). Our
TECO facility has access to STET’s proprietary electrostatic technology and ammonia removal technology. These systems serve to assure concrete-grade fly ash quality
regardless of the quality generated from the power plant. Additionally, the TECO facility has 30,000 tons of feed storage and 16,000 tons of final product storage capacity to
partially mitigate some of the vagaries in ash generation by the power plant. Our Crystal River ash source attains product specification without processing and is
interchangeable with ash sourced from our TECO facility.

We also import fly ash through the Port Tampa Bay facility to supply external customers and internal needs.

Mid-Atlantic Reportable Segment

Our Mid-Atlantic reportable segment consists of our cement, aggregates, ready-mix concrete and fly ash operations throughout the Mid-Atlantic region, most
concentrated in Virginia, North Carolina, South Carolina, New York and New Jersey, capable of serving surrounding states such as Maryland, West Virginia, Kentucky,
Tennessee, Pennsylvania, Ohio and Indiana areas with fly ash. We currently operate one cement plant, four mines, 42 ready-mix locations with 46 batch plants, along with
related logistics infrastructure and import terminals.

In fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, 2023 and 2024, our Mid-Atlantic reportable segment generated $553.3 million, $619.7 million and $634.9 million in segment
external revenue. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 revenue (including internal trading activity) from cement operations, aggregates, ready-mix concrete and fly ash
are $373.8 million, $8.0 million, $225.0 million and $10.9 million, respectively. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, revenue (including internal trading activity) from
cement operations, aggregates, ready-mix concrete and fly ash are $411.6 million, $15.1 million, $245.9 million and $13.9 million, respectively. For the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2024, revenue (including internal trading activity) from cement operations, aggregates, ready-mix concrete and fly ash are $405.1 million, $14.3 million, $270.5
million and $16.5 million, respectively.

Cement Operations

Our Mid-Atlantic reportable segment operates the only cement plant in the Commonwealth of Virginia, our Roanoke Plant. Our Roanoke Plant’s current cement
production capacity is 1.5 million tons, and investment is underway with the goal of increasing production capacity to 1.8 million tons by 2030.

Our Roanoke Plant maintains high-capacity rail and truck loadout capabilities, with a maximum storage capacity of over 90,000 tons dedicated to cement with 38 silos
directly or indirectly connected to the three loadout bays and the packaging operation. We invested over $5.4 million over the last three years to refurbish and restore most of
the cement silos in our Roanoke Plant, which increases the rate of transfer from cement silos to loading bays since completion of the upgrade. In addition, our Roanoke Plant
has three silos dedicated to clinker storage with a total capacity of 50,000 tons.

The Mid-Atlantic cement operations also include the Norfolk Terminal, with 28,000 tons of silo storage and a new dome with approximately 70,000 tons of capacity
that was commissioned in December 2023. Together, these improvements allow us to handle multiple products with a total storage capacity of nearly 100,000 tons of cement
and cementitious materials. Our Norfolk Terminal can receive 55,000-ton vessels and also includes two truck loadouts, a rail loadout and a hybrid truck/rail loadout capable of
shipping on either CSX or on the Norfolk Southern rail line. Our Norfolk Terminal averaged over 450,000 tons of cement imports annually over the last three years, with an
ability to manage approximately 1.9 million tons of cement annually.
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The Roanoke Plant’s location also makes it the closest cement plant to key markets in North Carolina. We believe that our proximity to key, growing markets
combined with our extensive intermodal logistics capabilities positions us to effectively serve our markets and customers in Virginia, Tennessee, West Virginia, North Carolina
and South Carolina.

Our Mid-Atlantic cement operation also operates our Essex Terminal, with a storage capacity of 65,000 tons across a bank of four silos. Our Essex Terminal can
receive and unload 55,000-ton vessels and distribute product with three high-capacity automated truck loadouts. Our Essex Terminal averaged over 850,000 tons of cement
imports annually over the last three years, effectively serving Metro New York.

Aggregates

We operate four aggregate facilities under the name of Titan Mid-Atlantic Aggregates LLC, strategically located to support our vertical integration model. Our
operation in New Castle, Virginia supplies critical minerals to the Roanoke Plant for the manufacture of clinker which assures long-term, secure sourcing and supplies concrete
grade masonry and asphalt sand to external ready-mix concrete, fiber board siding and asphalt paving customers. Our Mid-Atlantic aggregates business also includes operations
in Sussex County, Branchville and Stuarts Draft, Virginia. These facilities self-supply into our internal ready-mix concrete business providing supply security. All of our
aggregate facilities produce concrete, asphalt masonry sands and critical minerals with vertically integrated downstream channels to market through cement and ready-mix. 

Ready-Mix Concrete

Our concrete products business in Mid-Atlantic consists of 46 ready-mix batch plants across 42 sites, with 22 plants in Virginia and 24 plants in the Carolinas, each
capable of handling multiple cements and SCMs and producing a broad array of high-performing concrete mixes suitable for any type of complex construction application. We
also have additional portable ready-mix plant capabilities for large IIJA and other infrastructure projects that require high-volume dedicated and flexible delivery as well as
rapid entry into new locations.

Fly Ash

Our Mid-Atlantic fly ash business consists of one of the largest networks of fly ash sources in the Mid-Atlantic region, located in Baltimore, Maryland and York
Haven, Pennsylvania (both with proprietary electrostatic separation processing systems and a combined 87,000 tons of product storage), Maidsville, West Virginia, Brilliant,
Ohio and Clifty Creek, Indiana. These sources provide fly ash that has either been processed through our proprietary technology or meets required ASTM specifications without
processing, supply material for both internal use by our concrete businesses as well as direct sales to customers.

Key Recent Investments and Initiatives

Our recent investments as described above seek to capitalize on dynamic growth themes in the U.S. economy, including decarbonization, circular economy, resilient
urbanization, infrastructure modernization, refurbishment and renovation, new construction technologies and high-performance products. We believe these initiatives contribute
to and will act as significant drivers of growth.

Decarbonization

We are actively pursuing decarbonization by leveraging new technologies and high-performance products. The direct CO2 emissions related to cement production
originate primarily from the sintering of raw materials (primarily limestone) and the fuel combustion necessary to produce clinker, which is the main component of cement. We
have been focusing on reducing the CO2 emissions related to clinker production by utilizing higher amounts of alternative fuels and natural gas in our kilns. In addition, we are
actively pursuing government funds to explore and develop new technologies like indirect calcination and carbon capture and sequestration to further reduce the carbon
footprint of our clinker.

We have developed new cement types requiring less carbon intensive inputs that perform equally or better than conventional cements, resulting in lower CO2 content
of the final product. We have replaced over 95% of our Ordinary Portland Cement (“OPC”) with Lower-Carbon Cement, improving the CO2 emissions per ton of product by up
to 10% compared to OPC. We are currently investing in the development of our Type IT cement (a ternary cement blend) that requires even less amount of clinker while
delivering equal or better performance than Lower-Carbon Cement. Depending on the type of SCM used (such as fly ash, slag,
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calcined clay or natural pozzolans) the total reduction in clinker quantity can reach up to 50% compared to OPC cements, resulting in a significant reduction of the CO2
emissions per ton of product.

Utilizing greener cement types such as Type IL and Type IT, developing new concrete formulations (such as GreenCrete®) and deploying AI/ML solutions to improve
the batching accuracy and the quality control of our ready-mix process will further reduce the overall carbon footprint in our concrete products, supporting our commitment of
net-zero GHG emissions by 2050. Our investments in recycled aggregates further support our commitment to sustainable construction practices. Our investment in the
production of calcined clay will offer our Roanoke cement operation the ability to produce a high performing Type IT cement with locally-sourced raw materials. Also, the use
of natural pozzolans at our plants as the main ingredient of Type IT cement is part of our broader strategy to enhance our product offerings and meet the increasing demand for
sustainable construction materials.

Cement manufacturing requires significant amounts of fuel to generate the right temperatures for the raw materials inside the kiln’s different physical and chemical
transformations. By looking into ways of reducing the use of fossil fuels that contribute to the cement carbon footprint, we developed our alternative fuels program, which takes
different non-hazardous waste streams from a wide array of sources, industries and economic sectors and transforms them into fuel for our manufacturing facilities, reducing a
portion of the need for fossil fuels and raw materials, while providing an environmentally and economically sound alternative to landfills and reducing our net emissions of
GHGs.

Our alternative fuels program is a zero-waste solution, as no residue or combustion byproduct is generated. The clinker manufacturing process, which involves high
temperatures (up to 3,600° F), high turbulence and long residence times in the kiln, facilitates the nearly complete destruction of any harmful chemical compounds emitted by
the clinkering process, which is continuously monitored by certified emission monitoring systems according to federal and state regulations.

Our cement plants are permitted to utilize a variety of fuels such as coal, pet coke, natural gas, used oil, biomass and waste-derived fuels, which allows us to flex to the
optimal fuel source, achieving the lowest cost and/or CO2 emissions.  

We recently invested $14 million to build an alternative fuel processing and production facility at our Pennsuco plant, utilizing commercial and industrial waste
streams to manufacture our alternative fuels. Pennsuco is the only cement plant in Florida as of July 31, 2024 to have a solid waste processing permit, allowing for true,
vertically-integrated alternative fuel production capabilities. Additionally, the Roanoke Plant can feed multiple solid alternative fuels with technical capabilities able to reach up
to 30% thermal substitution rate, depending on the quality of the fuels.

Since 2019, our decarbonization efforts have led to an almost 20% reduction in CO2 emissions intensity, from 718 kg of net CO2/metric ton cementitious in 2019 to
582 kg/mt at the end of 2024. Net CO2 emissions exclude all CO2 generated from the combustion of alternative fuels since they are treated as carbon neutral. Utilization of
alternative fuels results in indirect GHG (not only CO2) savings at landfills and incineration plants where these wastes may otherwise be disposed of. When such waste streams
decompose at the landfills, more of the organic carbon will partially convert to methane which is 28 times more potent than CO2 for heat trapping. These savings can partly,
fully or more than fully offset the direct CO2 emissions from waste combustion at the cement plant, so they are excluded in the reporting of the net CO2 emissions according to
reporting guidelines adopted by the Global Cement Concrete Association in 2018.

Circular Economy

To promote a circular economy, we focus on recycling and reusing materials. Our recycled aggregates and crushed concrete initiatives involve converting waste
materials into valuable construction resources, thereby reducing the need for virgin raw materials. Our use of alternative fuels showcases our innovative methods to repurpose
industrial byproducts. 10% to 15% of the raw materials used for clinker and cement production are byproducts of other industrial processes.

Resilient Urbanization

We contribute to resilient urbanization by developing products and solutions designed for urban environments facing the effects of climate change. The inherent
strength and durability of concrete construction enable communities to mitigate damage and recover faster from extreme weather. As more communities invest in infrastructure
to combat the effects of extreme weather and sea-level rise, concrete is expected to be a material of choice for critical infrastructure. Our high-durability products, including
marine and underwater concrete, are designed to survive harsh conditions. Our products contribute to extended service life of critical
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infrastructure in even the harshest conditions in our markets, increasing the availability and reducing the need for maintenance and repairs.

Infrastructure Modernization

Infrastructure modernization is at the core of our strategy, with significant investments in advanced materials and technologies. Our investments in pre-cast
technologies and mobile ready-mix concrete plants are designed to meet the increasing demands for modern infrastructure. These initiatives are designed to ensure the timely
and efficient delivery of high-quality construction materials for new roads, bridges and public facilities.

Home Refurbishment and Renovation

We support the large and growing home refurbishment and renovation market with a variety of products that allow contractors and homeowners to refresh the exteriors
of their existing buildings with high-quality and high-performance materials.

The exterior home renovation market is projected to reach nearly $600 billion annually by 2027, an increase from $322.8 billion in 2014, driven by an aging housing
inventory which contributes to growing demand for high-quality, durable and aesthetically pleasing materials. Recognizing this trend, we provide a variety of products tailored
for the refurbishment and renovation market, including concrete block, stucco, and mortar offerings. Further, we are exploring an expansion of our product line to include
precast lintels and sills—key structural elements that enhance both the functionality and appearance of residential properties.  

In addition to our core refurbishment and repair product offerings, we are also exploring expansion into other critical areas of exterior home renovation, with the goal
of ensuring that our product portfolio is comprehensive and caters to the diverse needs of our customer base.

New Construction Technologies

We are at the forefront of the implementation and commercialization of new construction technologies, particularly with our 3D printing initiatives. Our partnerships
with 1Print and Natrx for the production and development of high-performance concrete utilizing our proprietary 3D mortar formulations exemplify our commitment to
innovation. These technologies enable more efficient and precise construction methods, reducing waste and enhancing structural integrity. Additionally, our extended joint-
spacing concrete technology provides durable flooring solutions, crucial for modernizing warehouses and distribution centers, enhancing their longevity and performance while
also allowing for the implementation of automation technology.

High-Performance Products

Our portfolio includes high-performance concrete and cementitious products tailored to meet increasingly demanding construction needs for infrastructure and
commercial markets. High-strength and high-modulus elasticity concretes are designed for increasingly tall and slender high-rise buildings in major urban markets. High-
durability concretes are developed for projects requiring extended service life in extreme conditions, including landmark tunnels and bridges. These products include marine
and underwater concretes designed for saltwater exposure. Our GreenCrete® product line provides independently validated less carbon-intensive concrete mixtures (based on
third-party measurements of embodied CO2 content relative to industry benchmark specifications) while enhancing performance across all applications. Our lower carbon and
high performing cements and supplementary cementitious materials are critical to enable these concrete mixes. We believe that our high-performance products not only enhance
the quality of construction but also support sustainable and resilient development.

Digital Transformation

We are also committed to digital transformation. We are early adopters of AI/ML technologies in our industry, which we employ to increase plant reliability and
capacity utilization, improve product quality, proactively manage operating and maintenance costs and improve energy efficiency. These initiatives place our cement plants in
the top five most efficient in the U.S. cement industry out of companies participating in a 2023 PCA survey.

We created a Digital Center of Excellence in 2022, which has driven digital transformation across our entire supply chain and fostered continuous improvement and
fine-tuning of existing industrial AI/ML solutions, as well as the development and implementation of similar solutions in our commercial and logistics activities. With our
cement manufacturing plants fully end-to-end
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digitalized, we recently implemented a new-to-market dynamic logistics and decision support system based on real-time data analytics and optimization algorithms that
improve customer service and reduce logistics costs. This sophisticated AI/ML application provides optimum planning and scheduling of product deliveries, taking into
consideration disruptions related to weather and/or real-time traffic events. Our Digital Center of Excellence is also testing and exploring new technologies, including robotics,
drones, autonomous vehicles, remote-operated mining equipment and other cutting-edge technology.

This digital transformation strategy allows us to connect our logistics network further downstream, helping us better serve our customers. A recently developed and
deployed AI/ML solution that allows for real-time optimization of the logistics and distribution of our ready-mix concrete products and has shown positive results and
productivity improvements for our Florida ready-mix business. It will soon be deployed in the Mid-Atlantic business segment. 

Our investments in state-of-the-art operations and process control systems have also resulted in the deployment of predictive maintenance systems, based on data
analytics for equipment faults and process anomaly detection to improve the reliability of our operations and predictive quality analytics that improve product quality and
consistency. 

Separation Technologies and SCMs

Recognizing the need for continued, proprietary investment in more eco-friendly and green concrete alternatives to traditional cement, we acquired a controlling stake
in ST in 2002. ST is a market leader in fly ash beneficiation and marketing, replacing certain inputs in the cement and concrete manufacturing processes with an industrial
waste stream that would otherwise be landfilled, significantly improving the green attributes of our products.

ST’s proprietary fly ash beneficiation process is a proven technology that produces fly ash, an almost-zero CO2 specification grade SCM, that can be used as an
additive in novel blended cements or as a partial replacement for cement in ready-mix concrete. Fly ash is the by-product of coal combustion for the generation of electricity
from power plants. Since all of the CO2 emitted during the electricity generation is accounted for at the power plant, the fly ash produced does not result in any independent
CO2 separate from the coal combustion. ST’s proprietary technology uses an electrostatic process to remove any excess unburnt carbon in the fly ash, making it usable for
concrete production. This process results in zero direct CO2 emissions because it does not involve any fuel combustion. However, in certain cases where power plants utilize
ammonia for their environmental controls, the resulting fly ash requires further processing with a proprietary ammonia removal process also developed by ST. This process
requires combustion of natural gas which emits low amounts of CO2; thus, the “almost-zero CO2” footprint of this material. Similarly, if the source of fly ash is from landfill
and pond impoundments, it will require drying through combustion of fuels (usually natural gas) prior to electrostatic processing, which results in low amounts of CO2
emissions. Overall, when compared to cement, the resulting CO2 footprint of processed fly ash is significantly lower and helps improve the overall carbon footprint of concrete
when used as a cement substitute.

Complementing the proprietary fly ash beneficiation technology are other processes ST has developed for the re-burn and reuse of unburned coal. Electrostatic
separation of unburnt carbon from the processed fly ash results in the production of a higher-carbon content material trademarked as EcoThermTM. This material can be
returned to the utility for reburn, substituting part of the coal used for electricity generation or used as an additive for clinker production, replacing a small portion of raw
materials and fuel needed for this process. In addition to ST’s processed ash facilities, we have additional locations under contract with electric utilities for the sale and
marketing of other lower carbon, concrete-grade fly ash in Florida, Maryland, Pennsylvania, Indiana, Ohio and West Virginia.

Additionally, the ST technology has been adapted to produce specification-grade SCM from fly ash that has been disposed of in landfill and pond impoundments. The
deployment of the ST technology in the reclamation of ash landfills will be driven not only by those cement companies seeking to develop long-term reserves of SCMs to
achieve their decarbonization goals, but also by electric utilities seeking to remediate these ash impoundments to comply with regulatory or stakeholder pressure. This push by
electric utilities to remediate ash disposal impoundments is a growing trend driven by recently promulgated U.S. EPA coal combustion residual rules, state-level mandates and
shareholder and non-governmental organization pressure.

The development of projects using ST’s proprietary technology with third parties is led by the STET segment. Titan America LLC has divested the STET segment in a
sale for cash to Titan Cement Netherlands B.V., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Titan Cement International in January 2025. The STET segment is immaterial to the results of
operations, financial position and cash flows of the Company. Prior to the divestiture, the intellectual property associated with the proprietary technology that resided within ST
was transferred from ST to ST Equipment & Technology LLC, a legal entity within the STET segment. ST continues to operate fly ash
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processing plants and market fly ash and continues to pursue growth opportunities. Where either legacy operations or new growth opportunities are required, ST will enter into
agreements with ST Equipment & Technology LLC (or successor) to license and use the proprietary technology and these agreements may include ST paying lump sum
payments for the purchase of the proprietary equipment as well as ongoing fees for licensing and technical support.

Seasonality

The building materials we supply directly support the construction industry, which is seasonally impacted in some states, including those in the Mid-Atlantic business
unit. Therefore, we generally record lower revenues and operating profits in the Mid-Atlantic region during the first and fourth quarters when adverse weather conditions may
be present in the northern parts of the territory. In contrast, sales and profitability are higher during the second and third quarters, as favorable weather conditions support
construction activity. Hence, any seasonal changes and other weather-related conditions, in particular extended rainy and cold weather in the spring and fall and major weather
events, such as hurricanes, tornadoes, tropical storms and heavy snows, can lead to a decline in both the use of our products and demand for our services.

The Carolinas and Florida are less seasonally impacted, with the corresponding construction season being more balanced across the year, but are susceptible to the
impacts of hurricanes. This can intermittently affect third and fourth-quarter sales depending on the hurricane season intensity.

Raw Materials and Suppliers

We use various raw materials in manufacturing our products, sourced from a diverse supplier base. The raw materials used include sand/aggregates, bauxite, fly ash,
iron slag, gypsum, pozzolans, packaging (paper bags, shrink wrap) and chemicals (grinding aids, concrete admixtures). Other key inputs include kiln fuels (including natural
gas, coal and alternative fuels), refractories, grinding media, spare and replacement parts for process and handling equipment, diesel fuel and electricity.

We source these raw materials from a broad range of key suppliers, both in the United States and overseas, with multiple options for key raw materials. We maintain
strong relationships with our key suppliers both contractually and operationally, and we have a long history of sourcing these materials. These strong supplier relationships,
along with our multiple sourcing options, assist in negotiating favorable sourcing terms, including product availability, payment terms and pricing. We enter into supply
agreements with suppliers as appropriate to define and manage specifications/quality and scope of work, commercial terms, service levels, supply security and risk mitigation,
warranties and claims and dispute resolution mechanisms. We actively monitor our supply agreements and relationships to optimize cost and performance, mitigate supply risk
and strengthen our supply chain where possible.

Our top 20% of suppliers (with a spend of over $1 million) make up approximately one-third of our total spending as of December 31, 2024. Moving forward, we aim
to maintain a diverse base of suppliers and do not expect the concentrations to materially change.

We have maintained a stable and long-standing relationship with most of our key suppliers, including our top 20% of suppliers who make up roughly a third of our
external purchases, excluding intercompany purchases. Since 2021, we have been purchasing products or services from these suppliers on a consistent basis, in most cases, for
several years prior as well. In addition, we have not had any significant supply or service disruptions from these suppliers since 2021.

Marketing Channels

Our customer base includes a diverse range of clients within the construction and building materials sector. This typically encompasses:  

1. Construction companies: Large and small construction companies, contractors and builders that use cement for applications within the residential, non-residential and
infrastructure construction end markets.

2. Ready-Mix concrete producers: Companies that require bulk cement and aggregates for mixing with other materials for concrete production.

3. Public sector: Government agencies involved in infrastructure construction projects, including roads, bridges and public buildings.
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4. Industrial clients: Businesses that require cement and aggregates for manufacturing processes or specific applications, such as precast concrete products.

We focus on providing high-quality products and services to meet the needs of our customer base, often emphasizing sustainability and innovation in our offerings.  

We (through our subsidiary companies) issue quotes and/or otherwise enter into sales agreements with our customers in the ordinary course of business, each of which
include terms and conditions that govern delivery and payment of the products we sell. These agreements generally provide a limited warranty related to each of the products
we sell that the materials sold will meet or exceed in all material respects applicable ASTM/ACI standards when tested in accordance with such standards.

We reach out to these customers through a variety of different channels including through direct sales teams in each region that manage current customers in a
geographic area and seek out prospective customers. Inside customer service and sales support teams manage the order taking process and work closely with the sales teams.
We market our products for end use applications through a combination of direct and indirect methods including trade organizations. Business leads are derived from different
publications as well as online platforms and subscription services. Credit review and management is a centralized function that supports the sales teams. We do not sell any
products on an installment or consignment basis. Technical service teams support the sales teams and customers proactively to manage specifications, project requirements, and
any trouble shooting that may arise as part of our full service solution provider approach.

Intellectual Property

Our intellectual property and proprietary rights are valuable assets that are important to our business. In our efforts to safeguard our copyrights, trade secrets,
trademarks and other intellectual property rights worldwide, we rely on a combination of federal, state, common law and international rights in the jurisdictions in which we
operate.

As of December 31, 2024, we have been issued 30 trademark registrations providing protection for our family of brands as they relate to our various product lines, as
well as 47 patents, covering novel technological developments in fields of electrostatic separation and associated separator systems, and beneficiation processes, as well an
invention which meters waters in concrete production.

We also rely on non-disclosure agreements, invention assignment agreements, intellectual property assignment agreements, or license agreements with employees,
independent contractors, consumers, software providers and other third parties, which protect and limit access to and use of our proprietary intellectual property.

Though we rely, in part, upon these legal and contractual protections, we believe that factors such as the skills and ingenuity of our employees, as well as the
functionality and frequent enhancements to our platform, are larger contributors to our success in the marketplace.

Governmental Regulations

Our U.S. operations are subject to extensive EHS laws and regulations in the jurisdictions in which we operate. These regulations cover among other things, land use,
permitting, remediation, mine reclamation, operation and closure of landfills, air emissions, the generation, transportation and disposal of solid waste and hazardous substances,
contamination, water quality, wastewater discharge, and other environmental considerations, as well as mine safety and occupational and community health and safety.
Environmental laws and regulations may require us to install pollution control equipment at our facilities, clean up spills and other contamination and correct environmental
hazards, including payment of all or part of the cost to remediate sites where our past activities, or the activities of other parties, caused environmental contamination. Liability
may also arise through the acquisition or ownership or operation of properties and businesses, especially properties or operations where hazardous materials were used
historically. We work to ensure our material handling practices meet industry standards and legal requirements, ensuring employee safety from hazardous materials.

Additionally, our operations require numerous governmental environmental, mining and/or other approvals and permits. Environmental operating permits are subject
to modification, renewal and revocation and can require us to make capital, maintenance and operational expenditures to comply with the applicable requirements. We operate
our facilities subject to permits and licenses governing, among other things, the discharge of pollutants into air and water and the generation, transportation and disposal of solid
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waste and hazardous substances, obtained from federal, state and local authorities in the jurisdictions where such facilities are located. For example, our Roanoke Plant operates
under various permits issued by the USACE, the Commonwealth of Virginia, and Botetourt County, VA. Our Pennsuco plant operates under permits issued by the USACE, the
State of Florida and Miami-Dade County, FL. We work to ensure we remain in substantial compliance with the permitting requirements that are material to the operation of our
business.

Our U.S. operations must comply with federal climate laws and regulations. The EPA’s regulations target GHG emissions from industrial sources identified by the EPA
as large GHG emission sources, including cement manufacturing. Since December 29, 2009, the EPA’s Mandatory Reporting of GHGs Rule requires certain industrial sectors
exceeding certain emission thresholds to report their GHG emissions annually. In 2010, the EPA set GHG thresholds for the New Source Review PSD and Title V Operating
Permit programs for facilities with emissions above certain thresholds. Cement plants must obtain these permits if they exceed the limits, and new major sources or significant
modifications at major sources must secure pre-construction permits that include pollution limits based on BACT. Applying for, complying with, reporting under, renewing and
maintaining these permits can involve significant costs and delays. Future GHG regulations could materially impact U.S. operations and the cement industry’s financial
condition.

Mining Summary Disclosure

We mine limestone, dolostone, shale and natural sand and other materials used for cement production and aggregates. These products are used to support our cement
plants and to produce blended aggregates utilized as general aggregates, ready-mix concrete and as masonry sands. We currently own and operate mining operations in Medley,
Florida (“Pennsuco”), Troutville, Virginia (“Roanoke”), New Castle, Virginia (“Castle Sands”), Waverly, Virginia (“Heard Sand”), Branchville, Virginia (“Branchville Sand”),
Clermont, Florida (“Center Sand Mine”), Estero, Florida (“Corkscrew Mine”) and Stuarts Draft, Virginia (“DM Conner”). We own the mining resources in Castle Hayne, North
Carolina (“Castle Hayne”) which is currently operated by Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. All of our properties are permitted for mining under current regulatory requirements.
We consider the Pennsuco and Roanoke properties to be our only material mining properties as defined by Regulation S-K Subpart 1300.

The location of all mining properties are provided in the figures below:
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Annual Production

ANNUAL PRODUCTION FOR THE PAST THREE YEARS
(tons per year)

Product 2024 2023 2022
Limestone

Pennsuco 10,654,920 9,543,088 10,048,834 
Roanoke 1,619,184 1,521,050 1,466,415 
Castle Sands — — — 
Heard Sand — — — 
Branchville Sand — — — 
Center Sand Mine — — — 
Corkscrew Mine 923,558 399,299 823,364 
Castle Hayne 652,256 326,002 429,159 

Total 13,849,918 11,789,439 12,767,772 
Dolostone

Pennsuco — — — 
Roanoke 95,936 42,615 20,708 
Castle Sands — — — 
Heard Sand — — — 
Branchville Sand — — — 
Center Sand Mine — — — 
Corkscrew Mine — — — 
Castle Hayne — — — 

Total 95,936 42,615 20,708 
Shale

Pennsuco — — — 
Roanoke 423,504 403,723 402,171 
Castle Sands — — — 
Heard Sand — — — 
Branchville Sand — — — 
Center Sand Mine — — — 
Corkscrew Mine — — — 
Castle Hayne — — — 

Total 423,504 403,723 402,171 
Natural Sand

Pennsuco — — — 
Roanoke — — — 
Castle Sands 219,887 331,860 323,792 
Heard Sand 368,058 477,827 168,559 
Branchville Sand 400,422 286,450 223,261 
Center Sand Mine 316,303 319,057 374,134 
Corkscrew Mine — — — 
Castle Hayne — — — 

Total 1,304,670 1,415,194 1,089,746 
Other

Pennsuco — — — 
Roanoke 11,874 46,038 26,166 
Castle Sands — — — 
Heard Sand — — — 
Branchville Sand — — — 
Center Sand Mine — — — 
Corkscrew Mine — — — 
Castle Hayne — — — 

Total 11,874 46,038 26,166 
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We acquired DM Conner on October 20, 2024 from D.M. Conner, Inc. DM Conner has historically produced an immaterial amount of sand and gravel and we are now
developing the site. Because of the date of the acquisition, historical production at the DM Conner site was not produced by us, and DM Conner’s production is not included in
our historical annual production for the past three years.

Surface open pit mining methods are utilized at all of our quarry locations. We own our Pennsuco, Roanoke, Castle Hayne and DM Conner mining properties and lease
our Castle Sands, Branchville Sand, Center Sand, Corkscrew Mine and mining properties. We own a portion of the Heard Sands property but lease the actively mined portion.
We operate all of our mining properties except for Castle Hayne, which is currently operated by Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Our reserves and resources are on properties
that are permitted, or are expected to be permitted, for mining under current regulatory requirements.

Although we are actively mining aggregates at all of our properties, we have reported Reserves only for the material properties, Pennsuco and Roanoke, as no
Resources or Reserves have been estimated by a Qualified Person for our other properties. Therefore, in accordance with Regulation S-K Subpart 1300, Pennsuco and Roanoke
properties on “production stage” and the other properties are deemed to be at “exploration stage.” We periodically perform sub-surface exploration at most of our sites through
drilling methods, and we expect to engage a qualified person to estimate mineral reserves or resources at our other properties in the future.

Resources and Reserves

The following tables summarize our Reserves and Resources as of December 31, 2024 for Roanoke and December 31, 2024 for Pennsuco. The sole purpose of the
operational and related financial data presented is to demonstrate the economic feasibility of the Reserves for the purpose of reporting in accordance with subpart 1300 of
Regulation S-K, and should not be used for other purposes. The information presented originates from comprehensive techno-economic modeling, which is subject to change as
assumptions and inputs are updated, and as a result, does not guarantee future operational or financial performance. As this is the first time that Reserves and Resources have
been estimated for Pennsuco and Roanoke by a Qualified Person, there are not mineral reserve or mineral resource information for prior dates. Our Reserves and Resources are
on properties that are permitted, or are expected to be permitted, for mining under current regulatory requirements. We have not estimated resources and reserves for any
property other than Pennsuco and Roanoke. As there have been no material changes to the reported reserves and resources from the last technical report summary filed for each
of these properties, no new technical report summary is being filed.

 
December 31, 2024-RESOURCES  

 

Measured Resources Indicated Resources
Measured + Indicated

Resources Inferred Resources
Amount %SiO2 %CaO %Al2O3 Amount %SiO2 %CaO %Al2O3 Amount %SiO2 %CaO %Al2O3 Amount %SiO2 %CaO %Al2O3

Limestone
Pennsuco 27,235 24.7 38.3 — 20,081 15.2 45.4 — 47,316 20.67 41.31 — — — — — 
Roanoke 84,000 8.9 47.7 1.8 — — — — 84,000 8.9 47.7 1.8 — — — — 
Total 111,235 12.8 45.4 1.8 20,081 15.2 45.4 — 131,316 13.14 45.4 1.8 — — — — 
Dolostone

Pennsuco — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — 
Roanoke 28,100 11.0 33.0 1.6 190 12.9 31.2 1.4 28,290 11.0 33.0 1.6 96 15.6 31.0 1.3 
Total 28,100 11.0 33.0 1.6 190 12.9 31.2 1.4 28,290 11.0 33.0 1.6 96 15.6 31.0 1.3 

(1)

(2)

(3)

(2)

(3)
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December 31, 2024-RESERVES  
 

Proven Reserves Probable Reserves Total Reserves
Amount %SiO2 %CaO %Al2O3 Amount %SiO2 %CaO %Al2O3 Amount %SiO2 %CaO %Al2O3

Limestone
Pennsuco 232,058 13.71 46.4 — 193,180 18.29 43.6 — 425,238 15.75 45.15 — 
Roanoke 35,038 7.8 48.5 1.7 4,100 7.6 47.9 1.2 39,138 7.78 48.54 1.65 
Total 267,096 12.95 48.5 1.7 197,280 18.07 47.9 1.2 464,376 15.08 48.54 1.65 
Dolostone

Pennsuco — — — — — — — — — — — — 
Roanoke 3,191 15.8 31.4 1.4 68 18.3 30.8 1.16 3,259 15.85 1.42 31.39 
Total 3,191 15.8 31.4 1.4 68 18.3 30.8 1.16 3,259 15.85 1.42 31.39 
Shale

Pennsuco — — — — — — — — — — — — 
Roanoke 11,758 19.7 38.7 4.4 — — — — 11,758 19.7 38.7 4.4 
Total 11,758 19.7 38.7 4.4 — — — — 11,758 19.7 38.7 4.4 

(1) Mineral Resources are exclusive of Reserves. Resources and Reserves are estimated as of December 31, 2024. Tons are rounded to the nearest 1,000’s.

(2) For Pennsuco, price assumptions used for resource and reserve estimations are $136.00 per ton of cement and $21.00 per ton of blended aggregates. These prices were selected by the Qualified Person. Cement

prices are based on figures from the USGS and aggregates prices are based on the average selling price for products at the site. There was no cutoff grade used for the Resource estimate, as nearly all material from

the quarries can be used. The point of reference for our Reserve and Resource estimates was the limestone surge pile at the plant area. A recovery factor of 95% is utilized to convert in-situ volumetrics to recoverable

resources and reserves and a process recovery of nearly 100% for the cement plant and 75% for the aggregates plant.

(3) For Roanoke, price assumptions used for Resource and Reserve estimations are $136.00 per ton of cement. This price was selected by the Qualified Person and is based on figures from the USGS. There was no

cutoff grade used for the Resource and Reserve estimate as nearly all carbonate material from the quarries can be used. The point of reference for our Reserve estimates was the raw material stack, located after the

primary crusher. A recovery factor of 95% is utilized to convert in-situ volumetrics to recoverable resources and reserves and a process recovery of nearly 100% for the cement plant.

Individual Property Disclosure

Pennsuco

Pennsuco is in Miami-Dade County, Florida and is positioned approximately 14 miles northwest of the city center of Miami. The site is comprised of 68 separate
property tracts, all of which are owned by Titan America or through its subsidiary companies. In total the property encompasses 6,465 acres. The Pennsuco mine is located at
coordinates 25°52’37” N and 80°22’27” W. The net book value of the Pennsuco mine, inclusive of mining and beneficiary equipment located in Medley, Florida as well as
relevant mining tenements, as of December 31, 2024 was $347 million.

The property is bisected by the Florida Turnpike. The area west of the Turnpike is the area of the mining activity and the area to the east is the location of the aggregate
plant, cement facility, ready-mixed concrete plant, and the concrete block plant, plus support facilities.

Pennsuco’s mining operations produce limestone by using draglines for the execution of the virgin reserves. For the lower portion of the reserves that draglines are
unable to recover, the dredge mining method will be used. We currently expect to begin dredge mining in 2028. Limestone reserves are estimated across eleven pits. The
primary crushing is now completed on-site at the Pennsuco quarry, thereby reducing traditional haul distances and minimizing mobile equipment required in favor of an
extensive 3.5-mile electrified overland conveyor system connecting the mining operations with the cement and aggregate plants.

(1)

(2)

(3)

(2)

(3)

(2)

(3)
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Our cement plant has a production capacity of 2.4 million tons and a cement storage capacity of approximately 72,000 tons across 12 silos. Additionally, the plant
offers approximately 67,350 tons of clinker storage capacity across 10 silos. For additional information on our cement plant, see “Item 4.A. History and Development of the
Company.”

Our aggregate plant is adjacent to our cement plant and its capacity is approximately 7 million tons per annum. The processing plant receives run-of-mine aggregates
and produces both finished and fractionated products for blending rail shipments or special orders. The aggregate loadout includes truck and rail loading with a rail-loading
capacity of 97 railcars per day and the ability to store more than 200 railcars on site. The Pennsuco rail yard is served by the FEC railroad, providing access to the network of
terminals and aggregate distribution yards along the FEC. For additional information on our aggregate plant, see “Item 4.A. History and Development of the Company.”
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Mining Rights for Pennsuco

All Pennsuco mining rights are fully owned by deed by subsidiaries of Titan America SA.  

Location of Pennsuco operations

Infrastructure

The main entrance roads for the facility and throughout the cement, ready mix, and concrete block operations are two-lane, paved roads. The roads around the plants,
paved and unpaved, are two-way and approximately 30 feet wide, allowing standard commercial and personal vehicle traffic.
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Natural gas service to the site was established in 2019-2020. A new regulation station at NE Hialeah Gate Station was built at the Florida Gas Transmission take-off
point. The service distribution pipeline provides resilient service to the facility. The system was designed and tested to serve the cement plant’s full load (100% natural gas
firing). All Titan-owned natural gas equipment was installed in 2020.

The site has rail access to the FEC Railway, which runs between Miami and Jacksonville. The rail yard at the site accommodates more than 200 rail cars, comprised of
21,000 feet of rail tracks and switches.

Florida Power and Light (FPL) provides electric service to the site from the 165 MW capacity Pennsuco Substation. This substation supplies transmission-level
voltage (230kV) to the Titan America-owned, 40 MW substation. In a transmission fault, the substation breakers trip, isolating the system, and our electrical feed is then
transferred from other transmission sources within North and South Miami-Dade County. The Titan America-owned substation supplies power to the cement, aggregate, and
quarry operations. This substation has three step-down transformers (from 230 kV to two units for 13.8 kV and one for 4.16 kV). The emergency power supply is delivered to
the Titan America-owned substation. The four generators (4160 V, 1650 kW, 286 A each) can support critical loads and lighting services during a primary utility failure.

Natural gas is the primary fuel consumed by the cement operation; however, three alternative fuels are available for consumption: Tire-Derived Fuel, Processed
Engineered Fuel, and recycled-used oils for use in the cement plant kiln and preheat system.

Two main fuel storage areas are on site, the main fuel farm and the quarry fuel tank. The main fuel farm contains two 10,000-gallon diesel tanks and one 2,000-gallon
gasoline tank. The quarry fuel tank is a double-walled 10,000-gallon diesel tank. There are five backup generators with self-contained fuel tanks to provide electricity to
operating equipment during power failures.

History

The site has been in operation as a cement production and aggregate facility since 1962 beginning with Maule Industries. It was obtained by Lone Star Florida Cement
Inc. in 1978, Tarmac America Inc. in 1988, Tarmac Florida Inc. in 2000 and Titan Florida LLC in 2004.

Summary of Resources and Reserves

Pennsuco Summary of Mineral Resources as of December 31, 2024 

Mineral Assemblage
(% of materials)

Resource Category
Limestone

(thousand tons)
Grades/qualities

(%SiO2)
Grades/qualities

(%CaO)
Measured 27,235 24.7 38.30
Indicated 20,081 15.2 45.40
Measured + Indicated 47,316 20.7 41.40
Inferred — — —

Total Mineral Resources 47,316 20.7 41.40

(1) There was no cutoff grade used for the resource estimate.

(2) Price assumptions used for resource and reserve estimations are $136.00 per ton of cement and $21.00 per ton of blended aggregates 

(3) There is no net difference in mineral resources as of December 31, 2024 as compared to when mineral resources were first estimated as of May 24, 2024.

 

(1) (2) (3)

55



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Pennsuco Summary of Mineral Reserves as of December 31, 2024 
Mineral Assemblage

(% of materials)

Reserve Category
Limestone

(thousand tons)
Grades/qualities

(%SiO2)
Grades/qualities

(%CaO)
Proven 232,058 13.7 46.4
Probable 193,180 18.3 43.6

Total Mineral Reserves 425,238 15.8 45.1
 

(1) Mineral resources are exclusive of reserves. Price assumptions used for resource and reserve estimation are $136.00 per ton of cement and $21.00 per ton of blended aggregates.

(2) A recovery factor of 95% is utilized to convert in-situ volumetrics to recoverable resources and reserves.

(3) The net difference in proven limestone reserves as of December 31, 2024 as compared to when mineral reserves were first estimated as of May 24, 2024 was 4% as a result of depletion.

The expected life of mine for Pennsuco quarries is 57 years.

As there have been no material changes to the reported reserves and resources from the last technical report summary filed for this property, no new technical report
summary is being filed.

Condition of Property

The Pennsuco property spans multiple land sections and platted subdivisions and is bisected by the Florida Turnpike with the mining activity occurring west of the
turnpike in unincorporated Miami-Dade County and the cement and aggregates processing plants located on the east side of the turnpike in the Town of Medley, Miami-Dade
County.

Mining operations are located over the Biscayne Aquifer and the Northwest Wellfield Protection Areas. Due to the proximity to these areas, there are restricted uses to
protect the drinking water supply. Allowable land uses within the Northwest Wellfield include limestone quarrying, rock crushing, and aggregate plants, but not concrete batch
plants. Fuels and lubricants are allowed to be used in the rock mining operation. However, a variance from the Environmental Quality Control Board would be needed for the
use of hazardous materials other than fuels and lubricants and for generating hazardous and liquid wastes. In addition to these restrictions, there are several Miami-Dade County
reservations and setbacks associated with canals and levees on or near the property and two high-voltage electricity transmission lines cross the mining area from north to
south. These power lines are located on either Titan America property with an easement to Florida Power or on Florida Power-owned property. There are rights-of-way access
points across this power line assessment of title commitments rendered no risks or encumbrances that preclude the proposed activity on the site.

Numerous drilling campaigns have been completed at the site. For additional information, see Exhibit 96.1 “Technical Report Summary on the Pennsuco operations”
of our Registration Statement.

Roanoke

The Roanoke site is in Botetourt County, Virginia. The nearest major city is Roanoke, Virginia, 13.5 miles south from the site. The site is the accumulation of 24 tax
parcels totaling approximately 2,567 acres controlled by Titan America. The Roanoke mine is located at coordinates 37°27’43” N, 79°59’42” W. The net book value of the
Roanoke mine, inclusive of mining and beneficiary equipment located in Botetourt County, Virginia as well as relevant mining tenements, as of December 31, 2024 was $103
million.

The mining rights for Roanoke are shown in the table and figure below.

The mining operations at Roanoke consist of the Catawba Farm quarry, where we produce limestone and dolostone, and the Lone Star East quarry, where we produce
limestone and dolostone. All mineral extraction is used for cement production; materials from the two active quarries are blended based on their chemical composition.

(1) (2) (3)
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Our cement plant has a production capacity of 1.5 million tons and a cement storage capacity of approximately 90,000 tons across 38 silos. Additionally, the plant
offers approximately 50,000 tons of clinker storage capacity across three silos. For additional information on our cement plant, see “Item 4.A. History and Development of the
Company.”

Mining Rights for Roanoke

All Roanoke mining rights are fully owned by deed by subsidiaries of Titan America SA.  

Location of Roanoke operations  

Infrastructure

The site has over 16,000 feet of rail track, which is serviced by Norfolk Southern. The rail infrastructure allows for both inbound and outbound transportation of
supplies and cement products.

Roanoke Gas Company (“RGC”) is the public natural gas utility that services the site. RGC’s distribution system is fed by Columbia Gas Transmission (interstate gas
producer) at a gate station in Eagle Rock, VA., at a design flowrate of five hundred dekatherms per hour. The site also includes redundant runs of piping and equipment in the
case of maintenance or a malfunction.
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Electrical power is provided to the site by Appalachian Power Company. Two 138 kV circuits, running in a redundant loop, feed the site. The 138 kV circuits terminate
at the Lone Star – Mount Union 69 kV substation.

The quarry has a 20,000-gallon diesel fuel tank for its mobile equipment located near the equipment ready line. In addition, close to the maintenance shop, there is one
1,000-gallon diesel tank and one 1,000-gallon gasoline tank.  

The potable water system consists of a drilled well, a 25,000-gallon steel storage tank. The 125-foot well has a 6-inch casing grouted to a depth of 56 feet. A
submersible pump powered by a 3-hp electric motor discharges water from the well to the storage tank through a 4-inch line.

The kiln and calciner consume alternative fuels which include shredded tires, wood chips and sawdust. The site system includes a receiving hopper, a silo for storage
and a network of screw conveyors that transport the material has storage in the silo for shredded tires or wood chips.

History

The site has been in operation as a cement production and aggregate facility since 1951 beginning with Lone Star Cement Corporation. It was obtained by Roanoke
Cement Company in the 1960s and Titan America purchased a controlling interest in Roanoke Cement Company in 1992. In 2000, Titan America assumed full ownership of
Roanoke Cement Company.

Summary of Resources and Reserves

Roanoke Summary of Mineral Resources as of December 31, 2024

Mineral Assemblage (% of Minerals)

Resource Category

Material
(thousand

tons)

Grades/
qualities
(%SiO2)

Grades/
qualities

(%Al2O3)

Grades/
qualities
(%CaO)

Limestone
Measured 84,000 8.9 1.8 47.7
Indicated — — — 0.0
Measured + Indicated 84,000 8.9 1.8 47.7
Inferred — — — 0.0
Total 84,000 8.9 1.8 47.7
Dolostone
Measured 28,100 11.0 1.6 33.0
Indicated 190 12.9 1.4 31.2
Measured + Indicated 28,290 11.0 1.6 33.0
Inferred 96 15.6 1.3 31.0
Total 28,386 11.0 1.6 33.0

 

(1) There was no cutoff grade used for the resource estimate.

(2) Mineral Resources are exclusive of mineral Reserves. Price assumptions used for resource estimations are $136.00 per ton of cement.

(3) There is no net difference in mineral resources as of December 31, 2024 as compared to when mineral resources were first estimated as of May 1, 2024.

(1) (2) (3)  
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Roanoke Summary of Mineral Reserves as of December 31, 2024

 

Mineral Assemblage (% of Minerals)

Quarry/Reserve Category

Material
(thousand

tons)

Grades/
qualities
(%SiO2)

Grades/
qualities

(%Al2O3)

Grades/
qualities
(%CaO)

Catawba Farm Quarry Limestone
Proven 23,000 8.91 1.92 48.0
Probable
Total: 23,000 8.91 1.92 48.0

Catawba Farm Quarry Dolostone
Proven 1,600 18.30 1.16 30.8
Probable 68 18.30 1.16 30.8
Total: 1,668 18.30 1.16 30.8

Lone Star East Quarry Limestone
Proven 12,038 5.70 1.30 49.4
Probable 4,100 7.60 1.20 47.9
Total: 16,138 6.16 1.28 49.0

Lone Star East Quarry Dolostone
Proven 1,591 13.30 1.70 32.0
Probable
Total: 1,591 13.30 1.70 32.0

High Grade Shale Quarry
Proven 11,758 19.70 4.40 38.7
Probable
Total: 11,758 19.70 4.40 38.7

(1)     Mineral Resources are exclusive of Reserves. Price assumptions used for Resource and Reserve estimations are $136.00 per ton of cement. Mineral prices used in Reserve estimation are substantially in line with the
prices for each of our products published quarterly by third-party industry consultancies.

(2)    A recovery factor of 95% is utilized to convert in-situ volumetrics to recoverable resources and reserves.

(3)    The net difference in proven reserves as of December 31, 2024 as compared to when mineral reserves were first estimated as of May 1, 2024 was 7% for Lone Star East Quarry Limestone, 1% for Lone Star East
Quarry Dolostone, and 2% for High Grade Shale, all as a result of depletion.

The expected life of mine for Roanoke quarries is 27 years.

As there have been no material changes to the reported reserves and resources from the last technical report summary filed for this property, no new technical report
summary is being filed.

Condition of Property

The site is in Botetourt County, Virginia, approximately 13 miles from Roanoke. The site is the accumulation of 24 tax parcels totaling approximately 2,567 acres.
Property ownership is under the control of Titan America or its subsidiaries.

There are several encumbrances located on the property. These encumbrances include: a high-voltage electricity transmission line owned by American Electric Power
(AEP) that crosses the Catawba Farm proposed quarry, a conservation easement to the Blue Ridge Land Conservancy, Andy Layne Trail, which joins the Appalachian Trail,
Virginia Route 779 (Catawba Road) will need to be

(1) (2) (3)
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relocated in the future for the extension of the Catawba Farm Quarry, and two cement kiln dust (CKD) landfills are located on the site. Assessment of title commitments
rendered no risks or encumbrances that preclude the proposed activity on the site.

Numerous drilling campaigns have been completed at the site. For additional information, see Exhibit 96.2 “Technical Report Summary on the Roanoke operations” of
our Registration Statement.

Internal Controls Disclosure

The analysis of our reserves and resources has been developed by Continental Placer, designated as our “qualified person” in collaboration with our personnel. Our
management teams periodically review our reserves and resources by performing sub-surface exploration as part of our mine planning process. The modeling and analysis of
our reserves and resources has been developed by the QP, experienced consultants and our personnel and reviewed by several levels of internal management. The development
of such reserves and resources estimates, including related assumptions, was a collaborative effort between us and Continental Placer. This section summarizes the internal
control considerations for our development of estimations, including assumptions, used in reserve and resource analysis and modeling.

When determining reserves and resources, as well as the differences between reserves and resources, the team developed specific criteria, each of which must be met
to qualify as a reserve or resource, respectively. These criteria, such as demonstration of economic viability, legal right to mine and material quality, are specific and attainable.
Continental Placer and our management agree on the reasonableness of the criteria for the purposes of estimating reserves and resources. Estimations using these criteria are
either performed or reviewed and validated by Continental Placer.

Estimations and assumptions were developed independently for each material property. All estimates require a combination of historical data, key assumptions,
parameters, subsurface exploration and material testing. Each site has developed quality control and quality assurance (“QC/QA”) procedures, which were reviewed by
Continental Placer, to ensure the process for developing mineral resource and reserve estimates were sufficiently accurate. QC/QA procedures include independent checks
(duplicates) on samples by third party laboratories, duplicate sampling and duplicate drilling, among other procedures. In addition, Continental Placer reviewed the consistency
of historical production at each site as part of their analysis of the QC/QA procedures. The historical data was reviewed, evaluated and verified before use in developing
resource and reserve models. Where possible, information and data from generally accepted industry sources, such as governmental resource agencies, were used to develop
these estimations.

While the reserve (proven and probable) and mineral resource (measured, indicated and inferred) classification categories identify relative confidence of estimates,
there is an inherent risk associated with such estimates. The risk stems from factors including geological complexity; the interpretation, interpolation and extrapolation of field,
exploration, and laboratory data; changes in operating approach; macroeconomic and market conditions and new data, among other factors. The capital, operating and
economic analysis estimates rely on a range of assumptions and forecasts that are subject to change. We base estimates on information known at the time of determination and
regularly reevaluate the basis of the estimates and estimates themselves whenever new information indicates a material change in resources and/or reserves at any of our sites.

C. Organizational Structure

Titan America is 87% owned by Titan Cement International, the parent company of the Titan group of companies. Founded in 1902 with the establishment of its first
cement plant in Elefsina, Greece, the Titan Group of companies (the “Titan Group”) has grown steadily over more than a century, becoming a symbol of industrial development
and social responsibility.

Initially recognized as Titan Cement S.A. in 1911 and listed on the Athens Stock Exchange in 1912, the Titan Group made several pioneering decisions early on, such
as insuring its workforce against occupational accidents in 1922 and introducing employee bonuses well before they were mandated by law. The Elefsina plant’s refurbishment
in 1937 and the introduction of new rotary kilns marked significant advancements in production capacity, positioning Titan Group as a key player in the Greek and global
cement markets.

Throughout the mid-20th century, Titan Group continued to expand its operations and product offerings. By the 1950s, exports constituted a substantial portion of its
sales, significantly contributing to Greece’s total cement exports. Environmental consciousness also took root early, with the installation of the first environmentally friendly
electrostatic filters in Greece. Titan Group
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established additional plants across Greece, including facilities in Thessaloniki, Drepano, and Kamari, and continued to innovate by setting up accident prevention committees,
launching social programs and investing in vertical integration with mines and ready-mix concrete plants. Entering the new millennium, Titan Group became a founding
member of several sustainability and social responsibility initiatives, cementing its commitment to sustainable development and community engagement.

By 2019, Titan Cement International became the parent company, listing on Euronext Brussels, Euronext Paris and the Athens Exchange, signifying a new era of
growth and global presence.

Titan Group has been recognized as one of the most sustainable companies in the world, according to a 2024 Time Magazine analysis based on external ESG ratings
and selected environmental and society performance indicators and is recognized as one of Europe’s Climate Leaders in the fourth edition of the prestigious list published by
the Financial Times. In February 2025, our parent, Titan Cement International, earned an “A-” score from the CDP for both climate change and water security management,
reaffirming its leadership status in these critical areas. Titan Cement International has been awarded Leadership Status on climate change by CDP for four consecutive years.

Titan Group has also recently been included in the FTSE Russell Large Cap Index and confirmed as a constituent in the FTSE4Good Index Series, which is designed
to measure the performance of companies based on strong ESG commitments.

The Titan Group has built a large body of proprietary knowledge and corporate infrastructure that continue to help drive the growth and performance of our business.
The Titan Group has a proud corporate history of approximately 120 years and operates in 15 countries, with world-class reliability and an industry-leading cost structure. From
manufacturing expertise to logistical capabilities, customer focus, product engineering and various corporate functions, we have been able to and will continue to be able to
utilize Titan Cement International’s broad suite of capabilities to maintain market leadership positions across our geographic footprint.

Set forth below is the organizational chart displaying Titan America’s corporate structure and relationship to Titan Group as of December 31, 2024:
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The following table sets forth the significant subsidiaries owned, directly or indirectly, by Titan America.

Legal Name State or Jurisdiction of Incorporation or
Organization

(As of December 31,
2024 )

Titan Atlantic Cement Industrial and Commercial S.A. Greece 100%
Titan America LLC Delaware 100%
Essex Cement Company LLC Delaware 100%
Mechanicsville Concrete LLC Virginia 100%
Pennsuco Cement Company LLC Delaware 100%
Roanoke Cement Company LLC Virginia 100%
S&W Ready-Mix Concrete Company LLC North Carolina 100%
Separation Technologies LLC Delaware 100%
ST Equipment & Technology LLC Delaware 100%
Titan Florida LLC Delaware 100%
Titan Mid-Atlantic Aggregates LLC Virginia 100%
Titan Virginia Ready-Mix Delaware 100%
Trusa Realty LLC Florida 100%
Titan Florida Holdings LLC Delaware 100%
Carolinas Cement Company LLC Delaware 100%
Norfapeake Terminal LLC Virginia 100%
S&W Ready Mix LLC South Carolina 100%
Titan Florida Concrete Products LLC Delaware 100%
Titan Florida Aggregates LLC Delaware 100%
Titan Florida Cement LLC Delaware 100%
Metro Redi-Mix LLC Florida 100%
Miami Valley Ready-Mix Florida LLC Delaware 100%
Summit Ready-Mix LLC Florida 100%
Silver Sand Transportation LLC Delaware 100%
Standard Concrete LLC Florida 100%
Massey Sand and Rock Co. California 100%
Daleville Development LLC Virginia 100%
Nestor Timber Development LLC Virginia 100%
SEI LLC North Carolina 100%
DM Conner LLC Virginia 100%

D. Property, Plant and Equipment

We maintain corporate offices at 5700 Lake Wright Drive, Suite 300, Norfolk, Virginia, with a corporate office for Titan Florida LLC, located at 800 Fairway Drive,
Suite 200, Deerfield Beach, Florida. We have additional offices in Roanoke, Virginia and Clinton, North Carolina. Throughout the United States, we operate and maintain sites,
including two cement plants, three import terminals, seven active quarries, 82 active ready-mix locations, eight concrete block plants, seven fly ash processing plants, 12
distribution locations, which consist of 10 cement terminals, eight concrete block distribution yards and two concrete block logistical hubs. In addition to the previously
mentioned operations, we have locations currently under development or vacant/surplus. Out of our 140 sites, 105 are owned by us and 35 are leased properties. For more
information on our mining properties, see “Mining Summary Disclosure” above.
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With regard to improving our facilities, we are currently investing in the expansion of our Pennsuco facility and our Roanoke Plant that we expect will increase total
cement production capacity by 29% to 4.9 million tons by 2030, compared to our current cement production capacity of 3.8 million tons as of December 31, 2024. This will
enable us to capture market growth and grow our business. We have invested $30.4 million already and anticipate further expenditures of $178.4 million, net of any available
government grants. This is funded by operating cash and our outstanding borrowing facilities. We started this expansion 2018 and anticipate its completion in 2030.

Item 4A. Unresolved Staff Comments 

Not Applicable 

Item 5. Operating and Financial Review and Prospects
A. Operating Results

The following discussion and analysis of the financial condition and results of operations of Titan America should be read together with our audited consolidated
financial statements as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, together with related notes thereto, included elsewhere in
this document. The discussion and analysis should also be read together with the sections entitled “Risk Factors.” The following discussion contains forward-looking statements
that reflect future plans, estimates, beliefs and expected performance. The forward-looking statements are dependent upon events, risks and uncertainties that may be outside of
our control. Our actual results may differ significantly from those projected in the forward-looking statements. Factors that might cause future results to differ materially from
those projected in the forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, those discussed in the sections entitled “Risk Factors” and “Cautionary Statement Regarding
Forward-Looking Information” included elsewhere in this document. Certain total amounts may not sum due to rounding.

Basis of Presentation

Our annual consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this document are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS
Accounting Standards”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IFRS”). The definition of IFRS also encompasses all valid International Accounting
Standards, as well as all interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee, including those formally issued by the Standing Interpretations
Committee. These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative financial
instruments) and defined benefit pension plan assets, which are measured at fair value.

Our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this document present the historical results of operations, financial position and cash flows of Titan
Atlantic and its consolidated subsidiaries, including Titan America LLC and its subsidiaries, prior to our IPO. Historical earnings per share have been retrospectively presented
to reflect the capital structure following the contribution of Titan Atlantic Cement Industrial and Commercial S.A.. (“Titan Atlantic”) to Titan America SA. Titan America’s
STET segment is included in the Company’s historical operations for the periods presented. The STET segment was divested on January 1, 2025 to Titan Cement Netherlands
B.V., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Titan Cement International. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, the STET segment generated external segment revenue of $1.9
million and segment adjusted EBITDA of $(6.1) million. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, the STET segment generated external segment revenue of $2.0 million
and segment adjusted EBITDA of $(6.4) million.

All references to “tons” in this Operating and Financial Review and Prospects refer to short-tons, as defined in the relevant context.
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Financial Metrics and Financial Highlights

The following table presents a summary of financial metrics for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022.

Year Ended December 31

2024 2023 2022

($ in thousands)
Revenue $ 1,634,393 $ 1,591,601 $ 1,364,146 
Operating income 251,388 225,636 97,042 
Net income 166,074 155,244 62,721 
Adjusted EBITDA 370,400 328,373 193,097 
Net cash provided by operating activities 248,037 227,125 178,374 
Free Cash Flow 110,766 108,522 50,365 
Return on Average Capital Employed 21.3% 20.7% 9.6%
Total Debt 460,183 409,413 462,093 
Net Debt 448,059 387,377 432,252 
Ratio of Total Debt to Net Income 2.8 to 1.0 2.6 to 1.0 7.4 to 1.0
Ratio of Net Debt to Adjusted EBITDA 1.2 to 1.0 1.2 to 1.0 2.2 to 1.0

(1) Adjusted EBIDA, Free Cash Flow, Net Debt and Ratio of Net Debt to Adjusted EBITDA are non-IFRS financial measures we use to measure the performance, level of indebtedness and liquidity of our business.

For the definition of these measures and a reconciliation to the most directly comparable financial measure calculated and presented in accordance with IFRS please see “—Non-IFRS Measures” below.

(2) Capital employed is defined as total stockholders’ equity plus short-term debt, long-term debt, short-term lease liabilities and long-term lease liabilities. Average capital employed is calculated by taking the average

of capital employed values at the beginning, mid-point and end of the latest twelve-month period. Return on Average Capital Employed (“ROACE”) is calculated by dividing operating income by average capital

employed.

(3) Total Debt, Ratio of Total Debt to Net Income, Net Debt and Ratio of Net Debt to Adjusted EBITDA are balance sheet metrics and are presented as of the last day of each fiscal period.

The principal factors in evaluating our financial condition and operating results for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, as compared to the fiscal December 31,
2023, are:

• Revenue increased $42.8 million, or 3%, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, primarily as a result of
increases in product pricing. Despite extreme weather events along the East Coast in the latter half of the year, revenue in both reportable segments grew moderately
with our Florida and Mid-Atlantic segment external revenue rising by $27.6 million, or 3%, and $15.3 million, or 2%, respectively, for the fiscal year ended December
31, 2024 compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023. Ready-mix concrete and concrete block revenues grew strongly, rising by $46.9 million and $13.3
million, respectively, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023. Fly ash saw moderate revenue growth of
$2.1 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023. Cement and aggregates revenue declined by $18.0
million and $1.2 million, respectively, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, primarily resulting from
lower external sales volumes.

• Average external sales prices increased by 2% in cement, 9% in aggregates, 5% in ready-mix concrete, 2% in concrete block and 10% in fly ash for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2024 compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023.

• External sales volumes increased by 2% in ready-mix concrete and 7% in concrete block, declined by 5% in cement and 9% in aggregates, and remained flat in fly ash
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023.

• Operating income increased by $25.8 million, or 11%, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, as a result
of the $42.8 million growth in revenue, which more than offset the rises in general

(1)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(1)(3)

(3)

(1)(3)
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and administrative expenses of $29.0 million, and selling expenses of $2.6 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 compared to the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2023.

• Net income increased $10.8 million, or 7%, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, primarily driven by
improvement in operating income, offset by an increase in finance cost of $3.9 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 compared to the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2023, and a higher income tax expense resulting from higher income before income taxes and a 244 basis point increase in our effective tax rate.

• Adjusted EBITDA increased $42.0 million or 13%, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, as price
improvements exceeded the impact of higher labor, distribution, repairs and maintenance and general and administrative expenses.

• Net cash provided by operating activities increased to $248.0 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, compared to $227.1 million for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2023.

• Free Cash Flow increased to $110.8 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, compared to $108.5 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023.

• Total Debt increased to $460.2 million and our Ratio of Total Debt to Net Income increased to 2.8 to 1.0 at December 31, 2024 compared to $409.4 million and 2.6 to
1.0 at December 31, 2023.

• Net Debt increased to $448.1 million and our Ratio of Net Debt to Adjusted EBITDA remained flat at 1.2 to 1.0 at December 31, 2024 compared to $387.4 million and
1.2 to 1.0 at December 31, 2023.

Non-IFRS Measures

Adjusted EBITDA

We define Adjusted EBITDA, which is a non-IFRS financial measure we use to measure the performance of our business, as net income before finance cost, net,
income tax expense, depreciation, depletion and amortization, further adjusted to remove the impact of additional items such as (gain)/loss on disposal of fixed assets, asset
impairment (recovery)/loss, foreign exchange (gain)/loss, net, derivative financial instrument (gain)/loss, net, fair value loss on sale of accounts receivable, net, share-based
compensation and other non-recurring items, including certain IPO transaction costs associated with the Company’s recently completed IPO. Net income is the IFRS measure
most directly comparable to Adjusted EBITDA.

The table below presents our Adjusted EBITDA reconciled to net income for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2024 2023 2022
($ in thousands)
Net income $ 166,074 $ 155,244 $ 62,721 
Finance cost, net 26,175 22,244 19,078 
Income tax expense 57,544 47,134 16,971 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 99,941 91,079 87,728 
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 2,411 3,852 1,186 
Asset impairment (recovery)/loss — (609) 525 
Foreign exchange loss/(gain), net (20,846) 11,981 (19,990)
Derivative financial instrument (gain)/loss, net 22,441 (10,967) 18,534 
Fair value loss on sale of accounts receivable, net 4,620 6,113 3,041 
Share-based compensation 3,841 3,173 2,402 
IPO transaction costs 11,816 
Other (3,617) (871) 901 
Adjusted EBITDA $ 370,400 $ 328,373 $ 193,097 

(1)

(2)
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(1) In connection with the Company’s IPO, we have incurred incremental expenses which primarily consist of consulting, legal, and accounting fees that are not indicative of our ongoing costs.
(2) Other includes, but is not limited to, the impacts on provisions for long-term environmental rehabilitation costs, including provisions for quarry restoration, arising from changes in discount rates, recoveries from

insurance claims and other exceptional (gains)/losses.

Free Cash Flow

Free Cash Flow is a non-IFRS financial measure used by management to assess liquidity and quantify the amount of net cash provided by operating activities
remaining after deducting the net amount of cash invested to maintain and expand the tangible and intangible assets used to support our business. Free Cash Flow is comprised
of net cash provided by operating activities adjusted by net payments for capital expenditures, which includes (i) investments in property, plant and equipment, (ii) investments
in identifiable intangible assets and (iii) proceeds from the sale of assets, net of disposition costs.

The IFRS measure most directly comparable to Free Cash Flow is net cash provided by operating activities. Reconciliation of Free Cash Flow to its nearest IFRS
measure is presented below:

Year Ended December 31

2024 2023 2022
($ in thousands)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 248,037 $ 227,125 $ 178,374 
Adjusted by:

Investments in property, plant and equipment (135,421) (117,144) (125,374)
Investments in identifiable intangible assets (1,591) (1,600) (2,896)

     Proceeds from the sale of assets, net of disposition costs (259) 141 261 
  Net Capital Expenditures (137,271) (118,603) (128,009)

Free Cash Flow $ 110,766 $ 108,522 $ 50,365 

Net Debt

Net Debt is a non-IFRS financial measure as it comprises the sum of short and long-term debt and short and long-term lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents.
Net Debt is used by management to assess our operating performance, financial condition and measure the effective level of indebtedness of the Company. Reconciliation of
Net Debt to its nearest IFRS measures is presented below:

Year Ended December 31
2024 2023

($ in thousands)
Short-term borrowings, including accrued interest $ 33,608 $ 267,670 
Long-term borrowings 358,222 76,262 
Short-term lease liabilities 12,386 11,737 
Long-term lease liabilities 55,967 53,744 
Less:

Cash and cash equivalents (12,124) (22,036)
Net Debt $ 448,059 $ 387,377 

Ratio of Net Debt to Adjusted EBITDA

The Ratio of Net Debt to Adjusted EBITDA is a non-IFRS financial measure derived by dividing Net Debt by Adjusted EBITDA. The Company considers the ratio of
net debt to Adjusted EBITDA to be a performance measure providing relevant financial leverage information to management, investors and other users of the Company’s
financial information. Reconciliations of Net Debt and Adjusted EBITDA to the nearest IFRS measures are presented above. The Company’s Ratio of Net Debt to Adjusted
EBITDA, and the ratio of each of the most directly comparable measures to Net Debt and Adjusted EBITDA presented in accordance with IFRS as of the dates shown was as
follows:
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Year Ended December 31

2024 2023

($ in thousands)
IFRS:

Short-term borrowings, including accrued interest $ 33,608 $ 267,670 
Long-term borrowings 358,222 76,262 
Short-term lease liabilities 12,386 11,737 
Long-term lease liabilities 55,967 53,744 

Total Debt $ 460,183 $ 409,413 
Net Income 166,074 155,244 
Ratio of Total Debt to Net Income 2.8x 2.6x

Non-IFRS:
Net Debt $ 448,059 $ 387,377 
Adjusted EBITDA $ 370,400 $ 328,373 
Ratio of Net Debt to Adjusted EBITDA 1.2x 1.2x

Non-IFRS financial measures, including Adjusted EBITDA, Free Cash Flow, Net Debt and Ratio of Net Debt to Adjusted EBITDA are utilized by the Company to
provide additional insights into its financial and operational performance that may not be apparent from IFRS measures alone. These supplemental measures can aid in the
comparability of the Company’s performance across different reporting periods by eliminating the effects of certain items that can vary significantly from one period to another,
such as capital structure changes, non-operating items and other non-recurring or non-cash adjustments. Management finds these supplemental measures useful in assessing
financial performance, operational efficiency, making strategic decisions and providing supplemental analysis of the Company’s ability to generate cash, service debt and fund
investments.

However, these non-IFRS measures have limitations and should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for the IFRS financial measures. One key limitation is
the lack of standardization, which means they may be defined and calculated differently by other companies, potentially leading to reduced comparability. Additionally, these
measures may exclude costs that are necessary to understand the Company’s overall financial performance. For instance, Adjusted EBITDA adjusts net income for certain
items, but it is important to recognize that the Company may incur similar expenses in the future. Likewise, while Free Cash Flow indicates the cash which may be available for
discretionary purposes, it does not account for non-discretionary expenditures such as debt service costs and income tax obligations. Net Debt provides insight into the net
borrowing position, but it does not consider the liquidity and maturity profile of the underlying debt and cash and cash equivalents positions. The Ratio of Net Debt to Adjusted
EBITDA provides insight into the Company’s ability to pay debts, but it does not consider all liabilities and can be sensitive to short term changes in operating performance.

Investors and analysts are encouraged to evaluate each of these adjustments and the reasons management considers them appropriate for supplemental analysis. It is
also essential to be aware that the Company may modify the presentation of these non-IFRS measures in the future, and any such modification may be material. As a result,
these measures may not be indicative of future performance and may not be comparable to similarly titled measures used by other companies, thereby diminishing their utility.
In summary, while non-IFRS measures can provide valuable additional context, they should be used in conjunction with the most directly comparable IFRS financial measures
to ensure a balanced and comprehensive analysis of the Company’s financial results.

Components of Results of Operations

Revenue – Substantially all of the Company’s revenue is derived from sales of cement, fly ash, aggregates, ready-mix concrete and concrete block. Sales transactions
result from customer requests received in response to Company quotes or negotiated purchase orders (collectively “Orders”). Orders specify products, contractual terms and
conditions, estimated quantities, and pre-determined prices over established time periods. Once an Order is in place, the customer requests the delivery of specific products and
volumes under the general terms and conditions contained therein.

    Products generally remain the property of the Company until received by the customer, and the Company provides a warranty that the materials comply with the
specifications contained in the Order. The contracts can generally be cancelled with or without
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cause at any time, with each party having responsibility for any rights and obligations accrued up to the time of termination. Each request by a customer under an Order
produces a sales contract for the goods specified in such request. The Orders do not create enforceable rights or obligations on their own (an additional purchasing decision is
required on the part of the customer). The warranties provided are assurance-type warranties and do not create separate performance obligations.

Revenue is primarily driven by factors such as construction activity levels, infrastructure development and urbanization trends, which influence the demand for our
products. The construction industry’s health, influenced by economic conditions, interest rates and government spending on infrastructure, directly impacts our sales volumes.
Additionally, regional market trends, including weather and seasonality trends, demographic shifts and the fiscal health of state and local governments, are closely monitored as
they can significantly impact performance and vary between different geographic regions, such as the Florida and Mid-Atlantic reportable segments. Product pricing is
influenced by supply/demand balances, product performance, reliability and service offerings.

Cost of goods sold – Cost of goods sold consists of all direct production and delivery costs and primarily includes material and inventory costs, payroll and employee-
related expenses, energy and fuel costs, freight and distribution expenses, repairs and maintenance costs, taxes (other than income taxes), short-term rentals, risk insurance,
depreciation, depletion and amortization and other miscellaneous costs.

Our cost of goods sold is directly affected by fluctuations in raw materials costs, labor costs and energy prices. As a result, our gross profit can be significantly affected
by changes in the underlying costs if they are not recovered through corresponding changes in revenue.

Selling expense – Selling expense represents the expenses associated with personnel, services and overhead involved specifically in sales activities. Selling expenses
include payroll and related costs, overhead, travel and entertainment and other miscellaneous selling costs.

General and administrative expense – General and administrative expense includes payroll and employee related expense, management fees, service contracts, office
costs, bank fees, professional fees, depreciation and amortization and other related costs. As we transition to a public company, we estimate that our annual general and
administrative expenses may increase solely as a result of the costs we expect to incur in maintaining Titan America, our Belgium-based holding company and the incremental
compliance and reporting costs associated with being a public company – including increased internal labor costs and external professional fees. This increase is anticipated to
negatively impact our profitability in the near term. Over the long term, we aim to manage these expenses to align with our growth and operational efficiencies.

Net impairment losses on financial assets – The Company assesses net impairment losses on financial assets such as trade receivables and derivative credit support
payments, excluding derivatives at fair value through profit or loss, by estimating expected credit losses (“ECLs”). These ECLs represent the discounted difference between the
contractual cash flows and the cash flows the Company anticipates receiving, using the asset’s original effective interest rate for discounting. For trade and other receivables,
the Company employs a simplified approach, calculating lifetime expected credit losses to determine the appropriate allowance for impairment.

Fair value loss on sale of accounts receivable, net – The Company recognizes a fair value loss when it sells its trade accounts receivable to a Special Purpose Entity
(“SPE”) at a discount. This discount reflects the time value of money, credit risk and other factors affecting the collectability of the receivables. The Company acts as the
servicer for these receivables, handling credit administration and collections and receives a servicing fee from the SPE. The fair value loss is calculated net of the interest
earned on notes receivable from the SPE and the servicing fees paid to the Company. Although the Company has transferred substantially all of the credit risks associated with
the accounts receivable sold to the SPE, the Company may face potential losses on its notes receivable from the SPE if credit losses on the sold receivables exceed certain
thresholds.

Finance cost, net – Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings and leases, line of credit commitment fees, net interest costs on pension and other post-
employment benefits, accretion expense on provisions and other related finance costs. Finance income includes interest earned on cash and cash equivalents and other short-
term investments. The net amount represents total finance costs incurred less total finance income earned by the Company during the period.

Foreign exchange (loss)/gain, net – The Company recognizes foreign exchange gains and losses which arise from settling transactions and revaluation of monetary
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies (including the Company’s Euro-denominated
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borrowings), using the prevailing spot rates. These translation differences, including those on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities, reflect the impact of currency
fluctuations on the Company’s financial position and results of operations, with the U.S. Dollar being the functional currency for our consolidated financial statements.

Derivative financial instrument gain/(loss), net – The Company engages in derivative financial instruments, including cross-currency swaps, interest rate swaps and
foreign exchange forwards, to manage its exposure to foreign currency and interest rate fluctuations. The derivatives are used to fix the U.S. Dollar cash flows associated with
Euro denominated borrowings and to mitigate the impact of U.S. Dollar/Euro exchange rate variations on other short-term obligations. The net gain or loss on derivatives
reflects the market conditions affecting the valuation of these financial instruments.

Income tax expense – The Company’s income tax expense reflects the sum of current taxes due and the effect of deferred taxes, which arise from temporary differences
between the accounting and tax treatment of assets and liabilities. The effective tax rate results from applying the statutory tax rate and adjusting for differences in tax rates
across the jurisdictions where the Company operates, as well as other permanent and temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for items expected to provide
future tax benefits, while deferred tax liabilities are recorded for future tax obligations. The Company’s tax strategy includes considerations for repatriating international
earnings and managing changes in tax legislation, such as the OECD Pillar Two Model Rules (“Pillar Two”) minimum effective tax rate in Belgium.

Consolidated Results of Operations

Comparison of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023

The following table sets forth a summary of our consolidated results of operations for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2024 2023 $ Change % Change

($ in thousands)
Revenue $ 1,634,393 $ 1,591,601 $ 42,792 3 %
Cost of goods sold (1,217,738) (1,228,112) 10,374 (1) %

Gross profit 416,655 363,489 53,166 15 %
Selling expense (33,623) (31,009) (2,614) 8 %
General and administrative expense (128,930) (99,909) (29,021) 29 %
Net impairment losses on financial assets (398) (1,224) 826 (67) %
Fair value loss on sale of accounts receivable, net (4,620) (6,113) 1,493 (24) %
Other operating income, net 2,304 402 1,902 473 %
Operating income 251,388 225,636 25,752 11 %
Finance cost, net (26,175) (22,244) (3,931) 18 %
Foreign exchange (loss)/gain, net 20,846 (11,981) 32,827 (274) %
Derivative financial instrument (loss)/gain, net (22,441) 10,967 (33,408) (305) %
Income before taxes 223,618 202,378 21,240 10 %
Income tax expense (57,544) (47,134) (10,410) 22 %
Net income $ 166,074 $ 155,244 $ 10,830 7 %
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Revenue

The following table sets forth a summary of our consolidated revenue by segment for the periods indicated, and the changes between comparative periods.

Year Ended December 31

2024 2023 $ Change % Change
($ in thousands)
Florida reportable segment $ 997,575 $ 969,932 $ 27,643 3 %
Mid-Atlantic reportable segment 634,946 619,683 15,263 2 %
STET segment 1,872 1,986 (114) (6) %
Consolidated Revenue $ 1,634,393 $ 1,591,601 $ 42,792 3 %

(1) STET segment is a nonreportable operating segment that develops, manufactures, sells and services triboelectrostatic separators and related equipment used to beneficiate fly ash, industrial minerals and food and
feed organics. The STET segment was divested on January 1, 2025 to Titan Cement Netherlands B.V., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Titan Cement International.

The following table presents our consolidated revenue by product type for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2024 2023 $ Change % Change
($ in thousands)
Revenue

Cement $ 639,312 $ 657,332 $ (18,020) (3) %
Aggregates 82,190 83,438 (1,248) (1) %
Ready-mix concrete 735,174 688,237 46,937 7 %
Concrete block 153,474 140,128 13,346 10 %
Fly ash 21,954 19,832 2,122 11 %
Equipment and related services 1,872 1,986 (114) (6) %
Other goods and services 417 648 (231) (36) %

Consolidated Revenue $ 1,634,393 $ 1,591,601 $ 42,792 3 %

(1) Equipment and related services are attributable to the STET segment during the reporting periods presented.

(1)

 (1)
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The following table presents our sales volumes and average external selling price by product for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2024 2023 Change % Change
Volumes (thousands)
Total cement volumes 5,682 5,875

Cement consumed internally (1,418) (1,393)
External cement volumes 4,264 4,482 (218) (5)%
Total aggregates volumes 7,229 6,733

Aggregates consumed internally (3,826) (2,983)
External aggregates volumes 3,403 3,750 (347) (9)%
External ready-mix concrete volumes 4,583 4,507 76 2%
External concrete block volumes 64,665 60,261 4,404 7%
Total fly ash volumes 574 547

Fly ash consumed internally (140) (114)
External fly ash volumes 434 433 1 —%

Average external selling price 
Cement $149.93 $146.65 $3.28 2%
Aggregates $24.15 $22.25 $1.90 9%
Ready-mix concrete $160.41 $152.69 $7.72 5%
Concrete block $2.37 $2.33 $0.04 2%
Fly ash $50.59 $45.80 $4.79 10%

(1) Sales volumes are shown in tons for cement, aggregates and fly ash; in cubic yards for ready-mix concrete; and in 8-inch equivalent units for concrete blocks.

(2) Cement, aggregates and fly ash consumed internally represents the quantity of those materials transferred to our ready-mix concrete and concrete block production lines for use in the production process. Internal

trading activity represents the consumption of internally sourced materials at a transfer price approximating market prices. These amounts are eliminated at the operating segment level or in consolidation, as

appropriate.

(3) Aggregates volumes exclude by-products.

(4) Average external selling prices are shown on a per ton basis for cement, aggregates and fly ash; on a per cubic yard basis for ready-mix concrete; and on a per 8-inch equivalent unit for concrete blocks.

Consolidated revenues increased $42.8 million to $1,634.4 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 compared to $1,591.6 million for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2023, primarily driven by increases in product pricing across all product lines, which was partially offset by reduced volume in cement and aggregates. Segment
external revenue in our Florida reportable segment increased $27.6 million, or 3%, to $997.6 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 from $969.9 million for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 while segment external revenue in our Mid- Atlantic reportable segment increased $15.3 million, or 2%, to $634.9 million for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2024 from $619.7 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023.

Cement revenues decreased $18.0 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, primarily attributable to
a 5% decrease in the quantity of external volume sold, which was partially offset by a 2% increase in the average external selling price. Aggregates revenues decreased $1.2
million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, due to a 9% decrease in external volume sold, partially offset by a
9% increase in average external selling price. Revenues attributable to ready-mix concrete increased by $46.9 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 compared to
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, due to a 5% increase in the average external selling price and a 2% increase in the quantity of external volume sold. Revenues
attributable to concrete block increased $13.3 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, with a 7% increase in
volume sold and a 2% increase in average selling price. Additionally, fly ash revenues increased $2.1 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 compared to the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, due to a 10% increase in the average external selling price while external volumes remained flat.

 (1) (2) (3)

(4)
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Cost of goods sold

Cost of goods sold decreased $10.4 million to $1,217.7 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 compared to $1,228.1 million for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2023. Materials and other inventory costs decreased by $30.8 million as a result of lower imported cement volumes and pricing, partially offset by higher
materials cost associated with increase sales volumes in ready-mix concrete and concrete block operations. Additionally, we saw decreases of $8.3 million in energy and fuel
costs for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, where our cement operations benefited from lower unit costs of
natural gas and the resulting shift away from higher cost kiln fuels. In addition, our cement, aggregates, ready-mix concrete and concrete block operations each benefited from
lower average unit costs of diesel fuel. Inventory change decreased by $18.1 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 compared to the fiscal year ended December
31, 2023. These were partially offset by increases in payroll and employee related expenses increased of $20.0 million as a result of wage inflation. In addition, we saw
increases of $6.4 million in distribution expense arising primarily from higher volume and inflationary increases, and $10.8 million in repairs and maintenance costs, primarily
related to the complexity and duration of periodic maintenance programs, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023.
Cost of goods sold were 75% of our revenues for fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 compared with 77% for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, as average selling
price increases outpaced costs during the period.

Selling expense

Selling expense increased by $2.6 million, or 8%, to $33.6 million for fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 compared to $31.0 million for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2023, primarily driven by an increase of $2.5 million in overhead costs (dues, professional fees, credit card fees, etc.). Selling expense accounted for 2% of our
revenues for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023.

General and administrative expense

General and administrative expense increased by $29.0 million, or 29%, to $128.9 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 compared to $99.9 million for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, primarily driven by an increase of $13.0 million in professional fees, $5.0 million in payroll and employee-related expenses, and $5.6
million in service contracts. The increase in professional fees resulted primarily from legal, accounting and other professional fees related to our IPO, the increase in payroll and
employee related expenses was attributable to an increase in headcount as we prepared to operate as a public company. The increase in service contracts is attributed to
consulting services related to public company compliance requirements. General and administrative expenses accounted for 8% of our revenues for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2024 and 6% of our revenues for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023.

Finance cost, net

Finance cost, net increased by $3.9 million, or 18%, to $26.2 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 compared to $22.2 million for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2023, primarily driven by an increase in interest expense on borrowings, including leases, of $2.3 million and a decrease in capitalized interest of $2.1 million
due to lower qualifying capital construction projects for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023.

Foreign exchange (loss)/gain, net

Net foreign exchange gains were $20.8 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 compared to a $12.0 million net loss for the fiscal year ended December
31, 2023, almost exclusively driven by the remeasurement of euro-denominated loan obligations as the U.S. dollar strengthened against the Euro during the period.

Derivative financial instrument gain/(loss), net

Net derivative financial instrument losses were $22.4 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 compared to a $11.0 million net gain for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2023, resulting from foreign exchange forwards, as well as cross-currency and interest rate swaps used to hedge our foreign exchange exposure in euro-
denominated borrowings.
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Income tax expense

Income tax expense increased by $10.4 million, or 22%, to $57.5 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 compared to $47.1 million for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2023. The change in income tax expense was primarily driven by an increase of $5.6 million in current tax expense and $4.8 million in deferred tax
expense, respectively. The increase in current tax expense is attributable to an increase in pre-tax income, partially offset by a permanent difference related to tax-basis
depletion. The increase in deferred tax expense is primarily related to tax-affected accelerated deductions for depreciation of fixed assets. The effective tax rate for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2024 was 25.7% compared to 23.3% for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023.

Comparison of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022

The following table sets forth a summary of our consolidated results of operations for the periods indicated:

 
Year Ended December 31

2023 2022 $ Change % Change

($ in thousands)
Revenue $ 1,591,601 $ 1,364,146 $ 227,455 17 %
Cost of goods sold (1,228,112) (1,142,880) (85,232) 7 %

Gross profit 363,489 221,266 142,223 64 %
Selling expense (31,009) (29,938) (1,071) 4 %
General and administrative expense (99,909) (87,513) (12,396) 14 %
Net impairment losses on financial assets (1,224) (3,711) 2,487 (67) %
Fair value loss on sale of accounts receivable, net (6,113) (3,041) (3,072) 101 %
Other operating income, net 402 (21) 423 NM
Operating income 225,636 97,042 128,594 133 %
Finance cost, net (22,244) (19,078) (3,166) 17 %
Income/(loss) from associate — 272 (272) (100) %
Foreign exchange (loss)/gain, net (11,981) 19,990 (31,971) (160) %
Derivative financial instrument (loss)/gain, net 10,967 (18,534) 29,501 (159) %
Income before taxes 202,378 79,692 122,686 154 %
Income tax expense (47,134) (16,971) (30,163) 178 %
Net income $ 155,244 $ 62,721 $ 92,523 148 %

(1) Not meaningful.

Revenue

The following table sets forth a summary of our consolidated revenue by segment for the periods indicated, and the changes between comparative periods.

Year Ended December 31
2023 2022 $ Change % Change

($ in thousands)
Florida reportable segment $ 969,932 $ 808,558 $ 161,374 20 %
Mid-Atlantic reportable segment 619,683 553,335 66,348 12 %
STET segment 1,986 2,253 (267) (12) %
Consolidated Revenue $ 1,591,601 $ 1,364,146 $ 227,455 17 %

(1) STET segment is a nonreportable operating segment that develops, manufactures, sells and services triboelectrostatic separators and related equipment used to beneficiate fly ash, industrial minerals and food and
feed organics. The STET segment was divested on January 1, 2025 to Titan Cement Netherlands B.V., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Titan Cement International

(1)

(1)
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The following table presents our consolidated revenue by product type for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31
2023 2022 $ Change % Change

($ in thousands)
Revenue

Cement $ 657,332 $ 560,320 $ 97,012 17 %
Aggregates 83,438 79,147 4,291 5 %
Ready-mix concrete 688,236 589,553 98,683 17 %
Concrete block 140,128 116,929 23,199 20 %
Fly ash 19,833 15,687 4,146 26 %
Equipment and related services 1,986 2,253 (267) (12) %
Other goods and services 648 257 391 152 %

Consolidated Revenue $ 1,591,601 $ 1,364,146 $ 227,455 17 %

(1) Equipment and related services are attributable to the STET segment during the reporting periods presented.

The following table presents our sales volumes and average external selling price by product for the periods indicated:
Year Ended December 31

2023 2022 Change % Change
Volumes (thousands)
Total cement volumes 5,875 5,743

Cement consumed internally (1,393) (1,411)
External cement volumes 4,482 4,332 150 3 %
Total aggregates volumes 6,733 7,305

Aggregates consumed internally (2,983) (3,108)
External aggregates volumes 3,750 4,197 (447) (11)%
External ready-mix concrete volumes 4,507 4,557 (50) (1)%
External concrete block volumes 60,261 62,116 (1,855) (3)%
Total fly ash volumes 547 486

Fly ash consumed internally (114) (108)
External fly ash volumes 433 378 55 15 %

Average external selling price 
Cement $ 146.65 $ 129.34 $ 17.31 13 %
Aggregates $ 22.25 $ 18.86 $ 3.39 18 %
Ready-mix concrete $ 152.69 $ 129.36 $ 23.33 18 %
Concrete block $ 2.33 $ 1.88 $ 0.45 24 %
Fly ash $ 45.80 $ 41.47 $ 4.33 10 %

(1) Sales volumes are shown in tons for cement, aggregates and fly ash; in cubic yards for ready-mix concrete; and in 8-inch equivalent units for concrete blocks.

(2) Cement, aggregates and fly ash consumed internally represents the quantity of those materials transferred to our ready-mix concrete and concrete block production lines for use in the production process. Internal

trading activity represents the consumption of internally sourced materials at a transfer price approximating market prices. These amounts are eliminated at the operating segment level or in consolidation, as

appropriate.

(3) Aggregates volumes exclude by-products.

(4) Average external selling prices are shown on a per ton basis for cement, aggregates and fly ash; on a per cubic yard basis for ready-mix concrete; and on a per 8-inch equivalent unit for concrete blocks.

(1)

 (1) (2) (3)

(4)
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Consolidated revenues increased $227.5 million to $1,591.6 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 compared to $1,364.1 million for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2022, primarily driven by increases in product pricing in both reportable segments which was partially offset by reduced volume in aggregates, ready-mix
concrete and concrete blocks. Segment external revenue in our Florida reportable segment increased $161.4 million, or 20%, to $969.9 million for the fiscal year ended

December 31, 2023 from $808.6 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 while segment external revenue in our Mid-Atlantic reportable segment
increased $66.3 million, or 12%, to $619.7 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 from $553.3 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022.

Cement revenues increased $97.0 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, primarily attributed to a
13% increase in the average external selling price and a 3% increase in the quantity of external volume sold. Aggregates revenues increased $4.3 million for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2023 compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, due to an 18% increase in the average external selling price partially offset by an 11%
decrease in external volume sold. Revenues attributable to ready-mix concrete increased by $98.7 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 compared to the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2022, due to an 18% increase in the average selling price, partially offset by a 1% decrease in volume sold. Revenues attributable to concrete blocks
increased $23.2 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, with a 24% increase in the average selling price,
partially offset by a 3% decrease in volume sold. Additionally, fly ash revenues increased $4.1 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 compared to the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2022, due to a 10% increase in the average external selling price and a 15% increase in external volume sold.

Cost of goods sold

Cost of goods sold increased by $85.2 million, or 7%, to $1,228.1 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 compared to $1,142.9 million for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2022, primarily driven by increases of $53.4 million in material and other inventory costs, $30.0 million in payroll and employee related expenses. The
increase in material and other inventory costs was primarily due to increased cement import volumes and higher unit costs of raw materials such as aggregates purchased from
third parties for use in our ready-mix concrete and concrete block operations. Payroll and employee related costs increased as a result of higher wage inflation and the impact of
overtime payments. In addition, we saw increases of $8.7 million in short-term equipment rentals, $7.0 million in distribution expense arising primarily from an increase in the
quantity of materials distributed via our rail connected distribution network, and $6.7 million in repairs and maintenance costs, primarily related to the complexity and duration
of periodic maintenance programs, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022. These were partially offset by a decrease
of $17.4 million in energy and fuel costs where our cement operations benefited from lower unit costs of natural gas and an increase in the percentage of lower cost alternative
fuels used in the manufacturing process. In addition, our cement, aggregates, ready-mix concrete and concrete block operations each benefited from lower average unit costs of
diesel fuel. Cost of goods sold were 77% of our revenues for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, compared to 84% for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 as
average selling price increases outpacing cost increases during the period.

Selling expense

Selling expense increased by $1.1 million, or 4%, to $31.0 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 compared to $29.9 million for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2022, primarily driven by an increase of $1.2 million in overhead costs (dues, professional fees, credit card fees, etc.). Selling expense accounted for 2% of our
revenues for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 and the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022.

General and administrative expense

General and administrative expense increased by $12.4 million, or 14%, to $99.9 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 compared to $87.5 million for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, primarily driven by an increase of $4.4 million in payroll and employee-related expense and $3.1 million in professional fees. The
increase in payroll and employee related expenses was attributable to increases in headcount and labor inflation. General and administrative expenses accounted for 6% of our
revenues for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 and for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022.
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Finance cost, net

Finance cost, net increased by $3.2 million, or 17%, to $22.2 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 compared to $19.1 million for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2022, primarily driven by a $3.6 million reduction in the benefit realized from favorable interest rate swaps executed in 2022. In addition, interest expense on
borrowings, including leases, increased $1.7 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022. This was partially
offset by increases in capitalized interest of $2.4 million resulting from higher qualifying capital project construction costs.

Foreign exchange (loss)/gain, net

Net foreign exchange losses were $12.0 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 compared to a $20.0 million net gain for the fiscal year ended December
31, 2022, almost exclusively driven by the remeasurement of euro-denominated loan obligations as the Euro strengthened against the U.S. Dollar during the period.

Derivative financial instrument gain/(loss), net

Net derivative financial instrument gains were $11.0 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 compared to a $18.5 million net loss for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2022, resulting from foreign exchange forwards, as well as cross-currency and interest rate swaps used to hedge our foreign exchange exposure in euro-
denominated borrowings.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense increased by $30.2 million, or 178%, to $47.1 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 compared to $17.0 million for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2022, primarily driven by an increase of $37.5 million in current tax expense. This was partially offset by a decrease of $7.3 million in deferred tax
expense resulting in an effective tax rate of 23.3% for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 compared to 21.3% for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022.

Reportable Segment Results of Operations

Florida Reportable Segment

Comparison of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023

The following table presents segment external revenue and segment adjusted EBITDA for our Florida reportable segment for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2024 2023 $ Change % Change
($ in thousands)
Segment external revenue $ 997,575 $ 969,932 $ 27,643 3 %
Segment adjusted EBITDA $ 249,665 $ 221,227 $ 28,438 13 %
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The following tables presents revenue by product type for our Florida reportable segment for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2024 2023 $ Change % Change

Revenue by product type
Cement $ 422,889 $ 423,137 $ (248) — %
Aggregates 157,459 137,986 19,473 14 %
Ready-mix concrete 465,023 448,359 16,664 4 %
Concrete block 153,474 140,128 13,346 10 %
Fly ash 19,508 16,349 3,159 19 %
Other goods and services 15,762 20,126 (4,364) (22) %

Revenue (including internal trading) $ 1,234,115 $ 1,186,085 $ 48,030 4 %
Less: Internal trading activity (236,540) (216,153) (20,387) 9 %

Segment External Revenue $ 997,575 $ 969,932 $ 27,643 3 %

(1) Revenues by product type consist of sales to third parties and internal trading activity at a transfer price approximating market price.

(2) Internal trading activity represents the consumption of internally sourced materials at a transfer price approximating market price. These amounts are eliminated at the operating segment level or in consolidation, as

appropriate.

Our Florida reportable segment’s percent changes in sales volumes (including internal trading activity) and average sales prices for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, as
compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, were as follows:

% Change in Volumes % Change in Average Price

Cement (3)% 3 %
Aggregates 8 % 5 %
Ready-mix concrete (1)% 5 %
Concrete block 7 % 2 %
Fly ash 10 % 8 %

Segment external revenue in our Florida reportable segment increased $27.6 million, or 3%, to $997.6 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 compared
to $969.9 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, driven by increases in the aggregates, ready-mix concrete, concrete block and fly ash product lines. Revenue
from aggregates increased $19.5 million resulting from a 8% increase in aggregates volumes and a 5% increase in average price for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 as
compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023. The increase in aggregates volumes was driven primarily by better availability of aggregates following the completion of
quarry development activities that previously limited the amount of material available for sale in the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023. Ready-mix concrete revenues grew
by $16.7 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 as a 1% decline in volumes was more than offset by a 5%
increase in average prices. Likewise, when compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, concrete block revenues increased by $13.3 million resulting from a 7%
increase in volumes and a 2% increase in average price for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 as compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023.

Segment adjusted EBITDA for the Florida reportable segment increased $28.4 million, or 13%, to $249.7 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024
compared to $221.2 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023. The increase in segment adjusted EBITDA for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 occurred
primarily due to increases in average prices for all product lines and the benefit of lower fuel and energy costs, which offset higher materials and other input costs.

Comparison of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022

 (1)

(2)
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The following table presents segment external revenue and segment adjusted EBITDA for our Florida reportable segment for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31
2023 2022 $ Change % Change

($ in thousands)
Segment external revenue $ 969,932 $ 808,558 $ 161,374 20 %
Segment adjusted EBITDA $ 221,227 $ 130,520 $ 90,707 69 %

The following tables presents revenue by product type for our Florida reportable segment for the periods indicated:
Year Ended December 31

2023 2022 $ Change % Change
($ in thousands)
Revenue by product type

Cement $ 423,137 $ 351,819 $ 71,318 20 %
Aggregates 137,986 131,321 6,665 5 %
Ready-mix concrete 448,359 369,399 78,960 21 %
Concrete block 140,128 116,929 23,199 20 %
Fly ash 16,349 13,054 3,295 25 %
Other goods and services 20,126 18,363 1,763 10 %

Revenue (including internal trading) 1,186,085 1,000,885 185,200 19 %
Less: Internal trading activity (216,153) (192,327) (23,826) 12 %

Segment External Revenue $ 969,932 $ 808,558 $ 161,374 20 %

(1) Revenues by product type consist of sales to third parties and internal trading activity at a transfer price approximating market price.

(2) Internal trading activity represents the consumption of internally sourced materials at a transfer price approximating market price. These amounts are eliminated at the operating segment level or in consolidation, as
appropriate.

Our Florida reportable segment’s percent changes in sales volumes (including internal trading activity) and average sales prices for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2023, as compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, were as follows:

% Change in Volumes % Change in Average Price

Cement 6 % 14 %
Aggregates (14)% 22 %
Ready-mix concrete (1)% 22 %
Concrete block (3)% 24 %
Fly ash 9 % 15 %

Segment external revenue in our Florida reportable segment increased $161.4 million, or 20%, to $969.9 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023
compared to $808.6 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, where revenue increased across all product lines. Revenue from cement increased $71.3 million
resulting from a 6% increase in cement volumes and a 14% increase in average price for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 compared to the fiscal year ended December
31, 2022. Revenue from aggregates increased $6.7 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 as compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 benefiting
from a 22% increase in average price on 14% lower volumes sold. The lower aggregate volumes were attributed to increased aggregate consumption in cement manufacturing
and quarry development activities that limited the amount of material available for sale in the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023. Ready-mix concrete revenues grew by
$79.0 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 as a 1% decline in volumes was more than offset by a 22%
increase in average prices where pricing and profitability improvements were prioritized over volume growth. Likewise, when compared to the fiscal year ended December 31,
2022, concrete block revenue increase by $23.2 million for the fiscal year ended

 (1)

(2)
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December 31, 2023 compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 as a 3% decrease in volumes was more than offset by a 24% increase in average price.

Segment adjusted EBITDA for the Florida reportable segment increased $90.7 million, or 69%, to $221.2 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023
compared to $130.5 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022. The increase in segment adjusted EBITDA for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 occurred
primarily due to increases in average prices for all product lines which outpaced the cost of materials and other input costs including higher selling, general and administrative
expenses.

Mid-Atlantic Reportable Segment
Comparison of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023

The following table presents revenue and segment adjusted EBITDA of our Mid-Atlantic reportable segment for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2024 2023 $ Change % Change
($ in thousands)
Segment external revenue $ 634,946 $ 619,683 $ 15,263 2 %
Segment adjusted EBITDA $ 134,792 $ 118,260 $ 16,532 14 %

The following table presents revenue by product type of our Mid-Atlantic reportable segment for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2024 2023 $ Change % Change

($ in thousands)
Revenue by product type

Cement $ 405,103 $ 411,558 $ (6,455) (2) %
Aggregates 14,305 15,053 (748) (5) %
Ready-mix concrete 270,478 245,931 24,547 10 %
Fly ash 16,533 13,945 2,588 19 %

Revenue (including internal trading) $ 706,419 $ 686,487 $ 19,932 3 %
Less: Internal trading activity (71,473) (66,804) (4,669) 7 %

Segment External Revenue $ 634,946 $ 619,683 $ 15,263 2 %

(1) Revenues by product type consist of sales to third parties and internal trading activity at a transfer price approximating market price.

(2) Internal trading activity represents the consumption of internally sourced materials at a transfer price approximating market price. These amounts are eliminated at the operating segment level or in consolidation, as

appropriate.

Our Mid-Atlantic reportable segment’s percent changes in sales volume (including internal trading activity) and average sales prices for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2024, as compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 were as follows:

% Change in Volumes % Change in Average Price
Cement (3)% 2 %
Aggregates 2 % (6)%
Ready-mix concrete 6 % 3 %
Fly ash 2 % 16 %

Segment external revenue in our Mid-Atlantic reportable segment increased $15.3 million, or 2%, to $634.9 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024
compared to $619.7 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, driven by revenue increases in the ready-mix concrete and fly ash product lines, partially offset by
revenue decreases in cement and aggregates product

 (1)

(2)
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lines. Ready-mix concrete revenues increased $24.5 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, as a result of a 6% increase in volumes and a 3% increase in average
price. Revenues from fly ash increased $2.6 million, or 19%, compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, driven by a 16% increase in prices and a 2% increase in
volumes. Contributions from aggregates and fly ash which, combined, represent less than 5% of our Mid-Atlantic reportable segments revenues saw a mixed performance.

Segment adjusted EBITDA in our Mid-Atlantic reportable segment increased $16.5 million, or 14%, to $134.8 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024
compared to $118.3 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023. The increase in segment adjusted EBITDA for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 was
attributable to increases in average sales prices across the cement, ready-mix, and fly ash product lines, higher ready-mix volumes, and the benefit of lower fuel and energy
costs compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023.

Comparison of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022

The following table presents revenue and Segment adjusted EBITDA of our Mid-Atlantic reportable segment for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2023 2022 $ Change % Change
($ in thousands)
Segment external revenue $ 619,683 $ 553,335 $ 66,348 12 %
Segment adjusted EBITDA $ 118,260 $ 72,753 $ 45,507 63 %

The following table presents revenue by product type of our Mid-Atlantic reportable segment for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2023 2022 $ Change % Change

($ in thousands)
Revenues by product type

Cement $ 411,558 $ 373,763 $ 37,795 10 %
Aggregates 15,053 7,998 7,055 88 %
Ready-mix concrete 245,931 225,023 20,908 9 %
Fly ash 13,945 10,944 3,001 27 %

Revenue (including internal trading) 686,487 617,728 68,759 11 %
Less: Internal trading activity (66,804) (64,393) (2,411) 4 %

Segment External Revenue $ 619,683 $ 553,335 $ 66,348 12 %

(1) Revenues by product type consist of sales to third parties and internal trading activity at a transfer price approximating market price.

(2) Internal trading activity represents the consumption of internally sourced materials at a transfer price approximating market price. These amounts are eliminated at the operating segment level or in consolidation, as

appropriate.

Our Mid-Atlantic reportable segment’s percent changes in sales volume (including internal trading activity) and average sales prices for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2023, as compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, were as follows:

% Change in Volumes % Change in Average Price

Cement (1)% 12 %
Aggregates 61 % 17 %
Ready-mix concrete (2)% 11 %
Fly ash 14 % 12 %

Segment external revenue in our Mid-Atlantic reportable segment increased $66.3 million, or 12%, to $619.7 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023
compared to $553.3 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, driven by revenue

 (1)

(2)
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increases across all product lines. Although cement volumes declined 1% for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022,
average price increased 12%. Compared to for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, aggregates volumes increased 61% (from a low base) for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2023 with a 17% improvement in average price. Ready-mix concrete volumes declined 2% but benefited from an 11% increase in average price where the higher
costs associated with raw material inputs were successfully passed through to ready-mix concrete customers, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 compared to the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2022. Fly ash volumes increased 14%, while average price increased 12% benefiting from improved availability and strong customer demand
for supplementary cementitious materials, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022.

Segment adjusted EBITDA in our Mid-Atlantic reportable segment increased $45.5 million, or 63%, to $118.3 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023
compared to $72.8 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022. The increase in segment adjusted EBITDA for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 was attributed
to increases in average sales prices across all product lines and the benefit of lower fuel and energy costs compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022.

B. Liquidity and Capital Resources

We measure liquidity in terms of our ability to fund the cash requirements of our business operations, including working capital needs, capital expenditures,
contractual obligations, debt service and other commitments with cash flows from operations and other sources of funding. Our principal sources of liquidity include cash on
hand, cash from operating activities, amounts available under revolving credit facilities with banks, amounts available under our revolving credit facility with TGF, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of TCI and term loans from TGF.

We believe that our cash and cash equivalents, committed and uncommitted credit facilities, and net cash provided by operating activities will be sufficient to meet our
liquidity requirements for at least the 12 months following the issuance date of this annual report. Our future capital requirements will depend on several factors, including, the
potential impact of future disruptions on the economy and on our operations, as well as any other economic impacts related to changing fiscal policy or economic conditions.
We may also be negatively impacted in the future if TGF no longer provides debt financing to us or TCI no longer guarantees our third-party revolving credit facilities.
Additionally, we are exposed to credit markets through the interest cost related to its borrowings, which may also affect our capital needs and financial strategy. We could be
required, or could elect, to seek additional funding, private or public equity offerings, debt financing, bank loans, strategic partnerships or other financing options; however,
additional funds may not be available on terms acceptable to us, if at all.

All U.S. dollar equivalents in this section are calculated at the exchange rate prevailing on the date to which the corresponding foreign currency amount refers.

Cash and cash equivalents

As of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, we had $12.1 million and $22.0 million in cash and cash equivalents, respectively. Our cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash on hand, demand deposits held by banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. Such amounts are held
for the purpose of meeting short-term cash requirements, rather than for investment or other purposes, and are readily convertible to a known amount of cash.

Revolving credit facilities with banks

We have a committed borrowing facility with Wells Fargo Bank, National Association totaling $45.0 million of which $20.0 million is also available for the issuance
of letters of credit. As of December 31, 2024, we had $7.1 million in letters of credit outstanding under this facility and no outstanding borrowings, leaving $37.9 million of
available capacity. As of December 31, 2023, we had $7.7 million in letters of credit outstanding and no outstanding borrowings, leaving $37.3 million of available capacity.
The facility is annually renewed, and the current maturity date is June 12, 2025. This facility allows for daily drawdowns and repayments at a borrowing rate based on the
Secured Overnight Financing Rate (“SOFR”) and is guaranteed by TCI. In connection with this borrowing facility, we have agreed to financial covenants related to EBITDA
(as defined in the agreement), tangible net worth (as defined in the agreement) and maintenance of a committed line of credit with a maturity date extending beyond the
expiration date of this facility. The agreement also contains customary non-financial covenants, including restrictions on incurring certain liens on or
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disposing of certain existing assets without notification to the lender. As of December 31, 2024, we were in compliance with all the covenants associated with the facility.

In addition to the committed credit facility described above, we have an uncommitted borrowing facility with HSBC Bank USA, National Association totaling $40.0
million of which the full amount is also available for the issuance of letters of credit. As of December 31, 2024, we had $4.5 million in letters of credit outstanding under this
facility and $10.0 million in outstanding borrowings, leaving $25.5 million of available capacity. As of December 31, 2023, we had $4.8 million in letters of credit outstanding
under this facility and no outstanding borrowings, leaving $35.2 million of available capacity. The facility is annually renewed, and the current maturity date is December 31,
2025. This facility allows for term borrowings based on SOFR and is guaranteed by TCI. In connection with this borrowing facility, we have agreed to customary non-financial
covenants, including restrictions on incurring certain liens on or disposing of certain existing assets without notification to the lender. As of December 31, 2024, we were in
compliance with all the covenants associated with the facility.

We have an additional uncommitted credit facility with Citibank, N.A. totaling $60.0 million, none of which is available for the issuance of letters of credit. As of
December 31, 2024, we had $15.0 million in outstanding borrowings under this facility, leaving $45.0 million available for borrowing. As of December 31, 2023, no
borrowings were outstanding under this facility and the full $60.0 million capacity remained available for borrowing. The facility is annually renewed, and the current maturity
date is April 29, 2025. This facility allows for term borrowings based on SOFR and is guaranteed by TCI. In connection with this borrowing facility, we have agreed to certain
customary non-financial covenants, including restrictions on disposing of certain existing assets without notification to the lender. As of December 31, 2024, we were in
compliance with the covenants associated with this facility.

Revolving credit facility with related party

At December 31, 2024, we had a committed €130.0 million (or $135.1 million U.S. Dollar equivalent) multicurrency borrowing facility with TGF, a related party (the
“TGF Borrowing Facility”). We had €12.8 million ($13.3 million) in outstanding borrowings with available capacity of €117.2 million ($121.8 million) at December 31, 2024.
At December 31, 2023, the size of the TGF Borrowing Facility was €100.0 million (or $110.5 million U.S. Dollar equivalent). We had €36.5 million ($40.3 million) in
outstanding borrowings with available capacity of €63.5 million ($70.2 million) at December 31, 2023. This facility was amended on July 31, 2024 to increase the total
available credit facility from €100.0 million to €130.0 million. This multicurrency borrowing facility bears interest at variable rates, permits drawdowns and repayments, and
has a maturity date of January 30, 2026. There are no financial covenants associated with this facility.

Intragroup Cash Management Agreement

On February 1, 2024, we entered into a cash management agreement with TGF. The agreement is effective until either party provides written notice of termination.
Pursuant to this agreement, our two existing HSBC UK bank accounts, one denominated in U.S. dollars and one denominated in Euros, are funded when there are negative
daily balances. Fundings are subject to maximum borrowing limits of $15.0 million and €15.0 million, respectively. Conversely, when there are cash balances in either account,
these funds are swept as a deposit into the TGF concentration account. There are no deposit limits.

With respect to borrowings made under the cash management agreement, we bear a daily interest charge based on the benchmark rates of the European Central Bank
(ECB) Main Refinancing Rate (for Euro borrowings) and the U.S. Federal Reserve Federal Funds Target Rate (for U.S. dollar borrowings), plus an applicable margin.

With respect to deposits made under the cash management agreement, we receive a daily interest credit based on the benchmark interest rates of the ECB Deposit
Facility Rate (for Euro deposits) and the U.S. Federal Reserve Federal Funds Target Rate (for U.S. dollar deposits), minus an applicable margin.

Company funds on deposit with TGF under the cash management agreement are due upon demand from us. Amounts borrowed from TGF under the cash management
agreement may be repaid (in whole or in any part) at our discretion. Following written notice of termination, outstanding borrowings from TGF under the cash management
agreement are due upon demand from TGF.

We had $6.1 million in outstanding borrowings under this agreement as of December 31, 2024.

Term loans with related party
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In December 2017, we entered into a €150.0 million term loan with TGF maturing on November 15, 2024. In April 2022, we repaid €30.0 million of this loan. As of
December 31, 2023, €120.0 million remained outstanding bearing interest at 3.05%. There were no financial covenants associated with this loan. As described below, on
November 15, 2024, the Company settled this loan, and no amounts were outstanding as of December 31, 2024.

In March 2018, we entered into a €75.0 million term loan with TGF maturing on November 15, 2024. On April 29, 2024, we amended this note to: (i) increase the
principal amount to €100.0 million bearing an interest rate of 4.80% and (ii) extend its maturity to June 11, 2029. There are no financial covenants associated with this loan.

In June 2021, we entered into the following term loans with TGF:

• a €32.8 million loan bearing interest at 3.35% and maturing on July 7, 2027, and

• a €45.0 million loan with TGF maturing on November 14, 2024. On April 29, 2024, the loan was amended to: (i) increase the principal to €50.0 million bearing an
interest rate of 4.80% and (ii) extend its maturity to June 11, 2029.

There are no financial covenants associated with these loans.

On November 15, 2024, we entered into a €150.0 million term loan with TGF, bearing interest at 3.20% and maturing on July 7, 2027. The proceeds of this term loan
were used to settle €30.0 million borrowings then outstanding on the multicurrency revolving credit facility with TGF and the €120.0 million term loan with TGF maturing on
November 15, 2024 as described above. There are no financial covenants associated with this loan.

For the above Euro denominated loans, and as further described below, we have entered into derivative transactions with reputable financial institutions to hedge the
foreign currency risk and, in essence, convert the Euro denominated debt to U.S. Dollar debt.

Lease liabilities

As of December 31, 2024, we had lease liabilities totaling $68.4 million, with $29.2 million (43%) of that amount due in more than five years, $26.7 million (39%)
due within one to five years, and $12.4 million (18%) due within one year. As of December 31, 2023, we had lease liabilities totaling $65.5 million, with $27.0 million (41%) of
that amount due in more than five years, $26.7 million (41%) due within one to five years, and $11.7 million (18%) due within one year.

Derivative financial instruments

We use derivative financial instruments to manage foreign currency risks and interest rate exposures. As described above, term loans from related parties are Euro
denominated while we primarily operate in U.S. Dollars. Cross-currency interest rate swaps and foreign exchange forward contracts are used to fix the U.S. Dollar cash flows
(principal and interest) associated with Euro denominated term loans. In addition, foreign exchange forward contracts are used to mitigate the variation of the USD/Euro
exchange rate for short-term intervals over the life of short-term Euro denominated obligations and short-term Euro denominated borrowings, including those made under the
intercompany revolving credit facility described above.

To manage the foreign currency exchange rate risk associated with its Euro denominated term loans, we have entered into cross-currency interest rate swap agreements
with third party financial institutions which fixed the:

• July 7, 2027 U.S. Dollar to Euro exchange rate at $1.05383 to €1.00 on a notional amount of €150.0 million. In addition, over the life of the agreements, we will
receive Euro denominated fixed rate interest (weighted average 3.20%) on a notional amount of €150.0 million and pay U.S. Dollar denominated fixed rate interest
(weighted average 5.30%) on a notional amount of $158.1 million.

• June 11, 2029 U.S. Dollar to Euro exchange rate at $1.07213 to €1.00 on a notional amount of €150.0 million. In addition, over the life of the agreements, we will
receive Euro denominated fixed rate interest (weighted average 4.80%) on a notional amount of €150.0 million and pay U.S. Dollar denominated fixed rate interest
(weighted average 6.83%) on a notional amount of $160.8 million.
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To manage the foreign currency exchange rate risk associated with short-term Euro denominated obligations, we have entered into short-term foreign exchange
forward contracts with third party financial institutions which fixed the U.S. Dollar to Euro exchange rate on a:

• Notional amount of €35.6 million at $1.04258 to €1.00) with a value date of February 24, 2025.

• Notional amount of €10.0 million at $1.1222 to €1.00 with a value date of March 21, 2025.

Initial public offering

On February 10, 2025, the Company completed its initial public offering of 24,000,000 common shares (the "IPO"). The IPO was comprised of a primary offering of
9,000,000 newly issued common shares and a secondary offering of 15,000,000 existing common shares. The common shares were sold at an offering price of $16.00 per share,
generating proceeds of approximately $136.8 million, after deducting underwriting discounts and other commissions. Our common shares began trading on the New York Stock
Exchange on February 7, 2025 under the symbol "TTAM".

On March 11, 2025, the underwriters exercised a portion of their overallotment option to purchase 580,756 additional existing shares from TCI (the selling
shareholder). The Company did not receive any additional proceeds from the sale of these shares. After completion of the IPO, the Company had 184,362,465 common shares
issued and outstanding.

Cash Flows

The following table summarizes the net cash provided by and used in operating, investing and financing activities for the periods indicated:

Years Ended December 31

2024 2023 2022
($ in thousands)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 248,037 $ 227,125 $ 178,374 
Net cash used in investing activities (135,803) (117,653) (127,301)
Net cash used in financing activities (123,326) (117,779) (21,661)

Net Cash provided by Operating Activities

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, net cash provided by operating activities was $248.0 million primarily as a result of:

• Income before income taxes of $223.6 million, adjusted to exclude the effect of non-cash expenses, including $99.9 million of depreciation, depletion and amortization
and $3.8 million of share-based compensation as well as finance cost of $27.6 million which, when paid, is classified as a cash flow used in financing activities.

• Net cash outflows of $43.5 million primarily arising from increases in operating assets, including higher inventory levels associated with higher production volumes
and bulk purchases of raw materials and solid fuel.

• Income tax payments, net of income tax refunds of $67.9 million. Due to timing and calculation of tax prepayments under Greek tax law, cash outlays for income taxes
are expected to exceed income tax expense in years where taxable income increases when compared to the preceding period.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, net cash provided by operating activities was $227.1 million primarily as a result of:

• Income before income taxes of $202.4 million, adjusted to exclude the effect of non-cash expenses, including $91.1 million of depreciation, depletion and amortization
and $3.1 million of share-based compensation as well as finance cost of $23.2 million which, when paid, is classified as a cash flow used in financing activities.

• Net cash outflows of $42.3 million primarily arising from: (i) increases in operating assets, including higher inventory levels ($9.2 million) primarily associated with
spare parts held in advance of 2024 maintenance campaigns, and (ii) reductions in
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operating liabilities, including lower accounts payable and accrued expenses ($33.9 million) primarily associated with the timing of payments to suppliers.

• Income tax payments, net of income tax refunds of $53.1 million. Due to timing and calculation of tax prepayments under Greek tax law, cash outlays for income taxes
are expected to exceed income tax expense in years where taxable income increases when compared to the preceding period.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, net cash provided by operating activities was $178.4 million primarily as a result of:

• Income before income taxes of $79.7 million, adjusted to exclude the effect of non-cash expenses, including $87.7 million of depreciation, depletion and amortization
and $2.1 million of share-based compensation as well as finance cost of $19.5 million which, when paid, is classified as a cash flow used in financing activities.

• Net cash outflows of $5.6 million primarily arising from: (i) increases in operating assets, including higher inventory levels ($40.6 million) primarily associated with
increased quantities of finished goods and raw materials required to support market demand as well as increased unit costs resulting from higher manufacturing and
purchased material costs, and (ii) increases in operating liabilities, including higher accounts payable and accrued expenses ($50.6 million) primarily associated with
the timing of payments to suppliers.

• Income tax payments, net of income tax refunds of $5.3 million.

Net Cash used in Investing Activities

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, net cash used for investing activities was $135.8 million, of which $135.4 million and $1.6 million was invested in
property, plant and equipment and identifiable intangible assets, respectively.

    During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, net cash used for investing activities was $117.7 million, of which $117.1 million and $1.6 million was invested in property,
plant and equipment and identifiable intangible assets, respectively.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, net cash used for investing activities was $127.3 million, of which $125.4 million and $2.9 million was invested in
property, plant and equipment and identifiable intangible assets, respectively.

Net Cash used in Financing Activities

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, net cash used in financing activities was $123.3 million, primarily due to:

• Interest paid of $25.4 million.

• Dividends and returns of capital paid to shareholders of $85.1 million and $51.6 million, respectively.

• Payments under lease liabilities of $9.5 million.

• Net settlements and collateral payments of $16.5 million made to financial institutions arising from derivative financial instruments.

• Repayments in excess of borrowings under third-party lines of credit totaling $25.0 million.

• Borrowings in excess of repayments from a related party (TGF) totaling $45.5 million.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, net cash used in financing activities was $117.8 million, primarily due to:

• Interest paid of $23.8 million.

• Dividends paid to shareholders of $33.8 million.

• Payments under lease liabilities of $12.2 million.
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• Net settlements and collateral payments of $14.7 million received from financial institutions arising from derivative financial instruments.

• Repayments in excess of borrowings under third party lines of credit totaling $70.0 million.

• Borrowings in excess of repayments from a related party (TGF) totaling $7.7 million.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, net cash used in financing activities was $21.7 million, primarily due to:

• Interest paid of $20.9 million.

• Payments under lease liabilities of $11.4 million.

• Net settlements and collateral payments of $19.3 million made to financial institutions arising from derivative financial instruments.

• Borrowings in excess of repayments under third party lines of credit totaling 32.2 million

C. Research and Development

Our innovation and technology efforts allow us to better meet customer needs for novel technologies, higher-performing materials and greater productivity. We will
soon inaugurate the Titan America Innovation Hub (the “Innovation Hub”) located in Miami, Florida, to provide a collaboration space for innovators, startups, entrepreneurs
and researchers to develop, launch and scale products and services for a safe, resilient and sustainable world. The Innovation Hub is closely linked to our product development
and application laboratories network and informs and supports our innovation roadmap.

We provide technical services through an internal department (“Technical Services”). The primary mission of Technical Services is to assume a pivotal role as a
technical expert specializing in cement product performance and its applications in concrete and masonry.

Acting as a liaison between operations, sales and management, Technical Services offers technical engineering guidance and aid in troubleshooting product
performance issues for internal and external customers. The three primary functions of Technical Services are:

• Technical support to internal and external customers; technical assistance to cement sales and operations teams, including proposing parameters and processes for
ready-mix plants to improve performance; assessing and resolving customer complaints; technical expertise for special products; and communication between the
cement plant and customers.

• Product and knowledge management: Assisting with the introduction of new products to the market, supporting product development, providing input into future
products and specifications, consolidating and disseminating product knowledge, offering technical support for litigation cases, identifying opportunities for product
development based on the needs of the local market, recording industrial

• experience and interesting cases in databases, reviewing concrete raw materials and monitoring processes, applying specialized knowledge of the DOT and developing
and disseminating technical presentations and product information.

• Quality management: Conducting a thorough analysis of customer claims and identifying root causes related to process or production conditions. Developing
comprehensive quality training programs customized for internal and external customers to improving their understanding and application of quality standards.
Working closely with the technical center to lead research and development initiatives to enhance product quality and performance. Carrying out regular quality-
related plant technical reviews and audits.

We are a pioneer in developing and commercializing lower carbon, high-performing cement, enabled by manufacturing and material science innovations. We have
fully converted from OPC to Type IL in our markets, which have up to 10% lower CO2 than OPC. We introduced BrightCem®, an industry-first ASTM C1157 performance-
based cement with a high percentage of limestone for specialized end markets. We have obtained FDOT and Virginia Department of Transportation approval for Type IT ternary
blended cement in our key markets, which feature up to 50% lower embodied CO2 than OPC. Looking to the future, we are pursuing the development of calcined clay, which is
a next-generation, higher-performing SCM made with commonly available clays. Our
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Roanoke Cement Company was selected by the DOE to negotiate for funding to build a first-of-its-kind calcined clay production line in the United States to produce LC3.

We are conducting feasibility studies for CCUS facilities at both of our cement plants, including a project partially funded by the DOE’s CarbonSAFE program and a
project partially funded by the Southeast Regional CO2 Utilization and Storage Acceleration Partnership. The CCUS projects are evaluating the feasibility of developing
regional CO2 storage hubs at our cement plant sites that would ultimately provide access for carbon safe storage within geological features beneath the premises of the cement
plants, avoid dependency on external CO2 distribution networks and reduce the logistics and transportation costs of captured CO2 from our cement plants. They could also
serve as a CO2 storage hub for nearby industrial CO2 emitters. Pennsuco’s studies are already advanced to phase II of the CarbonSAFE program that includes detailed
geological studies with deep core drilling exploration inside the plant’s property at a total cost of $11.5 million the majority of which is funded by DOE. Roanoke has already
completed phase I with the development of a general geologic model and has applied for funding to proceed to phase II similar to Pennsuco. In addition to the scientific
research, the projects include comprehensive community benefit plans, focusing on community and labor engagement, investments in job quality and a skilled workforce,
diversity, equity, inclusion, accessibility and the Justice40 Initiative. The plans aim to develop a diverse list of community contacts, host engagement events and promote career
opportunities in the CCS industry.

Both our Roanoke and Pennsuco plants have been certified to the ISO 50001 standard (Roanoke since 2018, Pennsuco since 2020), achieved TRUE Platinum
certification for zero waste, and U.S. EPA Energy Star (the Roanoke Plant since 2007, Pennsuco since 2008).

Separation Technologies utilizes licensed, patented technology that processes dry powders and recycles waste streams sustainably and cost-effectively. ST also
recycles coal combustion by-products and processes them into cementitious materials.

Our ready-mix concrete businesses create highly customized concrete mixes to meet the increasingly demanding expectations of our customers. Our GreenCrete®
product line has third-party verified embodied CO2 contents well below industry averages. The embodied CO2 is the amount of CO2 associated with the production of any
product, from raw material extraction until it leaves our plants. The embodied CO2 is quantified according to the Product Category Rules (“PCRs”) for cement and concrete
and reported in an Environmental Product Declaration (“EPD”). PCRs and EPDs are in accordance with ISO standards and are recognized by our customers and government
agencies such as EPA, Federal Highway Administration and General Services Administration. In accordance with ISO, the EPDs are third-party verified, which means we hired
an independent organization to verify that our information is correct and in accordance with the PCRs.

Additionally, our extended joint spacing concrete mixes offer low shrinkage and high cracking resistance, accelerating construction time and reducing long-term
maintenance costs by eliminating the need for joints in commercial and industrial warehouse floors, offering a compelling value proposition for advanced manufacturing
facilities that utilize robotics or other automated operations. We offer a line of marine concrete mixes to meet the growing needs of coastal infrastructure across our footprint,
including seawalls, bridges, tunnels, wind farms and artificial reefs. Our HPC mixes enable our customers to operate on the cutting edge of strength, durability and deflection
for high-rise construction.

We are a consortium member of the South Florida Ready Tech Hub, an initiative by the U.S. Department of Commerce to catalyze commercialization technologies to
adapt to the growing climate challenges of rising sea levels, extreme weather and growing energy demand.

Through a partnership with the Titan Group’s Corporate Venture Capital fund, we collaborate with some of the most innovative companies in our industry. An
investment in Natrx, a North Carolina-based startup that combines remote sensing, digital manufacturing, and lower carbon cement to make 3D printed seawalls to protect
coastal assets and ecosystem, expands the size of the available market in the areas in which we operate. Similar investments in North America include Rondo and Carbon
Upcycling Technologies, each of which provides us with direct access to new technologies.
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We have developed and sold patent-pending mixes for 3D concrete printing, an emerging and transformative technology that addresses construction labor shortages
and lowers construction costs while enabling concrete to be used in new forms and functions.

D. Trend Information

Other than as disclosed elsewhere in this document, we are not aware of any trends, uncertainties, demands, commitments or events for the year ended December 31,
2024 that are reasonably likely to have a material and adverse effect on our revenues, income, profitability, liquidity or capital resources, or that would cause the disclosed
financial information to be not necessarily indicative of future results of operations or financial conditions.

E. Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our annual consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board. Preparation of our consolidated financial statements requires our management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that impact the
reported amount of net sales and expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. We consider an accounting judgment, estimate or
assumption to be critical when the estimate or assumption is complex in nature or requires a high degree of judgment and the use of different judgments, estimates and
assumptions could have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements. Management periodically reviews our estimates and adjusts these estimates when facts and
circumstances dictate. To the extent there are differences between the estimates and actual results, our financial condition or results of operations may be materially affected.

An accounting policy is considered to be critical if it requires an accounting estimate to be made based on assumptions about matters that are highly uncertain at the
time the estimate is made, and if different estimates that reasonably could have been used, or changes in the accounting estimates that are reasonably likely to occur
periodically, could materially impact our consolidated financial statements. We believe that our critical accounting policies reflect the more significant estimates and
assumptions used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements. The critical accounting policies, judgments and estimates should be read in conjunction with our
consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto and other disclosures included elsewhere in this document.

Our significant accounting policies are described in Note 1 to our audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this document. Our critical
accounting policies are described below.
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Property, plant and equipment

Our property, plant and equipment represent significant assets on the balance sheet and are critical to our ability to generate future economic benefits. These assets are
stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Land, with the exception of quarries, is carried at cost less any impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes expenditures directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets, as well as any environmental rehabilitation costs
that have been recognized as a provision. We capitalize subsequent costs related to these assets when it is probable that they will provide future economic benefits and can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any replaced parts is derecognized, while all other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation is a significant estimate in the valuation of property, plant and equipment, and except for quarries and refurbishments, it is calculated on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Cement Aggregates Other

Land improvements 15 - 30 15 15

Building and improvements 25 25 25

Machinery and equipment 15 - 30 10 - 20 5 - 15

Mobile equipment 7 - 25 7 - 15 7

Marine equipment 20 20 n/a

Auto and truck 8 8 8

Furniture and fixtures 3 - 5 3 - 5 3 - 5

For quarries, depreciation is based on a depletion basis using the unit-of-production method, which is applied as the material extraction process advances. This method
is based on proven and probable reserves and indicated and measured resources, ensuring that the depreciation expense matches the rate at which the economic benefits of the
quarries are consumed.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives, and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate. If the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognized immediately.

A one-year increase in the assumed asset lives would increase income before income taxes by $7.8 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024. A one-year
decrease in the assumed asset lives would decrease income before income taxes by $9.9 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024.

Impairment tests of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tested for impairment upon the occurrence of internal or external indicators of impairment, such as changes in our operating business
model or in technology that affects the asset, as well as expectations of lower operating results for each cash generating unit, in order to determine whether their carrying
amounts may not be recovered. In such cases, an impairment loss is recorded in the statements of income for the period when such determination is made. The impairment loss
of an asset results from the excess of the asset’s carrying amount over its recoverable amount, corresponding to the higher of the fair value of the asset, less costs to sell such
asset, and the asset’s value in use, the latter represented by the net present value of estimated cash flows related to the use and eventual disposal of the asset. Impairment losses
recognized are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Significant judgment by management is required to appropriately assess the fair values and values in use of these assets. Impairment tests are significantly sensitive to,
among other factors, the estimation of future prices of our products, the development of operating expenses, local and national economic trends in the construction industry, the
long-term growth expectations in the different markets as well as the discount rates and the growth rates in perpetuity applied. For purposes of estimating future prices, we use,
to the extent available, historical data plus the expected increase or decrease according to information issued by what we consider to be trusted external sources, such as
national construction or cement producer associations and/or in governmental economic expectations.

Impairment of goodwill
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We conduct impairment tests of goodwill using the recoverable amounts of cash-generating units (“CGUs”), which are determined based on value-in-use calculations.

As of December 31, 2024, we have not recorded any impairment of goodwill or indefinite-lived intangible assets, as the recoverable amounts of our CGUs are
estimated to exceed their respective carrying amounts. Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets have been allocated to various CGUs, including the Mid-Atlantic and
Florida business units, with total goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets amounting to $235.5 million for both the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 and for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2023.

The recoverable amount of all CGUs has been determined based on value-in-use calculations that use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets and
forecasts approved by management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond this period are extrapolated using estimated long-term growth rates. The value-in-use
calculations are most sensitive to the following assumptions:

• Sales volumes

• Selling prices

• Long-term growth rates

• Discount rates

Management estimates sales volumes using independent industry forecasts and considers our market position relative to competitors. We assume weighted average
sales volume compound annual growth rates ranging from 1.6% to 9.6% for our core operating activities for the 2025-2029 period.

For selling prices, we assume weighted average net realized selling price compound annual growth rates generally ranging from 0.6% to 3.4% for the same period. The
growth rates reflect competitive supply dynamics and structural supply constraints in relevant markets.

Long-term growth rates are based on published industry research and demographic trends, such as population growth, household formation and economic output
(among other factors), in the states where we operate. These rates also consider cement/concrete intensity in construction, which varies by state. As of December 31, 2024,
long-term growth rates were estimated by management to be 2.4%.

Discount rates reflect the current market assessment of the risks associated with each CGU. The pre-tax discount rates used in the value-in-use calculations were 9.8%
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 and 9.2% for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023.

We have analyzed the sensitivities of the recoverable amounts to reasonably possible changes in key assumptions. A 100 basis point increase in our discount rate or a
50 basis point decrease in our long-term growth rate would still result in significant headroom indicating our goodwill is not at risk of impairment. The detailed analyses have
been reviewed by our management and did not reveal any scenarios that would result in the carrying values of the CGUs exceeding their recoverable amounts as of December
31, 2024.

Fair value measurements

Recurring fair value measurements are those that the accounting standards require or permit in the statement of financial position at the end of each reporting period.
The estimated fair value under IFRS represents the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, considering the counterparty’s credit risk in the valuation (i.e., an exit price or a market-based measurement). The concept of exit value is
premised on the existence of a market and market participants for the specific asset or liability. When there is no market and/or market participants willing to make a market,
IFRS establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1, as defined below, measurements) and the lowest priority to measurements involving significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3, as defined below, measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:
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1) Level 1 – represents quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that we can access at the measurement date. A quoted price in an
active market provides the most reliable evidence of fair value and is used without adjustment to measure fair value whenever available.

2) Level 2 – are inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, and are used mainly to
determine the fair value of derivatives.

3) Level 3 – based on valuation techniques whereby all inputs having a material effect on the fair value are not derived from observable market data.

Critical judgment and estimates by management are required to appropriately identify the corresponding level of fair value applicable to each derivative instrument, as
well as to assess the amounts of the resulting assets and liabilities, mainly in respect of Level 2 and Level 3, in order to account for the effects of derivative financial
instruments in the financial statements.

Our derivative financial instruments are measured based on Level 2 inputs. Level 2 derivative financial instruments comprise cross currency interest rate swaps,
interest rate swaps, foreign exchange forward contracts and natural gas futures.

We use a variety of valuation methods and make assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each reporting date. The recorded fair values of these
contracts are based on:

a) forward exchange rates that are quoted in an active market;

b) forward interest rates extracted from observable yield curves; and

c) natural gas prices, which are quoted in an active market.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are recorded directly in our Consolidated Income Statement, except for the effective portion of
cash flow hedges, which is recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI) and subsequently reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item affects profit or loss.

Provisions for restoration, environmental and equipment removal obligations

Estimating site restoration, quarry rehabilitation and environmental costs involves inherent uncertainty due to unknown conditions, changing governmental regulations
and legal standards regarding the liabilities, the length of the clean-up periods and evolving technologies. The restoration, environmental and remediation provisions reflect the
information available to management at the time of determination of the liability and are adjusted periodically as remediation efforts progress or as additional technical or legal
information becomes available.

We are required to restore the land used for quarries and processing sites at the end of their productive lives to a condition acceptable for the relevant authorities and
consistent with our environmental policies. Provisions for restoration obligations, environmental and equipment removal are recognized when we have a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.

Estimated costs associated with such rehabilitation activities represent management’s best estimate of expenditures required to settle the present obligation at the
balance sheet date and are measured at the present value of future cash outflows expected to be incurred. Such cost estimates, initially expressed at current price levels, are
adjusted for inflation (between 2.25% and 2.44% at December 31, 2024, between 2.34% and 2.89% at December 31, 2023 and between 2.35% and 3.00% at December 31,
2022) to reflect expected annual cost increases between the date of the estimate and the forecasted payment date. The estimates are then discounted to present value at a rate
consistent with the duration of the liability. Where a closure and restoration obligation arises from quarry/mine development activities or relates to the decommissioning of
property, plant and equipment, the provision can be capitalized as part of the cost of the associated asset (intangible or tangible). The capitalized cost is depreciated over the
useful life of the asset and any change in the net present value of the expected liability is included in finance cost, unless it arises from changes in valuation assumptions. Each
year, the provisions are increased to reflect accretion of the discount, with these charges recorded as a component of finance cost.
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Provisions associated with environmental damage represent the estimated future cost of remediation. Estimating the future costs of these obligations is complex and
requires us to use our judgment. The estimation of these costs is based on an evaluation of currently available facts with respect to each individual site and considers factors
such as existing technology, currently enacted laws and regulations and prior experience in site remediation.

New and Amended Standards and Interpretations

New and amended accounting standards and interpretations are described in Note 1 to our audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this
document.

Material Weaknesses

We are not yet required to assess and conclude on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting in a manner that meets the standards required by
Item 308(a) of Regulation S-K, and we are not yet subject to the certification or attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act due to a transition period
established by the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission for newly public companies. However, during the preparation of our financial statements included
elsewhere in this document we identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting. The PCAOB defines a material weakness as “a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company’s annual or
interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.”

We determined that we have a material weakness as we did not effectively design and maintain effective controls in response to the risks of material misstatement.
Specifically, changes to existing controls or the implementation of new controls have not been sufficient to respond to changes to the risks of material misstatement to financial
reporting. This material weakness contributed to the following material weaknesses:

• We did not design and maintain effective controls related to the period-end financial reporting process, including controls over the preparation and review of account
reconciliations and journal entries. Additionally, we did not design and maintain effective controls over the segregation of duties related to journal entries and account
reconciliations, as certain personnel have the ability to both (i) create and post journal entries within our general ledger system and (ii) prepare and review account
reconciliations without a review performed by someone without conflicting duties. The material weakness did not result in material misstatements to our consolidated
financial statements.

• We did not design and maintain effective controls over the accuracy of price and quantity information for revenue recognition. Specifically, we did not design and
maintain effective controls to (i) verify the invoiced quantity and price aligns with what was ordered by and agreed to with the customer, (ii) review and approve
changes to quantities and prices and (iii) review and approve manual debit and credit memoranda.

• We did not design and maintain effective information technology (“IT”) general controls for information systems that are relevant to the preparation of our financial
statements. Specifically, we did not design and maintain sufficient:

o user access controls to ensure appropriate segregation of duties and to adequately restrict user and privileged access to appropriate personnel;

o program change management controls to ensure that IT program and data changes are identified, tested, authorized and implemented appropriately;

o computer operations controls to ensure that processing and transfer of data, and data backups and recovery are monitored; and

o program development controls to ensure that new software development is tested, authorized and implemented appropriately.

These IT deficiencies, when aggregated, could impact maintaining effective segregation of duties, as well as the effectiveness of IT-dependent controls (such as
automated controls that address the risk of material misstatement along with the IT controls and underlying data that support the effectiveness of system-generated data and
reports) that could result in misstatements potentially
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impacting all financial statement accounts and disclosures. Accordingly, management has determined these deficiencies in the aggregate constitute a material weakness.

None of the material weaknesses described above resulted in a material misstatement to our financial statements. Nevertheless, we recognize that each of the material
weaknesses described above could result in misstatements to substantially all financial statement accounts and disclosures that would result in a material misstatement to the
annual or interim consolidated financial statements that would not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. As a result, and in connection with our plan to become a public
company, we commenced an internal control over financial reporting (“ICFR”) project in our 2023 fiscal year. As part of our ICFR project, we are in the process of developing
a remediation plan designed to remediate each of the identified material weaknesses and we are making progress against this remediation plan; however, the material
weaknesses described above will not be considered remediated until the action items arising out of the plan have been implemented and the new controls and procedures have
been operating effectively for a sufficient period of time. While we will work to remediate the material weaknesses as quickly and efficiently as possible, we cannot at this time
provide an expected timeline in connection with any remediation plan. These remediation measures may be time-consuming and costly and might place significant demands on
our financial and operational resources.

As permitted under the U.S. securities laws, neither we nor our independent registered public accounting firm have performed or are required to perform an evaluation
of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. In the future, we may identify additional material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting.

Failure to maintain effective internal control over financial reporting could result in misstatements in our financial statements that could lead to a restatement of our
financial statements, cause us to fail to meet our reporting obligations or cause investors to lose confidence in our reported financial and other information, which may result in
a decline in the market price of our shares.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Our future income, cash flows and fair values relevant to financial instruments are dependent upon prevailing market interest rates and foreign currency exchange
rates. Market risk refers to the risk of loss from adverse changes in market prices, foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The primary market risk we are exposed to
is foreign currency exchange rate risk and interest rate risk. We have used derivative financial instruments to manage, or hedge, foreign currency exchange rate risk and interest
rate risks related to our borrowings.

The majority of our debt obligations are denominated in Euros. As a result, we are exposed to foreign currency exchange rate risk arising from the conversion of Euro
loan proceeds to U.S. Dollars at the borrowing date and the related obligation to repay the loans in Euros at maturity. To manage this exposure, the Company has entered into
derivative financial instruments to offset its exposure to fluctuations in the Euro/U.S. Dollar exchange rate during the life of the loans as described above and in Note 9 to our
audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this document. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of our profit before income tax to reasonable
changes in foreign exchange rates (after taking into consideration the impact of outstanding economic hedges in place for Euro denominated borrowings and other obligations),
with all other variables held constant:

Period Ended
Decrease in

USD: Euro FX Rate
Effect on profit
before tax (-/+)

        Increase in
USD: Euro FX Rate

Effect on profit
before tax (+/-)

12/31/2024 5.0 % — (5.0)% — 
12/31/2023 5.0 % — (5.0)% — 
12/31/2022 5.0 % — (5.0)% — 

As we have no material interest-bearing assets, our income and operating cash flows are not directly impacted by changes in market interest rates. Our interest rate risk
arises from short-term and long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose us to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose us to fair
value interest rate risk. Our policy for long-term borrowings will vary and is managed by us in coordination with TCI’s group treasury function. The following table
demonstrates the sensitivity of our profit before income tax (considering the impact of the outstanding floating rate borrowings at the end of the period) to reasonable changes
in interest rates, with all other variables held constant:
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Period Ended Interest Rate Increase
Effect on profit
before tax (-/+) Interest Rate Decrease

Effect on profit
before tax (+/-)

12/31/2024 1.0 % 133 (1.0)% (133)
12/31/2023 1.0 % 403 (1.0)% (403)
12/31/2022 1.0 % 700 (1.0)% (700)

While the derivative financial instruments described above are intended to lessen the impact of rising interest rates and adverse changes in foreign currency exchange
rates, they also expose us to the risk that the other parties to the agreements will not perform. If this were to occur, we could incur significant costs associated with the
settlement of the underlying obligations while we pursue the enforcement of derivative instrument agreements. In addition, an increase in interest rates could decrease the
amounts third parties are willing to pay for our assets, thereby limiting our ability to change our portfolio promptly in response to changes in economic or other conditions.

Item 6. Directors, Senior Management and Employees
 
A. Directors and Senior Management

Set forth below are the current members of the board of directors and Executive Officers of Titan America, their responsibility as a director or officer, age, the number
of years they have served as a director or officer, and other principal business activities outside the Corporation as of December 31, 2024.

Board of Directors

Marcel Cobuz
Responsibility as a Director:

• Chairman of the Board of Directors
• Chairman, Nominating and Compensation Committee
• Member, Finance Committee

Age: 53
Number of Years Served as a Director: 0 years
Principal Business Activities Outside Titan America: Executive Director, Titan Cement International SA
Brief Personal History:

2022 - Chairman Designate and Member, Titan Cement International SA’s Group Executive Committee   
2018-2022 - Head of Europe and Group Innovation, Holcim

William John Antholis
Responsibility as a Director:

• Member, Nominating and Compensation Committee
Age: 59
Number of Years Served as a Director: 0 years
Principal Business Activities Outside Titan America: Chief Executive Officer and Director, Miller Center
Brief Personal History:

2018-2024 - Director, Titan Cement International SA   
2015-2024 - Trustee, American College of Greece
2004-2014 - Managing Director, Brookings Institution
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James “Jay” Bachmann
Responsibility as a Director:

• Member, Audit and Risk Committee
Age: 56
Number of Years Served as a Director: 0 years
Principal Business Activities Outside Titan America: President, U.S. Interior Products Group, CertainTeed Corporation
Brief Personal History:

2024 - Board Member, Go Labs, Inc.
2020-2022 - General Manager, CertainTeed US Gypsum   
2014-2020 - Chief Executive Officer and Board Member, Continental Building Products, Inc.

Michael Colakides
Responsibility as a Director:

• Member, Nominating and Compensation Committee
• Chair, Finance Committee

Age: 70
Number of Years Served as a Director: 0 years
Principal Business Activities Outside Titan America:

• Chief Financial Officer and Director, Titan Cement Company S.A.
• Chief Financial Officer and Director, Titan Cement International SA
• Managing Director, Titan Cement International SA

Brief Personal History:
2007-2013 - Deputy Chief Executive Officer - Group Risk Executive Officer, EFG Eurobank Ergasias S.A.   
2000-2007 - Vice-Chair and Managing Director, Piraeus Bank S.A.
1994-2000 - Group Chief Financial Officer and Executive Member, Titan Cement Company S.A.
1979-1993 - Various senior leadership positions, Citibank Greece

Sandra Santos
Responsibility as a Director:

• Chairman and Audit Committee Financial Expert, Audit and Risk Committee
Age: 53
Number of Years Served as a Director: 0 years
Principal Business Activities Outside Titan America: Director, Titan Cement International S.A.
Brief Personal History:

2014-2024 - Chief Executive Officer, BA Glass B.V.   
2007-2014 - Chief Financial Officer, BA Glass B.V.
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Wim Van der Smissen
Responsibility as a Director:

• Member, Audit and Risk Committee
Age: 64
Number of Years Served as a Director: 0 years
Principal Business Activities Outside Titan America: Chief Financial Officer, CFO Center
Brief Personal History:

2010-2020 - Vice President Finance & IT Europe, Bemis Europe Holdings, S.A. (later Amcor plc)   
2007-2010 - Chief Financial Officer, Reynaers Aluminium
1983-2006 - Various positions, Unilever Belgium

Bill Zarkalis
Responsibility as a Director:

• Member, Finance Committee
Age: 63
Number of Years Served as a Director: 0 years
Principal Business Activities Outside Titan America: None
Brief Personal History:

2010-2014 - Chief Financial Officer, Titan Cement Company S.A.   
2008-2010 - Executive Director, Business Development and Strategic Planning, Titan Cement Company S.A.

Corporate Executive Officers

In addition to Bill Zarkalis, the six individuals set forth below are the current Corporate Executive Officers of Titan America as of December 31, 2024. Refer to “Board
Practices” in Item 6.C.

Larry Wilt
Responsibility as an Officer: Chief Financial Officer
Age: 60
Number of Years Served as a Corporate Executive Officer: 25 years
Principal Business Activities Outside Titan America: None
Brief Personal History:

1996-2000 - Corporate Controller, Tarmac America, Inc.   
1995-1996 - Manager, Internal Audit, Tarmac America, Inc.

John Christy
Responsibility as an Officer: Chief Legal Counsel
Age: 67
Number of Years Served as a Corporate Executive Officer: 9 years
Principal Business Activities Outside Titan America: None
Brief Personal History:

2011-2015 - Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary, Owens Corning   
1996-2011 - Various positions, Law Department, Owens Corning
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Dan Quirk
Responsibility as an Officer: Chief Accounting Officer
Age: 55
Number of Years Served as a Corporate Executive Officer: 0 years
Principal Business Activities Outside Titan America: None
Brief Personal History:

2023-2024 - Executive Vice President of Finance and Accounting, Fisker, Inc.   
1991-2023 - Partner, Ernst & Young LLP

Robert Paxton
Responsibility as an Officer: Chief Human Resources Officer
Age: 51
Number of Years Served as a Corporate Executive Officer: 0 years
Principal Business Activities Outside Titan America: None
Brief Personal History:

2018-2024 - Senior Vice President, Human Resources and Chief Human Resources Officer, Masonite International
Corporation   

2016-2018 - Vice President, Business Integration, Owens Corning
2013-2016 - Vice President, Human Resources, Owens Corning
2010-2013 - Vice President, Talent Management & Corporate Human Resources, Owens Corning
2008-2010 - Senior Vice President, Human Resources, Broadwind Energy Inc.
2007-2008 - Vice President, Global Human Resources, Whirlpool Corporation

Kevin Baird
Responsibility as an Officer: President, Titan Mid-Atlantic
Age: 57
Number of Years Served as a Corporate Executive Officer: 8 years
Principal Business Activities Outside Titan America: None
Brief Personal History:

2013-2017 - Senior Vice President of Ready-Mix Operations and Florida Concrete Products, Titan America LLC   
2011-2013 - Vice President, Cement and Aggregate Operations - Florida Business Unit, Titan America LLC

Randy Dunlap
Responsibility as an Officer: President, Titan Florida
Age: 70
Number of Years Served as a Corporate Executive Officer: 11 years
Principal Business Activities Outside Titan America: None
Brief Personal History:

2010-2014 - President of Separation Technologies and Essex Cement, Titan America LLC   
2005-2010 - Various positions, Separation Technologies, Titan America LLC
1990-2005 - Various positions, Holcim (US) Inc.

     Bill Zarkalis, Larry Wilt, John Christy, Dan Quirk, Robert Paxton, Kevin Baird and Randy Dunlap are engaged on a full-time basis by Titan America. There is no family
relationship between any of the persons named above. There is no arrangement or understanding with major shareholders, customers, suppliers, or others pursuant to which any
person named above was selected as a Director or a Corporate Executive Officer.
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B. Compensation

Under Belgian law requirements, Titan America is required to disclose, in the clarification on its annual accounts, the aggregated compensation awarded to its
directors. We are under no Belgian law obligation to disclose individual executive compensation awarded to our Executive Officers under Belgian law.

(1) Total amounts of remuneration for Directors and Corporate Executive Officers and the number thereof 

The aggregate value of amounts paid or granted (as applicable) to our Directors and Corporate Executive Officers for the immediately preceding fiscal year is
$7,801,206.

(2) Amounts of remuneration for Directors on an individual basis

Board of Director Compensation

During Titan America’s 2024 fiscal year, we did not maintain any director compensation plan or program. We have adopted a director compensation policy as follows.

Compensation  Independent Directors Share-Based Compensation

Each independent director will receive $175,000 gross per annum for the
2025 fiscal year for their service as a member of the board of directors (as
approved by the general meeting of Titan America). Independent directors will
not be entitled to additional compensation for their membership in the board
committees.

The remuneration of the independent directors will consist of:

•  a board cash retainer, which represents 50% of their total annual board
compensation ($87,500); and

•  an annual share-based compensation, which represents 50% of their total
board compensation ($87,500).

There is no performance-based variable pay or pension provided to
independent directors.

Non-independent directors will not receive cash or share-based
compensation due to their membership on the board of directors.

 

To further align the interests of the independent directors of the board of directors
with those of shareholders, part of the approved total compensation for the independent
directors is expected to be granted in the form of restricted share units that are settled
after paying a nominal purchase price.

The number of restricted share units will be based on the annual share-based
compensation and the average Company share closing price during the last seven trading
days of March of the grant year.

A vesting period is expected to be one year, subject to the independent director’s
continued service.

Stock Ownership: Independent directors are expected to build and maintain a
minimum threshold in company shares of a fixed multiple of 1x annual cash retainer, and
they have five years to comply.

(3) Basic policy regarding Director and Senior Executive remuneration

Objectives and Design of Our Compensation Policy

Titan America’s Nominating and Compensation Committee has adopted a compensation policy that is designed to attract, reward and retain qualified, high-caliber
executives who drive our business strategy forward, build value for our shareholder through sustainable growth, with responsibility and integrity, and serve the needs of society,
with respect for the environment.
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The policy is structured around providing competitive short-term cash compensation through base salaries and bonuses and long-term incentives (“LTIs”) to promote
retention and growth.

Key Elements of Our Compensation Program

Our compensation program consists of three key elements: base pay, short-term (annual) incentives and LTIs. The Nominating and Compensation Committee will
review these compensation elements regularly. The following describes the compensation arrangements that will generally be afforded to our senior executives, which will
generally be sourced from the current, applicable plan documents and certain employment agreements that will contain terms and conditions related to compensation and
benefits.

a) Base Pay. Based on market practices, we believe it is appropriate that a minimum portion of total direct compensation be provided in a form that is fixed, aiming to
pay fairly and reasonably for the best and most appropriate person for the role, taking into account the level of responsibility, as well as the knowledge and experience required
to deliver upon expectations, while ensuring that we pay no more than necessary, always supporting our long-term interests and ensuring sustainability. Base pay levels will be
set considering pay at other companies of similar size in relevant markets for roles of similar scope and responsibility. Base pay will normally be reviewed, but not necessarily
increased, annually. Decisions regarding base pay will be influenced by the individual’s performance and experience, our performance, the individual’s role and responsibilities
and the geographic location of the individual.

b) Short-Term (Annual) Cash Incentives. We believe that an annual incentive opportunity is necessary to attract and reward our senior executives for meeting annually
set performance goals throughout our financial year. The aim of this compensation element is to focus on our short-term performance and to recognize the achievement of our
annual performance targets at both a collective and an individual level, whilst safeguarding our safety standards. Short-term incentives for our senior executives will be based
on a percentage of the employee’s base salary. The percentage relative to the Annual Base Salary (“ABS”) will increase with job size and is expected to reach up to 100% of
ABS for on-target achievement.

The allocation of weight between collective and individual targets will depend on the job. Collective targets will comprise of financial and safety targets. Individual
targets will be linked to the objectives in each executive’s specific areas of responsibility. In case of overachievement, the collective financial part of the short-term incentive
will be capped at 130% of target and the individual part at 150% of target (no overachievement applies for the collective safety part).

The short-term cash incentive will be disbursed in the year subsequent to achieving the established targets as follows: the calculation of the short-term incentive will
take place once a year and will be based on the annual business results of the previous year and the annual performance appraisals; the short-term incentive will be settled and
delivered after the final business results have been officially announced, with no deferral requirements.

c) LTIs. We believe a long-term incentive program that comprises a substantial portion of each executive’s total direct compensation opportunity is necessary to attract,
retain and reward our senior executives in consistency with market practices. The LTIs will provide an incentive to contribute to improving share performance in the long term,
in alignment with the interests of the shareholders and delivering long-term sustainable performance.

Awards will be offered through a two-tiered long term incentive program: (a) Restricted Share Units (RSUs) and (b) Performance Share Units (PSUs), in each case,
subject to a nominal purchase price before settlement. RSUs vest over time and PSUs vest based on the achievement of Company-determined performance metrics and, in each
case, are generally subject to continued employment or service.

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

None of our senior executives or Titan America’s directors hold any equity or equity-based incentive interests in the Company, and to the extent that changes, we will
provide updates to our disclosure as required.

Under the new two-tiered long term incentive program, our senior executives are expected to retain, on a rolling five-year basis, at least 20% of their total vested
awards. Our senior executives have five (5) years to reach this requirement from the later of (i) January 1, 2025 and (ii) their applicable date of hire.

Pension and Similar Retirement Benefits
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We do not maintain a pension plan for our senior executives or directors. We sponsor a defined contribution retirement and 401(k) savings plan, which covers
substantially all of our employees.

Equity Program (LTI)

• On March 19, 2025, we adopted the Titan America SA 2025 Omnibus Incentive Plan to provide awards of equity incentives to our employees (including our senior
executives) and our directors.

The individual awards granted are expected to be based on each participant’s position, fixed salary, individual performance and potential for development. We intend
for awards to be offered through a two-tiered incentive program: (a) RSUs and (b) PSUs.

Restricted Share Units: Awards are expected to be granted to participants in the form of RSUs that are settled after paying a nominal purchase price. RSUs are rights to
receive common shares once vested. The grant of the number of RSUs will be determined based on the value of the share at the time of grant. The vesting period for the initial
grants of RSUs to be three years, subject to continued employment.

Performance Share Units: Awards are expected to be granted to participants in the form of PSUs that are settled after paying a nominal purchase price. PSUs are rights
to receive common shares once vested; the vesting and settlement will be linked to actual performance against pre-set KPIs. The number of PSUs will be determined based on
the value of our common shares at the time of grant. The performance period for the initial grants of PSUs is expected to be three years. Payout at threshold performance is
expected to be 50% of the granted number of PSUs, target payout is expected to be 100% of the granted number of PSUs, and in case of overachievement (stretch), payout is
expected to be capped at 150% with linear calculation of payout between each of these three levels of achievement, subject to continued employment.

For specific Titan America senior executives, part of their individual LTI award may be granted in the form of TCI common shares subject to the approval of TCI’s
respective bodies.

Board Discretion

The board of directors maintains the right, subject to a recommendation by the Nominating and Compensation Committee, to adjust:

• the agreed-upon target parameters (including KPIs and target ranges) in situations that are, or are reasonably expected to be, materially adverse to our business,
operations, assets or business prospects. These circumstances may encompass, but are not restricted to, instances of a widespread economic crisis, fiscal or regulatory
changes and natural disasters that would likely result in a significant change in the defined target parameters.

• targets, including in connection with one or more acquisitions or divestments.

In such instances, where there is a foreseeable and substantial change in the predefined target parameters, the board of directors holds the authority to recalibrate these
parameters in alignment with the objectives of a reviewed management program. This approach is aimed at safeguarding the interests of all stakeholders associated with us.

C. Board Practices

General

Composition of Titan America’s Board of Directors

Under Titan America’s articles of association, Titan America’s board of directors consists of at least three directors. Titan America’s board of directors is currently
comprised of seven directors. We do not have any service contracts with our directors providing for benefits upon termination of employment.

Director Independence and Controlled Company Exception
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As a foreign private issuer and controlled company, under the listing requirements and rules of the NYSE, Titan America is not be required to have a board of directors
comprised of a majority of independent directors, except that Titan America’s Audit and Risk Committee is required to consist fully of independent directors, subject to certain
phase-in schedules. Titan America does not expect to rely on this exemption and a majority of its board of directors are independent.

Titan America’s board of directors designates which directors qualify as “independent directors” as determined under the current listing requirements and rules of the
NYSE and taking into account any applicable committee independence standards. In making such determination, Titan America’s board of directors has considered the
relationships that each non-executive director has with us and all other facts and circumstances Titan America’s board of directors deems relevant in determining each director’s
independence.

As a controlled company, under the listing requirements and rules of the NYSE, Titan America is also exempted from the requirement that its director nominations be
made, or recommended to the full board of directors, by its independent directors or by a nominations committee that is composed entirely of independent directors and that it
adopts a written charter or board resolution addressing the nominations process. Titan America utilizes these exemptions and expects that its controlling shareholder will
nominate directors.

Committees of the Board of Directors

Titan America has an Audit and Risk Committee, a Nominating and Compensation Committee and a Finance Committee, with each committee having a written
charter.

Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee of Titan America’s board of directors (the “Audit and Risk Committee”) comprises of Sandra Santos, Wim Van der Smissen and Jay
Bachmann, and is chaired by Sandra Santos. Titan America’s board of directors has determined that each of these directors meets the independence requirements, including the
heightened independence standards for members of the Audit and Risk Committee, of the NYSE and the SEC, or qualifies for a relevant exemption therefrom. Michael
Colakides serves as a non-independent, non-voting observer to the Audit and Risk Committee. Titan America’s board of directors determined that the members of the Audit and
Risk Committee are “financially literate” within the meaning of the NYSE rules. Sandra Santos is the audit committee financial expert as defined by the SEC rules.

Titan America’s board of directors established a written charter setting forth the purpose, composition, authority and responsibility of the Audit and Risk Committee,
consistent with the rules of the NYSE and the SEC. The principal responsibilities and duties of the Audit and Risk Committee include:

• reviewing the effectiveness and adequacy of our internal controls;

• reviewing financial and accounting personnel succession planning;

• overseeing the financial reporting process and discussing with management and our independent registered public accounting firm the interim and annual financial
statements that Titan America files with the SEC;

• designing, implementing and overseeing the internal audit function;

• reviewing the effectiveness, scope and performance of activities of the independent registered public accounting firm and the internal audit function;

• reviewing significant changes in accounting policies;

• selecting the independent registered public accounting firm and confirming its independence;

• reviewing our policies with respect to risk assessment and risk management;

• reviewing with management our earnings releases;
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• monitoring our compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

• overseeing hedging and pledging policies; and

• pre-approving audit and non-audit services provided by the independent registered public accounting firm.

Titan America’s Audit and Risk Committee has access to all of our books, records, facilities and personnel and may request any information about us as it may deem
appropriate. It also has the authority in its sole discretion and at our expense, to retain and set the compensation of outside legal, accounting or other advisors as necessary to
assist in the performance of its duties and responsibilities.

Titan America’s Audit and Risk Committee also reviews its policies and procedures for reviewing and approving related-party transactions, and it is responsible for
reviewing and approving all related-party transactions. For additional information, refer to “Item 7. Major Shareholders and Related Party Transactions.”

Clawback Policy

Titan America’s Nominating and Compensation Committee has approved a new Policy for the Recovery of Erroneously Awarded Compensation (the “Clawback
Policy”) to comply with the final clawback rules adopted by the SEC under Section 10D and Rule 10D-1 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the other
associated listing standards.

We are required to claw back erroneously awarded incentive-based compensation from our current and former senior executives (“Covered Officers”) if we are
required to prepare an accounting restatement.

The recovery of such compensation under the Clawback Policy will apply regardless of whether a Covered Officer engaged in misconduct or otherwise caused or
contributed to the requirement of an accounting restatement. The Nominating and Compensation Committee oversees the administration of the Clawback Policy. A copy of
Titan America’s Clawback Policy is filed as an Exhibit 97.1 to this Form 20-F.

Nominating and Compensation Committee

Titan America’s nominating and compensation committee of the board of directors (the “Nominating and Compensation Committee”) comprises of Michael Colakides,
Marcel Cobuz and William Antholis and is chaired by Marcel Cobuz. So long as the Titan Group beneficially owns more than a majority of the voting power for the election of
directors and Titan America remains a “controlled company,” it will not be required to have a Nominating and Compensation Committee comprised entirely of independent
directors, and currently has one non-independent director on its Nominating and Compensation Committee. Titan America’s board of directors established a written charter
setting forth the purpose, composition, authority and responsibility of the Nominating and Compensation Committee consistent with the rules of the NYSE and the SEC. The
Nominating and Compensation Committee’s purpose is to assist the board in its oversight of executive compensation, management development and succession, director
nominations and compensation and executive compensation disclosure. The principal responsibilities and duties of the Nominating and Compensation Committee includes:

• reviewing and approving compensation policies and practices for our executive officers;

• reviewing and approving corporate goals and objectives relevant to the compensation of our Chief Executive Officer and our other executive officers;

• reviewing as necessary our compensation programs, policies and practices with respect to risk assessment;

• reviewing performance and establishing the total compensation for our Chief Executive Officer and other senior executives;

• administering equity-based compensation plans or long-term incentive plans;

• reviewing compensation disclosure for inclusion in SEC filings;

• reviewing the terms of employment agreements, severance agreements, change in control agreements and other compensatory arrangements;
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• reviewing and recommending to the board of directors the adoption of or changes to the compensation of the our directors;

• reviewing executive stock ownership guidelines and overseeing our clawback policy;

• reviewing and recommending candidates for director, consistent with criteria identified by the board of directors;

• determining director independence;

• reviewing candidates recommended by shareholders;

• conducting the appropriate and necessary inquiries into the backgrounds and qualifications of potential director candidates;

• recommending members and chairs of the committees of the board of directors;

• considering and making recommendations regarding the composition and size of the board of directors and determining the relevant criteria for board membership;

• reviewing the structure and composition of the committees of the board of directors to make recommendations to the board of directors regarding the appointment of
directors to serve as members of each committee and the appointment of chairs of such committees;

• reviewing proposals submitted by shareholders for inclusion in our management information circular and recommending to the board of directors appropriate action;
and

• in consultation with the board of directors overseeing retention, leadership development and succession planning for the Chief Executive Officer and other key
executive officers.

Refer to “Item 6.B. Compensation” for further information on the process by which compensation for our executive officers will be determined.

Finance Committee

Titan America’s finance committee of the board of directors (the “Finance Committee”) comprises of Bill Zarkalis, Marcel Cobuz and Michael Colakides and is
chaired by Michael Colakides. Titan America’s board of directors established a written charter setting forth the purpose, composition, authority and responsibility of the Finance
Committee. The Finance Committee’s purpose is to review our capital structure and capital allocation, financial policies, practices and strategies, and take such action and make
such reports and recommendations to our board of directors as it deems advisable.

D. Employees

Our employee base for Titan America’s 2024 fiscal year consisted of 2,742 employees, spread across the United States. Our employee population is divided into our
Florida business unit with 1,624 employees, our Mid-Atlantic business unit with 925 employees, our STET business unit with 23 employees and our corporate support
functions with 170 employees. Our headcount decreased from the end of fiscal year 2020 to the end of fiscal year 2021 from 2,315 to 2,303 because of joint venture employees
in our Mid-Atlantic business unit leaving our headcount but increased to 2,388 by the end of fiscal year 2022. At the end of fiscal year 2023, we had 2,550 employees. We have
not had a significant number of temporary employees over the last three years. We maintain good relationships with all representative employee unions.

E. Share Ownership

The following table presents certain information as of April, 1 2025 with respect to the beneficial ownership of our common shares by:

• each person known by us to beneficially own more than 5% of our common shares;
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• each of Titan America’s directors;

• each of our named executive officers; and

• all of our executive officers and directors as a group.

We have determined beneficial ownership in accordance with the rules of the SEC. Under these rules, a person is deemed to be a “beneficial” owner of a security if
that person has or shares voting power or investment power, which includes the power to dispose of or to direct the disposition of such security. Unless otherwise indicated
below, to our knowledge, based on information furnished to us, the persons and entities named in the table have sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares that
they beneficially own, subject to applicable community property laws.

The percentage of beneficial ownership is based on 184,362,465 common shares, which is the number of common shares outstanding as of April 1, 2025. All holders
of our common shares will have the same voting rights.

The address for each officer listed in the table is 5700 Lake Wright Drive, Suite 300, Norfolk, Virginia 23502 and for our directors listed in the table is 1000 Bruxelles,
Square de Meeûs 37, Belgium.  

Shares Beneficially
Owned

Name of Beneficial
Owner

Number of
Shares Percentage

Titan Cement International SA 159,781,709 87 %
Named executive officers and Titan America’s directors:
Michael Colakides — — 
Bill Zarkalis — — 
Larry Wilt — — 
John Christy — — 
Dan Quirk — — 
Robert Paxton — — 
Kevin Baird — — 
Randy Dunlap — — 
Marcel Cobuz — — 
William John Antholis — — 
James Bachmann — — 
Sandra Santos — — 
Wim Van der Smissen — — 

F. Disclosure of a Registrant’s Action to Recover Erroneously Awarded Compensation

Not Applicable

Item 7. Major Shareholders and Related Party Transactions
 
A. Major Shareholders

As of December 31, 2024, thus prior to the IPO and the issuance of the new shares under the IPO, there were 175,362 common shares outstanding. Out of the total
outstanding shares, all common shares were held by Titan Cement International SA, who
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was an exclusive and major shareholder. At April 1, 2025, as Titan Cement International SA owns approximately 87% of our outstanding common shares, it continues to have
significant control over our business and affairs and matters being presented for approval by our shareholders. In addition, Titan Cement International SA continues to
consolidate our financial results in its consolidated financial statements.

As far as is known by Titan America, there are no arrangements the operation of which may, at a subsequent date, result in a change in control of Titan America.

To the knowledge of Titan America, there were no significant changes in the percentage ownership held by any other major beneficial shareholders during the past
three fiscal years (given that we have not had other major shareholders prior to the IPO). Major shareholders of Titan America do not have different voting rights from other
shareholders.

B. Related Party Transactions

We have entered into the related party transactions as described below.

All U.S. dollar equivalents in this section are calculated at the exchange rate prevailing on the date to which the corresponding foreign currency amount refers.

Shared Services Agreement

Many key services required by us for the operation of our business are provided by the Titan Group. In February 2025, we have entered into a shared services
agreement with Titan Cement Company S.A., on behalf of itself and its affiliated entities, for an initial term of five years with an option to renew for additional two-year
periods. Under the terms of this shared services agreement, Titan Group will provide us with services relating to corporate functions such as information technology,
engineering, accounting, certain additional legal, treasury and investor relations support, human resources, tax, employee benefits and incentives and corporate
communications, as well as regulatory and anti-fraud compliance.

We expect some of these services to be provided for longer or shorter periods than the initial term upon mutual agreement of both parties. The shared services
agreement may be automatically extended for additional consecutive two-year periods. Any termination of the shared services agreement by Titan Cement Company S.A.
would constitute a breach of the agreement and could potentially result in damages being awarded to us.

The fees for each of the services provided under the shared services agreement are generally based on costs incurred for the provision of the services plus a mark-up of
5%. Although the parties to the shared services agreement seek to implement terms that are consistent with those that could have been negotiated with an independent third
party through arm’s length negotiations, the terms of such agreement may later prove to be more or less favorable than arrangements that we could obtain from unaffiliated
service providers in the future.

Titan Global Finance PLC Revolving Credit Facility

On April 10, 2017, Titan America LLC entered into a €250.0 million ($279.9 million U.S. dollar equivalent) multicurrency borrowing facility with TGF, an affiliate of
Titan Group. On July 10, 2019, the borrowing facility was amended to increase the commitment to €340.0 million ($380.7 million U.S. dollar equivalent), which was then
reduced to €100.0 million ($110.5 million U.S. dollar equivalent) by an amendment dated April 29, 2020 and subsequently increased to €130.0 million ($145.5 million U.S.
dollar equivalent) by an amendment dated July 31, 2024. In January 2022, the termination date of the borrowing facility agreement was extended by four years to January 30,
2026. This multicurrency borrowing facility bears interest at a variable rate based on the currency and term of the drawdown, permits drawdowns and repayments and has no
financial covenants.

As of December 31, 2024, the amount drawn on the facility was €12.8 million ($13.3 million U.S. dollar equivalent). As of December 31, 2023, the amount drawn on
the facility was €36.5 million ($40.3 million U.S. dollar equivalent).

Titan Global Finance PLC Notes and Term Loans

105



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________

In December 2017, Titan America LLC entered into a €150.0 million ($167.9 million U.S. dollar equivalent) note payable with TGF, an affiliate of Titan Group,
maturing on November 15, 2024. In April 2022, Titan America LLC repaid €30.0 million ($33.6 million U.S. dollar equivalent) of this note. As of December 31, 2023, €120.0
million ($134.4 million U.S. dollar equivalent) remained outstanding bearing interest at 3.05%. On November 15, 2024, we repaid this loan.

In March 2018, Titan America LLC entered into a €75.0 million ($84.0 million U.S. dollar equivalent) note payable with TGF maturing on November 15, 2024. On
April 29, 2024, this note was amended to: (i) increase the principal amount to €100.0 million ($110.5 million U.S. dollar equivalent) bearing an interest rate of 4.80% and (ii)
extend its maturity to June 11, 2029.

In June 2021, we entered into the following term loans with TGF:

• A €32.8 million ($36.7 million U.S. dollar equivalent) loan bearing interest at 3.35% and maturing on July 7, 2027, and

• A €45.0 million ($50.4 million U.S. dollar equivalent) loan with TGF bearing interest at 3.15%, which was revised to 3.05% in December 2022, and maturing on
November 14, 2024. On April 29, 2024, the loan was amended to: (i) increase the principal to €50.0 million ($56.0 million U.S. dollar equivalent) bearing an interest
rate of 4.80% and (ii) extend its maturity to June 11, 2029.

On November 15, 2024, we entered into a €150.0 million note payable with TGF, bearing interest at 3.20% and maturing on July 7, 2027. The proceeds of this loan
were used to settle €30.0 million of borrowings then outstanding on the multicurrency revolving credit facility with TGF and the €120.0 million balance on the term loan with
TGF that matured on November 15, 2024.

None of the term loans with TGF contain financial covenants.

Revolving Credit Facilities Guaranteed by TCI

Titan America LLC has the following three credit facilities, which are each guaranteed by TCI:

Titan America LLC has a committed borrowing facility with Wells Fargo Bank, National Association totaling $45.0 million of which $20.0 million is also available for
the issuance of letters of credit. As of December 31, 2024, Titan America LLC had $7.1 million in letters of credit outstanding with $37.9 million of available capacity. As of
December 31, 2023, Titan America LLC had $7.7 million in letters of credit outstanding with $37.3 million of available capacity.

In addition to the committed credit facility described above, Titan America LLC has an uncommitted borrowing facility with HSBC Bank USA, National Association
totaling $40.0 million of which the full amount is also available for the issuance of letters of credit. As of December 31, 2024, Titan America LLC had $4.5 million in letters of
credit outstanding under this facility and $10.0 million in borrowings, with $25.5 million of available of capacity. As of December 31, 2023, Titan America LLC had
$4.8 million in letters of credit outstanding under this facility and no borrowings, with $35.2 million of available capacity.

Titan America LLC has an additional uncommitted credit facility with Citibank, N.A. totaling $60.0 million, none of which is available for the issuance of letters of
credit. As of December 31, 2024, there was $15.0 million in borrowings outstanding, with $45.0 million available for borrowing. As of December 31, 2023, there were no
borrowings outstanding under this facility and the full $60.0 million capacity remained available for borrowing.

For more information on these credit facilities, see “Item 5.B. Liquidity and Capital Resources—Revolving Credit Facilities with Banks.”

Intragroup Cash Management Agreement

On February 1, 2024, we entered into a cash management agreement with TGF. The agreement is effective until either party provides written notice of termination.
Pursuant to this agreement, our two existing HSBC UK bank accounts, one denominated in U.S. dollars and one denominated in Euros, are funded when there are negative
daily balances. Fundings are subject to maximum borrowing limits of $15.0 million and €15.0 million, respectively. Conversely, when there are cash balances in either account,
these funds are swept as a deposit into the TGF concentration account. There are no deposit limits.
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With respect to borrowings made under the cash management agreement, we bear a daily interest charge based on the benchmark rates of the European Central Bank
(“ECB”) Main Refinancing Rate (for Euro borrowings) and the U.S. Federal Reserve Federal Funds Target Rate (for U.S. dollar borrowings), plus an applicable margin.

With respect to deposits made under the cash management agreement, we receive a daily interest credit based on the benchmark interest rates of the ECB Deposit
Facility Rate (for Euro deposits) and the U.S. Federal Reserve Federal Funds Target Rate (for US dollar deposits), minus an applicable margin.

Company funds on deposit with TGF under the cash management agreement are due upon demand from us. Amounts borrowed from TGF under the cash management
agreement may be repaid (in whole or in any part) at our discretion. Following written notice of termination, outstanding borrowings from TGF under the cash management
agreement are due upon demand from TGF.

We had $6.1 million in outstanding borrowings under this agreement as of December 31, 2024.

Cement and Cementitious Products Supply Agreements

On a yearly basis, Titan America LLC, or its subsidiaries, enter into ordinary course of business supply agreements under the master supply agreement with Titan
Cement Company S.A., an affiliate of TCI, for the purchase of a predetermined amount of cement and cementitious products for the following year at a price based on the arm’s
length principle in accordance with the U.S. transfer pricing rules and the relevant OECD guidelines. For fiscal years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, Titan America
LLC purchased cement for a cost of $103.3 million, $107.1 million and $84.2 million, respectively.

Funding Arrangements Agreement

In February 2025, we have entered into a funding arrangements agreement by and among Titan America, Titan America LLC, Titan Cement International, Titan
Atlantic and Titan Global Finance PLC for an initial term of five years. The funding arrangements agreement may be automatically extended for additional consecutive two-
year periods. This funding arrangements agreement provides that so long as the terms and conditions are favorable, Titan America LLC will continue using funding sources
provided by: i) Titan Global Finance PLC, including but not limited to borrowing arrangements and ii) Titan Cement International as far as guarantees of third-party loans are
concerned and subject to a guarantee fee. Titan America LLC will continue participating in the Intragroup Cash Management Agreement, while Titan America and Titan
Atlantic will also have access to these funding sources pursuant to the agreement.

STET Divestiture

On January 1, 2025, Titan America LLC divested its STET segment in a sale for cash to Titan Cement Netherlands B.V., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Titan Cement
International. Settlement occurred and proceeds totaling approximately $5.4 million were received in March 2025. The STET segment is immaterial to the results of operations,
financial position and cash flows of the Company.

STET Licensing Agreements

The ST fly ash sources where the proprietary fly ash beneficiation process has been installed are facilities which are owned and operated by ST and are co-located at
power plant sites that are owned by a host electric utility. These fly ash sources are located in Baltimore MD, York Haven PA and Tampa FL. ST pays no per ton fees to the
STET segment at its fly ash sources that do not utilize the proprietary fly ash beneficiation process. In June 2024, the intellectual property associated with the proprietary
technology that then resided within ST was transferred from ST to ST Equipment & Technology LLC, a legal entity within the STET segment. For more information on the
proprietary fly ash beneficiation process and relationship between ST and ST Equipment & Technology LLC, see “Item 4.B. Business Overview—Digital Transformation.”

Related Party Transactions Approval Policy

Our Audit and Risk Committee has the primary responsibility for reviewing and approving related party transactions which are transactions between us and related
persons in which the aggregate amount involved exceeds or is expected to exceed $120,000 and in which a related person has or may have a direct or indirect material interest.
We have adopted a written policy with respect to
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the review and approval of related party transactions as well as an Audit and Risk Committee charter delegating to the Audit and Risk Committee the authority to review and
approve any related party transactions.

C. Interests of Experts and Counsel

Not Applicable

Item 8. Financial Information
 
A. Consolidated Statements and Other Financial Information

Refer to the consolidated financial statements and the notes of the consolidated financial statements.

Legal Proceedings

From time to time we may become involved in legal proceedings or be subject to claims arising in the ordinary course of our business. We are not presently a party to
any legal proceedings that, if determined adversely to us, would individually or taken together have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial
condition or cash flows. Regardless of the outcome, litigation can have an adverse impact on us because of defense and settlement costs, diversion of management resources
and other factors.

Dividend Policy

We intend to pay quarterly dividends (or, as the case may be, repayment of issue premium, as set out below) to our shareholders on a pro-rata basis. Any
recommendation by our board of directors to the general shareholders’ meeting to declare and pay dividends and any decision by our board of directors to declare and pay
interim dividends in the future will be made at its discretion and will depend on, among other things, our results of operations, financial condition, earnings, capital
requirements, debt service obligations, restrictive covenants in our current and future debt agreements, industry practice, legal requirements (including those noted below under
Belgian law), cash requirements, contractual restrictions and other factors that our board of directors may deem relevant. In addition, our ability to pay dividends is, and may
continue to be, limited by covenants of our current and future indebtedness, and on our ongoing ability to generate cash from operations and access to the capital markets.
Accordingly, we may not declare or make, or may have to reduce or eliminate, payments of any dividends. Investors should not purchase our common shares with the
expectation of receiving cash dividends.

Furthermore, we have sufficient issue premium that allows us to retain the possibility of carrying out a consistent distribution policy, through the repayment of (part) of
the issue premium per common share (which can be decided upon by our general meeting subject to a simple majority). Any recommendation by our board of directors to the
general shareholders’ meeting to repay (part of) the issue premium, is contingent on the factors as set out above.

All of our common shares have the same dividend rights as all of our other outstanding common shares. In general, distributions of dividends proposed by our board of
directors require the approval of our shareholders at a shareholders’ meeting, although our board of directors may declare interim dividends without shareholder approval,
subject to the terms and conditions of the Belgian Code on Companies and Associations.

Our ability to distribute dividends in the future is also subject to availability of sufficient distributable profits as defined under Belgian law on the basis of our stand-
alone statutory accounts prepared in accordance with Belgian GAAP. In particular, dividends can only be distributed if following the declaration and issuance of the dividends
the amount of our net assets on the date of the closing of the last financial year as follows from the statutory non-consolidated financial statements (i.e., summarized, the
amount of the assets as shown in the balance sheet, decreased with provisions and liabilities, all in accordance with Belgian accounting rules, and, save in exceptional cases, to
be mentioned and justified in the notes to the annual accounts, decreased with the non-amortized costs of incorporation and extension and the non-amortized costs for research
and development), does not fall below the amount of the paid-up capital (or, if higher, the issued capital), increased with the amount of non-distributable reserves (which
include, as the case may be, the unamortized part of any revaluation surpluses).
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In addition, pursuant to Belgian law and our articles of association, we must allocate an amount of 5% of our Belgian GAAP annual net profit to a legal reserve in
Titan America SA’s stand-alone statutory accounts, until the legal reserve amounts to 10% of our share capital. Our legal reserve currently does not meet this requirement, as it
is still being formed and as we have not yet allocated any results for Titan America (which is a recently incorporated company). Accordingly, 5% of our Belgian GAAP annual
net profit during future years will need to be allocated to the legal reserve, further limiting our ability to pay out dividends to our shareholders.

For information regarding the Belgian withholding tax applicable to dividends and related U.S. reimbursement procedures, see “Material Belgian Federal Income Tax
Considerations.”

B. Significant Changes

Refer to Note 29 to our audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this document.

Item 9. The Offer and Listing
 
A. Offer and Listing Details

Trading Markets

The principal trading market for Titan America’s common shares NYSE in the form of common shares.

Titan America’s common shares, with no nominal value per share, have been listed on the NYSE since 2025 under the symbol “TTAM.”

B. Plan of Distribution

Not Applicable

 
C. Markets

Refer to "Offer and Listing Details" in Item 9.A.

 
D. Selling Shareholders

Not Applicable

 
E. Dilution

Not Applicable

F. Expenses of the Issue

Not Applicable

Item 10. Additional Information
 
A. Share Capital

Not Applicable

B. Memorandum and Articles of Association
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The information required by Item 10.B of Form 20-F is included in the section titled “Description of Share Capital” in our Registration Statement, which section is
incorporated herein by reference. Our Amended Articles of Association were filed as Exhibit 3.1 to our Registration Statement and are hereby incorporated by reference into
this Annual Report.

C. Material Contracts

We have entered into a Shared Services Agreement with Titan Cement Company S.A., on behalf of itself and its affiliated entities, for an initial term of five years with
an option to renew for additional two-year periods. Under the terms of this agreement, Titan Group will provide us with services relating to corporate functions such as
information technology, engineering, accounting, certain additional legal, treasury and investor relations support, human resources, tax, employee benefits and incentives and
corporate communications, as well as regulatory and anti-fraud compliance. Refer to “Related Party Transactions” in Item 7.B. for further details.

 
D. Exchange Controls

There are no Belgian exchange control regulations that would affect the remittance of dividends to non-resident holders of our shares.

E. Taxation

Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations

The following is a summary of material U.S. federal income tax considerations that are likely to be relevant to the purchase, ownership and disposition of our common
shares by a U.S. Holder (as defined below).

This summary is based on provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), and regulations, rulings and judicial interpretations thereof, in
force as of the date hereof, and income tax treaty between the United States and Belgium (the “Treaty”). Those authorities may be changed at any time, perhaps retroactively, so
as to result in U.S. federal income tax consequences different from those summarized below.

This summary is not a comprehensive discussion of all of the tax considerations that may be relevant to a particular investor’s decision to purchase, hold or dispose of
common shares. In particular, this summary is directed only to U.S. Holders that hold common shares as capital assets and does not address particular tax consequences that
may be applicable to U.S. Holders who may be subject to special tax rules, such as banks, brokers or dealers in securities or currencies, traders in securities electing to mark to
market, financial institutions, life insurance companies, tax-exempt entities, regulated investment companies, entities or arrangements that are treated as partnerships for U.S.
federal income tax purposes (or partners therein), holders that own or are treated as owning 10% or more of our stock by vote or value, persons holding common shares as part
of a hedging or conversion transaction or a straddle, or persons whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar. Moreover, this summary does not address state, local or foreign
taxes, the U.S. federal estate and gift taxes, or the Medicare contribution tax applicable to net investment income of certain non-corporate U.S. Holders, or alternative minimum
tax consequences of acquiring, holding or disposing of common shares.

For purposes of this summary, a “U.S. Holder” is a beneficial owner of common shares that is a citizen or resident of the United States or a domestic U.S. corporation
or that otherwise is subject to U.S. federal income taxation on a net income basis in respect of such common shares.

You should consult your own tax advisors about the consequences of the acquisition, ownership and disposition of the common shares, including the
relevance to your particular situation of the considerations discussed below and any consequences arising under foreign, state, local or other tax laws.

Taxation of Dividends

Subject to the discussion below under “—Passive Foreign Investment Company Status,” the gross amount of any distribution of cash or property with respect to our
common shares (including any amount withheld in respect of Belgian taxes) that is paid out of our current or accumulated earnings and profits (as determined for U.S. federal
income tax purposes) will generally be includible in
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your taxable income as ordinary dividend income on the day on which you receive the dividend and will not be eligible for the dividends-received deduction allowed to
corporations under the Code.

We do not expect to maintain calculations of our earnings and profits in accordance with U.S. federal income tax principles. U.S. Holders therefore should expect that
distributions generally will be treated as dividends for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Subject to certain exceptions for short-term positions, dividends received by an individual with respect to the common shares will be subject to taxation at a
preferential rate if the dividends are “qualified dividends.” Dividends paid on the common shares will be treated as qualified dividends if:

• the common shares are readily tradable on an established securities market in the United States or we are eligible for the benefits of a comprehensive tax treaty with
the United States that the U.S. Treasury determines is satisfactory for purposes of this provision and that includes an exchange of information program; and

• we were not, in the year prior to the year in which the dividend was paid, and are not, in the year in which the dividend is paid, a PFIC.

The common shares are listed on the NYSE, and qualify as readily tradable on an established securities market in the United States so long as they are so listed. In
addition, the U.S. Treasury has determined that the double tax treaty concluded between Belgium and the U.S. concerning the avoidance of double taxation (the “Treaty”) meets
the requirements for reduced rates of taxation, and we believe we are eligible for the benefits of the Treaty. Based on our financial statements and our expectations about the
nature and amount of our income, assets and activities and the market value of our equity, we do not believe that we were a PFIC for our most recent taxable year, and we do
not expect to become a PFIC for our current taxable year or in the foreseeable future. Holders should consult their own tax advisors regarding the availability of the reduced
dividend tax rate in light of their own particular circumstances.

Subject to generally applicable limitations and conditions, Belgian dividend withholding tax paid at the appropriate rate applicable to the U.S. Holder may be eligible
for a credit against such U.S. Holder’s U.S. federal income tax liability. The U.S. Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) promulgated regulations in December 2021 that provide
additional limitations and conditions, and recently issued temporary guidance that modify such regulations. If the Belgian dividend tax is not a creditable tax for a U.S. Holder
or the U.S. Holder does not elect to claim a foreign tax credit for any foreign income taxes paid or accrued in the same taxable year, the U.S. Holder may be able to deduct the
Belgian tax in computing such U.S. Holder’s taxable income for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Dividend distributions will constitute income from sources without the
United States and, for U.S. Holders that elect to claim foreign tax credits, generally will constitute “passive category income” for foreign tax credit purposes.

The availability and calculation of foreign tax credits and deductions for foreign taxes depend on a U.S. Holder’s particular circumstances and involve the application
of complex rules to those circumstances. The temporary guidance discussed above also indicates that the U.S. Treasury and the IRS are considering proposing amendments to
the December 2021 regulations and that the temporary guidance can be relied upon until additional guidance is issued that withdraws or modifies the temporary guidance. U.S.
Holders should consult their own tax advisors regarding the application of these rules to their particular situations.

U.S. Holders that receive distributions of additional shares or rights to subscribe for shares as part of a pro rata distribution to all our shareholders generally will not be
subject to U.S. federal income tax in respect of the distributions, unless the U.S. Holder has the right to receive cash or property instead, in which case the U.S. Holder will be
treated as if it received cash equal to the fair market value of the distribution.

Taxation of Dispositions of Common Shares

Subject to the discussion below under “—Passive Foreign Investment Company Status,” upon a sale, exchange or other taxable disposition of the common shares, U.S.
Holders will realize gain or loss for U.S. federal income tax purposes in an amount equal to the difference between the amount realized on the disposition and the U.S. Holder’s
adjusted tax basis in the common shares, as determined in U.S. dollars as discussed below. Such gain or loss will be capital gain or loss, and will generally be treated as from
sources within the United States and long-term capital gain or loss if the common shares have been held for more than one year. Long-term capital gain realized by a U.S.
Holder that is an individual generally is subject to taxation at a preferential rate. The deductibility of capital losses is subject to limitations.
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Passive Foreign Investment Company Status

Special U.S. tax rules apply to companies that are considered to be PFICs. We are classified as a PFIC in a particular taxable year if, taking into account our
proportionate share of the income and assets of our subsidiaries under applicable “look-through” rules, either

• at least 75% of our gross income for the taxable year is passive income; or

• at least 50% of the value (generally determined based on a quarterly average) of our assets is attributable to assets that produce, or are held for the production of,
passive income.

Based on our financial statements and our expectations about the nature and amount of our income, assets and activities and the market value of our equity, we do not
believe that we were a PFIC for our most recent taxable year, and we do not expect to become a PFIC for our current taxable year or in the foreseeable future. However, the
PFIC tests must be applied each year, and it is possible that we may become a PFIC in a future year. In the event that, contrary to our expectation, we are classified as a PFIC in
any year, you generally would be subject to a special tax at ordinary income tax rates on “excess distributions,” including certain distributions by us and gain that you recognize
on the sale of your common shares. The amount of income tax on any excess distributions will be increased by an interest charge to compensate for tax deferral, calculated as if
the excess distributions were earned ratably over the period you hold your common shares.

If you are a U.S. Holder that owns an equity interest in a PFIC, you generally must annually file IRS Form 8621, and may be required to file other IRS forms. A failure to file
one or more of these forms as required may toll the running of the statute of limitations in respect of each of your taxable years for which such form is required to be filed. As a
result, the taxable years with respect to which you fail to file the form may remain open to assessment by the IRS indefinitely, until the form is filed.

You should consult your own tax advisor regarding the U.S. federal income tax considerations discussed above.

Foreign Financial Asset Reporting.

Individual U.S. Holders that own “specified foreign financial assets” with an aggregate value in excess of U.S.$50,000 on the last day of the taxable year, or
U.S.$75,000 at any time during the taxable year, are generally required to file an information statement along with their tax returns, currently on Form 8938, with respect to
such assets. “Specified foreign financial assets” include any financial accounts held at a non-U.S. financial institution, as well as securities issued by a non-U.S. issuer that are
not held in accounts maintained by financial institutions. Higher reporting thresholds apply to certain individuals living abroad and to certain married individuals. Regulations
extend this reporting requirement to certain entities that are treated as formed or availed of to hold direct or indirect interests in specified foreign financial assets based on
objective criteria. U.S. Holders who fail to report the required information could be subject to substantial penalties. In addition, the statute of limitations for assessment of tax
would be suspended, in whole or part. Prospective investors are encouraged to consult with their own tax advisors regarding the possible application of these rules, including
the application of the rules to their particular circumstances.

Backup Withholding and Information Reporting

Dividends paid to, and proceeds from a sale or other disposition by, a U.S. Holder in respect of the common shares generally may be subject to the information
reporting requirements of the Code and may be subject to backup withholding unless the U.S. Holder provides an accurate taxpayer identification number and makes any other
required certification or otherwise establishes an exemption. Backup withholding is not an additional tax. The amount of any backup withholding from a payment to a U.S.
Holder will be allowed as a refund or credit against the U.S. Holder’s U.S. federal income tax liability, provided the required information is furnished to the U.S. Internal
Revenue Service in a timely manner.

A holder that is not a U.S. Holder may be required to comply with certification and identification procedures in order to establish its exemption from information
reporting and backup withholding.

Material Belgian Federal Income Tax Considerations

112



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________

The following is a summary of the principal Belgian tax consequences for U.S. investors relating to the acquisition, the ownership and disposal of the common shares.
This summary is based on the applicable laws, treaties and regulatory interpretations as in effect in Belgium on the date of this document, all of which are subject to change,
including changes that could have a retroactive effect, so as to result in Belgian tax consequences for U.S. investors different from those summarized below. Without any
prejudice to the foregoing, we note that the new Belgian federal government has announced several tax measures in its governmental agreement which may potentially impact
the tax summary set out below.

The summary only discusses Belgian tax aspects which are relevant to U.S. tax resident holders of the common shares. References in this section to “non-residents”
refer to U.S. tax resident holders of the common shares (i.e., non-residents of Belgium). This summary does not purport to address all tax consequences associated with the
acquisition, ownership and disposal of the common shares, and does not take into account the specific circumstances of any particular investor or the tax laws of any country
other than Belgium. Moreover, it does not address specific rules, such as Belgian federal or regional estate and gift tax, nor the tax treatment of investors who are subject to
special rules, such as financial institutions, insurance companies, collective investment undertakings, dealers in securities or currencies or persons who hold the shares as a
position in a straddle, share-repurchase transactions, conversion transactions, a synthetic security or other integrated financial transaction. This summary does not address the
local taxes that may be due in connection with an investment in the common shares.

Investors should consult their own advisers regarding the tax consequences of an investment in the common shares in light of their particular situation, including the
effect of any state, local, regional or other national laws, treaties and regulatory interpretations thereof.

1. Dividends 

Dividend withholding tax

For Belgian income tax purposes, the gross amount of all benefits paid on or attributed to the common shares is generally treated as a dividend distribution. By way of
exception, the repayment of capital carried out in accordance with the Belgian Code on Companies and Associations is not treated as a dividend distribution to the extent that
such repayment is imputed to fiscal capital. Generally, fiscal capital includes paid-up statutory capital. Share premiums and other amounts subscribed to by paid-up
contributions in cash or in kind (other than in industry (nijverheid/industrie)) at the time of the issuance of profit participating certificates or shares, are normally assimilated to
fiscal paid-up capital if they are (and continue to be) reflected on one or more separate equity accounts on the liabilities side of the balance sheet. Note that, since 1 January
2018, any decision of capital reduction in accordance with the Belgian Code on Companies and Associations, the amount of the capital reduction will be deemed to be derived
proportionally (a) from the fiscal capital and the amounts equivalent to the fiscal capital (such as share premiums assimilated to fiscal capital), on the one hand and (b) on the
other hand, from the total of  (i) certain taxed reserves incorporated in the capital, (ii) certain taxed reserves not incorporated into the capital and (iii) certain untaxed reserves
incorporated into the capital (it being understood that the imputation of the capital reduction on these different categories of reserves will be made in that order of priority). The
part of the capital reduction that is deemed to be derived from the abovementioned taxed and untaxed reserves will be treated as a dividend distribution from a tax perspective.
The part of the capital reduction that is deemed to derive from the abovementioned untaxed reserves may additionally give rise to a corporate income tax charge at the level of
the Company.

Belgian withholding tax of 30% is normally levied at source on dividends, subject to such relief as may be available under applicable domestic or tax treaty provisions.

In the case of a redemption of the common shares, the redemption distribution (after deduction of the part of the fiscal capital represented by the redeemed common
shares) will be treated as a dividend subject to a Belgian withholding tax of 30%, subject to such relief as may be available under applicable domestic or tax treaty provisions.
No withholding tax will be triggered if this redemption is carried out on a stock exchange and meets certain conditions.

In case of a liquidation of the issuer, any amounts distributed in excess of the fiscal capital related to those shares will be treated as a dividend subject to the 30%
withholding tax, subject to such relief as may be available under applicable domestic provisions or tax treaty provisions.
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For non-resident individuals, corporations or other legal entities the withholding tax levied at source will in principle be the only tax on dividends in Belgium, unless
the non-resident holds the common shares in connection with a business conducted in Belgium through a fixed base in Belgium or a permanent establishment in Belgium (in
which case other rules apply).

Belgian dividend withholding tax relief for non-residents 

Dividends distributed to non-resident individuals who do not use the common shares in the exercise of a professional activity, may be eligible for the tax exemption
with respect to ordinary dividends for an amount of up to EUR 833 (amount applicable for income year 2024) per year. For the avoidance of doubt, all qualifying dividends
paid or attributed to such non-resident individuals (and hence not only dividends paid or attributed on the common shares) are taken into account to assess whether such
maximum amount is reached. Consequently, if Belgian withholding tax has been levied on dividends paid or attributed to the common shares, such non-resident individual may
request in its Belgian non-resident individual income tax return that any Belgian withholding tax levied on up to such an amount be credited and, as the case may be,
reimbursed via the assessment notice (i.e., tax bill). However, if no Belgian non-resident individual income tax return has to be filed by the non-resident individual, any Belgian
withholding tax levied on up to such an amount could in principle be reclaimed by filing a request thereto addressed to the relevant tax official within the relevant timing
deadlines (and subject to some formalities).

Belgian tax law provides for certain exemptions from withholding tax on Belgian source dividends distributed to non-resident investors. For example, under Belgian
tax law, withholding tax is not due on dividends paid to a foreign pension fund which satisfies the following conditions: (i) it is a non-resident saver within the meaning of
Article 227, 3° of the Belgian Income Tax Code which implies that it has separate legal personality and has its tax residence outside of Belgium; (ii) its corporate purpose
consists solely in managing and investing funds collected in order to pay legal or complementary pensions; (iii) its activity is limited to the investment of funds collected in the
exercise of its corporate purpose, without any profit making aim; (iv) it is exempt from income tax in its country of residence; and (v) it is not contractually obliged to
redistribute the dividends to any ultimate beneficiary of such dividends for whom it would manage the common shares, nor obliged to pay a manufactured dividend with
respect to the common shares under a securities borrowing transaction (unless the ultimate beneficiary also qualifies as such pension fund or as a qualifying parent company).
The exemption will only apply if the foreign pension fund provides a certificate confirming that it is the full legal owner or usufruct holder of the common shares and that the
above conditions are satisfied.

Dividends distributed to non-resident companies established in a EU Member State other than Belgium or in a country with which Belgium has concluded a double tax
treaty that includes a qualifying exchange of information clause and qualifying as a parent company will, subject to conditions, be exempt from Belgian withholding tax
provided that the common shares held by the non-resident company, upon payment or attribution of the dividends, amount to at least 10% of the issuer’s share capital and such
minimum participation is held or will be held during an uninterrupted period of at least one year (for the purpose of determining the minimum holding in the share capital of the
subsidiary in the name of the transferor, pledgor or lender, no account shall be taken of shares which, at the time the income is allocated or made payable, are the subject of a
security agreement or a loan relating to those shares). A company qualifies as a parent company provided that (i) it has a legal form listed in the annex to the EU Parent-
Subsidiary Directive of November 30, 2011 (2011/96/EU) (the “EU Parent-Subsidiary Directive”) as amended from time to time, or, a similar legal form in a country with
which Belgium has concluded a double tax treaty; (ii) it is considered to be a tax resident according to the tax laws of the country where it is established and the double tax
treaties concluded between such country and third countries; and (iii) it is subject to corporate income tax or a similar tax without benefiting from a tax regime that derogates
from the ordinary tax regime. In order to benefit from this exemption, the investor must provide the issuer or its paying agent with a certificate confirming its qualifying status
and the fact that it meets the three abovementioned conditions. If the investor holds a minimum participation for less than one year, at the time the dividends are paid on or
attributed to the common shares, the issuer or the Belgian paying agent will provisionally withhold the withholding tax but will not transfer it to the Belgian Treasury provided
that the investor certifies its qualifying status, the date from which the investor has held such minimum participation, its commitment to hold the minimum participation for an
uninterrupted period of at least one year and its commitment to immediately notify the issuer of a reduction of its shareholding below such threshold prior to the end of the one-
year holding period. Upon satisfying the one-year shareholding requirement, the provisionally withheld dividend withholding tax will be passed on to the investor.

Please note that the above withholding tax exemptions will not be applicable to dividends which are connected to an arrangement or a series of arrangements for which
the tax Belgian tax administration, taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances, has proven, absent evidence to the contrary, that this arrangement or this series of
arrangements is not genuine and has been put in place for the main purpose or one of the main purposes of obtaining the dividend received deduction, the above dividend
withholding tax exemption or one of the advantages of the EU Parent-Subsidiary Directive in another EU Member State. An
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arrangement or a series of arrangements is regarded as not genuine to the extent that they are not put into place for valid commercial reasons which reflect economic reality. In
addition, for dividends paid to a non-resident company whose corporate purpose consists solely or primarily in managing and investing funds collected in order to pay legal or
complementary pensions, there is a (rebuttable) presumption that the arrangement or series of arrangements is not genuine if that company has not held the shares on which the
dividends are distributed in full ownership for an uninterrupted period of 60 days. Dividends distributed by a Belgian company to non-resident companies on a share
participation of less than 10% will under certain conditions be subject to an exemption from withholding tax, provided that the non-resident companies (i) are established in a
EEA Member State other than Belgium or in a country with which Belgium has concluded a double tax treaty, where that treaty, or any other treaty concluded between Belgium
and that jurisdiction, includes a qualifying exchange of information clause; (ii) have a legal form as the ones listed in Annex I, Part A to the EU Parent-Subsidiary Directive as
amended from time to time or, have a legal form comparable to those listed in said Annex and which is governed by the law of another Member State or by the law of a country
with which Belgium has concluded a double tax treaty; (iii) hold a share participation in the Belgian dividend distributing company, upon payment or attribution of the
dividends, of less than 10% of the share capital but with an acquisition value of at least EUR 2.5 million; (iv) hold or will hold the common shares which give rise to the
dividends in full legal ownership during an uninterrupted period of at least one year; and (v) are subject to the corporate income tax regime or a tax regime similar to the
corporate income tax without benefiting from a tax regime which deviates from the ordinary regime. The exemption from withholding tax is only applied to the extent that the
Belgian withholding tax, which would be applicable absent the exemption, could not be credited nor reimbursed at the level of the qualifying, dividend receiving, company. The
non-resident company must provide a certificate confirming, in addition to its full name, legal form, address and fiscal identification number (if applicable), its qualifying status
and the fact that it meets the required conditions mentioned under (i) to (v) above, and indicating to which extent the withholding tax, which would be applicable absent the
exemption, is in principle creditable or reimbursable on the basis of the law as applicable on 31 December of the year preceding the year during which the dividend is paid or
attributed.

In addition to the above, Belgium and the U.S. concluded the Treaty. The Treaty reduces the applicability of Belgian withholding tax to 15%, 5% or 0% for U.S.
taxpayers, provided that the U.S. taxpayer meets the limitation of benefits conditions imposed by the Treaty. The Belgian withholding tax is generally reduced to 15% under the
Treaty. The 5% withholding tax applies in case where the U.S. shareholder (beneficial owner) is a company which owns directly at least 10% of the voting stock of the issuer. A
0% Belgian withholding tax applies when the shareholder is a company (beneficial owner) that, for a period of 12 months ending on the date on which the dividend is declared,
has directly owned shares representing at least 10% of capital of the company paying the dividends or is, subject to certain conditions, a U.S. pension fund. The reduction may
be obtained either directly at source or through a refund of taxes withheld in excess of the applicable tax treaty rate.

Prospective investors should consult their own tax advisors as to whether they qualify for a reduction of, or exemption from, Belgian withholding tax upon payment or
attribution of dividends and as to the procedural requirements for obtaining such a reduction or exemption or making claims for a refund.

2. Capital Gains and Losses on common shares  

Pursuant to the Treaty, capital gains and/or losses realized by a U.S. investor that does not hold the common shares in connection with a business conducted in
Belgium through a Belgian establishment from the sale, exchange or other disposition of the common shares do not fall within the scope of application of Belgian domestic tax
law.

Capital gains realized on the common shares by a non-resident individual who is not entitled to claim the benefits of the Treaty and has not acquired the common
shares in connection with a business conducted in Belgium through a fixed base in Belgium are in principle not subject to taxation provided that the transactions fall within the
scope of the normal management of one’s private estate. However, such capital gains might – under certain circumstances – be subject to tax in Belgium if the capital gains are
obtained or received in Belgium and arise from transactions which are to be considered speculative or beyond the normal management of one’s private estate or in case of
disposal of a substantial participation in a Belgian company (i.e., of more than 25%). Capital losses are generally not tax deductible. Such non-resident individuals might
therefore be obliged to file a tax return and should consult their own tax adviser.

Non-resident companies that have not acquired the common shares in connection with a business conducted in Belgium through a Belgian establishment are generally
not subject to taxation in Belgium on capital gains on those common shares. Capital losses are generally not deductible. Non-resident companies that hold the common shares
in connection with a business conducted in Belgium through a Belgian establishment will be subject to different rules.
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Capital gains realized by non-residents upon the redemption of the common shares or upon the liquidation of the issuer will generally be taxable as a dividend (see
above).

3. Tax on stock exchange transactions 

The sale and acquisition of the common shares on the secondary market is subject to a tax on stock exchange transactions if (i) executed in Belgium through a
professional intermediary, or (ii) deemed to be executed in Belgium, which is the case if the order is directly or indirectly made to a professional intermediary established
outside of Belgium, either by private individuals with habitual residence in Belgium, or legal entities for the account of their seat or establishment in Belgium. Transactions on
the primary market are not subject to this tax.

The tax is due at a rate of 0.35% and is applied separately on each sale and each acquisition, currently up to a maximum of EUR 1,600 per taxable transaction. A
separate tax is due by each party to the transaction (i.e. both seller and purchaser), and both taxes are collected by the professional intermediary. However, if the intermediary is
established outside of Belgium, the tax will in principle be due by the ordering private individual or legal entity, unless that individual or entity can demonstrate that the tax has
already been paid. Professional intermediaries established outside of Belgium can, subject to certain conditions and formalities, appoint a Belgian representative for tax
purposes, which will be jointly and severally liable for the tax on stock exchange transactions in respect of the transactions executed through the professional intermediary.

Exemptions apply for non-residents and certain categories of institutional investors acting for their own account provided that certain formalities are respected. Thus,
in general, non-residents who purchase or otherwise acquire or transfer, for consideration, common shares in Belgium for their own account through a professional intermediary
may be exempt if they deliver a sworn affidavit to the intermediary in Belgium confirming their non-resident status.

Please note that a general anti-abuse provision is available to the Belgian tax authorities with regard to the tax on stock exchange transactions.

As stated below, the European Commission has published a proposal for a Directive for a common financial transactions tax (the “FTT”). The proposal currently
stipulates that once the FTT enters into force, the participating Member States shall not maintain or introduce taxes on financial transactions other than the FTT (or VAT as
provided in the Council Directive 2006/112/EC of November 28, 2006 on the common system of value added tax). For Belgium, the tax on stock exchange transactions should
thus be abolished once the FTT enters into force. The proposal is still subject to negotiation between the participating Member States and therefore may be changed at any time.

4. Annual tax on securities accounts 

An annual tax on securities accounts (the “Annual Tax on Securities Accounts”) is levied on securities accounts of which the average value during the reference period
(i.e., a period of twelve consecutive months beginning on 1 October and ending, in principle, on 30 September of the next year), exceeds EUR 1,000,000. The Annual Tax on
Securities Accounts is applicable to securities accounts that are held by resident individuals, companies and legal entities or a Belgian permanent establishment of a foreign
company, irrespective as to whether these accounts are held with a financial intermediary in Belgium or abroad. The Annual Tax on Securities Accounts also applies to
securities accounts held by non-residents individuals, companies and legal entities with a financial intermediary in Belgium. However, the Annual Tax on Securities Accounts is
not levied on securities accounts held by specific types of regulated entities in the context of their own professional activity and for their own account.

The applicable tax rate is equal to the lowest amount of either 0.15% of the average value of the financial instruments held on the account or 10% of the difference
between the average value of the financial instruments held on the account and EUR 1,000,000. The tax base is the sum of the values of the taxable financial instruments at the
different reference points in time, i.e., 31 December, 31 March, 30 June and 30 September, divided by the number of those points in time.

The Annual Tax on Securities Accounts needs to be withheld, declared and paid by the Belgian intermediary. Intermediaries not established or set up in Belgium have
the possibility, when managing a securities account subject to the tax, to appoint a representative in Belgium approved by or on behalf of the Minister of Finance. In all other
cases, the holder of the account is responsible for declaring and paying the tax.
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Please note that a general anti-abuse provision is available to the Belgian tax authorities with regard to the Annual Tax on Securities Accounts.

Investors should consult their own tax advisers in relation to this Annual Tax on Securities Accounts.

5. The proposed FTT 

On February 14, 2013, the EU Commission adopted the draft Directive for a common FTT in Belgium, Germany, Estonia, Greece, Spain, France, Italy, Austria,
Portugal, Slovenia and Slovakia (the “participating Member States”). The draft Directive currently stipulates that once the FTT enters into force, the participating Member
States shall not maintain or introduce taxes on financial transactions other than the FTT (or VAT as provided in the Council Directive 2006/112/EC of 28 November 2006 on the
common system of value added tax). For Belgium, the tax on stock exchange transactions should thus be abolished once the FTT enters into force. The draft Directive is still
subject to negotiation between the participating Member States and therefore may be changed at any time. Estonia has already indicated that it does not wish to participate.

6. Common Reporting Standard (“CRS”) 

The exchange of information is governed by the CRS. As of November 24, 2024, 125 jurisdictions had signed the multilateral competent authority agreement
(“MCAA”), which is a multilateral framework agreement to automatically exchange financial and personal information, with the subsequent bilateral exchanges coming into
effect between those signatories that file the subsequent notifications.

Under CRS, financial institutions resident in a CRS country are required to report, according to a due diligence standard, financial information with respect to
reportable accounts, which includes interest, dividends, account balance or value, income from certain insurance products, sales proceeds from financial assets and other
income generated with respect to assets held in the account or payments made with respect to the account. Reportable accounts include accounts held by individuals and entities
(which includes trusts and foundations) with fiscal residence in another CRS country. The standard includes a requirement to look through passive entities to report on the
relevant controlling persons.

On December 9, 2014, EU Member States adopted Directive 2014/107/EU on administrative cooperation in direct taxation (“DAC2”), which provides for mandatory
automatic exchange of financial information as foreseen in CRS. DAC2 amends the previous Directive on administrative cooperation in direct taxation, Directive 2011/16/EU.

Belgium has implemented the DAC2 and the CRS by the law of December 16, 2015 regarding the exchange of financial account information between Belgian
financial institutions and the Federal Public Service Finances in the framework of automatic information exchange on an international level and for tax purposes (the “Law of
December 16, 2015”).

As a result of the Law of December 16, 2015, the mandatory automatic exchange of information applies in Belgium (i) since income year 2016 (first information
exchange in 2017) towards the EU Member States, (ii) since income year 2014 (first information exchange in 2016) towards the U.S. and (iii), with respect to any other non-EU
States that have signed the MCAA, as of the respective date to be further determined by Royal Decree. In a Royal Decree of June 14, 2017, as amended, it has been provided
that the automatic exchange of information has to be provided (i) as from 2017 (for financial year 2016) for a first list of eighteen foreign jurisdictions, (ii) as from 2018 (for
financial year 2017) for a second list of 44 jurisdictions, (iii) as from 2019 (for financial year 2018) for a third list of another jurisdiction, (iv) as from 2020 (for financial year
2019) a fourth list of six jurisdictions and (v) as from 2023 (for financial year 2022) a fifth list of two jurisdictions and (vi) as from 2024 (for financial year 2023) a sixth list of
four jurisdictions.

Investors who are in any doubt as to their position should consult their professional advisers.

F. Dividends and Paying Agents

Not Applicable
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G. Statement by Experts

Not Applicable
 
H. Documents on Display

It is possible to read and copy documents referred to in this annual report on Form 20-F that have been filed with the SEC at the SEC’s public reference room located
at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the public reference rooms and their copy charges. You can
also access the documents at the SEC’s home page (https://www.sec.gov).

I. Subsidiary Information

Not Applicable

J. Annual Report to Security Holders

Not Applicable

Item 11. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

See “Item 5. Operating and Financial Review and Prospects.”

Item 12. Description of Securities Other Than Equity Securities 
 
A. Debt Securities

Not Applicable

 
B. Warrants and Rights

Not Applicable

C. Other Securities

Not Applicable

D. American Depositary Shares

Not Applicable

Part II

Item 13. Defaults, Dividend Arrearages and Delinquencies

None

Item 14. Material Modifications to the Rights of Security Holders and Use of Proceeds 

None
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Item 15. Controls and Procedures 

Item 15(a). Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Titan America has carried out an evaluation under the supervision and with the participation of Titan America’s management, including the CEO and CFO, of the
effectiveness of the design and operation of Titan America’s disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act, as of
December 31, 2024. Disclosure controls and procedures require that information to be disclosed in the reports Titan America files or submits under the Securities and Exchange
Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported as and when required, within the time periods specified in the applicable rules and forms, and that such
information is accumulated and communicated to Titan America’s management, including the CEO and CFO, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure. There are inherent limitations to the effectiveness of any system of disclosure controls and procedures, including the possibility of human error and the
circumvention or overriding of the controls and procedures. Accordingly, even effective disclosure controls and procedures can only provide reasonable assurance of achieving
their control objectives. Based upon Titan America’s evaluation, the CEO and CFO have concluded that, as of December 31, 2024, the disclosure controls and procedures were
not effective because of our material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting, as described in “Item 5.E, Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates.”
Notwithstanding the material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting, we have concluded that the consolidated financial statements included in this annual
report present fairly, in all material respects, our financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the periods presented in conformity with IFRS Accounting Standards
as issued by the IFRS.

Item 15(b). Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

This annual report does not include a report of management’s assessment regarding internal control over financial reporting due to a transition period established by
rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission for newly public companies.

Item 15(c). Attestation Report of the Registered Public Accounting Firm

This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Company’s registered public accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting due to a
transition period established by rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission for newly public companies.

Item 15(d). Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There has been no change in Titan America’s internal control over financial reporting during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, Titan America’s internal control over financial reporting.

Item 16. [Reserved] 

Item 16A. Audit Committee Financial Expert 

Titan America’s Board of Directors has determined that Sandra Santos qualifies as an “audit committee financial expert” as defined in Item 16A of Form 20-F under
the Exchange Act, as amended. In addition, she is determined to be independent as defined under the NYSE Corporate Governance Standards.

Item 16B. Code of Ethics 

Titan America has adopted a code of conduct (the “Code of Conduct”) applicable to all of Titan America directors, officers and employees, which is a “code of ethics”
as defined in Item 16B of Form 20-F promulgated by the SEC. The Code of Conduct sets out Titan America’s fundamental values and standards of behavior that are expected
from Titan America’s directors, officers and employees with respect to all aspects of Titan America’s business. The objective of the Code of Conduct is to provide guidelines for
maintaining Titan America’s integrity, reputation and honesty with a goal of honoring others’ trust in us at all times.
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The full text of the Code of Conduct is posted on our website at www.titanamerica.com. Under Item 16B of the SEC’s Form 20-F, if a waiver or amendment of the
Code of Conduct applies to Titan America’s principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller and relates to standards promoting
any of the values described in Item 16B(b) of Form 20-F, we will disclose such waiver or amendment on our website in accordance with the requirements of Instruction 4 to
such Item 16B.

Our board of directors is responsible for reviewing and evaluating the Code of Conduct periodically. Our board of directors will also monitor compliance with our
Code of Conduct and is responsible for considering any waivers therefrom.

Item 16C.    Principal Accountant Fees and Services 

Audit and Non-Audit Fees

The following table presents fees for audit and other services rendered by PricewaterhouseCoopers for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2023 and 2024.
 

Fiscal year ended
December 31

2024 2023
$ in millions

Audit Fees $ 7.4 $ 3.6
Audit-Related Fees $ — $ —
Tax Fees $ — $ —
All Other Fees $ — $ —

$ 7.4 $ 3.6

(1) Audit Fees consist of fees for the annual audit services engagement and other audit services, which are those services that only the external auditor can provide.

(2) Audit-Related Fees consist of fees billed for assurance and related services, and audit services relating to benefit plans, business acquisitions and dispositions.

(3) Tax fees primarily consist of fees for tax advice.

(4) All Other Fees consist of fees primarily for services rendered with respect to advisory services.

Audit Committee’s Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

Consistent with the SEC rules regarding auditor independence, Titan America’s Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for appointing, reviewing and setting
compensation, retaining, and overseeing the work of Titan America’s independent auditor, so that the auditor’s independence will not be impaired. The Audit and Risk
Committee established a formal policy requiring pre-approval of all audit and permissible non-audit services provided by the independent auditor to Titan America or any of its
subsidiaries.

Prior to the engagement of the independent auditor for the following fiscal year’s audit, the Audit and Risk Committee will review with management, the internal
auditors, and the independent auditors the audit objective and the proposed scope of the audit plan and fees, including the auditor’s and management’s responsibilities, the areas
of business to be examined, the adequacy of the personnel to be assigned to the audit and other factors that may affect the timelines of such audit, any other firms performing
audit procedures, the accounting policies and procedures to be followed and special areas to be investigated. The Audit and Risk Committee shall give due consideration to
whether the independent auditor’s performance of non-audit services is legally permissible and compatible with the auditor’s independence and the Audit and Risk Committee
shall, in accordance with the procedures for pre-approval approved by the Audit and Risk Committee (and any de minimis exceptions permitted by applicable law), review and
pre-approve all audit and permitted non-audit services. The fees for non-audit services may not exceed the fees for audit service, unless authorized by the Audit and Risk
Committee.

The percentages of (i) audit-related services, (ii) tax services and (iii) all other services that were approved by the Audit and Risk Committee are 100%, 0% and 0%,
respectively.

(1)

(2)

 (3)

(4)
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Item 16D. Exemptions from the Listing Standards for Audit Committees  

Not Applicable

Item 16E. Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers 

Not Applicable
Item 16F. Change in Registrant’s Certifying Accountant 

Not Applicable
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Item 16G. Corporate Governance  

The table below discloses the significant ways in which Titan America’s corporate governance practices differ from those required for U.S. companies under the listing
standards of the NYSE. As a foreign private issuer listed on the NYSE, Titan America is exempt from most of the exchange’s corporate governance standards requirements. For
further information on Titan America’s corporate governance practices and history, refer to “Board Practices” in “Item 6. Directors, Senior Management and Employees.”

 

NYSE Standards Titan America’s Corporate Governance Practices

Board Independence. A majority of board directors must be independent. A majority of Titan America’s board of directors are independent.
Director Independence. A director is not independent if such director is

(i) a person who the board determines has a material direct or indirect relationship
with the company, its parent or a consolidated subsidiary;
 
(ii) a person who, within the last three years, has been an employee of the company
or has an immediate family member of an executive officer of the company, its
parent or a consolidated subsidiary;
 
(iii) a person who had received, or whose immediate family member had received,
during any 12-month period within the last three years, more than 120,000 U.S.
dollars per year in direct compensation from the company, its parent or a
consolidated subsidiary, other than director and committee fees or deferred
compensation for prior services (provided such compensation is not contingent in
any way on continued service);
 
(iv) (A) a person who is, or whose immediate family member is, a current partner or
employee of a firm that is the company’s internal or external auditor; (B) a person
whose immediate family member is a partner of such a firm; (C) a person who has an
immediate family member who is a current employee of such a firm and who
personally participates in the firm’s audit, assurance or tax compliance (but not tax
planning) practice; or (D) a person who was, or has an immediate family member
who was, within the last three years, a partner or employee of such a firm and
personally worked on the listed company’s audit within that time;
 
(v) a person who is, or whose immediate family member is, or has been within the
last three years, employed as an executive officer of another company where any of
the listed company’s present executive officers at the same time serves or served on
that company’s compensation committee; or
 
(vi) an executive officer or employee of a company, or has an immediate family
member of an executive officer of a company, that makes payments to, or receives
payments from, the listed company, its parent or a consolidated subsidiary for
property or services in an amount which, in any of the last three fiscal years, exceeds
the greater of 1 million U.S. dollars or 2% of such other company’s consolidated
gross revenues.

Titan America’s board of directors followed NYSE standards in determining
whether a director is independent.
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Executive Sessions. Non-management directors must meet in regularly scheduled
executive sessions without management. Independent directors should meet alone in
an executive session at least once a year.

Titan America’s non-management directors meet in regularly scheduled executive
sessions without management. Independent directors meet alone in an executive
session at least once a year.

Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee. A nominating/corporate
governance committee of independent directors is required. The committee must
have a charter that addresses the purpose, responsibilities (including development of
corporate governance guidelines) and annual performance evaluation of the
committee.

As Titan America is a “controlled company,” it is not required to have a
Nominating and Compensation Committee comprised entirely of independent
directors. We have at least one non-independent director on our Nominating and
Compensation Committee.

Compensation Committee. A compensation committee of independent directors is
required. The committee must have a charter that addresses the purpose,
responsibilities and annual performance evaluation of the committee. In addition, in
accordance with the SEC rules adopted pursuant to Section 952 of the Dodd-Frank
Act, NYSE listing standards expanded the factors relevant in determining whether a
committee member has a relationship to the company that will materially affect that
member’s duties to the compensation committee and provided compensation
committees the authority to engage compensation advisers. Additionally, the
committee may obtain or retain the advice of a compensation adviser only after
taking into consideration all factors relevant to determining that adviser’s
independence from management, unless the adviser’s role is (i) limited to consulting
on a generally applicable broad-based plan or (ii) is providing information that is not
customized for the issuer or is not customized by the adviser and about which the
adviser does not provide advice.

As Titan America is a “controlled company,” it is not required to have a
Nominating and Compensation Committee comprised entirely of independent
directors. We have at least one non-independent director on our Nominating and
Compensation Committee.

Audit Committee. An audit committee satisfying the independence and other
requirements of Rule 10A-3 under the Exchange Act is required. The committee
must have at least three members. All members must be independent. The committee
must have a charter addressing the committee’s purpose, an annual performance
evaluation of the committee and the duties and responsibilities of the committee.

All the members of Titan America’s Audit and Risk Committee are “independent”
as defined in the NYSE Corporate Governance Standards, and one member of the
Committee is qualified as an audit committee financial expert.

Equity Compensation Plans. Equity compensation plans require shareholder
approval, subject to limited exemptions.

No approval of equity compensation plans is required as long as the plan can be
adopted in the context of Titan America’s authorized capital mandate.

Corporate Governance Guidelines. Corporate governance guidelines must be
adopted and disclosed.

Titan America’s Corporate Governance Guidelines are adopted is available at
https://ir.titanamerica.com/governance/governance-documents.

Code of Ethics. A code of business conduct and ethics for directors, officers and
employees must be adopted and disclosed, along with any waivers of the code for
directors or executive officers.

Titan America has adopted a code of conduct applicable to all its directors, officer
and employees. The code of conduct is available at
https://ir.titanamerica.com/governance/governance-documents

  

Item 16H.    Mine Safety Disclosure 

The information concerning mine safety violations and other regulatory matters required by Section 1503(a) of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer
Protection Act is included in Exhibit 16.1 to this Annual Report.
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Item 16I. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections 

Not Applicable

Item 16J. Insider Trading Policies  

Titan America has adopted an insider trading policy that governs the purchase, sale, and other dispositions of its securities by directors, senior management, and
employees that are reasonably designed to promote compliance with applicable insider trading laws, rules and regulations, and any listing standards applicable to Titan
America. A copy of Titan America’s insider trading policy is filed as an Exhibit 11.1 to this Form 20-F.

 
Item 16K. Cybersecurity 

Titan America recognizes the importance of cybersecurity, both in achieving financial success for the Company and in maintaining the trust of its stakeholders, which
include shareholders, customers, employees, suppliers, and business partners.

Risk Management & Strategy

As part of Titan America’s risk management framework, we maintain and continuously strive to enhance our cybersecurity program. This program is part of the wider
Titan Group’s cybersecurity program, which is put in place at the Titan Group level and modified for local implementation. This program is in accordance with policies and
standards, which include cybersecurity risk management and governance frameworks, guidance, and is based on globally recognized industry best practices and standards. The
policies define information security responsibilities within Titan America and outline certain actions and procedures that officers and employees are required to follow, with
respect to the assessment and management of cybersecurity risks to Titan America, including its systems and information. The policies, procedures, standards, and guidance are
structured to help Titan America respond effectively to the dynamically changing environment of cybersecurity threats, cybersecurity risks, technologies, laws, and regulations.
Titan America modifies its policies, standards, and guidance as needed to adjust to this changing environment.

Titan America relies on Titan Group’s outsourced and managed security operations center (“SOC”) to identify any cyber attacks, If Titan America’s cybersecurity risk
management controls are overcome by a cyber attacker as identified by the SOC, Titan America follows an incident response plan and escalation process as defined in the
cybersecurity program. The response process includes an assessment of whether an incident may be material, and this assessment is adjusted as necessary as additional facts
become known during the incident response. Any incident that is assessed as potentially material is escalated to Titan America’s senior management, as well as the Chief
Information Security (“CISO”) of Titan Group.

In the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, Titan America has not identified any cyberattacks that materially affected the Company. However, there can be no
guarantee that there will not be a future incident. For more information about risks Titan America faces from cyberattacks, please refer to “Any delay or problem with operating
or upgrading our existing information technology infrastructure could cause a disruption in our business and adversely impact our financial results.” included in “Risk Factors”
in “Item 3. Key Information.”

Titan America has also established policies and processes to help identify and manage cybersecurity risks associated with third parties, including companies that
provide services and products to Titan America, and companies that hold Titan America information or have electronic access to Titan America systems or information. The
policies and processes include assessment of the cybersecurity and privacy programs at certain third parties, the use of this risk information when making contracting decisions,
and the use of contract language that includes cybersecurity and privacy requirements.

Most of the information security program is implemented by Titan America employees. Titan America also engages the services of external providers to enhance and
support its information security program, including leading cyber response specialists as may be needed, and consultants to evaluate and help improve organization, policies,
and other aspects of the program.
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Governance

Board of Directors

The Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for the oversight of our overall risk management systems and processes and is responsible for reviewing the steps
management has taken to monitor and mitigate such risks, including cybersecurity risks. The Audit and Risk Committee reviews and discusses with management the procedures
and any related policies with respect to cybersecurity risk. This includes proposing adjustments and actions to our board of directors to correct any identified deficiencies.

Our Audit and Risk Committee and our board of directors receive monthly and annual reports on information technology issues from our internal audit department.
When applicable, these reports summarize our cybersecurity activity and incidents and include observations and recommendations to improve our procedural and operational
management. Additionally the Director of Information Security, who monitors the daily status of cybersecurity at Titan America, reports periodically to the CISO.

Management

The cybersecurity risk management processes described above are implemented through our Information Security Department. Alongside our Audit and Risk
Committee, they are responsible for implementing initiatives to strengthen cybersecurity management processes, issuing internal policies and regulations regarding
cybersecurity, identity management, user access controls and the protection of information. It also considers solutions, tools and services contracted through specialized
suppliers.

Our Information Security Department is composed of the Director of Information Security working with our IT team, managers and the Titan Group Cyber Security
and Resiliency department, headed by the Group Chief Information Security Officer (CISO). The managers ensure their functions are carried out in accordance with our
cybersecurity strategy. The managers collaborate with specialists in the different technological domains to operate cybersecurity controls in accordance with our cybersecurity
strategy. Our Information Security Department is guided by the Cyber Security and Resiliency department and is composed of four globally-based professionals. The CISO is
an expert in cybersecurity management with over 25 years of experience and has numerous certifications in cybersecurity.

 
Item 17. Financial Statements 

Refer to the consolidated financial statements.

 
Item 18. Financial Statements 

    Not Applicable 
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Item 19. Exhibits  

Documents filed as exhibits to this annual report:

1.1**
  

Amended Articles of Association of Titan America SA (English Translation), incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Titan America SA’s
Registration Statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-284251) filed on January 17, 2025

4.1**
  

Form of Underwriting Agreement, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to Titan America SA’s Registration Statement on Form F-1 (File
No. 333-284251) filed on January 28, 2025

4.2**
  

Form of Shared Services Agreement between Titan America LLC and Titan Cement Company S.A., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to
Titan America SA’s Registration Statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-284251) filed on January 13, 2025

4.3**

  

Form of Master Supply Agreement for Cement and Cementitious Products between Titan America LLC and Titan Cement Company S.A.,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to Titan America SA’s Registration Statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-284251) filed on January 13,
2025

4.4** Multi-Currency Revolving Credit Facility Agreement, dated as of April 10, 2017, between Titan America LLC and Titan Global Finance PLC,
and amendments thereto, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Titan America SA’s Registration Statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-
284251) filed on January 13, 2025

4.5** Loan Agreement, dated as of December 15, 2017, between Titan America LLC and Titan Global Finance PLC, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to Titan America SA’s Registration Statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-284251) filed on January 13, 2025

4.6** Loan Agreement, dated as of March 8, 2018, between Titan America LLC and Titan Global Finance PLC, and amendments thereto,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Titan America SA’s Registration Statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-284251) filed on January
13, 2025

8.1**
  

List of Subsidiaries of Titan America SA, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 to Titan America SA’s Registration Statement on Form F-1
(File No. 333-284251) filed on January 17, 2025

11.1*   Insider Trading Policy

12.1*
  

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act, as
amended

12.2*
  

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer) pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act, as
amended

13.1*
  

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

16.1* Mine Safety and Health Administration Safety Data

96.1** Technical Report Summary for Pennsuco Quarry, Miami-Dade County, Florida, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 96.1 to Titan America
SA’s Registration Statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-284251) filed on January 13, 2025

96.2** Technical Report Summary for Roanoke Quarry, Botetourt County, Virginia, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 96.2 to Titan America SA’s
Registration Statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-284251) filed on January 13, 2025

97.1*   Clawback Policy

101.INS*
  

Inline XBRL Instance Document — the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded
within the Inline XBRL document

101.SCH*   Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL*   Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
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101.DEF*   Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB*   Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE*   Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

104*
  

The cover page for the Company’s Annual Report on Form 20-F for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, has been formatted in Inline
XBRL

* Filed herewith
** Previously filed
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant hereby certifies that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form
20-F and that it has duly caused and authorized the undersigned to sign this annual report on its behalf.

TITAN AMERICA SA
(Registrant)

By:  /s/ Bill Zarkalis
 (Signature)
 Bill Zarkalis

 
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: April 4, 2025
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Exhibit 12.1

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Bill Zarkalis, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 20-F of Titan America SA;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the company as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The company’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the company and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the company, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Intentionally omitted;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the company’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the period covered by the annual report that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the company’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The company’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the company’s auditors
and the audit committee of the company’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the company’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the company’s internal control over financial
reporting.

By: /s/ Bill Zarkalis
Bill Zarkalis
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: April 4, 2025
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Exhibit 12.2

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Larry Wilt, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 20-F of Titan America SA;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the company as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The company’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the company and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the company, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Intentionally omitted;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the company’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the period covered by the annual report that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the company’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The company’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the company’s auditors
and the audit committee of the company’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the company’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the company’s internal control over financial
reporting.

By: /s/ Larry Wilt
Larry Wilt
Chief Financial Officer

    Dated: April 4, 2025
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Exhibit 13.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Titan America SA (the “Company”) on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2024, as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), each of the undersigned certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

By: /s/ Bill Zarkalis
Bill Zarkalis
Chief Executive Officer

    Dated: April 4, 2025

By: /s/ Larry Wilt
Larry Wilt
Chief Financial Officer

Dated: April 4, 2025

 
 

 



Table of Contents

Titan America SA and Subsidiaries
As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and for the year ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022

Contents
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (PCAOB ID 238) F-2
Consolidated Statement of Income F-5
Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income F-6
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position F-7
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholder’s Equity F-9
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows F-10
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-12



Table of Contents

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Titan America SA

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position of Titan America SA and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of

December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the related consolidated statements of income, other comprehensive income, changes in stockholder’s equity and

cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2024, including the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated

financial statements”). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the

Company as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31, 2024 in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

Basis for Opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the

Company’s consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal

securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we

plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement,

whether due to error or fraud.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error

or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts

and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates

made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a

reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current period audit of the consolidated financial statements that were

communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (i) relate to accounts or disclosures that are material to the

consolidated financial statements and (ii) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit

matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical

audit matters below, providing separate opinions on the critical audit matters or on the accounts or disclosures to which they relate.
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Valuation of Provisions for Restoration, Environmental and Equipment Removal Obligations

As described in Notes 1, 2 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company’s provisions for restoration, environmental and equipment

removal obligations totaled $26.0 million as of December 31, 2024. The Company is required to restore the land used for quarries and processing sites

at the end of their productive lives to a condition acceptable for the relevant authorities and consistent with the Company’s environmental policies.

Provisions for restoration, environmental and equipment removal obligations are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive

obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably

estimated. Management estimates its ultimate liability using detailed engineering calculations that consider the amount and timing of the future cash

flows. The present value of these future cash flows is determined by applying discount rates consistent with the time horizons of the expected future

cash flows. The significant assumptions used by management include the current cost estimates for restoration, environmental and equipment removal

obligations, inflation rates and discount rates.

The principal considerations for our determination that performing procedures relating to the valuation of provisions for restoration, environmental

and equipment removal obligations is a critical audit matter are (i) the significant judgment by management in developing the fair value estimate of the

provisions for restoration, environmental and equipment removal obligations; (ii) a high degree of auditor judgment, subjectivity, and effort in

performing procedures and evaluating management’s significant assumptions related to current cost estimates, inflation rates and the discount rates;

and (iii) the audit effort involved the use of professionals with specialized skill and knowledge.

Addressing the matter involved performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence in connection with forming our overall opinion on the

consolidated financial statements. These procedures included, among others (i) testing management’s process for developing the fair value estimate of

the provisions for restoration, environmental and equipment removal obligations; (ii) testing the completeness and accuracy of the data used in the

current cost estimates, inflation rates and discount rates; and (iii) the involvement of professionals with specialized skill and knowledge to assist in

evaluating (a) the appropriateness of the discounted cash flow model used by management; (b) correspondence with regulatory agencies; and (c) the

reasonableness of the current cost estimates, inflation rates and discount rates assumptions.

Revenue Recognition from Certain Revenue Components

As described in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, substantially all of the Company’s revenue is derived from sales of cement, fly ash,

aggregates, ready-mix concrete and concrete blocks and related products (collectively, the “certain revenue components”). Control over the goods

subject to each sales contract transfers at a point in time. The transaction price for each sales contract is determined by reference to the quantity

requested and price established in the order. Some of the contracts offer discounts for prompt payment. In these cases, revenue is recorded in the

amount the business expects to be entitled to. The Company’s total revenue from the certain revenue components was $1,632.1 million for the year

ended December 31, 2024.

The principal consideration for our determination that performing procedures relating to revenue recognition from the certain revenue components is a

critical audit matter is a high degree of auditor effort in performing procedures related to the Company’s revenue recognition for the certain revenue

components.
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Addressing the matter involved performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence in connection with forming our overall opinion on the

consolidated financial statements. These procedures included, among others (i) evaluating, on a test basis, the accuracy and occurrence of transactions

recognized as revenue by obtaining and inspecting source documents, such as invoices, customer purchase orders, shipping documents and cash

receipts from customers; and (ii) confirming a sample of outstanding customer invoice balances as of December 31, 2024 and, for confirmations not

returned, obtaining and inspecting source documents, such as cash receipts from customers.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Washington, District of Columbia

April 4, 2025

We have served as the Company's or its predecessors’ auditor since 2015.
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Titan America SA and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Income

(all amounts in thousands of US$ except for earnings per share and weighted average number of shares) Year Ended December 31
Notes 2024 2023 2022

Revenue 3 $ 1,634,393 $ 1,591,601 $ 1,364,146 
Cost of goods sold 4 (1,217,738) (1,228,112) (1,142,880)
Gross profit 416,655 363,489 221,266 

Selling expense 5 (33,623) (31,009) (29,938)
General and administrative expense 6 (128,930) (99,909) (87,513)
Net impairment losses on financial assets (398) (1,224) (3,711)
Fair value loss on sale of accounts receivable, net 7 (4,620) (6,113) (3,041)
Other operating income/(loss), net 2,304 402 (21)
Operating income 251,388 225,636 97,042 

Finance cost, net 8 (26,175) (22,244) (19,078)
Income from associate — — 272 
Foreign exchange gain/(loss), net 9 20,846 (11,981) 19,990 
Derivative financial instrument (loss)/gain, net 9 (22,441) 10,967 (18,534)
Income before income taxes 223,618 202,378 79,692 
Income tax expense 19 (57,544) (47,134) (16,971)
Net income $ 166,074 $ 155,244 $ 62,721 

Earnings per share of common stock:
Basic earnings per share 26 $ 0.95 $ 0.89 $ 0.36 
Diluted earnings per share 26 $ 0.95 $ 0.89 $ 0.36 

Weighted average number of common shares - basic and diluted 26 175,362,465 175,362,465 175,362,465 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these audited financial statements
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Titan America SA and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Other Comprehensive Income

(all amounts in thousands of US$) Year Ended December 31
Notes 2024 2023 2022

Net income $ 166,074 $ 155,244 $ 62,721 
Other comprehensive income:
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods

(Losses)/gains on cash flow hedges  9,25 (110) (4,387) 4,267 
Reclassification to income statement 100 7,327 (5,969)
Income tax relating to these items 3 (750) 434 

Net (loss)/gain on cash flow hedge (7) 2,190 (1,268)
Net other comprehensive (expense)/income to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods (7) 2,190 (1,268)

Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Re-measurement (losses)/gains on defined benefit plans 20 (82) 806 538 
Income tax relating to these items 20 (205) (137)

Net (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans (62) 601 401 
Cumulative translation adjustments 370 293 (7)

Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods 308 894 394 
Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax 301 3,084 (874)
Total comprehensive income, net of tax $ 166,375 $ 158,328 $ 61,847 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these audited financial statements
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Titan America SA and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
(all amounts in thousands of US$) December 31

Notes 2024 2023

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 1.11 $ 12,124 $ 22,036 
Derivative financial instruments 9 709 5,315 
Derivative credit support payments 9 619 11,470 
Trade receivables, net 15 48,119 55,873 
Other receivables, net 17 57,937 65,121 
Inventories 14 227,638 189,989 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 16 14,308 16,194 
Income taxes receivable 22,802 6,901 
Total current assets 384,256 372,899 

Noncurrent assets:
Derivative financial instruments 9 — 2,071 
Derivative credit support payments 9 3,770 — 
Property, plant, equipment and mineral deposits, net 10 851,733 801,031 
Right-of-use assets 11 64,688 61,441 
Other assets 10,076 6,586 
Intangible assets, net 12 30,167 33,213 
Goodwill 13 221,562 221,562 
Total noncurrent assets 1,181,996 1,125,904 
Total assets $ 1,566,252 $ 1,498,803 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these audited financial statements
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Titan America SA and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position (continued)
(all amounts in thousands of US$) December 31

Notes 2024 2023

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 139,831 $ 151,229 
Related party payables 23 8,727 11,467 
Accrued expenses 22 24,879 20,757 
Derivative financial instruments 9 1,014 10,512 
Derivative credit support receipts 9 304 5,061 
Provisions 21 10,081 10,452 
Contract liabilities 6,344 1,090 
Income taxes payable 1,872 1,999 
Short-term borrowings, including accrued interest 18 33,608 267,670 
Lease liabilities 11 12,386 11,737 
Total current liabilities 239,046 491,974 

Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term borrowings 18 358,222 76,262 
Lease liabilities 11, 18 55,967 53,744 
Retirement benefit obligations 20 5,117 4,310 
Derivative financial instruments 9 8,418 — 
Derivative credit support receipts 9 — 2,081 
Provisions 21 50,926 55,302 
Contract liabilities — 868 
Other noncurrent liabilities 330 114 
Deferred income tax liability 19 98,212 94,377 
Total noncurrent liabilities 577,192 287,058 

Total liabilities 816,238 779,032 

Stockholder's equity:
Common stock 28 1,753,625 25,219 
Share premium 852,282 168,791 
Capital reserves 4,039 4,039 
Retained earnings 597,296 518,621 
Common control reserve (2,460,630) — 
Accumulated other comprehensive income 3,402 3,101 
Total stockholder's equity 750,014 719,771 

Total liabilities and stockholder's equity $ 1,566,252 $ 1,498,803 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these audited financial statements.
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Titan America SA and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholder's Equity

(all amounts in thousands of US$) Notes
Common

Stock
Share

Premium
Capital

Reserves
Retained
Earnings

Common control
reserve

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income/(Loss)

Total
Stakeholder's

Equity

 January 1, 2022 $ 25,219 $163,915 $ 2,822 $ 335,966 $ — $ 891 $ 528,813 

Net income — — — 62,721 — — 62,721 
Actuarial gain on defined benefit plans, net of
tax 20 — — — — — 401 401 
Cash flow hedge, net of tax — — — — — (1,268) (1,268)
Stock-based compensation expense 23 — 2,104 — — — — 2,104 
Change in stock compensation excess tax
benefit — (37) — — — — (37)

Cumulative translation adjustments — — — — — (7) (7)

December 31, 2022 $ 25,219 $165,982 $ 2,822 $ 398,687 $ — $ 17 $ 592,727 

 January 1, 2023 $ 25,219 $ 165,982 $ 2,822 $ 398,687 — $ 17 $ 592,727 

Net income — — — 155,244 — — 155,244 

Reserve — — 1,217 (1,217) — — — 

Dividend 23 — — — (33,786) — — (33,786)
Actuarial gain on defined benefit plans, net of
tax 20 — — — — — 601 601 
Cash flow hedge, net of tax — — — — — 2,190 2,190 
Stock-based compensation expense 23 — 3,147 — — — — 3,147 
Related party recharge for stock-based
compensation 23 — (1,333) — (429) — — (1,762)
Change in stock compensation excess tax
benefit — 995 — 122 — — 1,117 

Cumulative translation adjustments — — — — — 293 293 

December 31, 2023 $ 25,219 $ 168,791 $ 4,039 $ 518,621 $ — $ 3,101 $ 719,771 

 January 1, 2024 $ 25,219 $ 168,791 $ 4,039 $ 518,621 $ — $ 3,101 $ 719,771 

Net income — — — 166,074 — — 166,074 

Dividend 23 — — — (85,069) — — (85,069)

Return of capital 23 — (51,591) — — — — (51,591)

Capital increase expenses 23 — — — (155) — — (155)
Actuarial loss on defined benefit plans 20 — — — — — (62) (62)
Cash flow hedge, net of tax — — — — — (7) (7)

Stock based compensation expense 23 — 3,841 — — — — 3,841 
Related party recharge for stock-based
compensation 23 — (3,061) — (2,830) — — (5,891)
Change in stock compensation excess tax
benefit — 1,877 — 655 — — 2,533 
Cumulative translation adjustments — — — — — 370 370 

Contribution from related party 1,728,406 732,425 — — (2,460,630) — 200 

December 31, 2024 $ 1,753,625 $ 852,282 $ 4,039 $ 597,296 $ (2,460,630) $ 3,402 $ 750,014 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these audited financial statements.
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Titan America SA and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(all amounts in thousands of US$) Year Ended December 31
Notes 2024 2023 2022

Cash flows from operating activities
Income before income taxes $ 223,618 $ 202,378 $ 79,692 
Adjustments for:

Depreciation, depletion and amortization 10,11,12 99,941 91,079 87,728 
Finance cost 8 27,643 23,194 19,514 
Finance income (1,468) (950) (436)
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss, net 9 (20,846) 11,981 (19,990)
Derivative financial instrument loss/(gain), net 9 22,441 (10,967) 18,534 
Changes in net operating assets and liabilities (43,516) (42,326) (5,639)
Other 8,166 5,853 4,285 

Cash generated from operations before income taxes 315,979 280,242 183,688 
Income taxes, net (67,942) (53,117) (5,314)

Net cash provided by operating activities 248,037 227,125 178,374 

Cash flows from investing activities
Investments in property, plant and equipment 10 (135,421) (117,144) (125,374)
Investments in intangible assets 12 (1,591) (1,600) (2,896)
Interest received 1,468 950 436 
Distributions from associate — — 272 
Proceeds from the sale of assets, net of disposition costs (259) 141 261 

Net cash used in investing activities (135,803) (117,653) (127,301)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these audited financial statements.    
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Titan America SA and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows(continued)

(all amounts in thousands of US$) Year Ended December 31

Notes 2024 2023 2022
Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of affiliated party borrowings 18 (39,701) (37,838) (96,707)
Borrowings from affiliated party 18 85,218 45,537 95,240 
Offering costs associated with borrowings 18 (682) — (781)
Borrowings from third party line of credit 60,000 35,000 115,000 
Repayment of third party line of credit (35,000) (105,000) (75,000)
Lease payments 18 (9,486) (12,151) (11,390)
Return of capital 23 (51,591) — — 
Dividends paid 23 (85,069) (33,786) — 
Capital increase expenses (155) — — 
Contribution from related party 200 — — 
Related party recharge for stock-based compensation 23 (2,830) (429) — 
Settlement of derivative financial instrument (payments)/receipts 18 (16,783) 3,272 (19,827)
Derivative credit support receipts/(payments) 18 243 11,399 490 
Net payments under cash management line of credit — — (7,761)
Interest paid (25,383) (23,783) (20,925)
IPO Costs (2,307) — — 

Net cash used in financing activities (123,326) (117,779) (21,661)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (11,092) (8,307) 29,412 

Cash and cash equivalents at:
Beginning of period 22,036 29,841 202 
Effects of exchange rate changes 1,180 502 227 
End of period $ 12,124 $ 22,036 $ 29,841 

Changes in net operating assets and liabilities
Inventories $ (37,649) $ (9,185) $ (40,644)
Trade receivables, net 7,136 (604) (7,582)
Other receivables, net 7,419 (3,637) (5,398)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,886 (998) (3,144)
Other assets (534) 101 651 
Accounts payable (16,080) (29,532) 57,273 
Accrued expenses 3,959 (4,372) (6,675)
Provisions (4,934) 3,822 (2,167)
Other liabilities 214 (672) (471)
Retirement benefit obligations (39) 210 120 
Operating related party activity (4,894) 2,541 2,398 

Changes in net operating assets and liabilities $ (43,516) $ (42,326) $ (5,639)

The principal non-cash investing and financing transactions are accrued purchases of property, plant, and equipment and leasing of right-of-use assets, refer to Note 10 and 11.
For additional details about changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, refer to Note 18.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these audited financial statements.

F - 11



Table of Contents

Titan America SA and Subsidiaries
Note to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022
(All amounts in thousands)

1. General information and summary of material accounting policies

Titan America SA (“Titan America”) is a Belgium-based holding company, incorporated on July 17, 2024 for the purpose of facilitating an initial public offering and other
related transactions in order to carry on the business of Titan Atlantic Cement Industrial and Commercial S.A. (“Titan Atlantic”). Titan America’s primary role is that of a
holding company, and it will not engage in significant operational activities. Its sole material asset is its investment in Titan Atlantic. Titan America, along with its wholly
owned subsidiaries including Titan Atlantic, are referred to as the “Company”.

The Company, through its wholly owned subsidiaries, primarily operates in the manufacture, distribution, and sale of cement, fly ash, aggregates, ready-mix concrete, and
concrete block to resellers and construction contractors in the Eastern region of the United States. Titan America’s principal offices are located in Belgium.

Reorganization Transaction

On December 18, 2024, Titan Cement International SA (“TCI”) contributed Titan Atlantic to Titan America in exchange for 175,342,465 common shares representing 100% of
the equity in Titan America (the “Reorganization Transaction”). The Reorganization Transaction signified a continuation of Titan Atlantic’s operations within a new legal
framework, rather than the initiation of new business activities. The Reorganization Transaction represents an internal reorganization of entities under common control and is
not within the scope of IFRS 3, Business Combinations. As a result, the consolidated financial statements for periods prior to the Reorganization Transaction reflect the
operations of our predecessor, Titan Atlantic. The following adjustments were recorded by the Company within equity:

▪ Common Stock was adjusted to reflect the $10.00 per share derived value of Titan America’s common shares multiplied by common shares outstanding following the
Reorganization Transaction;

▪ Share Premium was adjusted to reflect an issue premium multiplied by the number of common shares issued by Titan America in the Reorganization Transaction, less
the value of the Company’s retained earnings; and

▪ A Common Control Reserve was established within equity to adjust the Company’s Total Stockholder’s Equity balance to the carrying value of Total Stockholder’s
Equity immediately prior to the Reorganization Transaction.

The consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 were authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors of the Company on April
4, 2025.

Summary of material accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set forth below:

1.1.     Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IFRS Accounting Standards). The definition of IFRS Accounting Standards also encompasses all valid International Accounting Standards (IAS), as well as
all interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), including those formally issued by the Standing Interpretations Committee.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative financial instruments)
and defined benefit pension plan assets, which are measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS Accounting Standards requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgment in the process of applying the accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements are described in Note 2.
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Titan America SA and Subsidiaries
Note to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022
(All amounts in thousands)

The financial statements have been prepared using the same accounting policies as the prior year, except for the adoption of the new or revised standards, amendments and/or
interpretations that became mandatory for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements present the results of operations, financial position, and cash flows of the Company, which includes the historical
consolidated financial information of our predecessor, Titan Atlantic, prior to the Reorganization Transaction. The earnings per share of the Company have been presented to
retrospectively reflect the capital structure of the Company in connection with the Reorganization Transaction.

1.1.1 New and amended standards and interpretations

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for December 31, 2024 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by
the Company. The Company is currently assessing whether these standards will have a material impact on the Company in the current or future periods and on foreseeable
future transactions.

• In August 2023, the IASB issued Lack of Exchangeability (Amendments to IAS 21), which clarifies that entities must estimate the spot exchange rate when it is
determined that a currency lacks exchangeability and introduces targeted disclosure requirements. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2025.

• In April 2024, the IASB issued IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements, which will replace IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and will
be accompanied by limited amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows. IFRS 18 will introduce a defined structure for the statement of profit or loss and add
disclosure about management-defined performance measures and new principle for aggregation and disaggregation of information. The standard will be effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2027.

• In May 2024, the IASB issued Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments (Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7). The amendments
clarify that financial liabilities are derecognized on the settlement date, subject to an accounting policy choice for certain liabilities settled through an electronic
payment system; clarify the classification and measurement requirements for financial assets with Environmental, Social, and Governance linked and non-recourse
features; and add certain disclosure requirements. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2026.

• In July 2024, the IASB issued Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards – Volume 11, which include, basically, technical and editorial changes to existing standards.
The amendments to the standards are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2026.

• In December 2024, the IASB issued the amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7, Contracts Referencing Nature-dependent Electricity to clarify the use of the “own-use
exemption” for power purchase agreements from renewable sources and allow, subject to certain conditions being met, the designation of a cash flow hedge in the
presence of contracts for the purchase or sale of electricity from renewable sources. The amendments to the standards are effective annual reporting periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2026.

• In May 2024, the IASB issued IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures aimed to reduce disclosure requirements for the preparation of the
separate (and, if applicable, consolidated) financial statements of companies (that are neither listed nor financial institutions) controlled, directly or indirectly, by a
parent that produces consolidated financial statements that are available for public use and that comply with IFRS. The standard will be effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2027.

The Company has adopted the following standards and amendments for the first time in the annual reporting period commencing on January 1, 2024:

• Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and Non-current Liabilities with Covenants – Amendments to IAS 1 (January 1, 2024)

• Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback – Amendments to IFRS 16 (January 1, 2024)

• Disclosures: Supplier Finance Arrangements – Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 (January 1, 2024)
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Titan America SA and Subsidiaries
Note to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022
(All amounts in thousands)

• Disclosures of Revenues and Expenses for Reportable Segments – IFRIC Interpretations Committee Agenda Decision – IFRS 8

The amendments listed above did not have a material impact on amounts recognized in prior periods and are not expected to materially affect the current or future periods.

1.2.     Consolidation

(a) Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated
in consolidation. Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Company has control. The Company controls an entity when the Company is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Company. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.
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Titan America SA and Subsidiaries
Note to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022
(All amounts in thousands)

A listing of Company subsidiaries at December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 follows:

List of Legal Entities
Country of

incorporation State of incorporation Nature of business
2024

% of investment
2023

% of investment
2022

% of investment
Titan Atlantic Cement Industrial and Commercial S.A.    Greece  N/A Investment holding

company
100% 100% 100%

Titan America LLC
 USA  Delaware Investment holding

company 100% 100% 100%

Essex Cement Company LLC    USA Delaware Trading company 100% 100% 100%
Mechanicsville Concrete LLC USA Virginia Ready-mix producer    100% 100% 100%
Pennsuco Cement Company LLC USA Delaware Investment holding

company 100% 100% 100%

Roanoke Cement Company LLC USA Virginia  Cement producer    100% 100% 100%
S&W Ready-Mix Concrete Company LLC
 

USA North Carolina Ready-mix producer    100% 100% 100%

Separation Technologies LLC USA Delaware Fly ash beneficiation    100% 100% 100%
ST Equipment & Technology LLC

USA Delaware
Sales and engineering
services    100% 100% 100%

ST Equipment & Technology Trading Company LLC USA Delaware Trading company N/A 100% 100%
ST Mid-Atlantic LLC USA North Carolina Investment holding

company N/A N/A 100%

Titan Florida LLC
USA Delaware

Cement, aggregates, ready-
mix and concrete block
producer    

100% 100% 100%

Titan Mid-Atlantic Aggregates LLC USA Virginia Aggregates producer    100% 100% 100%
Titan Virginia Ready-Mix USA Delaware Ready-mix concrete

producer 100% 100% 100%

Trusa Realty LLC
USA  Florida

Real estate holding
company    100% 100% 100%

Markfield America LLC USA Virginia Insurance brokerage
company    

N/A 100% 100%

Titan Florida Holdings LLC USA Delaware Investment holding
company 100% 100% N/A

Carolinas Cement Company LLC USA Delaware Investment holding
company

100% 100% 100%

Norfapeake Terminal LLC USA  Virginia Real estate holding
company    100% 100% 100%
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Titan America SA and Subsidiaries
Note to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022
(All amounts in thousands)

List of Legal Entities
Country of

incorporation State of incorporation Nature of business
2024

% of investment
2023

% of investment
2022

% of investment
S&W Ready-Mix LLC USA South Carolina Ready-mix producer    100% 100% 100%
Titan Florida Concrete Products LLC USA Delaware Investment holding company 100% 100% N/A
Titan Florida Aggregates LLC USA Delaware Investment holding company 100% 100% N/A
Titan Florida Cement LLC USA Delaware Investment holding company 100% 100% N/A
Metro Redi-Mix LLC

USA Florida
Real estate holding
company    100% 100% 100%

Miami Valley Ready-Mix Florida LLC USA Delaware Real estate holding
company    100% 100% 100%

Summit Ready-Mix LLC USA Florida Real estate holding
company    100% 100% 100%

Silver Sand Transportation LLC USA Delaware Transportation brokerage    100% 100% 100%
Standard Concrete LLC USA Florida Investment holding company 100% 100% 100%
Massey Sand and Rock Co. USA California Inactive 100% 100% 100%
Daleville Development LLC USA Virginia Real estate holding

company    100% 100% 100%

Nestor Timber Development LLC USA Virginia Real estate holding
company    100% 100% 100%

SEI LLC USA North Carolina Real estate holding
company    100% 100% 100%

Evergreen Wildlife Management LLC USA Virginia Inactive N/A N/A 100%
D.M Conner LLC USA Virginia Aggregates producer 100% N/A N/A

(b) Associates

Associates are entities in which the Company has an investment but over which it does not exercise control (either directly or jointly) but rather over which the Company exerts
significant influence.

1.3. Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of U.S. Dollars, which is also the parent company’s functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions are translated using the exchange rates (i.e. spot rates) prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized as foreign exchange (loss)/gain, net in the Consolidated Statements of Income. Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities
are included in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

The financial statements of the Company’s subsidiaries that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

• Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet are translated at the closing rate at the date of the balance sheet.

• Income and expenses for each income statement and statement of comprehensive income are translated at average exchange rates.

• All exchange differences resulting from the above are recognized in other comprehensive income.
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Titan America SA and Subsidiaries
Note to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022
(All amounts in thousands)

1.4. Property, plant, equipment and mineral deposits

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, except for land (excluding quarries), which is shown at cost less
impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditures directly attributable to the acquisition of the items and any environmental rehabilitation costs to the extent that they have been recognized as a
provision (refer to Note 1.16). Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of a replaced part is derecognized. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Consolidated Statements of Income as incurred. Subsequent component costs are depreciated over the remaining useful life of
the related asset. Subsequent refurbishment costs that extend the asset’s useful life are depreciated over the newly determined life.

With the exception of quarries and refurbishments, depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of the assets to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Cement Aggregates Other
Land improvements 15 - 30 15 15
Building and improvements 25 25 25
Machinery and equipment 15-30 10-20 5-15
Mobile equipment 7-25 7-15 7
Marine equipment 20 20 n/a
Auto and truck 8 8 8
Furniture and fixtures 3-5 3-5 3-5

Land on which quarries are located is depreciated on a depletion basis, which is recorded as the material extraction process advances based on the unit-of-production method
based on proven and probable reserves and indicated and measured resources, defined as quantified and fully assessed reserves of raw materials in fully controlled land for
which we have the mining rights and have or expect the necessary administrative permits for mining operations.

Major spare parts and stand-by equipment are classified as property, plant, equipment, and mineral deposits and are included in the machinery and equipment category.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date. Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount (refer to Note 1.7).

Items of Property, plant and equipment are derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from their use or disposal. Gains and losses on
disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts. Impairment losses are measured as the difference between the carrying value and the recoverable
amount which is the value-in-use. Both gains and losses on disposals and impairment losses are included in cost of goods sold or general and administrative expense,
depending on their nature.

Interest costs on borrowings specifically used to finance the construction of Property, plant and equipment are capitalized during the construction period if the criteria for
recognition are met. To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible for
capitalization is determined by applying a capitalization rate to the expenditures on that asset. The capitalization rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable
to the borrowings of
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the Company that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset (refer to Note 1.23).

1.5. Intangible assets

    (a)    Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and represents the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognized for non-controlling
interest over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the
gain is recognized in profit or loss.

Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arising from assets that are not capable of being individually identified and separately recognized in a business combination.
Goodwill is not amortized. After initial recognition, it is measured at cost less any impairment losses.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Company’s cash-generating units
(CGU’s) that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the Company at which goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the CGU level.

Impairment testing is performed annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is compared
to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of the value-in-use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any impairment is recognized immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.

(b) Software

Costs associated with maintaining software programs are recognized as an expense as incurred. Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of
identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Company are recognized as intangible assets where the following criteria are met:

• it is technically feasible to complete the software so that it will be available for use;

• management intends to complete the software and use it;

• there is an ability to use the software;

• it can be demonstrated how the software will generate probable future economic benefits;

• adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use the software are available; and

• the expenditure attributable to the software during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalized as part of the software include employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. Capitalized development costs
are recorded as intangible assets and amortized over its economic useful life from the point at which the asset is ready for use.

(c) Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured at cost upon initial recognition. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date
of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and instead recognized in profit and loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.
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The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over their economic useful life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of realization of the future economic benefits are considered in modifying the amortization period or method,
as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. Amortization expense on intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognized in the Consolidated
Statements of Income in the expense category that best reflects the assets’ function.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized. They are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the CGU level. The assessment of indefinite
life is reviewed annually to determine whether it continues to be supportable. If not, a change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income in the expense category that best reflects the asset’s nature.

The estimated useful lives for the major components of intangible assets are:

Years
Customer Relationships 5 -7
Software 7
Tradenames Indefinite

1.6. Deferred stripping costs

Stripping costs comprise the removal of overburden and other waste products at a quarry or mine. Stripping costs incurred in the development of a quarry or mine before
production commences, and as new areas of mining are developed, are included in the carrying amount of the related quarry or mine, under property, plant, equipment and
mineral deposits. These costs are subsequently depreciated on a units-of-production basis.

1.7. Impairment of non-financial assets other than Goodwill

Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

For the purpose of testing for impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (CGU). Impairment losses recognized on
non-financial assets other than goodwill are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
CGU’s fair value less costs to sell and its value-in-use. Recoverable amount is determined for each asset individually, except for those that do not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset or CGU is impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount.

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually for impairment. Intangible assets that are subject to amortization are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized
immediately as an expense for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
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1.8. Leases

Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability at the date of the commencement of the lease. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date. It is discounted by using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the incremental borrowing rate (IBR). The IBR is the secured rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value in a similar economic environment with similar terms and conditions.

The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased by lease payments made. It is re-measured when there is a change in future
lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, a change in the estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or as appropriate,
changes in the assessment of whether a purchase or extension option is reasonably certain to be exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following:

• lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments);

• variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate;

• amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; and

• the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently, at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for certain re-measurements of the
lease liability.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the lease-term, except where there is a purchase option that is reasonably certain of being exercised. In that case, the right-of-
use asset is depreciated over its estimated useful life in accordance with the estimates disclosed in Note 1.4.

The initial measurement of the right-of-use asset is comprised of:

• the amount of the initial lease liability;

• any lease payments made at or before the commencement date; less any lease incentives received;

• any initial direct costs, and

• restoration or return costs.

The Company leases various types of land, buildings, equipment and motor vehicles and has applied judgment to determine the lease term for contracts that include renewal
options. The assessment of whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise such options impacts the lease term, which could materially affect the amount of lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets recognized. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain different terms and conditions. Some leases have fixed price
increases, while others have increases based on changes in price indices.

Machinery & equipment and motor vehicle contracts generally have fixed terms from 3-8 years, with some having fair value or fixed-price purchase options and/or renewal
options. Renewal options on these types of contracts are generally for short durations. Land and building contracts generally have fixed terms from 5-10 years. These types of
contracts can have multiple renewal options that extend over a material number of additional years.
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Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognized on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less without a purchase option. Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and small items of office furniture.

1.9. Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using a weighted average cost method. The cost of finished goods and work in process
comprises direct materials, direct labor and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal operating
capacity.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the costs of completion and direct selling expenses.

Spare parts classified as inventory are items awaiting use in the production process (repairs and maintenance) that are not otherwise classified as property, plant, equipment and
mineral deposits (Note 1.4).

1.10. Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for products sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. The Company maintains two different portfolios
of trade receivables:

• Portfolio one consists of receivables in a hold to collect model. These receivables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled in accordance with the terms of the
contracts. If collection is expected in one year or less, they are classified as current assets at amortized cost. If not, they are presented as non-current assets. They are
initially recorded at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any provision for impairment.

• Portfolio two consists of receivables in a hold to sell model as further described in Note 2.2(b) and 7. Receivables in this portfolio are measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

1.11. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits held by banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

Cash equivalents also include deposits in transit from credit card companies that have been authorized by the respective credit card company and submitted for processing by
the Company. Such amounts are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash requirements, rather than for investment or other purposes, and are readily convertible to a
known amount of cash.

1.12. Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recorded at fair value net of transaction costs incurred. In subsequent periods, borrowings are carried at amortized cost in accordance with the effective
interest method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and redemption value is recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

1.13. Current and deferred income taxes

Titan America is subject to income taxes in Belgium. Titan Atlantic is subject to income taxes in the United States and in Greece. Additionally, ST Equipment & Technology
Trading Company LLC (“Trading Co”), a subsidiary of Titan America, has elected to be treated as a corporation for income tax purposes. As such, Trading Co will file a
separate tax return; however, its activity is included in Titan America’s results.
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The tax expense for the period is comprised of current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax is calculated based on the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
where the tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions when appropriate based on the amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognized using the liability method on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements. However, if the deferred income tax arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit and loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, it is not accounted for.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realized or the related deferred income tax liability is settled.

1.14.    Employee benefits

(a)    Pension and other retirement obligations

The Company sponsors both defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Company pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Company has no legal or constructive obligation to make additional contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employee benefits related to the current and prior years. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan and is funded by the Company.

Typically, defined benefit plans set the amount of pension benefits employees will receive upon retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of
service and compensation.

The liability recognized in the Statements of Financial Position related to the defined benefit and other post-retirement benefit plan represents the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the reporting date less the fair value of plan assets.

The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds, which have terms to maturity similar to the terms of the
related pension obligation.

Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss on the earlier of:

• the date of the plan amendment or curtailment, or

• the date the Company recognizes restructuring related costs.
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Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit
obligation:

• service costs, comprising current service cost, past-service cost, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements under cost of goods sold, and

• net interest expense or income under finance cost.

Remeasurements related to actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), are recognized immediately in the Statements of Financial Position
with a corresponding charge or credit to member’s equity through Other Comprehensive Income. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Company pays contributions to privately administered plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. Once the contributions have
been paid, the Company has no further payment obligations. The regular contributions constitute net periodic costs for the year in which they are due and are included in
payroll and related expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Income as incurred.

(b) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when an employee is terminated by the Company, or when an employee accepts voluntary separation from the Company in exchange for these
benefits. The Company recognizes termination benefits at the earlier of: a) the date the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and b) when the Company
recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of IAS 37 that involves the payment of termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
separation, the termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than one year after the end of a
reporting period are discounted to present value.

(c) Bonus plan

A liability for employee benefits in the form of a bonus plan is recognized in accrued expenses when the following conditions are met:

•  there is a formal plan and the amounts to be paid are determined prior to issuance of the financial statements; or

• past practice has created a valid expectation by employees that they will receive a bonus payment and the amount can be determined prior to issuance of the financial
statements.

(d)  Share-based compensation

Restricted stock incentive plans

TCI operates an equity-settled share-based compensation plan. The Company recognizes the fair value of the employee service received in exchange for the grant of TCI stock
options as an expense.

Prior to 2020, share options were granted to certain members of senior management and other employees of the Company at a discount to the market price of the shares on the
respective dates of the grants and were exercisable at those prices. Generally, the options could only be exercised within the year vested or within the first two months of the
year following the vesting date. The plan had a contractual option term of three years.

The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant of the options was recognized as an expense during the vesting period, which is the period over
which all of the specific vesting conditions are to be satisfied. The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted specified by the date of grant and:
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• include any market performance conditions (for example, the entity’s share price);

• exclude the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an employee of the
Company over a specified time period); and

• include the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

At the end of each reporting period, the Company revised its estimates of the number of options that were expected to vest (which were limited to non-market vesting
conditions) and recognized the impact of the revision to the original estimates, if any, in the Consolidated Statements of Income under general and administrative expense, with
a corresponding adjustment to equity.

Long-term incentive plan (LTIP)

In May 2020, TCI adopted a new long-term share-based incentive plan. Participants in the plan are awarded a conditional grant of TCI shadow shares at no consideration in
April (or later) of each year. The awards have no dividend or voting rights.

The number of shadow shares granted to each participant is determined by the award amount (expressed in US Dollars or Euros) and the value of the shadow share. The value
of the shadow share is equal to the average TCI share closing price on Euronext Brussels during the last seven trading days of March of the grant year.

The vesting period of the awards is as follows:

• 50% at the completion of a three-year period, and

• 50% at the completion of a four-year period.

The awards vest at the designated dates, provided that the participants are still working for the Company or any other subsidiary or affiliate of TCI.

At vesting, participants receive their vested awards in TCI shares.

The Company receives services from its employees, but TCI has the obligation to settle the awards. As a result, the Company accounts for the plan as an equity-settled
transaction by recognizing the fair value of the services it receives from the participants in the Consolidated Statements of Income under general and administrative expense,
with a corresponding adjustment to equity during the vesting period.

1.15.     Provisions

Provisions represent liabilities of uncertain timing or amount and are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Where the Company expects a provision to be
reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when reimbursement is virtually certain. Expenses related to
provisions are presented in the Consolidated Statements of Income net of any reimbursement.

Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses. The Company recognizes a provision for onerous contracts when the economic benefits to be derived from a contract
are less than the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract.

Where the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are measured at the present value of the amount expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
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the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost (refer to Note 21).

1.16. Provisions for restoration, environmental and equipment removal obligations

The Company is required to restore the land used for quarries and processing sites at the end of their productive lives to a condition acceptable for the relevant authorities and
consistent with the Company’s environmental policies. Provisions for restoration, environmental and equipment removal obligations are recognized when the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated.

Estimated costs associated with such rehabilitation activities represent management’s best estimate of expenditures required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet
date and are measured at the present value of future cash outflows expected to be incurred. Such cost estimates, initially expressed at current price levels, are adjusted for
inflation (between 2.25% and 2.44% at December 31, 2024, between 2.34% and 2.89% at December 31, 2023, and between 2.35% and 3.0% at December 31, 2022) to reflect
expected annual cost increases between the date of the estimate and the forecasted payment date. The estimates are then discounted to present value at a rate consistent with the
duration of the liability. Where a closure and restoration obligation arises from quarry/mine development activities or relates to the decommissioning of property, plant and
equipment, the provision can be capitalized as part of the cost of the associated asset (intangible or tangible). The capitalized cost is depreciated over the useful life of the asset
and any change in the net present value of the expected liability is included in finance cost, unless it arises from changes in valuation assumptions. Each year, the provisions are
increased to reflect accretion of the discount, with these charges recorded as a component of finance cost. 

Provisions associated with environmental damage represent the estimated future cost of remediation. Estimating the future costs of these obligations is complex and requires
the Company to use judgment. The estimation of these costs is based on an evaluation of currently available facts with respect to each individual site and considers factors such
as existing technology, currently enacted laws and regulations and prior experience in site remediation (refer to Note 21).

1.17. Revenue recognition

Revenue is the amount of consideration expected to be received in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf
of third parties (sales taxes, etc.). Some of the contracts offer discounts for prompt payment. Variable consideration is included in the transaction price to the extent it is
probable that a significant reversal of revenue will not occur and is estimated at contract inception using either the expected value method, or the most likely amount method.
Historical experience, market trends and industry data are considered when determining such estimates. The Company reassesses variable consideration at the end of each
reporting period as additional information becomes available.

Revenue is recognized when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied by transferring the control of a promised good or service to the customer. A customer obtains control
of a good or service if it has the ability to direct the use of and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits from that good or service. Control is transferred over time or at
a point in time. Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when control of the goods is transferred to the customer, usually upon delivery, and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products.

1.18. Financial assets

The Company initially measures a financial asset at fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Transaction costs
associated with financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed. Trade receivables are initially measured at their transaction price.

The Company’s financial assets comprise trade and other receivables and derivative credit support payments, carried at cost, and derivative financial instruments classified as at
fair value through profit or loss.
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1.19. Impairment of financial assets

The Company records an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all financial assets not held at fair value through profit and loss (FVPL).

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive. The
shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the asset’s original effective interest rate. For trade and other receivables, the Company has applied the standard’s simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime expected credit losses.

1.20.     Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognized at fair value upon both initial recognition and subsequently. Derivatives are presented as financial assets when the fair value is
positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are recorded directly in the
Consolidated Statements of Income, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI) and subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item affects profit or loss.

Periodically, the Company may enter into a cash flow hedge for a portion of its natural gas or other commodity price risk exposures. The cash flow hedge accounting model
applies when hedging exposure to variability in cash flows attributable to a specific risk associated with a recognized asset or liability, an unrecognized firm commitment
(currency risk only) or a highly probable forecasted transaction, that could impact profit or loss. Further details about the hedge are provided in Note 25.

1.21. Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

(a) Financial assets

A financial asset (or a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

• the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

• the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset but has assumed an obligation to transfer such cash flows without material delay to a third party
under a “pass-through” arrangement; or

• the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assets, or (b) has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset,
nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. A corresponding liability is also recognized.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

(b) Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income.
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1.22.     Fair value measurement

The Company uses the following valuation hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of its financial assets and liabilities:

• Level 1: based on quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

• Level 2: based on valuation techniques whereby all inputs having a material effect on the fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly, and include quoted
prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not actively traded.

• Level 3: based on valuation techniques whereby all inputs having a material effect on the fair value are not derived from observable market data.

On December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company held derivative financial instruments that were recorded at fair value in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
(Level 2). The Company also had long and short-term borrowings that were recorded at amortized cost. The fair value of these borrowings (Level 3) is disclosed in Note 18.

1.23. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset (an asset that takes a substantial period of time (greater than one year)
to get ready for its intended use or sale) are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the Consolidated Statements of
Income in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of finance and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Capitalized
interest is presented in investing activities in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

1.24. Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are initially recorded at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

2. Significant accounting estimates and critical judgments

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts and disclosures. Estimates and judgments
are continuously evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations about future events believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Such estimates and assumptions form the basis in making judgments to determine the carrying value of assets and liabilities not readily available from other sources. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have higher degree of judgment or complexity, and of
items which are more likely to be materially adjusted within the next financial year are discussed below.
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2.1. Significant accounting estimates and changes in estimates:

(a) Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their estimated useful lives. The actual lives of the assets are assessed annually and may vary depending on a number of
factors. In reassessing asset lives, factors such as technological innovation, product lifecycles, life-of-mine and maintenance programs are considered. A one-year increase in
the assumed asset lives would increase income before income taxes by $7,800 for the year ended December 31, 2024. A one-year decrease in the assumed asset lives would
decrease income before income taxes by $9,925 for the year ended December 31, 2024.

(b) Goodwill

Impairment tests of goodwill use the recoverable amounts of CGU that are determined based on value-in-use calculations in Note 13.

(c) Valuation of financial instruments

The valuation of derivative financial instruments is based on the market position provided by the counterparty financial institutions at the reporting date. Further information on
financial instruments is provided in Note 9.

(d) Provisions for restoration, environmental and equipment removal obligations

Estimating provisions for restoration, environmental and equipment removal obligations involves inherent uncertainty due to unknown conditions, changing governmental
regulations and legal standards regarding the liabilities, the length of the clean-up periods and evolving technologies. The restoration, environmental and equipment removal
provisions reflect the information available to management at the time of determination of the liability and are adjusted periodically as remediation efforts progress or as
additional technical or legal information becomes available.

The calculation of provisions for restoration, environmental and equipment removal obligations is most sensitive to the following assumptions:

• Current estimated costs;

• Inflation rates; and

• Discount rates.

See Note 21 for further information about provisions for restoration, environmental and equipment removal obligations.

2.2. Critical judgments:

(a) Interest in unconsolidated entities

The Company has an agreement with a Special Purpose Entity (“SPE”) under which trade accounts receivable, originated by certain of the Company’s operating subsidiaries,
are aggregated and sold to the SPE (which was established to house and manage the trade accounts receivable) in exchange for cash and interest-bearing notes receivable.

Management determined the most relevant activity of the SPE to be the management of impaired trade accounts receivable within the overall portfolio of trade accounts
receivable owned by the SPE, as this activity has the greatest impact on credit losses incurred, and hence, the variability of the SPE’s returns. The entities most exposed to
variable returns are (i) the Company which holds the most subordinated interest in the SPE, as well as the third most subordinated interest, and (ii) an unrelated party (the
“Control Party”) which holds the second most subordinated interest and retains the right to manage the impaired accounts receivable and substantive rights to replace the
Company as servicer of the SPE. As a result, the Company does not consolidate the SPE.
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(b) Derecognition of trade accounts receivable transferred to the SPE

As noted in Note 2.2(a) the Company does not consolidate the SPE, but rather sells it qualifying trade accounts receivable originated by certain of the Company’s operating
subsidiaries in exchange for cash and interest-bearing notes receivable. As a result of the arrangement, the Company transfers its rights to receive the cash flows from the trade
accounts receivable sold to the SPE. Credit losses within the SPE are shared among the lenders to the SPE based on the seniority of their loans to the SPE. Based on the current
level of bad debts in the entity and an associated analysis of the risks and rewards of receivables transferred to the SPE, the Company has concluded that it is appropriate to
derecognize the receivables at the time of sale.

At December 31, 2024, expected credit losses within the SPE total $329, and, if realized, would be allocated first to the Company’s junior subordinated note (which is fully
reserved for in the accompanying financial statements) and the Control Party’s intermediate subordinated note.

Additional details about the SPE can be found in Note 7.

(c) Determination of lease terms under IFRS 16

Extension options are included in a number of property and equipment leases across the Company. A limited number of leases contain termination options, and these are
generally only exercisable by the Company. In determining the lease term, the Company considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an
extension option. Extension options are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended.

In determining the lease term, the Company considers the contractual terms, termination costs and strategic importance of the assets to the operations (in addition to the
significance of investments undertaken or planned in connection with leased properties). The reasonably certain assessment is only revised if a material event or a material
change in circumstance occurs that is within the control of the Company.

As of December 31, 2024, potential future cash flows of $41,700 (undiscounted) were not included in the lease liability due to it not being reasonably certain that the lease
terms would be extended.

3. Revenue

Substantially all of the Company’s revenue is derived from sales of cement, fly ash, aggregates, ready-mix concrete and concrete blocks. Sales transactions result from
customer requests (an “Order”) received in response to Company quotes or negotiated purchase orders. An Order specifies products, contractual terms and conditions,
estimated quantities, and pre-determined prices over established time periods. Once an Order is in place, the customer requests the delivery of specific products and volumes
under the general terms and conditions contained therein.

Products generally remain the property of the Company until received by the customer, and the Company provides a warranty that the materials comply with the specifications
contained in the Order. The contracts can generally be cancelled with or without cause at any time, with each party having responsibility for any rights and obligations accrued
up to the time of termination. Each request by a customer under an Order produces a sales contract for the goods specified in such request. The Order does not create
enforceable rights or obligations on their own (an additional purchasing decision is required on the part of the customer). The warranties provided are assurance-type warranties
and do not create separate performance obligations.

Control over the goods subject to each sales contract transfers at a point in time. For standard products, customer acceptance is generally considered a formality, and control
generally transfers (and revenue is recognized) upon shipment or delivery.

Promised goods may be subject to bill-and-hold arrangements; however, this is very rare. Given the nature of the products (not separately identifiable and ability of the business
to direct the inventory to another customer), customers do not obtain control under bill-and-hold arrangements prior to shipment, and since the businesses do not bill customers
prior to shipment, these arrangements do not impact revenue recognition.
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The transaction price for each sales contract is determined by reference to the quantity requested and price established in the Order. Some of the contracts offer discounts for
prompt payment. In these cases, revenue is recorded in the amount the business expects to be entitled to.

Some agreements may involve the payment of sales incentives. When paid in connection with the acquisition of an Order, which does not create a performance obligation at
inception, commissions are expensed as incurred. In all cases, the amounts are immaterial and pertain to short-term sales contracts. Additional contract fulfillment costs may
include insurance, on-site labor, shipping costs and the removal or replacement of materials under warranty. Given the short-term nature of the sales contracts, the Company
does not capitalize such amounts. However, estimated removal or replacement costs of materials under warranty are included in the obligation for accrued warranty costs.

The components of revenue for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 are as follows:

2024 2023 2022

Cement $ 639,312 $ 657,332 $ 560,320 
Aggregates 82,190 83,438 79,147 
Ready-mix concrete 735,174 688,236 589,553 
Concrete block and related products 153,474 140,128 116,929 
Fly ash 21,954 19,833 15,687 
Equipment and related services 1,872 1,986 2,253 
Other goods and services 417 648 257 
Revenue $ 1,634,393 $ 1,591,601 $ 1,364,146 
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4. Cost of goods sold

The components of cost of goods sold for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:
2024 2023 2022

Material and other inventory costs $ 539,006 $ 569,794 $ 516,377 
Inventory change (27,408) (9,278) (10,990)
Payroll and employee related expenses 277,913 257,919 227,897 
Energy and Fuel Costs 96,346 104,619 122,012 
Depreciation, depletion, and amortization 84,855 79,360 78,571 
Freight expense 49,988 55,313 59,529 
Distribution expense 77,790 71,343 64,350 
Repairs and maintenance 50,892 40,133 33,450 
Utilities 3,404 3,436 3,000 
Taxes and fees, other than income taxes 16,898 15,934 13,527 
Short-term lease rentals 24,810 22,325 13,587 
Risk insurance, including loss retention 15,239 12,201 13,167 
Travel, training, and other employee expense 3,197 2,877 2,821 
Other 4,808 2,136 5,582 
Total cost of goods sold $ 1,217,738 $ 1,228,112 $ 1,142,880 
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5. Selling expense
The components of selling expense for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

2024 2023 2022

Payroll and employee related expenses $ 17,099 $ 17,197 $ 17,321 
Overhead (dues, professional fees, credit card fees, etc.) 14,217 11,718 10,469 
Travel, entertainment, and other employee expense 1,745 1,696 1,417 
Other selling expenses 562 398 731 
Total selling expense $ 33,623 $ 31,009 $ 29,938 

6. General and administrative expense
The components of general and administrative expense for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, are as follows:

2024 2023 2022

Payroll and employee related expense $ 59,409 $ 54,399 $ 50,045 
Depreciation and amortization 8,559 8,138 6,245 
Management fees 14,843 11,405 9,868 
Service contracts 10,636 5,030 4,311 
Office costs 5,319 5,565 5,029 
Bank fees 416 527 650 
Professional fees 22,604 9,616 6,535 
Travel, entertainment and auto expense 2,705 2,802 2,168 
Other 4,439 2,427 2,662 
Total general and administrative expense $ 128,930 $ 99,909 $ 87,513 

7. Fair value loss on sale of accounts receivable, net

As discussed in note 2.2(b), the Company has an accounts receivable (“AR”) sale agreement with an unrelated third party (the “Special Purpose Entity” or “SPE”) whereby
trade accounts receivable, originated by certain of the Company’s operating subsidiaries (the “Originators”), are aggregated, sold to the Company, and on-sold by the Company
to the SPE in exchange for cash and interest-bearing notes receivable. Under the terms of the agreement, the sale of accounts receivable is made on a continuing, fair value,
non-recourse basis (as to collectability) at a discount representing the time value of money and risk of collectability, among other factors. The SPE does, however, have
recourse against the Company for any: 1) voluntary adjustments (e.g., quality allowances, etc.) of customer obligations by the Company or the Originators; 2) corrections of
product quantity, pricing (including nominal short-pay auto tolerances), or other billing errors made by the Company or the Originators subsequent to the date of invoice; and 3)
customer offsets against receivables sold to the SPE (e.g., back charges and volume rebates).

By agreement among the parties, the Company acts as “Servicer” of the accounts receivable sold to the SPE. As Servicer, the Company provides credit administration, billing,
collections, cash application and data reporting services. The SPE pays a servicing fee to the Company. However, as discussed in note 2.2 (a), an unrelated party retains the
right to manage the impaired accounts receivable of the SPE and can replace the Company as servicer of such receivables at its sole discretion.
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7. Fair value loss on sale of accounts receivable, net (continued)
Net of interest earned on the note receivable and servicing and other fees paid to the Company, the Company recognized a fair value loss on sale of receivables of $4,620,
$6,113, and $3,041 in 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The Company may incur losses on its notes and miscellaneous receivables due from the SPE if the amount of credit
losses on the underlying receivables sold to the SPE exceeds the value of the control party’s note due from the SPE by the amount of $1,868 as of December 31, 2024 ($1,565
as of December 31, 2023). The notes and miscellaneous receivables, net due from the SPE at December 31, 2024 and 2023 are $51,931, and $59,346, respectively (see Note
17), representing the Company’s maximum exposure to loss from its interest in the SPE. During 2024, the Company sold $1,248,935 of trade accounts receivable to the SPE
($1,181,511 in 2023 and $987,208 in 2022).

8. Finance cost, net

The components of finance cost for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, are as follows:

2024 2023 2022

Interest expense on borrowings, including leases $ 25,846 $ 23,545 $ 21,818 
Line of credit commitment fees 657 694 710 
Net interest costs on pension and OPEB benefits 37 64 39 
Accretion expense on provisions 2,309 1,813 976 
(Benefit)/cost from interest rate swap (71) 186 (3,461)
Capitalized interest (732) (2,826) (466)
Finance income (1,468) (950) (436)
Other (403) (282) (102)
Total finance cost, net $ 26,175 $ 22,244 $ 19,078 

9. Foreign exchange and derivative financial instruments

Foreign exchange gains/(losses) are comprised of gains and losses associated with the remeasurement and settlement of foreign currency denominated financial assets and
liabilities. For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company recorded a net foreign exchange gain of $20,846.

€150,000
Fixed Rate

Loan (a)

€120,000
Fixed Rate
Loan (b)

€100,000
Fixed Rate

Loan (c)

€50,000
Fixed Rate
Loan (d)

€32,800
Fixed Rate

Loan

Euro
Revolving

Credit Facility
("RCF") Other Total

Foreign exchange gains/(losses) arising from:
Remeasurement and settlement of Euro denominated loan
obligations (principal) $ 2,910 $ 5,604 $ 6,150 $ 3,178 $ 2,168 $ 2,158 $ — $ 22,168 
Remeasurement and settlement of Euro denominated loan
obligations (finance cost) 6 $ 62 111 49 30 13 — 271 
Other — $ — — — — — (1,593) (1,593)

Total foreign exchange gains/(losses) in 2024 $ 2,916 $ 5,666 $ 6,261 $ 3,227 $ 2,198 $ 2,171 $ (1,593) $ 20,846 

                                                                                                                                      

(a) Note obtained November 15, 2024

(b) Note matured November 15, 2024

(c) Note increased from €75,000 to €100,000 from amendment dated April 29, 2024

(d) Note increased from €45,000 to €50,000 from amendment dated April 29, 2024
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9. Foreign exchange and derivative financial instruments (continued)

The Company entered into derivative financial instruments to manage certain of its foreign currency and interest rate exposures. For the year ended December 31, 2024, the
Company recorded a net loss on derivative financial instruments of $22,441, resulting in an overall net foreign exchange and financial instrument loss of $1,595. The following
table demonstrates the types of derivative financial instruments entered into with respect to the above instruments and the composition of the net gain recognized in 2024:

€150,000 Cross
Currency Interest

Rate
Swaps

€150,000 Cross
Currency Interest

Rate
Swaps

€150,000 Cross
Currency Interest

Rate
Swaps

Foreign
Exchange
Forwards Total

Cross Currency Interest Rate Swap Maturity 2024 2027 2029
Derivative financial instrument losses in 2024 $ (5,348) $ (2,958) $ (5,461) $ (8,674) $ (22,441)

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company recorded a net foreign exchange loss of $11,981:

€120,000 Fixed
Rate Loan

€75,000 Fixed
Rate Loan

€45,000 Fixed
Rate Loan

€32,800 Fixed
Rate Loan

Euro
Revolving

Credit Facility
("RCF") Other Total

Foreign exchange gains/(losses) arising from:
Remeasurement and settlement of Euro denominated loan obligations
(principal) $ (4,608) $ (2,880) $ (1,728) $ (1,260) $ (1,528) $ — $(12,004)
Remeasurement and settlement of Euro denominated loan obligations
(finance cost) (35) (22) (7) (11) (8) — (83)
Other — — — — — 106 106 

Total foreign exchange gains/(losses) in 2023 $ (4,643) $ (2,902) $ (1,735) $ (1,271) $ (1,536) $ 106 $ (11,981)

                                                                                                                            

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company recorded a net gain on derivative financial instruments of $10,967, resulting in an overall net foreign exchange and
financial instrument loss of $1,014. The following table demonstrates the types of derivative financial instruments entered into with respect to the above instruments and the
composition of the net gain recognized in 2023:

€150,000 Cross
Currency

Interest Rate
Swaps

€50,800
Foreign

Exchange
Forwards

€42,000
Foreign

Exchange
Forwards

€30,000
Foreign

Exchange
Forwards

Euro
Revolving

Credit Facility
("RCF")
Forwards

Other Foreign
Exchange
Forwards Total

Derivative financial instrument gains in 2023 $ 7,684 $ 787 $ 645 $ 448 $ 1,402 $ 1 $ 10,967 
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9. Foreign exchange and derivative financial instruments (continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company recorded a net foreign exchange gain of $19,990:

€120,000 Fixed
Rate Loan

€75,000 Fixed
Rate Loan

€45,000 Fixed
Rate Loan

€32,800 Fixed
Rate Loan

Euro
Revolving

Credit Facility
("RCF") Other Total

Foreign exchange gains/(losses) arising from:
Remeasurement and settlement of Euro denominated loan
obligations (principal) $ 9,315 $ 4,950 $ 2,970 $ 2,165 $ 92 $ — $ 19,492 
Remeasurement and settlement of Euro denominated loan
obligations (finance cost) (80) 49 57 27 1 — 54 
Other — — — — — 444 444 

Total foreign exchange gains/(losses) in 2022 $ 9,235 $ 4,999 $ 3,027 $ 2,192 $ 93 $ 444 $ 19,990 
                                                                     

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company recorded a net loss on derivative financial instruments of $18,534, resulting in an overall net foreign exchange and
financial instrument gain of $1,456. The following table demonstrates the types of derivative financial instruments entered into with respect to the above instruments and the
composition of the net loss recognized in 2022:

€150,000 Cross
Currency

Interest Rate
Swaps

€50,800
Foreign

Exchange
Forwards

€42,000
Foreign

Exchange
Forwards

€30,000
Foreign

Exchange
Forwards

Euro Revolving
Credit Facility

("RCF")
Forwards

Other Foreign
Exchange
Forwards Total

Derivative financial instrument gains in 2022 $ (6,274) $ (5,058) $ (4,401) $ (2,802) $ — $ 1 $ (18,534)
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9. Foreign exchange and derivative financial instruments (continued)

Activity within the Company’s derivative financial instruments for the years ended December 31, 2024, December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 consists of the following:

Derivative Financial Instruments - Asset/(Liability)

Cross Currency
Interest Rate

Swaps
Economic Hedge

Interest Rate
Swaps

Foreign
Exchange
Forwards
Economic

Hedge

Natural Gas
Futures

Cash Flow
Hedge

Total
Derivatives

Credit
Support

Payments/
(Receipts)

Net
Exposure

 January 1, 2022 $ (11,922) — $ (3,727) $ (1,228) $ (16,877) $ 16,390 $ (487)
Gain/(Loss) on derivative financial instruments (6,274) — (12,260) — (18,534) — (18,534)
Gain/(Loss) on derivative financial instruments through
OCI — — — 4,267 4,267 — 4,267 
Gain/(Loss) on derivative financial instruments through
finance costs — 3,461 — — 3,461 — 3,461 
Settlement of derivative financial instruments — 250 19,827 (5,969) 14,108 — 14,108 
Credit support receipts on derivative financial instruments,
net — — — — — (633) (633)
December 31, 2022 $ (18,196) $ 3,711 $ 3,840 $ (2,930) $ (13,575) $ 15,757 $ 2,182 
Gain/(Loss) on derivative financial instruments 7,684 — 3,283 — 10,967 — 10,967 
Gain/(Loss) on derivative financial instruments through
OCI — — — (4,387) (4,387) — (4,387)
Gain/(Loss) on derivative financial instruments through
finance costs — (186) — — (186) — (186)
Settlement of derivative financial instruments — (1,453) (1,819) 7,327 4,055 — 4,055 
Credit support receipts on derivative financial instruments,
net — — — — — (11,429) (11,429)

December 31, 2023 $ (10,512) $ 2,072 $ 5,304 $ 10 $ (3,126) $ 4,328 $ 1,202 

Gain/(Loss) on derivative financial instruments (13,766) — (8,675) — (22,441) — (22,441)
Gain/(Loss) on derivative financial instruments through
OCI — — — (110) (110) — (110)
Gain/(Loss) on derivative financial instruments through
finance costs — 71 — — 71 — 71 
Settlement of derivative financial instruments 15,860 (1,434) 2,357 100 16,883 — 16,883 
Credit support receipts on derivative financial instruments,
net — — — — — (243) (243)

December 31, 2024 $ (8,418) $ 709 $ (1,014) $ — $ (8,723) $ 4,085 $ (4,638)

As described further in Note 25, the Company’s risk management strategy involves the use of cross-currency and interest rate swaps, and forward foreign exchange and
commodities contracts.

• Cross-currency and interest rate swaps are used to fix the U.S. Dollar cashflows (principal and interest) associated with Euro denominated borrowings. Over the life of
the instruments, there is breakage in the derivative mark-to-
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9. Foreign exchange and derivative financial instruments (continued)

• market and foreign exchange gain/loss on borrowings due to the employment of partial term economic hedging strategies, the impact of the yield curve and evolution
of the USD/Euro exchange rate on the derivative valuations.

• Foreign exchange forwards are used to mitigate the variation of the USD/Euro exchange rate for short-term intervals over the life of Euro denominated borrowings.
The Company monitors market expectations for the USD/Euro exchange rate and will periodically buy USD/sell Euro to offset foreign exchange variation on
designated Euro denominated transactions for the duration of the forwards. Over the life of the instruments, there is breakage in the derivative mark-to-market and
foreign exchange gain/loss on borrowings due to the partial term economic hedging strategies and forward points associated with the derivative valuations.

• Natural gas commodities futures may be used to fix the variable component of certain highly probable forecasted purchases.

10. Property, plant, equipment and mineral deposits

Activity within property, plant, equipment and mineral deposits, for the year ended December 31, 2024 consists of the following:

Quarries
Land & Land
Improvements Buildings

Machinery &
equipment

Motor
vehicles

Furniture &
fixtures

Assets under
construction Total

 January 1, 2024 $ 114,537 $ 157,668 $ 59,849 $ 288,025 $ 91,030 $ 4,289 $ 85,633 $ 801,031 

Additions 10,685 — — — — — 128,183 138,868 
Disposals — (163) (46) (911) (1,003) — — (2,123)
Reclassification 2,323 9,040 35,490 61,829 58,784 4,362 (171,828) — 
Provision adjustments (1,659) (17) (1) (1,438) — — — (3,115)
Capitalized interest — — — — — — 732 732 
Depreciation, depletion, &
amortization (DD&A) (11,301) (2,913) (5,725) (38,619) (24,026) (1,076) — (83,660)
December 31, 2024 $ 114,585 $ 163,615 $ 89,567 $ 308,886 $ 124,785 $ 7,575 $ 42,720 $ 851,733 
As of December 31, 2024
Cost 266,275 225,351 185,795 994,491 344,003 22,733 49,215 2,087,863 
Accumulated DD&A (150,685) (59,736) (96,228) (685,236) (219,218) (15,158) (6,495) (1,232,756)
Impairment reserve (1,005) (2,000) — (369) — — — (3,374)
Net book value $ 114,585 $ 163,615 $ 89,567 $ 308,886 $ 124,785 $ 7,575 $ 42,720 $ 851,733 
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10. Property, plant, equipment and mineral deposits (continued)

The above amounts consist of assets owned by the Company. Refer to Note 11 for information about right-of-use assets. At December 31, 2024, the Company had accruals for
capital projects totaling $15,128 and for the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company capitalized $732 of interest based on a capitalization rate of 6.09%. Management did
not identify any events or changes in circumstances to indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.                                                                                                    

Activity within property, plant, equipment and mineral deposits, for the year ended December 31, 2023 consists of the following

Quarries
Land & Land
Improvements Buildings

Machinery &
equipment Motor vehicles

Furniture &
fixtures

Assets under
construction Total

January 1, 2023 $ 113,948 $ 151,346 $ 35,740 $ 283,321 $ 87,928 $ 921 $ 75,062 $ 748,266 
Additions 7,917 — — 681 — — 111,521 120,119 
Disposals — — (255) (3,405) (339) — — (3,999)
Reclassification 47 7,070 27,775 43,342 22,557 4,180 (104,309) 662 
Provision adjustments 4,778 (32) 118 2,885 — — — 7,749 
Capitalized interest — — — — — — 2,826 2,826 
Depreciation, depletion, &
amortization (DD&A) (11,148) (2,166) (3,529) (38,430) (19,116) (812) — (75,201)
Impairment reserve (1,005) 1,450 — (369) — — 533 609 
December 31, 2023 $ 114,537 $ 157,668 $ 59,849 $ 288,025 $ 91,030 $ 4,289 $ 85,633 $ 801,031 

As of December 31, 2023
Cost 254,832 216,944 150,219 957,365 313,197 19,248 90,670 2,002,475 
Accumulated DD&A (139,290) (57,276) (90,370) (668,971) (222,167) (14,959) (5,037) (1,198,070)
Impairment reserve (1,005) (2,000) — (369) — — — (3,374)
Net book value $ 114,537 $ 157,668 $ 59,849 $ 288,025 $ 91,030 $ 4,289 $ 85,633 $ 801,031 

The above amounts consist of assets owned by the Company. Refer to Note 11 for information about right-of-use assets. At December 31, 2023, the Company had accruals for
capital projects totaling $11,683 and for the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company capitalized $2,826 of interest based on a capitalization rate of 5.51%. Management
did not identify any events or changes in circumstances to indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
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11. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

The Consolidated Statements of Financial Position includes the following amounts related to leases:

December 31 December 31
2024 2023

Right-of-use assets
Land & land improvements $ 17,112 $ 18,219 
Buildings 23,445 17,004 
Machinery & equipment 19,800 22,165 
Motor vehicles 4,331 4,053 

$ 64,688 $ 61,441 

Lease liabilities
Current $ 12,386 $ 11,737 
Non-Current 55,967 53,744 

$ 68,353 $ 65,481 

For the year ended December 31, 2024, additions to right-of-use assets for new leases, lease modifications and lease related obligations totaled $14,665.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, additions to right-of-use assets for new leases, lease modifications and lease related obligations totaled $11,678.

In 2024 and 2023, Management did not identify any events or changes in circumstances to indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

The Consolidated Statements of Income includes the following amounts related to leases:

     

2024 2023 2022
Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets

Land & land improvements $ 2,232 $ 1,849 $ 1,634 
Buildings 2,211 2,153 1,998 
Machinery & equipment 5,806 6,062 6,015 
Motor vehicles 1,395 1,179 985 

$ 11,644 $ 11,243 $ 10,632 

Interest expense on lease liabilities $ 3,798 $ 3,047 $ 2,038 
Expenses relating to short-term leases,
  including leases with a term of one month or less $ 27,395 $ 22,433 $ 14,355 
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets that
  are not shown above as short-term leases $ 21 $ 46 $ 434 
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12. Intangible assets

Activity within intangible assets, for the year ended December 31, 2024 consists of the following:

Customer
relationships Tradenames Software Other Total

January 1, 2024 $ — $ 13,980 $ 18,983 $ 250 $ 33,213 
Additions — — 1,591 — 1,591 
Disposals — — — — — 
Reclassification — — — — — 
Amortization — — (4,540) (97) (4,637)
December 31, 2024 $ — $ 13,980 $ 16,034 $ 153 $ 30,167 

As of December 31, 2024
Cost $ 2,153 $ 13,980 $ 37,854 $ 969 $ 54,956 
Accumulated amortization (2,153) — (21,820) (816) (24,789)
Net book value $ — $ 13,980 $ 16,034 $ 153 $ 30,167 

There were no write-offs of intangible assets for the year ended December 31, 2024.

Activity within intangible assets, net, for the year ended December 31, 2023 consists of the following:

Customer
relationships Tradenames Software Other Total

January 1, 2023 $ 179 $ 13,980 $ 21,509 $ 348 $ 36,016 
Additions — — 1,832 — 1,832 
Amortization (179) — (4,358) (98) (4,635)
December 31, 2023 $ — $ 13,980 $ 18,983 $ 250 $ 33,213 

As of December 31, 2023
Cost $ 2,153 $ 13,980 $ 37,022 $ 969 $ 54,124 
Accumulated amortization (2,153) — (18,039) (719) (20,911)
Net book value $ — $ 13,980 $ 18,983 $ 250 $ 33,213 

As of December 31, 2023, the Company wrote off $9,700 of fully amortized core technology and $58,520 of fully amortized customer relationships since management
concluded that these intangibles no longer had value in use.

Tradenames comprise indefinite-lived intangible assets, which have been allocated to the Mid-Atlantic business unit for purposes of impairment testing. No impairment was
recognized in 2024, 2023, or 2022 (see Note 13 for additional information regarding impairment testing). In 2024, 2023, and 2022, for all other intangible assets, Management
did not identify any events or changes in circumstances to indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
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13. Goodwill
As of December 31, 2024, the Company has not recorded impairment of goodwill or tradenames since the recoverable amounts of the Company’s CGUs are estimated to
exceed their respective carrying amounts.

Impairment testing of goodwill and tradenames

Goodwill acquired through business combinations and tradenames have been allocated to the following CGUs:

2024 2023

Mid-Atlantic Business Unit:
   Goodwill $ 164,768 $ 164,768 
   Tradenames 13,980 13,980 
Florida Business Unit:
   Goodwill $ 56,794 $ 56,794 
Total goodwill and tradenames $ 235,542 $ 235,542 

                                       

Key assumptions

The recoverable amount of all CGUs has been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets
and forecasts approved by Management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated long-term growth rates
described below.

The calculation of value-in-use for the Company’s CGUs is most sensitive to the following assumptions:

• Sales volumes;

• Selling prices;

• Long-term growth rates; and

• Discount rates.

The following tables list the assumptions used in each year’s value-in-use calculations:

2024 2023
Five-year compound annual growth rate - sales volumes
Florida Business Unit 6.4% 5.9%
Mid-Atlantic Business Unit 5.2% 4.1%

Five-year compound annual growth rate - selling prices
Florida Business Unit 1.7% 2.3%
Mid-Atlantic Business Unit 2.8% 2.4%

Long-term growth rate
Florida Business Unit 2.4% 2.4%
Mid-Atlantic Business Unit 2.4% 2.4%
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13. Goodwill (continued)

Sales Volumes

Management estimates sales volumes utilizing independent industry forecasts, taking into consideration its position in the market relative to its competitors. Consistent with
these independent industry forecasts, Management expects construction spending and sales volumes in its key markets to grow during the 2025-2029 period. At December 31,
2024, the date of the most recent impairment test, the Company assumed a weighted average sales volume compound annual growth rates ranging from 1.6% to 9.6% among its
core operating activities of cement, aggregates, and ready-mix concrete for the 2025-2029 period. Lower growth rates were assumed where supply constraints or other limiting
external factors are assumed to exist.

Selling Prices

As part of the December 31, 2024 impairment tests, the Company assumed a weighted average net realized selling price compound annual growth rates generally ranging from
0.6% to 3.4% among its core operating activities of cement, aggregates, and ready-mix concrete for the 2025-2029 period. Lower growth rates were assumed where new
production capacity in relevant markets is expected to increase competitive supply, while higher growth rates were assumed where structural supply constraints are present.

Long-term Growth Rates

Long-term growth rates are used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the 5-year projection period and are based on published industry research, taking into account demographic
trends such as population growth, household formation and economic output (among other factors) in the states where the Company operates. In addition to demographic
trends, long-term growth rates consider cement/concrete intensity in construction which has historically varied from state to state based on building codes, availability of raw
materials and other factors. At December 31, 2024, long-term growth rates were estimated by management to be 2.4% taking into consideration industry projections, inflation
and other economic factors.

Discount Rates

Estimated CGU cash flows are discounted to present value using discount rates reflecting the current market assessment of the risks associated with each CGU. The discount
rate calculation is derived from the Company’s weighted average cost of capital and considers both debt and equity funding costs. The cost of equity is derived from the
expected return on investment by the Company’s investors while the cost of debt is based on the interest-bearing borrowings the Company is obligated to service. An average
pre-tax discount rate of 9.8% and 9.2% was used in the value-in-use calculations at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively.

Sensitivity of recoverable amounts

As part of the December 31, 2024 impairment tests, the Company analyzed the sensitivities of the recoverable amounts to a reasonably possible change in key assumptions.
These analyses did not show a situation in which the carrying value of the CGUs would exceed their recoverable amount.
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14. Inventories

The components of inventories at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 are as follows:
2024 2023

Finished goods $ 85,161 $ 63,809 
Spare parts 60,948 61,833 
Work in process 41,050 32,823 
Raw materials 29,522 22,641 
Manufacturing supplies and other 10,957 8,883 
Total Inventory $ 227,638 $ 189,989 

                             

Allowances for the write-downs of inventories to net realizable value were $1,633 and $816 as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Further, the reversals of write-
downs of inventories to net realizable value totaled $1,239 during 2024 and $1,611 for 2023 due to improved production efficiencies during the periods.

15. Trade receivables

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled within the terms of the invoice. Impairment is measured using provisioning rates based on days past due for
groupings of customer segments with similar characteristics. The provisioning rates used in calculating the impairment of trade receivables ranged from 0.0% to 2.1% as of
December 31, 2024 (0.0% to 1.9% as of December 31, 2023). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions (primarily GDP and the
unemployment rate), in addition to specific information about individual receivables.

Among other factors, credit decisions consider:

• how long the company has been in business;

• past and present payment history;

• financial information provided by the credit applicant;

• availability of payment bonds; and

• availability of liens and other forms of guarantee.

Credit is only granted to businesses, and upon approval, all customers are assigned a credit limit and risk rating, which are reviewed periodically. Delinquent accounts are
followed-up in a timely manner for collection and to maximize cashflow and minimize past due accounts. Accounts deemed uncollectible are subject to write-off in accordance
with established limits of approval. The Company periodically updates lifetime expected credit loss rates across the different accounts receivable portfolios and aging buckets
and continuously monitors individual customer accounts with elevated credit risk due to specific circumstances.

The components of trade receivables, at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 are as follows:
2024 2023

Trade receivables $ 52,915 $ 60,719 
Expected credit loss allowance (4,796) (4,846)
Total trade receivables, net $ 48,119 $ 55,873 

F-43



Table of Contents

Titan America SA and Subsidiaries
Note to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022
(All amounts in thousands)

15. Trade receivables (continued)

As of December 31, 2024, the aging analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

Trade receivables
Expected credit loss

allowance
Trade receivables,

net

Current $ 27,188 $ (616) $ 26,572 
1-30 days past due 15,042 (306) 14,736 
30-60 days past due 4,608 (185) 4,422 
60-90 days past due 1,632 (214) 1,418 
90-120 days past due 584 (38) 546 
>120 days past due 3,863 (3,438) 425 

$ 52,915 $ (4,796) $ 48,119 

As of December 31, 2023, the aging analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

Trade receivables
Expected credit
loss allowance

Trade receivables,
net

Current $ 34,400 $ (410) $ 33,990 
1-30 days past due 12,273 (181) 12,092 
30-60 days past due 6,229 (239) 5,990 
60-90 days past due 2,112 (101) 2,011 
90-120 days past due 673 (96) 577 
>120 days past due 5,032 (3,819) 1,213 

$ 60,719 $ (4,846) $ 55,873 

Activity within the expected credit loss allowance for the years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 consists of the following:

2024 2023
Balance at January 1 $ (4,846) $ (3,930)
Bad debt expense for the year (618) (1,177)
Utilization and other adjustments 668 261 
Balance at December 31 $ (4,796) $ (4,846)
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16. Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets
The components of prepaid expenses and other current assets at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 are as follows:

2024 2023

Prepaid insurance $ 8,581 $ 6,780 
Prepaid overhead expenses (rent, software
maintenance dues and subscriptions) 3,511 7,549 
Prepaid licenses and permits 987 1,331 
Prepaid highway use tax 221 208 
Prepayments to creditors 681 — 
Other 327 326 
Total prepaid expenses and other current assets $ 14,308 $ 16,194 

17. Other Receivables

The components of other receivables at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 are as follows:

2024 2023

Receivables due from SPE, net (Note 7) $ 51,931 $ 59,346 
Receivables, non-trade 3,136 3,473 
Reserve for receivables, non-trade (2,324) (2,602)
Rebates and refunds due 876 742 
Reimbursements — 746 
Deposits 445 514 
Other 3,873 2,902 
Total other receivables, net $ 57,937 $ 65,121 

As of December 31, 2024, the aging analysis of other receivables, is as follows:

Other receivables Allowances Other receivables, net

Neither past due nor impaired $ 54,064 $ — $ 54,064 
<180 days past due 5,035 (2,256) 2,779 
180-365 days past due 1,162 (68) 1,094 

$ 60,261 $ (2,324) $ 57,937 

As of December 31, 2023, the aging analysis of other receivables, is as follows:

Other receivables Allowances Other receivables, net

Neither past due nor impaired $ 62,219 $ — $ 62,219 
<180 days past due 4,203 (2,486) 1,717 
180-365 days past due 1,301 (116) 1,185

$ 67,723 $ (2,602) $ 65,121 
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18. Credit facilities and long-term debt

The carrying amount and the fair value of the Company’s debt obligations, including leases, at December 31, 2024, is as follows:

2024

Carrying Amount Fair Value
Current
Loans from third parties $ 25,143 $ 25,143 
Loans from related parties 8,465 8,465 
Lease liabilities 12,386 12,022 

$ 45,994 $ 45,630 
Non-current
Loans from related parties $ 358,222 $ 361,052 
Lease liabilities 55,967 43,598 

$ 414,189 $ 404,650 
Total borrowings $ 460,183 $ 450,280 

The carrying amount and the fair value of the Company’s debt obligations, including leases, as of December 31, 2023, is as follows:

2023
Carrying Amount Fair Value

Current
Loans from third parties $ 2 $ 2 
Loans from related parties 267,668 264,446 
Lease liabilities 11,737 11,395 

$ 279,407 $ 275,843 
Non-current
Loans from related parties $ 76,262 $ 75,330 
Lease liabilities 53,744 41,246 

$ 130,006 $ 116,576 
Total borrowings $ 409,413 $ 392,419 

In April 2017, the Company entered into a €250,000 multicurrency revolving credit facility with TGF, bearing interest at variable rates and maturing on January 30, 2022. In
July 2019, the agreement was amended to increase the facility to €340,000. In April 2020, the facility was reduced to €100,000 by an amendment dated April 29, 2020. In
January 2022 the agreement maturity date was extended to January 30, 2026. In July 2024, the facility size under the agreement was increased to €130,000. At December 31,
2024 and 2023, there was $13,298 (€12,800 equivalent) and $40,333 (€36,500) equivalent) outstanding borrowings respectively under the facility.

The Company has a committed borrowing facility with a bank of $45,000 with $20,000 available for the issuance of letters of credit. The maturity date of this facility is March
15, 2025 (refer to Note 29). The facility provides for daily drawdowns and repayments at a borrowing rate based on SOFR. In connection with the borrowing facility, the
Company has agreed to financial covenants related to operating EBITDA in excess of $140,000, tangible net worth of at least $250,000 and maintenance of a committed line of
credit of at least $100,000, as well as non-financial covenants including restrictions on incurring certain liens on or disposing of certain existing assets without notification to
the lender. As of December 31, 2024, the Company was in
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18. Credit facilities and long-term debt (continued)

compliance with all the covenants. The facility is guaranteed by TCI. At December 31, 2024 and 2023, there was $0 and $0 outstanding borrowings respectively under the
facility.

The Company has an uncommitted borrowing facility with a bank of $40,000 with the full amount available for the issuance of letters of credit. The maturity date of this
facility is December 20, 2025. The facility provides for loans at variable interest rates based on SOFR which are reset periodically depending on the term and type of draw
made thereunder. In connection with the borrowing facility, Titan America has agreed to certain covenants including restrictions on incurring certain liens on or disposing of
certain existing assets without notification to the lender. As of December 31, 2024, the Company was in compliance with all of the covenants. The facility is guaranteed by TCI.
At December 31, 2024 and 2023, there was $10,000 and $0 outstanding borrowings respectively under the facility.

The Company has an uncommitted borrowing facility with a bank of $60,000. The maturity date of this facility is April 29, 2025. The facility provides for loans at variable
interest rates based on SOFR which are reset periodically depending on the term and type of draw made thereunder. In connection with the borrowing facility, The Company
has agreed to certain covenants including restrictions on disposing of certain existing assets without notification to the lender. As of December 31, 2024, the Company was in
compliance with all of the covenants. The facility is guaranteed by TCI. At December 31, 2024 and 2023, there was $15,000 and $0 outstanding borrowings respectively under
the facility.

In December 2017, the Company entered into a €150,000 note payable with Titan Global Finance PLC (“TGF”) bearing interest of 3.07% through July 16, 2021 and 3.15%
through the maturity date of November 15, 2024. In December 2022, the interest rate was modified to 3.05% through maturity date of November 15, 2024. In April 2022, the
Company paid back €30,000 of this note, leaving a €120,000 balance outstanding. As described below, on November 15, 2024, the Company settled this loan and no amounts
were outstanding at December 31, 2024.

In March 2018, the Company entered into a €75,000 note payable with the TGF bearing interest at 3.15% and maturing on November 15, 2024. In December 2022 the interest
rate was modified to 3.05% through the maturity date of November 15, 2024. In April 2024, the note was amended to increase the principal to €100,000, modify the interest
rate to 4.80%, and extend the maturity date to June 11, 2029.

In June 2021 the Company entered into two separate loans with TGF. The first loan was a €45,000 note payable bearing interest at 3.15% and maturing on November 14, 2024.
In December 2022 the interest rate was modified to 3.05% through the maturity date of November 14, 2024. In April 2024, the loan was amended to increase the principal to
€50,000, modify the interest rate to 4.80%, and extend the maturity date to June 11, 2029. The second loan was a €32,800 note payable bearing interest at 3.35% and maturing
on July 7, 2027.

On November 15, 2024, the Company executed a €150,000 note payable with TGF bearing interest at 3.20% and maturing on July 7, 2027. The proceeds of this term loan were
used to settle €30,000 borrowings then outstanding on the multicurrency credit facility with TGF and the €120,000 term loan with TGF maturing on November 15, 2024, as
described above. There are no formal covenants associated with this loan.

On February 1, 2024, the Company entered into a cash management agreement with TGF. The agreement is effective until either party provides written notice of termination.
Pursuant to this agreement, the Company’s two existing HSBC UK bank accounts, one denominated in U.S. dollars and one denominated in Euros, are funded when there are
negative daily balances. Fundings are subject to maximum borrowing limits of $15,000 and €15,000, respectively. Conversely, when there are cash balances in either account,
these funds are swept as a deposit into the TGF concentration account. There are no deposit limits.

With respect to borrowings made under the cash management agreement, the Company bears a daily interest charge based on the benchmark rates of the European Central
Bank (ECB) Main Refinancing Rate (for Euro borrowings) and the U.S. Federal Reserve Federal Funds Target Rate (for U.S. dollar borrowings), plus an applicable margin.
With respect to deposits made under the cash management agreement, the Company receives a daily interest credit based on the benchmark interest rates of the ECB Deposit
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18. Credit facilities and long-term debt (continued)

Facility Rate (for Euro deposits) and the U.S. Federal Reserve Federal Funds Target Rate (for U.S. dollar deposits), minus an applicable margin.

Company funds on deposit with TGF under the cash management agreement are due upon demand from the Company. Amounts borrowed from TGF under the cash
management agreement may be repaid (in whole or in any part) at the discretion of the Company. Following written notice of termination, outstanding borrowings from TGF
under the cash management agreement are due upon demand from TGF. At December 31, 2024, there was $6,083 outstanding borrowings under the facility.

The maturity profile of the Company’s non-current borrowings, including lease liabilities, is presented below:

2024 2023
Loans from related parties
Between 1 and 2 years $ 13,298 $ — 
Between 2 and 3 years 189,683 40,333 
Between 3 and 4 years — 35,929 
Between 4 and 5 years 155,241 — 
Over 5 years — — 
Total loans from related parties $ 358,222 $ 76,262 

Lease liabilities
Between 1 and 2 years $ 7,950 $ 8,777 
Between 2 and 3 years 6,936 8,576 
Between 3 and 4 years 5,524 5,406 
Between 4 and 5 years 6,338 3,986 
Over 5 years 29,219 26,999 
Total lease liabilities $ 55,967 $ 53,744 
Total non-current borrowings $ 414,189 $ 130,006 

              

The weighted average effective interest rates at December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 are as follows:

2024 2023 2022

Variable rate loans from related parties 4.89 % 5.82 % 6.86 %
Fixed rate loans from related parties 3.94 % 3.09 % 3.09 %
Variable rate loans from third parties 6.34 % N/A 5.82 %

The Company has the following amounts available to draw upon from borrowing facilities at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively:

2024 2023
Floating rate:

Expiring within one year $ 132,864 $ 132,466 
Expiring beyond one year 121,759 69,880 

Total $ 254,623 $ 202,346 
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18. Credit facilities and long-term debt (continued)

The Company maintains letter of credit facilities with banks, which are guaranteed by TCI. No amounts were drawn by counterparties against the letters of credit at December
31, 2024 or 2023. At December 31, 2024 and 2023, the banks had issued letters of credit on behalf of the Company totaling $11,637 and $12,534, respectively, as shown below:

2024 2023
Facility amount $ 60,000 $ 55,000 
Less letters of credit issued in support of:

Insurance programs (11,302) (12,199)
Performance obligations (100) (100)
Other payment obligations (235) (235)

Available facility amount $ 48,363 $ 42,466 

In addition to the letter of credit facilities described above, the Company maintains a performance bond facility with an insurance company, which is guaranteed by TCI. No
amounts were drawn against the performance bonds at December 31, 2024 and 2023. At December 31, 2024 and 2023, the insurance company had issued performance bonds
on behalf of the Company totaling $18,761 and $35,140, respectively, as shown below:

2024 2023
Facility amount $ 60,000 $ 60,000 
Less performance bonds issued in support of:

Excavation and reclamation obligations (4,954) (4,954)
Surety bond (3,629) (3,629)
Other payment and performance obligations (10,178) (26,557)

Available facility amount $ 41,239 $ 24,860 

Changes arising from financing activities during the year ended December 31, 2024 are as follows:

 January 1,
2024 Cash Flows

Foreign
Exchange

Mark-to-
Market

Interest
Expense

New
Leases Other December 31, 2024

Borrowings $ 343,932 $ 48,939 $ (22,220) $ — $ 21,258 $ — $ (79) $ 391,830 

Lease liabilities 65,481 (13,284) — — 3,798 12,305 53 68,353 

Changes in liabilities 409,413 35,655 (22,220) — 25,056 12,305 (26) 460,183 

Derivative financial instruments 3,126 (16,783) — 22,441 (71) — 10 8,723 

Financial instrument collateral (4,328) 243 — — — — — (4,085)

Other financing activities (1,202) (16,540) 22,441 (71) — 10 4,638 

Total liabilities arising from financing activities $ 408,211 $ 19,115 $ (22,220) $ 22,441 $ 24,985 $ 12,305 $ (16) $ 464,821 
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18. Credit facilities and long-term debt (continued)

Changes arising from financing activities during the year ended December 31, 2023 are as follows:

 January 1,
2023 Cash Flows

Foreign
Exchange

Mark-to-
Market

Interest
Expense

New
Leases Other December 31, 2023

Borrowings $ 394,506 $ (83,046) $ 12,055 $ — $ 20,498 $ — $ (81) $ 343,932 

Lease liabilities 67,587 (15,198) — — 3,047 11,678 (1,633) 65,481 

Changes in liabilities 462,093 (98,244) 12,055 — 23,545 11,678 (1,714) 409,413 

Derivative financial instruments 13,575 3,272 — (13,907) 186 — — 3,126 

Financial instrument collateral (15,757) 11,399 30 — — — — (4,328)

Other financing activities (2,182) 14,671 30 (13,907) 186 — — (1,202)

Total liabilities arising from financing activities $ 459,911 $ (83,573) $ 12,085 $ (13,907) $ 23,731 $ 11,678 $ (1,714) $ 408,211 

Changes arising from financing activities during the year ended December 31, 2022 are as follows:

 January 1,
2022 Cash Flows

Foreign
Exchange

Mark-to-
Market

Interest
Expense

New
Leases Other December 31, 2022

Borrowings $ 382,696 $ 11,104 $ (19,670) $ — $ 19,780 $ — $ 596 $ 394,506 

Lease liabilities 53,941 (13,428) — — 2,038 26,041 (1,005) 67,587 

Changes in liabilities 436,637 (2,324) (19,670) — 21,818 26,041 (409) 462,093 

Derivative financial instruments 16,877 (19,827) — 20,236 (3,711) — — 13,575 

Financial instrument collateral (16,390) 490 — — — — 143 (15,757)

Other financing activities 487 (19,337) — 20,236 (3,711) — 143 (2,182)

Total liabilities arising from financing activities $ 437,124 $ (21,661) $ (19,670) $ 20,236 $ 18,107 $ 26,041 $ (266) $ 459,911 

                                                                                                                                           

19. Income taxes

The components of income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

2024 2023 2022
Current income tax:
   Current income tax expense $ 51,973 $ 45,536 $ 8,069 
   Adjustments in respect of previous years (840) — — 
Deferred income tax:
   Deferred tax expense relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 6,542 1,598 10,523 
   Adjustments in respect of previous years (131) — (1,621)
Income tax expense $ 57,544 $ 47,134 $ 16,971 

                                                                                                        

The income before income tax of the Company is taxed at the applicable rate corresponding to the country in which it operates. The local income tax rates vary, thus resulting
in corresponding tax rate differentials. The Company’s applicable tax rate is the statutory Greek rate of 22%. The difference between the Greek rate and the 21% statutory US
branch tax rate is incremental to the Company. The substantial majority of the worldwide operating profits are ultimately subject to tax in Greece through a US branch, for
which
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19. Income taxes (continued)

double taxation relief is provided. Income tax expense differs from the amounts computed by applying the applicable tax rate to income before income taxes as a result of the
following:

2024 2023 2022

Income before income taxes $ 223,618 $ 202,378 $ 79,692 

Income tax expense at applicable statutory Greek Federal tax rate, 22% 49,196 44,523 17,532 
Differences resulting from:
   Foreign tax rate differences (182) (502) (295)
   State income taxes, net of federal tax effect 9,962 8,092 2,460 
   Mineral deposit depletion (3,917) (5,128) (3,422)

Unrecognized deferred tax assets 1,514 — — 
   Other 971 149 696 
Income tax expense at the effective tax rate of 25.7%, 23.3% and 21.3% respectively $ 57,544 $ 47,134 $ 16,971 

The effective tax rate differs from the applicable tax rate primarily due to tax rate differences in jurisdictions outside of the Company's domicile, various permanent differences
and local country state income taxes.

Deferred income taxes consist of the following as December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023:

2024 2023
Deferred tax assets:
Provisions and accrued expenses $ 20,941 $ 21,138 
Lease liabilities 18,114 17,352 
Accounts receivable valuation 2,297 2,814 
Inventory valuation and costing 2,457 1,781 
Retirement benefit obligations 1,344 1,142 
Unrealized loss on derivative instruments 2,312 828 
Other 6,438 3,136 
Total deferred tax assets 53,903 48,191 

Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment 58,005 47,677 
Goodwill 45,920 45,920 
Mineral deposits 19,498 19,492 
Right-of-use assets 18,114 16,282 
Intangible assets 3,311 3,262 
Other 7,267 9,935 
Deferred tax liabilities 152,115 142,568 

Net deferred income tax liability $ 98,212 $ 94,377 

As of December 31, 2024, the Company had $6,054 of Belgium net operating losses with an indefinite carryforward.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company had U.S. state net operating loss (NOL) carryforwards of $0 and $911, respectively, with various expiration dates based on
statutory law.

As of December 31, 2024, deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of the Belgium net operating loss carryforward of $6,054, as there is not sufficient evidence
to support realizability in the near future.
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19. Income taxes (continued)

As of December 31, 2024, the Company plans to repatriate all undistributed international earnings to the extent not reinvested in the business.. It is not practicable to estimate
the amount of deferred tax liability arising from investments in subsidiaries.

As of December 31, 2024, and 2023, there was no liability for uncertain tax positions. The Company is subject to income tax in Belgium, Greece and the United States. Tax
years prior to December 31, 2021 are no longer open to examination by the taxing authorities.

The Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development has released Pillar Two Model Rules, a 15% minimum effective tax rate designed to ensure that large
multinational enterprises pay a minimum level of tax on the income arising in each jurisdiction where they operate and mandates sharing of certain company information with
taxing authorities on a local and global basis. Certain jurisdictions have enacted, and others have proposed, legislation to implement certain provisions of Pillar Two. We are
continuing to monitor the implications resulting from the potential enactment of Pillar Two rules in the jurisdictions where we operate. The Company has no tax liability
resulting from Pillar II for the 2024 year.

20. Retirement Benefit Obligations

Retirement benefit obligations at December 31, 2024 and 2023, consist of the following:

2024 2023
Non-qualified deferred compensation plan 4,037 3,386 
Pension benefits (173) (207)
Other post-retirement benefits 1,253 1,131 
Retirement benefit obligations 5,117 4,310 

                             

Non‐qualified deferred compensation plan

This plan is intended to constitute an unfunded plan of deferred compensation for a selected group of highly compensated employees under the Employee Income Security Act
of 1974 ("ERISA"). For this purpose, the Company created an irrevocable trust to facilitate the payment of deferred compensation to participants under the plan. Participants
are eligible to defer from 0% to 20% of eligible compensation for the applicable plan year. There were no costs for the plan for the year ended December 31, 2024, 2023, or
2022.

Defined benefit plans

The Company operates a defined benefit pension plan and other post-retirement benefit plans. The method of accounting for the latter, as well as the valuation assumptions and
the frequency of valuations, are similar to those used for the defined benefit pension plan.

The defined benefit pension plan and all but one of the other post-retirement benefit plans have been frozen for new participants and credited service. One post-retirement
benefit plan exists (for certain active and former employees) whereby eligible retirees receive benefits consisting primarily of assistance with medical insurance costs between
the dates of early retirement and Medicare eligibility.

At December 31, 2024, the defined benefit pension plan assets are invested 95% in fixed income investments (2023: 95%), 5% in other various investments (2023: 5%), 0% in
equity investments (2023: 0%). The discount rate adopted for the study of the pension plans was 5.35% at December 31, 2024 (4.84% at December 31, 2023).

In 2025 there is no contribution due under the minimum requirement of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA). As a result, the Company does not
expect to contribute to its defined benefit pension plans in 2025. The Company’s other post-retirement benefit plans are unfunded obligations and will be funded, consistent
with past practice, on a pay-as-you-go basis.
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20. Retirement Benefit Obligations (continued)

Defined contribution plans

The Company sponsors a defined contribution retirement and 401(k) savings plan, which covers substantially all employees of the Company. The plan provides for voluntary
employee pre-tax and after-tax contributions for eligible employees. The Company matches 50% of eligible employees’ contributions up to 8% of the employee’s eligible
wages, subject to IRS limitations on maximum elective deferrals. Total costs charged against income for this element of the plan was $7,292, $6,421, and $5,860 for the years
ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively. Additionally, the Company recognized income from 401k match forfeitures of $565, $792 and $245 for the years
ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 respectively.

Information about the Company’s defined benefit pension and other post-retirement benefit plans is presented below:

Other Post-retirement
Pension Benefits Benefits

2024 2023 2022 2024 2023 2022

Benefit obligations $ 9,361 $ 10,294 $ 10,594 $ 1,253 $ 1,131 $ 1,097 
Fair value of plan assets 9,534 10,501 10,235 — — — 
Accrued (gain)/cost, December 31 $ (173) $ (207) $ 359 $ 1,253 $ 1,131 $ 1,097 

                                                                                                             

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

Other Post-retirement
Pension Benefits Benefits

2024 2023 2024 2023
Benefit obligations, January 1 $ 10,294 $ 10,594 $ 1,131 $ 1,097 
Service cost — — 3 3 
Interest cost 461 502 53 53 
Benefits paid (952) (860) (99) (72)
Actuarial (gain)/loss (442) 58 119 50 
Other — — 46 — 
Benefit obligations, December 31 $ 9,361 $ 10,294 $ 1,253 $ 1,131 

Discount rate used in computing ending obligations 5.35 % 4.84 % 5.35 % 4.84 %
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20. Retirement Benefit Obligations (continued)

The following rates of increase in the cost of covered health care benefits was assumed:

Other Post-retirement Benefits
2024 2023

2023 N/A 6.0 %
2024 7.5 % 5.5 %
2025 7.5 % 5.3 %
2026 7.3 % 4.8 %
2027 7.0 % 4.5 %
2028 6.8 % 4.5 %
2029 6.3 % 4.5 %
2030 6.0 % 4.5 %
2031 5.8 % 4.5 %
2032 5.5 % 4.5 %
2033 5.3 % 4.5 %
2034 5.0 % 4.5 %
2035 4.8 % 4.5 %
2036 and thereafter 4.5 % 4.5 %

Changes in the fair value of plan assets for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

Other Post-retirement
Pension Benefits Benefits

2024 2023 2024 2023

Fair value of plan assets, January 1 $ 10,501 $ 10,235 $ — $ — 
Return on plan assets 72 1,405 — — 
Contributions — — 99 72 
Administrative expenses (87) (279) — — 
Benefits paid (952) (860) (99) (72)
Fair value of plan assets, $ 9,534 $ 10,501 $ — $ — 
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20. Retirement Benefit Obligations (continued)

The estimated future benefit payments at December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Other Post-retirement
Pension Benefits Benefits

2024 2023 2022 2024 2023 2022

Year 1 $ 1,368 $ 1,368 $ 956 $ 135 $ 113 $ 103 
Year 2 888 919 948 101 102 108 
Year 3 861 896 926 108 99 111 
Year 4 825 869 904 112 101 92 
Year 5 796 833 877 107 96 94 
Years 6-10 3,540 3,736 3,924 462 405 409 
Years 10+ 6,489 7,189 7,917 733 688 715 

$ 14,767 $ 15,810 $ 16,452 $ 1,758 $ 1,604 $ 1,632 

Movements in the net pension and other post-retirement benefit liabilities during the years ended 2024, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Other Post-retirement
Pension Benefits Benefits

2024 2023 2022 2024 2023 2022

Accrued cost, January 1 $ (207) $ 359 $ 417 $ 1,131 $ 1,097 $ 1,405 
Expense recognized in the income statement 71 290 174 56 56 39 
Amount recognized as other comprehensive (income)/loss (37) (856) (232) 119 50 (306)
Contributions — — — (99) (72) (41)
Other — — — 46 — — 
Accrued (gain)/loss, December 31 $ (173) $ (207) $ 359 $ 1,253 $ 1,131 $ 1,097 

The components of net periodic pension and other post-retirement benefit costs for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 are as follows:
                                                                                                   

Other Post-retirement
Pension Benefits Benefits

2024 2023 2022 2024 2023 2022
Service cost $ — $ — $ — $ 3 $ 3 $ 4 
Administrative expenses 87 279 170 — — — 
Net interest cost (16) 11 4 53 53 35 
Net periodic pension expense 71 290 174 56 56 39 
Other comprehensive (income)/loss (37) (856) (232) 119 50 (306)
Total comprehensive (income)/loss $ 34 $ (566) $ (58) $ 175 $ 106 $ (267)
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20. Retirement Benefit Obligations (continued)                                                                                     

The amounts recorded in other comprehensive (income)/loss for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 are as follows:

2024 2023 2022

Cost of goods sold $ 90 $ 282 $ 174 
Finance cost 37 64 39 
Net periodic expense 127 346 213 
Other comprehensive (income) 82 (806) (538)
Comprehensive (income)/loss $ 209 $ (460) $ (325)

The components of actuarial (gains)/losses included in other comprehensive (income)/loss for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 are as follows:
2024 2023 2022

Asset loss/(gain) $ 404 $ (914) $ 2,503 
Demographic (gain)/loss (23) (160) (243)
Assumption (gain)/loss (299) 268 (2,798)
Total actuarial loss/(gain) $ 82 $ (806) $ (538)

A one percentage point change in the assumed rate of increase in healthcare costs would have the following effects:

Increase Decrease
2024
Effect on the aggregate current service cost and interest cost $ 3 $ (3)
Effect on other post-retirement benefit obligations $ 73 $ (65)
2023
Effect on the aggregate current service cost and interest cost $ 3 $ (3)
Effect on other post-retirement benefit obligations $ 72 $ (64)
2022
Effect on the aggregate current service cost and interest cost $ 2 $ (2)
Effect on other post-retirement benefit obligations $ 70 $ (62)

A one percentage point change in the assumed discount rate would have the following effects:

    
Increase Decrease

2024
Effect on the aggregate current service cost and interest cost $ 6 $ (7)
Effect on pension and other post-retirement benefit obligations $ (686) $ 786 
2023
Effect on the aggregate current service cost and interest cost $ 6 $ (7)
Effect on pension and other post-retirement benefit obligations $ (782) $ 902 
2022
Effect on the aggregate current service cost and interest cost $ 9 $ (11)
Effect on pension and other post-retirement benefit obligations $ (809) $ 934 
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21. Provisions

The components of provisions at December 31, 2024 are as follows:

Income Statement Charges
Balance at Operating Finance Cash Other Balance at

Provision Description 1/1/24 Expenses Cost Payments Adjustments 12/31/24

Restoration a $ 17,675 $ (4,030) $ 826 $ (213) $ (492) $ 13,766 
Environmental a 3,087 (1,563) 33 (29) (886) 642 
Equipment removal a 13,156 (77) 364 155 (2,022) 11,576 
Insurance reserves b 24,990 41,374 808 (43,104) (918) 23,150 
Lease return obligations c 6,488 313 278 — 2,814 9,893 
Sales and use tax d 358 197 — — — 555 
Litigation e — — — — 1,425 1,425 
Total $ 65,754 $ 36,214 $ 2,309 $ (43,191) $ (79) $ 61,007 

                                                                                                   

The components of provisions at December 31, 2023 are as follows:

Income Statement Charges
Balance at Operating Finance Cash Other Balance at

Provision Description 1/1/23 Expenses Cost Payments Adjustments 12/31/23

Restoration a $ 10,884 $ 1,921 $ 464 $ — $ 4,406 $ 17,675 
Environmental a 1,187 1,888 40 (28) — 3,087 
Equipment removal a 9,235 (215) 331 (95) 3,900 13,156 
Insurance reserves b 21,385 38,448 878 (35,721) — 24,990 
Lease return obligations c 4,497 317 100 — 1,574 6,488 
Sales and use tax d 538 (180) — — — 358 
Total $ 47,726 $ 42,179 $ 1,813 $ (35,844) $ 9,880 $ 65,754 

a. These provisions represent the present value of the estimated costs to reclaim quarry sites and other similar post-closure obligations for owned and leased properties. It
is expected that this amount will be used over the next 2 to 50 years. The Company estimates its ultimate liability using detailed engineering calculations that consider
the amount and timing of the future cash flows. Future cash flows are determined by applying inflation rates to the estimated current cost of reclamation. The present
value of these future cash flows is determined by applying discount rates consistent with the time horizons of the expected future cash flow. Discount rates are based
on U.S. treasury bonds with maturities similar to the duration of the obligation. An annual review of restoration, environmental and equipment removal obligations are
conducted by plant management and environmental teams and is focused on estimated costs, updated regulations, and changes in contractual obligations. More
technical quarry and sand mine reclamation evaluations are performed periodically and include a precise evaluation of quarry conditions, exploration of new
technologies and consultation with third-party experts.
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 Provisions (continued)

b. This provision represents the expected costs of claims payments related to risk and workers’ compensation claims excluding any potential recovery from insurance
coverage, and the Company sponsored health insurance costs. The Company estimates its ultimate liability using third party experts that consider the amount and
timing of the future cash flows. The present value of these future cash flows is determined by applying discount rates consistent with the time horizons of the expected
future cash flow. Discount rates are based on U.S. treasury bonds with maturities similar to the duration of the obligation.

c. This provision represents the amount of expected costs to bring leased equipment to return conditions and/or locations required in lease agreement. The Company
estimates its ultimate liability using its best estimate that considers the amount and timing of the future cash flows. The present value of these future cash flows is
determined by applying discount rates consistent with the time horizons of the expected future cash flow. Discount rates are based on U.S. treasury bonds with
maturities similar to the duration of the obligation.

d. This provision represents the amount of expected settlements for sales and use tax audits in states where the Company operates. It is expected that this amount will be
utilized within 2 to 5 years.

e. This provision represents a financial reserve set aside to cover potential legal costs, settlements, or damages from lawsuits related to defective materials or other
contractual disputes. It is recognized as a liability in financial statements when there is a legal obligation, payment is probable, and the cost can be reasonably
estimated.

During the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, the Company increased provisions by the net amounts of $2,309, $1,813, and $976, respectively, due to the
passage of time. Accretion is included in finance cost in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

The current and non-current portions of the total provisions are follows:

2024 2023

Current portion of provisions $ 10,081 $ 10,452 

Non-current portion of provisions 50,926 55,302 

Total $ 61,007 $ 65,754 

22. Accrued expenses

The components of accrued expenses at December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

2024 2023

Employee compensation and benefits $ 14,120 $ 12,991 
Customer rebates 2,953 3,621 
Taxes payable, other than income taxes 2,161 2,114 
Accrued royalties and dues 1,843 1,210 
Professional fees 2,495 601 
Other 1,307 220 
Total accrued expenses 24,879 20,757 
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23. Related Party Transactions

The following is a summary of the transactions that were carried out with related parties during 2024:

Purchases and
charges from

related parties
Amounts owed to

related parties, net

Financing $ 14,480 $ 365,895 
Purchase of cement 103,300 3,168 
Management fee 14,463 4,217 
Other 2,836 1,342 

$ 135,079 $ 374,622 

The following is a summary of the transactions that were carried out with related parties during 2023:

Purchases and
charges from

related parties
Amounts owed to

related parties, net

Financing $ 11,391 $ 342,857 
Purchase of cement 107,122 6,281 
Management fee 11,043 3,659 
Other 2,621 1,527 

$ 132,177 $ 354,324 

The following is a summary of the transactions that were carried out with related parties during 2022:

Purchases and
charges from

related parties
Amounts owed to

related parties, net

Financing $ 17,550 $ 322,638 
Purchase of cement 84,193 4,604 
Management fee 9,555 3,283 
Other 3,294 1,472 

$ 114,592 $ 331,997 

Purchases of cement consist of cement imports from Group subsidiaries, primarily Titan Cement Company SA. Management fee consists of charges for Group centrally
performed services, including IT, human resources, procurement and corporate engineering, Other related party charges consist of other charges incurred at the Group level for
expenditures that benefit the Company and are cross-charged to the Company as incurred. Outstanding balances at the year-end related to purchases from related parties are
unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables.
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23. Related Party Transactions (continued)

Dividends/Return of capital

On July 15 and 18, 2024, Titan Atlantic declared and paid dividends of $80,000 (€73,450 euro equivalent) and $5,069 (€4,635 euro equivalent), respectively, to Titan Cement
Company S.A. and Columbus Properties BV.

On October 24, 2024, Titan Atlantic declared and on October 25, 2024 paid a return of capital of $51,591 (€47,819 euro equivalent) to TCI. On this same date Titan Atlantic
capitalized into common stock, share premium of $51,591(€47,819 euro equivalent) resulting in $155 (€143 Euro equivalent) of Greek federal tax. The return of capital was
funded through a combination of drawdowns on short-term third party and short-term and long-term related party credit facilities.

During 2023, Titan Atlantic declared a dividend to Titan Cement Company S.A. and Columbus Properties BV on October 19, 2023 of €32,000 ($33,786 equivalent) which was
paid on October 20, 2023. During 2023, Titan Atlantic did not declare any returns of capital.

During 2022 Titan Atlantic did not declare any dividends or returns of capital.

Key Management Compensation

Key management compensation expense, which includes all payroll-related expenses for vice-president level positions and higher for the years ended December 31, 2024,
2023, and 2022 is as follows:

2024 2023 2022

Salaries and related payroll taxes $ 13,718 $ 11,518 $ 10,191 
Short-term employee benefits 718 683 579 
Retirement plan contributions 257 235 214 
Long-term incentives, including share-based payments 3,131 2,577 1,947 
Termination benefits 128 — — 
Other 96 291 155 
Total key management compensation $ 18,048 $ 15,304 $ 13,086 
Number of key management employees at December 31 26 25 24 

Restricted Stock Incentive Plan

Prior to 2020, TCI granted stock options under a Restricted Stock Incentive Plan to certain members of senior management and other employees of TCI and its subsidiaries,
including the Company. Under this plan, participants were granted options, the exercise of which was subject to the financial results of TCI and the performance of its common
share vs. a peer group. After completion of a three-year vesting period, the final vesting percentage for the options grant was determined by reference to:

•  TCI’s average three-year Return on Average Capital compared to the target of the period (50% weighting); and

• The overall performance of TCI’s common share compared to the average overall performance of the shares of a pre-defined group of international cement producers
(50% weighting).

The beneficiaries were entitled to exercise their stock option rights, either in whole or in part, within the first five working days of each month, paying the Company the
required amounts until the expiration date of their stock options. The fair value of the options granted under the plan was determined using the Binomial Method and the Monte
Carlo Simulation valuation model.

All stock options issued under the Restricted Stock Incentive Plan were vested and released prior to 2022. As a result, no expense amounts were recognized in 2024, 2023 or
2022.
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23. Related Party Transactions (continued)

Movements in the number of share options outstanding for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

2024 2023 2022
Shares under option, January 1 — 43 206 
Exercised — (34) (20)
Expired/cancelled — (9) (143)
Shares under option, December 31 — — 43 
Options exercisable, December 31 — — 43 

Long-Term Incentive Plan

TCI maintains a Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) for certain employees of TCI and its subsidiaries, including the Company. Participants in the plan are awarded a conditional
grant of TCI shadow shares at no consideration in April (or later) of each year. (see Note 1.14).

At each reporting date until vesting, the Company calculates a best estimate of the cumulative expense to be recognized in relation to each LTIP award at that date, being the
product of:

•  the fair value of the award at grant date;

•  the number of awards that will vest (best estimate); and

•  the expired portion of the vesting period.

The charge to the Consolidated Statements of Income for the period is the cumulative amount calculated above less the amounts already charged in previous periods. In the
year of vesting, TCI charges the Company an amount equivalent to the fair market value of TCI shares made available to Company LTIP participants at the vesting date. The
amount charged is recorded as a reduction to Stockholder’s Equity in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

For the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, $3,841, $3,147 and $2,104 respectively, was recorded as general and administrative expense in the Consolidated
Statements of Income related to LTIP awards.

During 2024, TCI recharged the Company $5,891, an amount equivalent to the fair market value of shares made available to Company LTIP participants following the March
2024 conclusion of the vesting period. Of the $5,891 paid by the Company to TCI, $3,061 (representing an amount equal to the expense recognized during the vesting periods)
was included within cash flows from operating activities in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows. The remaining, $2,830 (representing the excess over the expense
recognized during the vesting periods) was treated as a distribution from the Company to TCI and was included in cash flows from financing activities in the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows.

During 2023, TCI recharged the Company $1,762, an amount equivalent to the fair market value of shares made available to Company LTIP participants following the March
2023 conclusion of the vesting period. Of the $1,762 paid by the Company to TCI, $1,333 (representing an amount equal to the expense recognized during the vesting periods)
was included within cash flows from operating activities in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows. The remaining $429 (representing the excess over the expense
recognized during the vesting periods) was treated as a distribution from the Company to TCI and was included in cash flows from financing activities in the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows.

There was no recharge from TCI for the LTIP in 2022.
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23. Related Party Transactions (continued)

Movements in the number of shadow shares outstanding for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

2024 2023 2022
Shadow shares outstanding, January 1 784 653 423 
Granted 179 260 249 
Vested and distributed (202) (113) — 
Cancelled (23) (16) (19)
Shadow shares outstanding, December 31 738 784 653 

Fair value of awards granted in year (€ per share) € 29.10 € 14.64 € 11.90 
Fair value of awards granted in year ($ per share) $ 31.15 $ 16.08 $ 12.39 

                                            

The fair value of the award represents the closing price of TCI shares in Euronext Brussels on the date of grant.

The stock price of TCI’s common share was €40.20 ($41.87) at December 31, 2024, €21.25 ($23.48) at December 31, 2023, and €12.00 ($12.80) at December 31, 2022.

24. Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation

On the basis of its own estimates (and both internal and external legal counsel), Management is of the opinion that it’s remote that material losses will be incurred in respect of
claims in excess of provisions that have been made in these consolidated financial statements.

Environmental remediation

The Company is subject to certain environmental regulations and normal business operations may cause conditions requiring remedial action. Management has provided for all
known, probable and estimable costs related to such occurrences. See Note 21 for further information about restoration, environmental and remediation provisions.

Purchase commitments

The Company has contracted to purchase raw materials and energy as part of its ongoing operations as follows:

Aggregates purchase commitment

In 2004, the Company entered into a supply agreement with a third party for the purchase of construction aggregates in Florida. The supply agreement contained various
provisions including minimum annual volume guarantees and, in certain circumstances, prepayment obligations. Subsequent amendments modified the original agreement and
a 2012 amendment replaced the annual volume guarantees with an overall purchase commitment of approximately 12,100 tons over a 20-year term commencing November 1,
2012. Provisions of the amended agreement includes a 500-ton minimum annual volume and a maximum annual volume of no more than 2,400 tons. In addition, the 2012
amendment eliminated all future prepayment obligations.

In 2024 and 2023, the Company accepted delivery of approximately 531 and 985 tons of construction aggregates from the supplier, respectively. The remaining commitment
under the supply agreement is 4,273 and 4,804 tons at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively. Under the terms of the supply agreement, purchases are made
at current market prices, subject to periodic adjustments. For the annual periods ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, prices, excluding taxes and fees, are $22.27 and $21.05
per ton, respectively.
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24. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

Natural gas purchase commitment

In 2019, the Company entered into a natural gas supply agreement for its cement plant in Florida. After completion of the requisite infrastructure upgrades, the plant began
consuming natural gas in November 2020. A take-or-pay agreement with the utility company require payments totaling $11,600 over a maximum period of 6 years. Until fully
satisfied this agreement require minimum cumulative payments equal to $1,935 per contract year. On December 31, 2024, the Company had paid $11,600 (December 31, 2023:
$8,390) cumulatively under the agreement and, as a result, the agreement was fully satisfied at December 31, 2024.

The Company has also entered into capacity supply agreements with a natural gas marketer annually since 2020. On December 31, 2024, there are 900 MMBtus of committed
capacity remaining through March 31, 2025. Pricing under the capacity contract is based on the front-month Florida Gas Transmission Zone 3 natural gas price settlements,
plus a variable basis component.

Supply commitments

The Company does not currently have any material contracted supply commitments.

25. Financial risk management objectives and policies

Financial Risk Factors

The Company, by nature of its business and treasury policies, is exposed to financial risks. The Company’s overall financial risk policy aims to minimize potential unfavorable
impacts arising from the markets’ fluctuations on the Company’s financial

performance. The Company does not engage in speculative transactions or transactions which are not related to its commercial, investing or borrowing activities.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the Company aims to maintain flexibility in funding by having
both committed and uncommitted credit lines available.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of financial liabilities at December 31, 2024 based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Less than 6
months

6 to 12 months 1 to 5 years >5 years Total

Loans from related parties $ 11,446 $ 7,135 $ 397,591 $ — $ 416,172 
Loans from third parties 25,143 — — — 25,143 
Lease liabilities 6,974 6,974 37,286 37,440 88,674 
Derivative financial instruments 2,210 3,436 26,261 — 31,907 
Other non-current liabilities — — — — — 
Trade and other payables 148,558 — — — 148,558 

$ 194,331 $ 17,545 $ 461,138 $ 37,440 $ 710,454 

                                                                                                                                                          

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of financial liabilities at December 31, 2023 based on contractual undiscounted payments.
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25. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Less than 6
months 6 to 12 months 1 to 5 years >5 years Total

Loans from related parties $ 4,676 $ 269,876 $ 80,457 $ — $ 355,009 
Loans from third parties — — — — — 
Lease liabilities 6,053 6,053 34,403 26,824 73,333 
Derivative financial instruments 2,706 16,621 — — 19,327 
Other non-current liabilities — — 114 — 114 
Trade and other payables 162,696 — — — 162,696 

$ 176,131 $ 292,550 $ 114,974 $ 26,824 $ 610,479 

Foreign exchange risk

The majority of the Company’s debt obligations are denominated in Euros. As a result, the Company is exposed to foreign currency exchange rate risk arising from the
conversion of Euro loan proceeds to U.S. Dollars at the borrowing date and the related obligation to repay the loans in Euros at maturity. To manage this exposure, the
Company may enter into derivative financial instruments to offset its exposure to fluctuations in the Euro/U.S. Dollar exchange rate during the life of the loans. These activities
and the related account balances are further described in Note 9.

In addition to foreign exchange gains and losses arising from re-measurement of Euro denominated debt obligations to USD, the Company is exposed to foreign exchange
gains and losses on Euro denominated interest obligations and other foreign currency denominated payables or receivables which are recorded in the Consolidated Statements
of Income in one period and settled in another.

Derivatives

€150,000 Cross-currency interest rate swaps maturing June 2029 – Economic Hedge

On April 29, 2024, the Company entered into 5-year cross-currency interest rate swap agreements with third party financial institutions to manage the foreign currency and
interest rate risk associated with fixed rate Euro denominated borrowings maturing on June 11, 2029. These borrowings are further described in Note 18. Under the terms of
these agreements, the counterparties fixed the June 11, 2029, U.S. Dollar to Euro exchange rate for the scheduled €150,000 repayment at an average of $1.07213 to €1.00. In
addition, over the life of the agreements, the Company will receive Euro denominated fixed rate interest on €150,000 and pay U.S. Dollar denominated fixed rate interest on
$160,820.

Through the cross-currency swaps, the Company converted the Euro denominated fixed rate loan to a U.S. dollar loan at a pre-agreed foreign exchange rate and fixed U.S.
dollar interest rate. These derivative financial instruments were initially recognized at fair value on the inception dates and are subsequently re-measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the derivative financial instruments are recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income
as derivative financial instrument gain/(loss), net.

€150,000 Cross-currency interest rate swaps maturing July 2027 – Economic Hedge

On November 18, 2024, the Company entered into 30-month cross-currency interest rate swap agreements with third party financial institutions to manage the foreign currency
and interest rate risk associated with fixed rate Euro denominated borrowings maturing on July 7, 2027. These borrowings are further described in Note 18. Under the terms of
these agreements, the counterparties fixed the July 7, 2027, U.S. Dollar to Euro exchange rate for the scheduled €150,000 repayment at an average of $1.05383 to €1.00. In
addition, over the life of the agreements, the Company will receive Euro denominated fixed rate interest on €150,000 and pay U.S. Dollar denominated fixed rate interest on
$158,075.
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25. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Through the cross-currency swaps, the Company converted the Euro denominated fixed rate loan to a U.S. dollar loan at a pre-agreed foreign exchange rate and fixed U.S.
dollar interest rate. These derivative financial instruments were initially recognized at fair value on the inception dates and are subsequently re-measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the derivative financial instruments are recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income
as derivative financial instrument gain/(loss), net.

Foreign Exchange Forwards – Fixed Rate Debt – Economic Hedge

To manage the foreign currency exchange rate risk associated with its Euro denominated fixed rate borrowing, the Company has entered into a series of short-term foreign
exchange derivatives with third party financial institutions. Under the terms of the open positions at December 31, 2024, the Company fixed the U.S. Dollar to Euro at with
value dates of February 24, 2025 (notional amount €32,800 at $1.04258 to €1.00).

Under the terms of the open positions at December 31, 2023, the Company fixed the U.S. Dollar to Euro exchange rate at an average of $1.07092 to €1.00 with value dates of,
March 22, 2024 (notional amount €40,800 at $1.07945 to €1.00 and notional amount €30,000 at $1.07907 to €1.00), and April 5, 2024 (notional amount €42,000 at $1.05962 to
€1.00 and €10,000 at $1.05918 to €1.00).

Under the terms of the open positions at December 31, 2022, the Company fixed the U.S. Dollar to Euro exchange rate at an average of $1.04531 to €1.00 with value dates of
April 6, 2023 (notional amount €42,000 at $1.00344 to €1.00 and €10,000 at $1.00491 to €1.00) and June 23, 2023 (notional amount €40,800 at $1.0759 to €1.00 and €30,000
at $1.0758 to €1.00).

Foreign Exchange Forwards – Variable Rate RCF Debt – Economic Hedge

To manage the foreign currency exchange rate risk associated with its Euro denominated variable rate borrowing, the Company has entered into a series of short-term foreign
exchange derivatives with third party financial institutions. Under the terms of the open positions at December 31, 2024, the Company fixed the U.S. Dollar to Euro at an
average of $1.10478 to €1.00 with value dates of February 24, 2025 (notional amount €2,800 at $1.04258 to €1.00) and March 21, 2025 (notional amount €10,000 at $1.1222 to
€1.00).

Under the terms of the open positions at December 31, 2023, the Company fixed the U.S. Dollar to Euro at an average of $1.08840 to €1.00 with value dates of January 19,
2024 (notional amount €16,500 at $1.09379 to €1.00) and February 29, 2024 (notional amount €20,000 at $1.08395 to €1.00).

At December 31, 2022 there were no open positions.

Interest Rate Swap - Exposure to Variable Interest Rates– Economic Hedge

In May 2022, the Company entered into two 3-year interest rate swap agreements with third party financial institutions to manage the interest rate risk associated with the
variable interest rates. Under the terms of those agreements, the counterparties fixed the interest rate for a notional amount of $100,000. Over the life of the agreements, the
Company will receive variable rate interest on $100,000 and pay a fixed rate interest of 2.653% on $50,000 and 2.655% on $50,000 Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of the derivative financial instruments are recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income as finance cost.

In January and February 2023, the Company entered into two 3-year interest rate swap agreements with third party financial institutions to manage the interest rate risk
associated with the variable interest rates. Under the terms of those agreements, the counterparties fixed the interest rate for a notional amount of $100,000. Over the life of the
agreements, the Company will pay variable rate interest on $100,000 and receive fixed rate interest of 3.976% on $50,000 and 4.166% on $50,000. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of the derivative financial instruments are recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income as finance cost.
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25. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Natural Gas Cash Flow Hedge

In 2023, the Company entered into a series of natural gas swap transactions in order to fix a portion of the monthly NYMEX component of its natural gas costs during 2023 and
2024. The total notional amount of the swap contracts was 420,000 MMBtus of which 390,000 MMBtus were outstanding at December 31, 2023 with a final settlement date is
June 5, 2024. The Company designated a cash flow hedge relationship between the highly probable forecast monthly purchases of natural gas during 2023 and 2024 and the
swap contracts. Due to matching of economic terms, no ineffectiveness was anticipated in this hedge relationship and none was recognized in the Consolidated Statements of
Income as cost of goods sold during 2024.

In 2022, the Company entered into a series of natural gas swap transactions in order to fix a portion of the monthly NYMEX component of its natural gas costs during 2023.
The total notional amount of the swap contracts was 2,970,000 MMBtus with a final settlement date is December 31, 2023. The Company designated a cash flow hedge
relationship between the highly probable forecast monthly purchases of natural gas during 2023 and the swap contracts. Due to matching of economic terms, no ineffectiveness
was anticipated in this hedge relationship and none was recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income as cost of goods sold during 2023. There were no open positions
at December 31, 2024.

Credit Support Payments and Receipts

The Company and each financial institution counterparty is required to post weekly credit support payments for the difference between:

(a) accumulated mark-to-market gains or losses on derivative financial instruments; and

(b) the net accumulated credit support payments posted, provided that the difference is at least €1,000 or €500, depending on the counterparty, when compared to the
previous weekly calculation.

Sensitivity analysis to foreign exchange rate differences

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Company’s profit before income tax to reasonable changes in foreign exchange rates (after taking into consideration the
impact of outstanding economic hedges in place for Euro denominated borrowings and other obligations), with all other variables held constant:

Year Ended
Decrease in USD:Euro

FX Rate
Effect on profit before

tax (-/+)
Increase in USD:Euro

FX Rate
Effect on profit before

tax (+/-)
12/31/24 5.0 % $ — -5.0 % $ — 
12/31/23 5.0 % $ — -5.0 % $ — 
12/31/22 5.0 % $ — -5.0 % $ — 

Interest rate risk

As the Company has no material interest-bearing assets, the Company’s income and operating cash flows are not directly impacted by changes in market interest rates. The
Company’s interest rate risk arises from short-term and long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.
Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Company to fair value interest rate risk. The Company’s policy for long term borrowings will vary and is managed by the Company
in coordination with TCI’s group treasury function.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Company’s profit before income tax (considering the impact of the outstanding floating rate borrowings at the end of the
period) to reasonable changes in interest rates, with all other variables held constant:
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25. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Year Ended Interest Rate Increase
Effect on profit before

tax (-/+) Interest Rate Decrease
Effect on profit before

tax (+/-)
12/31/24 1.0 % $ 133 (1.0)% $ (133)
12/31/23 1.0 % $ 403 (1.0)% $ (403)
12/31/22 1.0 % $ 700 (1.0)% $ (700)

Cash flow hedge

The Company entered into a series of natural gas swap transactions in order to fix a portion of the monthly NYMEX component of its natural gas costs during 2024, 2023, and
2022. The Company designated a cash flow hedge relationship between the highly probable forecast monthly purchases of natural gas during 2024 and 2023, and the swap
contracts.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Company’s OCI (considering the impact of the outstanding contracts at the end of the period) to reasonable changes in
natural gas pricing, with all other variables held constant:

Year Ended
Decrease in NG
contract price

Effect on OCI before
tax (-/+)

Increase in NG
contract price

Effect on OCI before
tax (+/-)

12/31/24 $ 1.00 $ — $ 1.00 $ — 
12/31/23 $ 1.00 $ 390 $ 1.00 $ (390)
12/31/22 $ 1.00 $ 2,940 $ 1.00 $ (2,940)

Credit risk

The Company has no material concentrations of credit risk. Trade accounts receivable consist mainly of a large, widespread customer base. The Company monitors the
financial position of its debtors on an ongoing basis. Refer to Note 15 for further details.

Financial instruments by measurement category

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company’s financial assets were classified as follows:

2024 2023
Assets at amortized

cost Assets at FVPL *
Assets at amortized

cost Assets at FVPL *

Financial Assets
Trade receivables, net $ 48,119 $ — $ 55,873 $ — 
Other receivables, net 57,937 — 65,121 — 
Non-current assets — 10,076 — 5,547 
Derivative financial instruments — 709 — 7,386 
Derivative credit support payments 4,389 — 11,470 — 
Cash and cash equivalents 12,124 — 22,036 — 

$ 122,569 $ 10,785 $ 154,500 $ 12,933 
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25. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

At December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company’s financial liabilities were classified as follows:

2024 2023
Liabilities at

amortized cost Liabilities at FVPL *
Liabilities at

amortized cost Liabilities at FVPL *

Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 139,831 $ — $ 151,229 $ — 
Related party payables 8,727 — 11,467 — 
Borrowings 391,830 — 343,932 — 
Derivative financial instruments-economic hedges — 9,432 — 10,512 
Derivative credit support receipts 304 — 7,142 — 
Other noncurrent liabilities 330 — 114 — 

$ 541,022 $ 9,432 $ 513,884 $ 10,512 

                                                                                              

*    “FVPL” Fair value through profit or loss

**     “FVOCI” Fair value through comprehensive income

Fair value of financial instruments

Recurring fair value measurements

Recurring fair value measurements are those that the accounting standards require or permit in the statement of financial position at the end of each reporting period. The
Company’s derivative financial instruments fall under this category, and under the fair value hierarchy, are measured based on Level 2 inputs.

Level 2 derivative financial instruments comprise cross currency interest rate swaps, interest rate swaps, foreign exchange forward contracts and natural gas futures. The
Company uses a variety of valuation methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each reporting date. The recorded fair values of these
contracts are based on: a) forward exchange rates that are quoted in an active market, b) forward interest rates extracted from observable yield curves, and c) natural gas prices,
which are quoted in an active market. There were no changes in valuation techniques for Level 2 recurring fair value measurements during the years ended December 31, 2024,
2023, or 2022.

Financial instruments for which fair value does not approximate carrying amount

Financial instruments where fair value is not deemed to approximate carrying amount in the statement of financial position are the Company’s loans from related parties and
lease liabilities. The fair values are disclosed in Note 18.

• Loans from related parties – the fair value of loans from related parties are measured based on Level 3 inputs. The valuation models incorporate parameters such as
interest rates and price quotations at the reporting date. With respect to long-term borrowings, quoted market prices or dealer quotes for the specific or similar
instruments are also used.

• Lease liabilities – the fair value of lease liabilities is measured based on Level 2 inputs. The valuation model incorporates interest rates observable at commonly quoted
intervals used to recalculate remaining lease payments based on current incremental borrowing rates.
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25. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Capital management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern to provide returns for its stockholders and to maintain
a reasonable capital structure and related cost of capital. The Company is a subsidiary of a group, the ultimate parent of which is TCI. As such, the capital management strategy
of the Company is not determined in isolation, but rather, by taking into consideration both local and overseas funding alternatives, relative costs, and financial flexibility.

The Company has a history of strong operating cash flow and available lines of credit (Note 18).

26. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company (the numerator) by the weighted average number of shares
outstanding (the denominator) during the period. During the periods presented the Company has no financial instruments or stock awards that dilute earnings per share.

The amounts considered for calculations of earnings per share in 2024, 2023, and 2022 were as follows:
2024 2023 2022

Denominator (whole shares)
Weighted average number of common stock - basic and diluted 175,362,465 175,362,465 175,362,465

Numerator
Net income $166,074 $155,244 $62,721

Earnings per share of common stock
Basic earnings per share $0.95 $0.89 $0.36
Diluted earnings per share $0.95 $0.89 $0.36

         

(1) For purposes of calculating earnings per share the Company has retrospectively presented earnings per share as if the reorganization in Note 1 had occurred at the beginning of the earliest period presented.

Such retrospective presentation reflects 175,362,465 common shares due to the exchange of shares in Titan Atlantic for 175,342,465 shares in Titan America, the initial issuance of 2,000 common shares upon

formation of Titan America and the subsequent conversion of each of the 2,000 common shares into 10 common shares.

 (1)
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27. Segment information
Description of segments and principal activities

The Company operates its business through two reportable segments based on US geographic regions: the Florida and Mid Atlantic business segments. Each region has a
regional president who is a member of the Executive Committee and reports directly to the Company’s CEO, who is the chief operating decision maker (CODM). The core
business activities of the two regions are substantially the same and encompass the manufacture, distribution, and sale of a comprehensive range of cement, aggregates, ready-
mix concrete, concrete block, and fly ash.

In addition, the Company’s operations include (1) the STET segment, a nonreportable operating segment that develops, manufactures, sells, and services triboelectrostatic
separators and related equipment used to beneficiate fly ash, industrial minerals, and food and feed organics and (2) certain income and expense items managed on a total
Company level which are not allocated to the operating segment measure of profit and loss, including: unallocated corporate costs, fair value loss on sale of accounts
receivable, finance cost, finance income, foreign exchange gain/loss, derivative financial instrument gain/loss, and income taxes.

The CODM evaluates segment performance based on earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization & impairment (segment adjusted EBITDA). The segment
adjusted EBITDA calculation includes the operating profit plus depreciation, amortization and impairment of tangible and intangible assets. This measure excludes the
unallocated corporate costs summarized above. The CODM also receives information about the segments’ external revenue, capital spending, and depreciation and amortization
on a regular basis.

Information about segment adjusted EBITDA, revenue, depreciation, depletion and amortization and capital spending follows:

Segment adjusted EBITDA

                                                 

Year Ended December 31
2024 2023 2022

Florida business segment 249,665 221,227 130,520 
Mid-Atlantic business segment 134,792 118,260 72,753 
Subtotal reportable segments $ 384,457 $ 339,487 $ 203,273 
STET segment (6,070) (6,371) (5,119)
Unallocated corporate (19,803) (4,743) (5,057)
Finance cost, net (26,175) (22,244) (19,078)
Depreciation, depletion and amortization (99,941) (91,079) (87,728)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets (2,411) (3,852) (1,186)
Asset impairment recovery/(loss) — 609 (525)
Foreign exchange gain/(loss), net 20,846 (11,981) 19,990 
Derivative financial instrument (loss)/gain, net (22,441) 10,967 (18,534)
Fair value loss on sale of accounts receivable, net (4,620) (6,113) (3,041)
Share-based compensation (3,841) (3,173) (2,402)
Other 3,617 871 (901)
Income before income taxes $ 223,618 $ 202,378 $ 79,692 

    

(1)     Unallocated corporate include IPO transaction costs incurred during 2024, which primarily consist of consulting, legal and accounting fees.

27. Segment information (continued)

Segment external revenue

 (1)
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External revenue are transactions with external customers for each of the business segments.

Year Ended December 31
2024 2023 2022

Florida business segment $ 997,575 $ 969,932 $ 808,558 
Mid-Atlantic business segment 634,946 619,683 553,335 
STET segment 1,872 1,986 2,253 
Total External Revenue $ 1,634,393 $ 1,591,601 $ 1,364,146 

Segment depreciation, depletion and amortization

Depreciation, depletion and amortization per segment is as follows:

Year Ended December 31
2024 2023 2022

Florida business segment $ 60,296 $ 57,000 $ 55,655 
Mid-Atlantic business segment 38,954 33,472 31,490 
STET segment 675 591 576 
Corporate 16 16 7 
Total depreciation, depletion and amortization $ 99,941 $ 91,079 $ 87,728 

Segment capital spending

Capital spending is investment in property, plant, equipment and intangible assets (e.g. software), excluding additions to quarries.    

Year Ended December 31
2024 2023 2022

Florida business segment $ 70,445 $ 74,458 $ 85,725 
Mid-Atlantic business segment 58,819 41,970 40,683 
STET segment 59 83 72 
Corporate 1,183 349 4,233 
Total Capital Spending $ 130,506 $ 116,860 $ 130,713 

                                  

                                            

28. Issued capital and reserves

Titan America has one class of common stock. After considering the effect of the Share Split and Reorganization Transaction described in Note 26, the number of shares
authorized for issuance and outstanding was 175,362,465 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023. There were no shares issued but not fully paid as of December 31,
2024 and December 31, 2023.
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29. Events after the reporting period

Management has evaluated subsequent events through April, 4 2025, which is the date these financial statements were available to be issued:

• On February 10, 2025, the Company completed its initial public offering of 24,000,000 common shares (the "IPO"). The IPO was comprised of a primary offering of
9,000,000 newly issued common shares and a secondary offering of 15,000,000 existing common shares. The common shares were sold at an offering price of $16.00
per share, generating proceeds of approximately $136,800, after deducting underwriting discounts and other commissions. Our common shares began trading on the
New York Stock Exchange on February 7, 2025 under the symbol "TTAM".

• On March 11, 2025, the underwriters exercised a portion of their overallotment option to purchase 580,756 additional existing shares from TCI (the selling
shareholder). The Company did not receive any additional proceeds from the sale of these shares. After completion of the IPO, the Company had 184,362,465 common
shares issued and outstanding.

• On March 14, 2025 the Company extended the maturity of the $45,000 committed borrowing facility to June 12,

• On March 19, 2025, the Board of Directors approved the 2025 Omnibus Incentive Plan and the Annual Incentive Plan that enables the Company to issue cash and
stock-based incentives to employees, non-employee Directors and other individuals as determined by the Board of Directors.

• On March 28, 2025, the Company amended the cash management agreement with TGF to increase the maximum borrowing limits from $15,000 to $30,000.
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Final A-1 TITAN AMERICA SA INSIDER TRADING POLICY Effective February 7, 2025 Federal, state and foreign securities laws prohibit trading in the equity or debt securities of a company while in possession of material non-public information about the company. In order to take an active role in promoting compliance with such laws, and preventing insider trading violations by its officers, directors, employees and certain others, Titan America SA (the “Company” or “Titan”) has adopted the policies and procedures described in this memorandum (the “Policy”). I. Applicability of Policy This Policy applies to all transactions in the Company’s securities, including common stock, options for common stock, debt securities and any other securities the Company may issue from time to time, such as preferred stock, warrants and convertible debentures, as well as to derivative securities relating to the Company’s, including securities exchangeable into the Company’s, whether or not issued by the Company, such as exchange-traded options (“Company Securities”). This Policy also covers trading in the securities of Titan Cement International SA (“TCI”) (“TCI Securities” and, together with Company Securities, “Titan Group Securities”) or tipping others to do so on the basis of Company material non-public information because Titan America represents a significant portion of TCI’s overall business. Its prohibitions apply to actions taken by all officers, directors, Board of Director observers, employees, temporary employees, independent consultants and contractors of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company Persons” and each a “Company Person”). Portions of this Policy impose additional obligations on certain Company Persons that have, or are likely to have, regular or special access to material non-public information in the normal course of their duties (“Insiders”) and additional obligations on certain Insiders (“Preclearance Team
Members”). The Company shall determine the persons who shall be considered Insiders for the purposes of this Policy and that certain persons so identified are Preclearance Team Members for purposes of this Policy. The Chief Legal Counsel’s team shall maintain the list of Insiders and Preclearance Team Members, including by removing or adding persons to the list as necessary. The restrictions and prohibitions in this Policy on actions by Company Persons also apply to actions by the spouses, minor children and adult members sharing the households of Company Persons, and any entities that Company Persons directly or indirectly influence or control (collectively, “related persons”). All Company Persons are responsible for ensuring that such related persons do not engage in the activities restricted or prohibited under this Policy. Securities laws, including prohibitions on insider trading, apply when the Company transacts in its own securities. The Company’s policy is to comply with applicable law, including the prohibition under Rule 10b-5 and applicable case law against trading while in possession of material non-public information. This Policy (and/or a summary thereof) shall be delivered to all new Company Persons upon the commencement of their relationships with the Company or its subsidiaries and is to be circulated to all Company Persons at least annually. II. Statement of Policy General Prohibition Against Insider Trading No Trading or Tipping on Material Non-Public Information No Company Person may, while in possession of material non-public information about the Company: • buy, sell or otherwise engage in any transactions, directly or indirectly, in any Titan Group Securities, except as described elsewhere in this Policy;



 

Final A-2 • make recommendations or express opinions about trading in Titan Group Securities on the basis of such information; • disclose such information to any third party, including family or household members; or • assist anyone in the above activities. The above restrictions also apply to transacting in the securities of another company while in possession of material non-public information relating to such other company (which could include information related to the Company) (so called “shadow trading”), when that information is obtained in the course of employment with, or other services performed on behalf of, the Company or any subsidiary of the Company. Transactions that may be necessary or justifiable for independent reasons (such as the need to raise money for an emergency expenditure) are not excepted from these restrictions. The securities laws do not recognize mitigating circumstances and, in any event, even the appearance of an improper transaction must be avoided to preserve the Company’s reputation for adhering to the highest standards of conduct. “Material Non-Public Information” Material Information. It is not possible to define all categories of material information, as the ultimate determination of materiality by enforcement authorities will be based on an assessment of all of the facts and circumstances. Information that is material at one point in time may cease to be material at another point in time, and vice versa. If a person has any doubt about whether a piece of information is material non-public information, they should err on the side of considering it to be material non-public information. They also are encouraged to contact the Legal Department if they have any questions about whether a piece of information might be material non-public information. In general, information is considered “material” if there is a reasonable likelihood that it would be considered important to an investor in making a decision to buy, hold
or sell securities. Any information that could be expected to affect a company’s stock price, whether positive or negative, and whether the change is large or small, may be considered material. While it may be difficult under this standard to determine whether particular information is material, there are various categories of information that are particularly sensitive and, as a general rule, should always be considered material. Examples of such information include: • Company or business unit financial results; • Projections of future revenues, earnings or losses; • Timing of a new product or service or technology introductions, including advances in research; • News of a pending or proposed merger; • News of the disposition or acquisition of significant assets or a subsidiary; • Material impairments, write-offs or restructurings; • Creation of a material direct or contingent financial obligation; • Impending bankruptcy or financial liquidity problems; • Cybersecurity incidents, data security breaches, and other disruptions to Titan’s information technology infrastructure; • The gain or loss of a substantial customer or supplier; • Dividend actions; • New product announcements of a significant nature; • Significant product or service defects or modifications; • Significant pricing changes; • Stock splits; • Share repurchase plans/programs; • New equity or debt offerings;





 

Final A-3 • Significant litigation or regulatory exposure due to actual or threatened litigation, investigation or enforcement activity, or significant developments related thereto; • Changes in senior management; • Entry into material agreements not in the ordinary course of business (or amendment or termination thereof); and • Termination or reduction of business relationship with a customer that provides material revenue to the Company. The Chief Legal Counsel, in consultation with the CEO, the CFO or as appropriate other members of senior management of the Company, has the authority to determine whether any information constitutes material non-public information. Non-Public Information. Information is not considered public until it has been disclosed broadly to the marketplace (for example, included in a press release or a filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”)) and the investing public has had time to absorb the information fully. Information will be considered to be fully absorbed (1) if the information is released prior to 9:30 a.m. U.S. Eastern Time on a “trading day,” by 9:30 a.m. U.S. Eastern Time on the next trading day after the information is released and (2) if the information is released on or after 9:30 a.m. U.S. Eastern Time on a trading day or on a day that is not a trading day, by 9:30 a.m. U.S. Eastern Time on the second trading day after the information is released. If, for example, the Company or TCI were to make an announcement on Monday at 8:00 a.m. before market open, the information in the announcement would be considered public (and trades could be made) starting at 9:30 a.m. U.S. Eastern Time Tuesday (assuming all relevant days are “trading days”; a “trading day” is a day on which the New York Stock Exchange is open for business). Special Restrictions and Prohibitions The following transactions present heightened legal risk and/or the appearance of improper or inappropriate conduct on the
part of Company Persons and are restricted or prohibited as follows. The restrictions and prohibitions apply even if the relevant Company Person is not in possession of material non-public information. Short Sales Short sales of a security (i.e., the sale of a security that the seller does not own) by their nature reflect an expectation that the value of the security will decline. Short sales can create perverse incentives for the seller, and signal to the market a lack of confidence in the Company’s prospects. Accordingly, no Company Person may engage in a short sale of Titan Group Securities. Publicly Traded Options A put is an option to sell a security at a specific price before a set date, and a call is an option or right to buy a security at a specific price before a set date. Generally, put options are purchased when a person believes the value of a security will fall, and call options are purchased when a person believes the value of a security will rise. A transaction in options is, in effect, a bet on the short-term movement of the Titan Group Securities, and therefore creates the appearance of trading on the basis of material non-public information. Transactions in options may also focus a Company Person’s attention on short-term performance at the expense of Titan Group’s long-term objectives. Accordingly, no Company Person may engage in a put, call or other derivative security transaction relating to Titan Group Securities on an exchange or in any other organized market. Hedging Transactions Certain forms of hedging or monetization transactions, including zero-cost collars, equity swaps, exchange funds and forward sale contracts, allow a stockholder to lock in much of the value of his or her stockholdings, often in exchange for all or part of the potential for upside appreciation in the stock. These transactions allow the stockholder to continue to own the covered securities, but without the full risks and rewards of





 

Final A-4 ownership. Because participating in these transactions may cause a Company Person to no longer have the same objectives as the Company’s other stockholders, no Company Person may engage in such transactions. Margin Accounts and Pledges Securities held in margin accounts for collateral as a margined loan may be sold by the broker without the customer’s consent if the customer fails to meet a margin call. Similarly, securities pledged (or hypothecated) as collateral for a loan may be sold in foreclosure if the borrower defaults on the loan. A margin sale or foreclosure sale that occurs at a time when the pledgor is aware of material non-public information or otherwise is not permitted to trade in Titan Group Securities would fall under the restrictions in this Policy on trading during such times. Therefore, no Company Person may hold Titan Group Securities in a margin account or pledge Titan Group Securities as collateral for a loan. Blackout Periods The Company has established quarterly blackout periods, and may impose additional, special blackout periods, each as described below. Quarterly Blackout Periods. Quarterly blackout periods start on the fifteenth business day of the last month of a fiscal quarter and end at (1) 9:30 a.m. U.S. Eastern Time on the next trading day following the release to the public of the Company’s or TCI’s earnings for a fiscal quarter or fiscal year, as applicable (whichever occurs later), if such release occurs prior to 9:30 a.m. U.S. Eastern Time on a trading day or (2) 9:30 a.m. U.S. Eastern Time on the second trading day following such release if such release occurs on or after 9:30 a.m. U.S. Eastern Time on a trading day or on a day that is not a trading day. Insiders may not conduct any transactions in Company Securities during quarterly blackout periods. Special Blackout Periods. From time to time the Chief Legal Counsel in consultation with the CEO, the CFO or as appropriate other members of the senior
management of the Company may impose special blackout periods, during which all or certain Insiders and other affected persons will be prohibited from engaging in transactions in Company Securities. In the event of a special blackout period, the Chief Legal Counsel will notify the affected Insiders and other affected persons, who will be prohibited from engaging in any transaction involving the Company Securities until further written notice. The imposition of a special blackout period is itself confidential information, and the fact that it has been imposed may not be disclosed to others. Modification of a Blackout Period. The Chief Legal Counsel, in consultation with the CEO, the CFO or as appropriate other members of the senior management of the Company may shorten, suspend, terminate or extend any blackout period at such time and for such duration as he or she deems appropriate given the relevant circumstances. Any persons affected by such a modification will be appropriately notified. Certain Exceptions The following routine transactions, within the limits described, are generally not subject to the restrictions on trading in this Policy. The Company reserves, though, the right to prohibit any such transaction as it, in its sole discretion, deems necessary. Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Unit Awards, Performance Stock Units and similar arrangements This Policy does not apply to the vesting and settlement of restricted stock, restricted stock units, performance stock units and similar arrangements, or the withholding or sale of stock back to the Company (where permitted by the relevant plan) to satisfy tax withholding obligations upon the vesting of any restricted stock, restricted stock units or similar arrangements. The Policy does apply, however, to any market sale of stock after vesting.





 

Final A-5 Additional Procedures and Guidelines Preclearance Preclearance Team Members must obtain written preclearance from the Chief Legal Counsel or his or her designee before transacting in Company Securities, any adoption, termination or Termination Modification of a Rule 10b5-1 plan or any other non-Rule 10b5-1 plan, any exercise of director or employee stock options and any gifts of Company Securities, including, for all of the aforementioned transactions and actions, those occurring outside a blackout period. A form for such purposes is provided as Attachment A. A request for preclearance should be submitted at least two days in advance of the proposed transaction. The Chief Legal Counsel and his or her designee are under no obligation to approve any trade. Preclearance of any transaction is valid only for a 48-hour period. If the transaction order is not placed within that period, preclearance must be requested and approved in writing again. Requesting persons must treat denials of preclearance requests as confidential. Transactions under Rule 10b5-1 Plans Implementation of a trading plan under Rule 10b5-1 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) allows a person to place a standing order with a broker to purchase or sell Company Securities, so long as the plan specifies the dates, prices and amounts of the planned trades or establishes a formula for those purposes. Trades executed pursuant to a Rule 10b5-1 plan that meets the requirements listed below may generally be executed even though the person who established the plan may be in possession of material non-public information at the time of the trade. Any other trading plans that are not implemented under Rule 10b5-1, which do not have the protections of Rule 10b5-1, are referred to as non- Rule 10b5-1 plans. A Rule 10b5-1 plan may only be established when a person is not in possession of material non-public information and when a blackout
period is not in effect. Anyone subject to this Policy who wishes to enter into a Rule 10b5-1 plan must submit the Rule 10b5-1 plan to the Chief Legal Counsel or his or her designee for prior, written approval. Subsequent termination or modifications to any Rule 10b5-1 plan must also be preapproved by the Chief Legal Counsel or his or her designee. Whether or not preapproval will be granted will depend on all the facts and circumstances at the time, but the following guidelines should be kept in mind: • The Rule 10b5-1 plan must be in writing and entered into only when a blackout period is not in effect and when the individual is not in possession of material non-public information; • The Rule 10b5-1 plan must be adopted in good faith and not as part of a plan or scheme to evade the anti-fraud rules under the federal securities laws, and the individual must at all times act in good faith with respect to the Rule 10b5-1 plan; • Any person adopting the Rule 10b5-1 plan who serves as an officer (as defined in Rule 16a-1(f) promulgated under the Exchange Act) or director of the Company must certify in writing, in the terms of the Rule 10b5-1 plan agreement, that, at the time of the adoption of a 10b5-1 plan (whether a new plan or due to a Termination Modification, as defined below): (1) they are not aware of material nonpublic information about the Company or the Company’s securities; and (2) they are adopting the plan in good faith and not as part of a plan or scheme to evade the prohibitions of Rule 10b-5; • Any modification to the amount, price or timing of the purchase or sale of securities under the Rule 10b5-1 plan, as well as any change to an algorithm or computer program affecting such factors shall be deemed to be a termination of the current Rule 10b5-1 plan and the adoption of a new Rule 10b5-1 plan for purposes of restarting the Cooling-Off Period (as defined below) (any such modification, a “Termination Modification”); • The first trade made

pursuant to a new Rule 10b5-1 plan following adoption or Termination Modification of a Rule 10b5-1 plan of an executive officer or director of the Company may take place no sooner than the later of (i) 90 calendar days from adoption or modification and (ii) the second business day after the Company announces its financial results in a Form 20-F or Form





 

Final A-6 6-K for the quarter in which the Rule 10b5-1 plan is adopted or amended by a Termination Modification (but in any event, not to exceed 120 days following the Rule 10b5-1 plan’s adoption or any Termination Modification of such Rule 10b5-1 plan) (the “Cooling-Off Period”); • Except as permitted by the Chief Legal Counsel, the individual may not have more than one Rule 10b5-1 plan in effect at any given time, and no transactions may be effected outside the Rule 10b5-1 plan; • If a Rule 10b5-1 plan is meant to effect a single transaction, an individual may not have had another single-trade plan (10b5-1 or otherwise) during the prior 12-month period; • The Rule 10b5-1 plan must permit its termination by the Company at any time when the Company believes that trading pursuant to its terms may not lawfully occur; • The Rule 10b5-1 plan should, in the absence of special circumstances, be for a period of not less than one year; • The Rule 10b5-1 plan should provide for relatively simple pricing parameters (e.g., limit orders), rather than complex formulae for determining when trading under the Rule 10b5-1 plan may occur and at what price; • There may generally not be a termination or Termination Modification of a Rule 10b5-1 plan once it is executed to avoid calling into question the original “bona fides” of the Rule 10b5-1 plan; any termination or Termination Modification must be made only during a non-blackout period when the person is not in possession of material non-public information and transactions under any new or amended Rule 10b5-1 plan may not commence until the Cooling-Off Period, beginning at the termination or the execution of the Termination Modification, has elapsed; • Rule 10b5-1 plans and non-Rule 10b5-1 plans do not obviate the need to file Form 144 and the fact that a reported transaction was made or is to be made pursuant to a Rule 10b5-1 plan or and non-Rule 10b5-1 plan should be noted on the applicable
Form;1 • Information regarding adoption, modification, termination and material terms of any trading plan (including any modification or change to the plan), including both Rule 10b5-1 plans and non- Rule 10b5-1 plans, may be required to be disclosed in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 20-F; and • A copy of the executed version of any precleared trading plan, including both Rule 10b5-1 plans and non-Rule 10b5-1 plans, or any precleared amendment to or modification or termination of a trading plan must be provided to the Chief Legal Counsel for retention in accordance with the Company’s Record Management Policy reasonably promptly upon execution but no later than the last day of the fiscal quarter in which it was executed. Confidentiality of All Non-Public Information Company Persons must maintain the confidentiality of the Company’s non-public information. In the event a Company Person receives any inquiry or request for information (particularly financial results and/or projections, and including to affirm or deny information about the Company), from any person or entity outside the Company, such as a stock analyst, and it is not part of such Company Person’s regular corporate duties to respond to such inquiry or request, the inquiry should be referred to the Communications Director who will determine whether such inquiry should also be forwarded to the Chief Legal Counsel. Individual Responsibility All Company Persons have the individual responsibility to comply with this Policy. A Company Person may, from time to time, have to forgo a proposed transaction in Titan Group Securities even if he or she planned 1 Generally speaking, if you have unregistered securities that you acquired in a private transaction, your ability to sell those securities is subject to certain limitations under the U.S. securities laws. One common way individuals may sell is pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. If you are an

affiliate of TASA (generally, an executive officer, director or large shareholder), you are required to file a Form 144 notice of proposed sale if a proposed Rule 144 resale involves more than 5,000 shares or has an aggregate sale price above $50,000 in any three-month period.





 

Final A-7 to make the transaction before learning of the material non-public information. While the Chief Legal Counsel or his or her designee can and should be consulted regarding the application of this Policy, including the appropriateness of engaging in a particular transaction at a particular time, the responsibility for adhering to this Policy and avoiding unlawful transactions, and ensuring that related persons (as described above) do the same, rests with each Company Person. Any action on the part of the Company, the Chief Legal Counsel, his or her designee or any other employee or director pursuant to this Policy (or otherwise), including preclearance of any transactions or trading plans, does not in any way constitute legal advice or insulate an individual from liability under applicable securities laws. Post-Termination Transactions This Policy applies even after termination of employment or service with the Company. If a Company Person is in possession of material non-public information when his or her employment or service terminates, that person may not trade in Titan Group Securities (or another company’s securities, as described in this Policy) until such information has become public or is no longer material. III. Potential Criminal and Civil Liability and/or Disciplinary Action Criminal and Civil Liability Pursuant to federal, state and foreign securities laws, persons engaging in transactions in a company’s securities at a time when they have material non-public information regarding the company, or that disclose material non-public information or make recommendations or express opinions on the basis of material non- public information to a person who engages in transactions in that company’s securities (“tipping”), may be subject to significant monetary fines and imprisonment. The Company and its supervisory personnel also face potential civil and criminal liability if they fail to take appropriate steps to prevent illegal insider trading. The
SEC has imposed large penalties even when the disclosing person did not profit from the trading; there is no minimum amount of profit required for prosecution. Possible Disciplinary Action Company Persons who violate this Policy will be subject to disciplinary action by the Company, up to and including termination from employment. IV. Monitoring Compliance The Chief Legal Counsel will monitor compliance with this Policy and the Chief Legal Counsel will periodically review this Policy with the Audit and Risk Committee of the Board of Directors. In addition to the other duties of the Chief Legal Counsel and his or her designee under this Policy, the Chief Legal Counselor his or her designee will be responsible for the following: • Preclearing all transactions involving Company Securities by Insiders in order to determine compliance with this Policy and insider trading laws; • Sending quarterly and other reminders to Insiders regarding the start and completion of the blackout periods; • Sending notifications to Insiders and other affected persons regarding special blackout periods; • Sending periodic and other reminders regarding any trading plans, including both Rule 10b5-1 plans and non-Rule 10b5-1 plans, in order to complete company disclosure of such plans; • Maintaining accurate records of quarterly entry, termination and modification of Rule 10b5-1 plans and non-Rule 10b5-1 plans to ensure accurate reporting by the Company; • Performance of periodic cross-checks of available materials, which may include officers’ and directors’ questionnaires, and reports received from the Company’s stock administrator and





 

Final A-8 transfer agent, to determine trading activity by Insiders; • Periodically circulating this Policy (and/or a summary thereof) and coordinating training about this Policy to Company Persons; • Promptly circulating this Policy and coordinating training to all persons who become Company Persons; • Maintaining a current version of this Policy on the Company’s intranet website; and • Assisting the Company in implementing this Policy, including monitoring relevant changes in law, regulation or best practices and making appropriate changes to this Policy and related practices and procedures. The Chief Legal Counsel has ultimate responsibility for all matters pertaining to the interpretation and enforcement of this Policy. VI. Inquiries Any person who has a question about this Policy or its application to any proposed transaction may obtain additional guidance from the Chief Legal Counsel or his or her designee. If there is any uncertainty as to the appropriateness of any such communications, please consult with the Chief Legal Counsel before speaking with anyone, especially brokers or any other persons or entities contemplating or executing securities trades. Ultimately, however, the responsibility for adhering to this Policy and avoiding unlawful transactions rests with the individual employee or other applicable individual. VII. Acknowledgment All Preclearance Team Members must confirm their understanding of, and intent to comply with, this Policy by completing Annex 1 hereto.





 

B-1 ATTACHMENT A FORM OF TRADING CLEARANCE APPLICATION Name: Title: Proposed Transaction Date: Type of Security to be Traded: Type of Transaction (Purchase / Sale / Entry into 10b5-1 Plan or other non-Rule 10b5-1 plan (if plan, please attach) / Gift): Number of Shares Involved (if applicable): CERTIFICATION I hereby certify that I am not in possession of any material non-public information about the Company and / or its subsidiaries. I understand that material non-public information is information concerning the Company that (a) is not generally known to the public; and (b) if publicly known, would be likely to affect either the market price of Company Securities or a person’s decision to buy, sell or hold Company Securities. If entering into a Rule 10b5-1 Plan or other non-Rule 10b5-1 plan, I am adopting the plan in good faith and not as part of a plan or scheme to evade the prohibitions of Rule 10b-5. I understand that if I trade while in possession of material non-public information, I may be subject to severe civil or criminal penalties, and may be subject to discipline by the Company up to and including termination for cause. Name: Date: REVIEW AND DECISION The undersigned has reviewed the foregoing application and approves / prohibits (circle one) the proposed trade(s). Name: Title: Date:





 

ANNEX 1 Annex 1 ACKNOWLEDGMENT The undersigned hereby acknowledges that he/she has read and understands, and agrees to comply with, the Company’s Insider Trading Policy. Name Printed: Date:





 





 





 





 



Exhibit 16.1 Mine Safety and Health Administration Safety Data On July 21, 2010, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the “Act”) was enacted. Section 1503 of the Act contains new reporting requirements regarding coal or other mine safety. We are committed to providing a safe workplace for all of our employees. We continue to engage proactively with federal and state agencies in support of measures which can legitimately improve the safety and well-being of our employees. The operation of our mines located in the United States is subject to regulation by the Federal Mine Safety and Health Administration (MSHA) under the Federal Mine Safety and Health Act of 1977 (the “Mine Act”). MSHA inspects our mines on a regular basis and issues various citations and orders when it believes a violation has occurred under the Mine Act. We present information below regarding certain mining safety and health violations, orders and citations issued by MSHA, as well as related assessments and legal actions with respect to our mining operations. In evaluating this information, consideration should be given to factors such as the following: (i) the number of violations, citations and orders will vary depending on the size of the mine, (ii) the number of citations and orders issued will vary from inspector to inspector and mine to mine, and (iii) violations, citations and orders can be contested and appealed, and in that process, may be reduced in severity and amount, and are sometimes dismissed. The table below includes references to specific sections of the Mine Act. We are providing the information in the table by mining complex because that is how we manage and operate our business. The information in the table reflects violations, citations and orders issued to us by MSHA and related assessments and legal actions during the year 2024. Due to timing and other factors, the data in our system may not agree with the data maintained
by MSHA. For each mine, of which we or one of our Subsidiaries is an operator (number of occurrences, except for proposed assessment U.S. Dollar values). (A) Mine of Operating Name/MSHA Identification Number Section 104 S&S Citations (#) Section 104(b) Orders (#) Section 104(d) Citations and Orders (#) Section 110(b)(2) Violations (#) Section 107(a) Orders (#) Total Dollar Value of MSHA Assessments Proposed ($) Total Number of Mining Related Fatalities (#) Received Notice of Pattern of Violations Under Section 104(e) (yes/no) Received Notice of Potential to Have Pattern Under Section 104(e) (yes/no) Legal Actions Pending as of Last Day of Period (#) Legal Actions Initiated During the Period (#) Legal Actions Resolved During Period (#) Branchville Sebrell Farms – 4406591 0 0 0 0 0 441 0 No No 0 0 0 New Castle Sands – 0800635 1 0 0 0 0 1,629 0 No No 0 0 0 Heard Aggregates – 4407153 0 0 0 0 0 1,029 0 No No 0 0 0 Roanoke Cement – 4400068 17 0 0 0 0 11,945 0 No No 0 0 0 Corkscrew – 0801300 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 No No 0 0 0 Center Sand – 0800635 2 0 0 0 0 848 0 No No 0 0 0 Pennsuco Cement – 0800051 10 0 0 0 0 30,783 0 No No 0 0 0 Pennsuco Aggregates – 0800931 10 0 0 0 0 31,077 0 No No 0 0 0 DM Connor - 4402385 0 0 0 0 0 1,042 0 No No 0 0 0 (A) The pending legal actions are all contests of citations and orders, which typically are filed prior to an operator’s receipt of a proposed penalty assessment from MSHA or relate to orders for which penalties are not assessed (such as imminent danger orders under Section 107 of the Mine Act). This category includes: � contests of citations or orders issued under section 104 of the Mine Act, � contests of imminent danger withdrawal orders under section 107 of the Mine Act, and � emergency response plan dispute proceedings (as required under the Mine Improvement and New Emergency Response Act of 2006, Pub. L. No. 109-236, 120 Stat. 493).



 



Final 1 TITAN AMERICA SA POLICY FOR THE RECOVERY OF ERRONEOUSLY AWARDED COMPENSATION 1. Purpose. The purpose of this Policy is to describe the circumstances in which Executive Officers will be required to repay or return Erroneously Awarded Compensation to the Company in accordance with the Clawback Rules. Each Executive Officer shall be required to sign and return to the Company the Acknowledgement and Acceptance Form attached hereto as Exhibit A pursuant to which such Executive Officer will acknowledge that he or she is bound by the terms of this Policy; provided, however, that this Policy shall apply to, and be enforceable against, any Executive Officer and his or her successors (as specified in Section 11 of this Policy) regardless of whether or not such Executive Officer properly signs and returns to the Company such Acknowledgement and Acceptance Form and regardless of whether or not such Executive Officer is aware of his or her status as such. 2. Administration. Except as specifically set forth herein, this Policy shall be administered by the Administrator. Any determinations made by the Administrator shall be final and binding on all affected individuals and need not be uniform with respect to each individual covered by this Policy. Subject to any limitation under applicable law, the Administrator may authorize and empower any officer or employee of the Company to take any and all actions necessary or appropriate to carry out the purpose and intent of this Policy (other than with respect to any recovery under this Policy involving such officer or employee). 3. Definitions. For purposes of this Policy, the following capitalized terms shall have the meanings set forth below. (a) “Accounting Restatement” shall mean an accounting restatement due to the material noncompliance of the Company with any financial reporting requirement under the securities laws, including any required accounting
restatement to correct an error in previously issued financial statements that is material to the previously issued financial statements (a “Big R” restatement), or that would result in a material misstatement if the error were corrected in the current period or left uncorrected in the current period (a “little r” restatement). For the avoidance of doubt, an Accounting Restatement will not be deemed to occur in the event of a restatement of the Company’s financial statements due to a retrospective (i) application of a change in accounting principles; (ii) revision to reportable segment information due to a change in the structure of the Company’s internal organization; (iii) reclassification due to a discontinued operation; (iv) application of a change in reporting entity, such as from a reorganization of entities under common control; or (v) revision for stock splits, reverse stock splits, stock dividends, or other changes in capital structure. (b) “Administrator” shall mean the Committee or any other committee designated by the Board to administer the Policy, and in the absence of such designation, the Board. (c) “Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company. (d) “Clawback Eligible Incentive Compensation” shall mean, with respect to each individual who served as an Executive Officer at any time during the applicable performance period for any Incentive-based Compensation (whether or not such individual is serving as an



 

2 Executive Officer at the time the Erroneously Awarded Compensation is required to be repaid to the Company), all Incentive-based Compensation Received by such individual: (i) on or after the Effective Date; (ii) after beginning service as an Executive Officer; (iii) while the Company has a class of securities listed on the Listing Exchange; and (iv) during the applicable Clawback Period. (e) “Clawback Period” shall mean, with respect to any Accounting Restatement, the three completed fiscal years of the Company immediately preceding the Restatement Date and any transition period (that results from a change in the Company’s fiscal year) of less than nine months within or immediately following those three completed fiscal years. (f) “Clawback Rules” shall mean Section 10D of the Exchange Act and any applicable rules or standards adopted by the SEC thereunder (including Rule 10D-1 under the Exchange Act) or the Listing Exchange pursuant to Rule 10D-1 under the Exchange Act (including Section 303A.14 of the New York Stock Exchange Listed Company Manual), in each case as may be in effect from time to time. (g) “Committee” shall mean the Nominating and Compensation Committee of the Board. (h) “Company” shall mean Titan America SA (and as the Administrator determines is applicable, together with each of its direct and indirect subsidiaries). (i) “Effective Date” shall mean [●], 2025. (j) “Erroneously Awarded Compensation” shall mean, with respect to each Executive Officer (or any other individual in the discretion of the Board or Committee) in connection with an Accounting Restatement, (i) the amount of Clawback Eligible Incentive Compensation that exceeds the amount of Clawback Eligible Incentive Compensation that otherwise would have been Received had it been determined based on the restated amounts, computed without regard to any taxes paid and (ii) any other compensation reasonably determined by the Board
or Committee. (k) “Exchange Act” shall mean the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. (l) “Executive Officer” shall mean any individual who is or was an executive officer as determined by the Administrator in accordance with the definition of “executive officer” as set forth in the Clawback Rules and any other senior executive, employee or other personnel of the Company who may from time to time be deemed subject to the Policy by the Administrator. For the avoidance of doubt, the Administrator shall have full discretion to determine which individuals in the Company shall be considered an “Executive Officer” for purposes of this Policy. (m) “Financial Reporting Measures” shall mean measures that are determined and presented in accordance with the accounting principles used in preparing the Company’s financial statements, and any measures that are derived wholly or in part from such measures. Stock price and total shareholder return shall for purposes of this Policy be considered Financial Reporting Measures. For the avoidance of doubt, a Financial Reporting Measure (i) includes “non-GAAP” financial measures for purposes of Regulation G of the Exchange Act, as well as other measures,





 

3 metrics and ratios that are not non-GAAP measures; and (ii) need not be presented within the Company’s financial statements or included in a filing with the SEC. (n) “Impracticable” shall mean, in accordance with the good faith determination of the Committee, or if the Committee does not consist of independent directors, a majority of the independent directors serving on the Board, that recovery would be impracticable and any of the following conditions are met: (i) the direct expenses paid to a third party to assist in enforcing the Policy against an Executive Officer would exceed the amount to be recovered, after the Company has made a reasonable attempt to recover the applicable Erroneously Awarded Compensation, documented such reasonable attempt(s) and provided such documentation to the Listing Exchange; (ii) recovery would violate Belgian law where that law was adopted prior to November 28, 2022, provided that, before concluding that it would be Impracticable to recover any amount of Erroneously Awarded Compensation based on violation of Belgian law, the Company has obtained an opinion of Belgian counsel, acceptable to the Listing Exchange, that recovery would result in such a violation and a copy of the opinion is provided to the Listing Exchange; or (iii) recovery would likely cause an otherwise tax-qualified retirement plan, under which benefits are broadly available to employees of the Company, to fail to meet the requirements of 26 U.S.C. 401(a)(13) or 26 U.S.C. 411(a) and regulations thereunder. (o) “Incentive-based Compensation” shall mean any compensation that is granted, earned or vested based wholly or in part upon the attainment of a Financial Reporting Measure. (p) “Listing Exchange” shall mean the New York Stock Exchange or such other U.S. national securities exchange or national securities association on which the Company’s securities are listed. (q) “Method of Recovery” shall include, but is not limited to
(i) requiring reimbursement of Erroneously Awarded Compensation; (ii) seeking recovery of any gain realized on the vesting, exercise, settlement, sale, transfer, or other disposition of any equity-based awards; (iii) offsetting the Erroneously Awarded Compensation from any compensation otherwise owed by the Company to the Executive Officer; (iv) cancelling outstanding vested or unvested equity awards; and/or (v) taking any other remedial and recovery action permitted by applicable law, as determined by the Administrator. (r) “Policy” shall mean this Policy for the Recovery of Erroneously Awarded Compensation, as the same may be amended and/or restated from time to time. (s) “Received” shall, with respect to any Incentive-based Compensation, mean deemed receipt and Incentive-based Compensation shall be deemed received in the Company’s fiscal period during which the Financial Reporting Measure specified in the Incentive-based Compensation award is attained, even if the payment or grant of the Incentive-based Compensation occurs after the end of that period. For the avoidance of doubt, Incentive-based Compensation that is subject to both a Financial Reporting Measure vesting condition and a service-based vesting condition shall be considered received when the Financial Reporting Measure is achieved, even if the Incentive-based Compensation continues to be subject to the service-based vesting condition.





 

4 (t) “Restatement Date” shall mean the earlier to occur of: (i) the date the Board, a committee of the Board or the officer or officers of the Company authorized to take such action if Board action is not required, concludes, or reasonably should have concluded, that the Company is required to prepare an Accounting Restatement; or (ii) the date a court, regulator or other legally authorized body directs the Company to prepare an Accounting Restatement. (u) “SEC” shall mean the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission. 4. Repayment of Erroneously Awarded Compensation. (a) In the event the Company is required to prepare an Accounting Restatement, the Administrator shall reasonably promptly (in accordance with the applicable Clawback Rules) determine the amount of any Erroneously Awarded Compensation for each Executive Officer in connection with such Accounting Restatement and shall reasonably promptly thereafter provide each Executive Officer with written notice containing the amount of Erroneously Awarded Compensation and a demand for repayment or return, as applicable. For Clawback Eligible Incentive Compensation based on stock price or total shareholder return where the amount of Erroneously Awarded Compensation is not subject to mathematical recalculation directly from the information in the applicable Accounting Restatement, the amount shall be determined by the Administrator based on a reasonable estimate of the effect of the Accounting Restatement on the stock price or total shareholder return upon which the Clawback Eligible Incentive Compensation was Received (in which case, the Company shall maintain documentation of such determination of that reasonable estimate and provide such documentation to the Listing Exchange). The Administrator is authorized to engage, on behalf of the Company, any third-party advisors it deems advisable in order to perform any calculations contemplated by this Policy. For
the avoidance of doubt, recovery under this Policy with respect to an Executive Officer shall not require the finding of any misconduct by such Executive Officer or such Executive Officer being found responsible for the accounting error leading to an Accounting Restatement. (b) In the event that any repayment of Erroneously Awarded Compensation is owed to the Company, the Administrator shall recover reasonably promptly the Erroneously Awarded Compensation through any Method of Recovery it deems reasonable and appropriate in its discretion based on all applicable facts and circumstances and taking into account the time value of money and the cost to shareholders of delaying recovery. For the avoidance of doubt, except to the extent permitted pursuant to the Clawback Rules, in no event may the Company accept an amount that is less than the amount of Erroneously Awarded Compensation in satisfaction of an Executive Officer’s obligations hereunder. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Company shall not be required to take the actions contemplated in this Section 4(b) if recovery would be Impracticable. In implementing the actions contemplated in this Section 4(b), the Administrator will act in accordance with the listing standards and requirements of the Listing Exchange and with the applicable Clawback Rules. (c) Subject to the discretion of the Administrator, an applicable Executive Officer may be required to reimburse the Company for any and all expenses reasonably incurred (including legal fees) by the Company in recovering Erroneously Awarded Compensation in accordance with Section 4(b).





 

5 5. Reporting and Disclosure. The Company shall file all disclosures with respect to this Policy in accordance with the requirements of U.S. federal securities laws, including any disclosure required by applicable SEC rules. 6. Indemnification Prohibition. The Company shall not be permitted to indemnify any Executive Officer against the loss of any Erroneously Awarded Compensation that is repaid, returned or recovered pursuant to the terms of this Policy and/or pursuant to the Clawback Rules or to pay or reimburse any Executive Officer for the cost of third-party insurance purchased by an Executive Officer to cover any such loss under this Policy and/or pursuant to the Clawback Rules. Further, the Company shall not enter into any agreement that exempts any Incentive-based Compensation from the application of this Policy or that waives the Company’s right to recovery of any Erroneously Awarded Compensation and this Policy shall supersede any such agreement (whether entered into before, on or after the Effective Date). Any such purported indemnification (whether oral or in writing) shall be null and void. 7. Interpretation. The Administrator is authorized to interpret and construe this Policy and to make all determinations necessary, appropriate, or advisable for the administration of this Policy. It is intended that this Policy be interpreted in a manner that is consistent with the requirements of the Clawback Rules. The terms of this Policy shall also be construed and enforced in such a manner as to comply with applicable law, including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, and any other law or regulation that the Administrator determines is applicable. In the event any provision of this Policy is determined to be unenforceable or invalid under applicable law, such provision shall be applied to the maximum extent permitted by applicable law and shall automatically be deemed amended in a
manner consistent with its objectives to the extent necessary to conform to any limitations required by applicable law. 8. Effective Date. This Policy shall be effective as of the Effective Date. 9. Amendment; Termination. The Administrator may modify or amend this Policy, in whole or in part, from time to time in its discretion and shall amend any or all of the provisions of this Policy as it deems necessary, including as and when it determines that it is legally required by the Clawback Rules, or any federal securities law, SEC rule or Listing Exchange rule. The Administrator may terminate this Policy at any time, and this Policy shall remain in effect only so long as the Clawback Rules apply to the Company. Notwithstanding anything in this Section 9 to the contrary, no amendment or termination of this Policy shall be effective if such amendment or termination would (after taking into account any actions taken by the Company contemporaneously with such amendment or termination) cause the Company to violate the Clawback Rules, or any federal securities law, SEC rule or Listing Exchange rule. Furthermore, unless otherwise determined by the Administrator or as otherwise amended, this Policy shall automatically be deemed amended in a manner necessary to comply with any change in the Clawback Rules. 10. Other Recoupment Rights; No Additional Payments. The Administrator intends that this Policy will be applied to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law. The Administrator may require that any employment agreement, equity award agreement, or any other agreement entered into on or after the Effective Date shall, as a condition to the grant of any benefit thereunder,





 

6 require an Executive Officer to agree to abide by the terms of this Policy. Executive Officers shall be deemed to have accepted continuing employment on terms that include compliance with the Policy, to the extent of its otherwise applicable provisions, and to be contractually bound by its enforcement provisions. Executive Officers who cease employment or service with the Company shall continue to be bound by the terms of the Policy with respect to Clawback Eligible Incentive Compensation. Any right of recoupment under this Policy is in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other remedies or rights of recoupment that may be available to the Company under applicable law, regulation or rule or pursuant to the terms of any similar policy in any employment agreement, cash-based bonus plan, equity award agreement or similar agreement and any other legal remedies available to the Company. To the extent that an Executive Officer has already reimbursed the Company for any Erroneously Awarded Compensation Received under any duplicative recovery obligations established by the Company or applicable law, it shall be appropriate for any such reimbursed amount to be credited to the amount of Erroneously Awarded Compensation that is subject to recovery under this Policy, as determined by the Administrator in its sole discretion. Nothing in this Policy precludes the Company from implementing any additional clawback or recoupment policies with respect to Executive Officers or any other service provider of the Company. Application of this Policy does not preclude the Company from taking any other action to enforce any Executive Officer’s obligations to the Company, including termination of employment or institution of civil or criminal proceedings or any other remedies that may be available to the Company with respect to any Executive Officer. 11. Successors. This Policy shall be binding and enforceable against all Executive Officers and their
beneficiaries, estates, heirs, executors, administrators or other legal representatives to the extent required by the Clawback Rules or as otherwise determined by the Administrator. * * *





 

7 Exhibit A TITAN AMERICA SA POLICY FOR THE RECOVERY OF ERRONEOUSLY AWARDED COMPENSATION ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND ACCEPTANCE FORM Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined in this Acknowledgement and Acceptance Form shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the Titan America SA Policy for the Recovery of Erroneously Awarded Compensation (the “Policy”). By signing below, the undersigned executive officer (the “Executive Officer”) acknowledges and confirms that the Executive Officer has received and reviewed a copy of the Policy and, in addition, the Executive Officer acknowledges and agrees as follows: (a) the Executive Officer is and will continue to be subject to the Policy and that the Policy will apply both during and after the Executive Officer’s employment with the Company; (b) to the extent necessary to comply with the Policy, the Policy hereby amends any employment agreement, equity award agreement or similar agreement that the Executive Officer is a party to with the Company and shall apply and govern Incentive-based Compensation Received by any Executive Officer, notwithstanding any contrary or supplemental term or condition in any document, plan or agreement including without limitation any employment contract, indemnification agreement, equity agreement, or equity plan document. The foregoing notwithstanding, unless otherwise expressly required to comply with the Clawback Rules, this Policy will not amend or otherwise modify or replace any other remedies or rights of recoupment that may be available to the Company under applicable law, regulation or rule or pursuant to the terms of any similar policy in any employment agreement, cash-based bonus plan, equity award agreement or similar agreement and any other legal remedies available to the Company; (c) the Executive Officer shall abide by the terms of the Policy, including, without
limitation, by returning any Erroneously Awarded Compensation to the Company to the extent required by, and in a manner permitted by, the Policy; (d) any amounts payable to the Executive Officer, including any Incentive-based Compensation, shall be subject to the Policy as may be in effect and modified from time to time in the sole discretion of the Administrator or as required by applicable law or the requirements of the Listing Exchange, and that such modification will be deemed to amend this acknowledgment; (e) the Company may recover compensation paid to the Executive Officer through any Method of Recovery the Administrator deems appropriate, and the Executive Officer agrees to comply with any request or demand for repayment by the Company in order to comply with the Policy; (f) the recovery of Erroneously Awarded Compensation under this Policy will not give rise to any right to voluntarily terminate employment for “good reason,” or due to a “constructive termination” (or any similar term of like effect) under any plan, program or policy of or agreement with the Company;





 

Signature page to Titan America SA Policy for the Recovery of Erroneously Awarded Compensation Acknowledgement and Acceptance Form (g) the Company may, to the greatest extent permitted by applicable law, reduce any amount that may become payable to the Executive Officer by any amount to be recovered by the Company pursuant to the Policy to the extent such amount has not been returned by the Executive Officer to the Company prior to the date that any subsequent amount becomes payable to the Executive Officer; and (h) any assertion or application of any rights under federal, state, local or foreign law or in contract or equity that would otherwise conflict with or narrow the Company’s authority to interpret, apply and enforce the Policy to its fullest extent, including but not limited to, the Company’s authority to withhold or divert wages pursuant to the Policy, is hereby waived by the Executive Officer. This Acknowledgment and Acceptance Form may be electronically signed and any digital or electronic signatures (including pdf, facsimile or electronically imaged signatures provided by DocuSign or any other digital signature provider) appearing on this Acknowledgment and Acceptance Form are the same as handwritten signatures for the purposes of validity, enforceability and admissibility, and that delivery of any such electronic signature to, or a signed copy of, this Acknowledgment and Acceptance Form may be made by facsimile, email or other electronic transmission. Signature Print Name Date





 


